
CITY OF GERING 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

 

 

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF GERING PLANNING COMMISSION WILL BE 
HELD ON TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2025 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE GERING CITY HALL 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 1025 P STREET, GERING, NEBRASKA. 

All agenda items are for discussion and action will be taken as deemed appropriate.  

  Call to Order and Roll Call 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Open Meetings Act - Neb. Rev. Stat. Chapter 84, Article 14, As required by State 
Law, public bodies shall make available at least one current copy of the Open 
Meetings Act posted in the meeting room.  Agenda items may be moved up or 
down on the agenda at the discretion of the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson.  
Additions may not be made to this agenda less than 24 hours before the beginning 
of the meeting unless they are considered under this section of the agenda and 
the Planning Commission determines that the matter requires emergency action. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes of the July 15, 2025 regular Planning Commission meeting 

 
4. Current Business: 

 
A. Oath of Office (Stan Waterman) 

 
B. Public Hearing to consider changes to the Zoning Code Regulations 

 
C. Public Hearing to consider amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 

 
5. City Engineer report 

 
6. OPEN COMMENT: Discussion or action by the Planning Commission regarding 

unscheduled business will not take place.  This section is for citizen comment 
only. 

 
7. Adjourn 



THE OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS OF THE CITY OF GERING PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR 
MEETING, July 15, 2025 
 
A regular meeting of the City of Gering Planning Commission was held in open session on July 15, 2025, 
at 6:00 p.m. in the Gering City Hall Council Chambers at 1025 P Street, Gering, NE.  Present were 
Commissioners Crews, Hauck, C. Kaufman, Shimic, and Taylor.  Absent: Alvizar, T. Kaufman, Keener, 
and Miles.  Also present were City Engineer Annie Folck, Mayor Kent Ewing, and Secretary Karen Heins.  
Notice of the meeting was given in advance by publication in the Star-Herald, the designated method of 
giving notice.  All proceedings hereafter were taken while the meeting was open to the attendance of the 
public. 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call: 
Commissioner Taylor called the meeting to order at 6:26 P.M. and noted that a quorum of the Planning 
Commission was present and business could be conducted.  
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Open Meetings Act - Neb. Rev. Stat. Chapter 84, Article14 
 

Commissioner Taylor stated: As required by State Law, public bodies shall make available at least 
one current copy of the Open Meetings Act posted in the meeting room.  Agenda items may be 
moved up or down on the agenda at the discretion of the Chairperson.  Additions may not be 
made to this agenda less than 24 hours before the beginning of the meeting unless they are 
considered under this section of the agenda and the Planning Commission determines that the 
matter requires emergency action. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes of the May 6, 2025, regular Planning Commission meeting 

 
  Motion made by Commissioner Crews to approve the minutes of the May 6, 2025 regular 

Planning Commission meeting.  Seconded by Commissioner Hauck.  There was no 
discussion.  The Secretary called the roll. “AYES”:  Taylor, Crews, C. Kaufman and Hauck.  
“NAYS”: None.  Abstain: Shimic.  Absent: Alvizar, T. Kaufman, Keener, and Miles.  Motion 
carried. 

 
4. Current Business: 

 
A. Public Hearing to consider Conditional Use Permit for an Accessory Dwelling Unit on Lot 

6, Block 4, Thorntons Addition, Gering, Nebraska, currently zoned RM, Residential 
Medium-Density 

i. Approve or Deny Conditional Use Permit 
 

Commissioner Taylor opened a public hearing at 6:29 p.m. to consider the Conditional Use Permit for 
an Accessory Dwelling Unit on Lot 6, Block 4, Thorntons Addition, Gering, Nebraska, currently zoned 
RM, Residential Medium-Density.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Gering 
PLANNING COMMISSION Recommendation and Report 

              
 

To: Planning Commission Date: 7/15/2025 
From: Planning & Community Development Zoning: RM 
Subject: Recommendation & Report - Conditional 

Use Permit for an Accessory Dwelling Unit 
on Lot 6, Block 4, Thorntons Addition, 
Gering, Nebraska, currently zoned RM, 
Residential Medium-Density 

Property Size: 
13,683.87 
square feet 

Location: 1885 4th Street; Lot 6, Block 4, Thorntons 
Addition, Gering, Nebraska 

#Lots/Parcels: 1 

Owner: 
Juan Gerardo Delgadillo 

City Council 
Public 
Hearing: 

N/A 

 
Public Notice: This Public Hearing was noticed meeting City Zoning and Subdivision Regulations and 
according to Nebraska State Statutes. 
 
Agenda Item Summary 
The City of Gering has received an application for a conditional use permit for an accessory dwelling 
unit (ADU) on Lot 6, Block 4, Thornton’s Addition (1885 4th Street). This property is currently zoned RM, 
Medium Density Residential. The lot currently has a small, 544 square foot house on it. The property 
owner has a home that he is hoping to purchase and move onto the lot. While the lot is large enough 
that it could be split into two lots, with a home on each, the home they are planning on moving in is only 
672 square feet, which is too small to serve as a primary single-family residence on its own lot. 
However, it could be considered an accessory dwelling unit, which is allowable as a conditional use in 
the RM zone.  
 
The following criteria are required to be considered by Planning Commission when deciding whether or 
not to grant the CUP: 
 
Access/Fire Safety: The property is located on a corner lot, so there is good access to the lot both 
from the east and the south. 
 
Off Street Parking and Loading Areas: The applicant will provide off-street parking adjacent to the 
alley. Additionally, there is plenty of on-street parking available as this is a corner lot and there are no 
residences or businesses to the south. 
 
Refuse and Service Areas: N/A 
 
Utilities: All utilities are currently available to the property. 
 
Screening and Buffering: N/A 
 
Signs and Exterior Lighting: None 
 
Required Yards and Open Spaces: Proposed site plan will meet all required setbacks in the RM zone. 
 



General Compatibility: See attached pictures. The home that is to be moved in is in good condition 
and should fit in well with the other homes in the area. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve 
Approve Conditional Use Permit for an Accessory Dwelling Unit on Lot 6, Block 4, Thornton’s Addition, 
City of Gering, Nebraska 
 
Deny 
Deny Conditional Use Permit for Lot 6, Block 4, Thornton’s Addition, City of Gering, Nebraska 
 
Table 
Table considering Conditional Use Permit for Lot 6, Block 4, Thornton’s Addition, City of Gering, 
Nebraska 
 
Engineer Folck reported that the City received an application for an accessory dwelling unit on this 
property, currently zoned RM.  The proposed accessory dwelling unit would serve as a secondary 
residence, which is conditional use in the RM Zone. The property is located at the First Addition of 
Gering, a small neighborhood northeast of the Junior High School.  
 
She noted that this particular lot is much larger than surrounding lots, and its size is a key factor in 
evaluating its suitability for an accessory dwelling unit. The reason this is conditional use and not 
permitted use by right is because not all residential lots are big enough for more than one dwelling unit.  
In addition to considering the lot size, parking was also considered.  Parking can be a nuisance if you 
put too many residences in one area.  And a final factor for consideration was the appearance of the 
home itself; is it compatible with the look of the neighborhood.  
 
In this case, the lot’s large size and corner location make it well-suited for additional parking. The 
existing home on the lot is approximately 544 square feet and the applicant is proposing to add a 
second home roughly the same size, a little over 600 square feet, aligning with the homes along 3rd 
Street.   
 
Engineer Folck further added that originally, staff considered splitting the lot into two parcels, as the lot 
size would allow for it.  However, she pointed out that the proposed accessory dwelling unit’s square 
footage falls below the 900-square-foot minimum required for a single-family home under the City’s 
definition. So instead, it's being proposed as an accessory dwelling unit, which is why a conditional use 
permit is needed. 
 
Again, the lot is sufficiently large and, being located on a corner, offers ample parking. The applicant 
has also indicated that additional parking could be added off the alley if necessary. The only remaining 
consideration is the appearance of the proposed accessory dwelling unit. The unit is an existing home 
that will be relocated to the site. Photos submitted by the applicant show it is in very good condition and 
compatible with other homes in the neighborhood. Therefore, staff is recommending approval of the 
conditional use permit. 
 
Public Hearing 
 
Commissioner Taylor asked if anyone in the Chamber wished to speak to this application.  No one came 
forward to speak.  Commissioner Taylor stated that with no further comments, the public hearing was 
closed at 6:31 p.m.  



 
Motion made by Commissioner Crews to approve the Conditional Use Permit for an Accessory 
Dwelling Unit on Lot 6, Block 4, Thorntons Addition, Gering, Nebraska, currently zoned RM, 
Residential Medium-Density.  Seconded by Commissioner Shimic.   
 
Discussion followed:  Commissioner Hauck inquired about the type of foundation for the proposed 
dwelling. Engineer Folck confirmed that it will be placed on a crawl space. Commissioner Hauck also 
asked whether the unit would have access to City utilities, to which Engineer Folck responded 
affirmatively. 
 
Commissioner Taylor observed that the existing home on the property is only 544 square feet and does 
not meet the current minimum size requirement. He asked whether the City’s regulations were 
previously more lenient. Engineer Folck explained that the existing home predates the current code and 
is located in one of the oldest areas of the city. 
 
The Secretary called the roll. “AYES”:  Taylor, Crews, Shimic, C. Kaufman and Hauck.  “NAYS”: 
None.  Abstain: None.  Absent: Alvizar, T. Kaufman, Keener, and Miles.  Motion carried. 
 

B. Consider Preliminary Plat for Block 2A, Prairie View Addition, a Replat of Block 2, Prairie 
View Addition, and Unplatted Lands in the N ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 12, Township 21 
N, Range 55 W of the 6th P.M., City of Gering, Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska 

 
City of Gering 

PLANNING COMMISSION Recommendation and Report 
              

 

To: Planning Commission Date: 7/15/2025 

From: Planning & Community Development Zoning: RM 

Subject: Recommendation & Report – Preliminary 
Plat for Block 2A, Prairie View Addition, A 
replat of Block 2, Prairie View Addition, an 
addition to the City of Gering, Nebraska and 
unplatted lands in the North half of the 
Northwest quarter of Section 12, Township 
21 North, Range 55 West of the 6th P.M., 
Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska 

Property Size: 

3.05 ACRES 

Location: 665 D Street, Gering Nebraska #Lots/Parcels: 1 

Owner: 
Kurt L. / Vicke E. Weber 

City Council 
Public 
Hearing: 

7/28/2025 

 
Agenda Item Summary 
The City has received an application for a Preliminary Plat for Block 2A, Prairie View Addition. This is a 
replat that will combine three existing lots into one. The property owner has requested the replat for tax 



purposes. Because a portion of the property is currently unplatted, this must go through Planning 
Commission and Council instead of being approved administratively. 
Recommendation 
 
Approve 
Make a Positive Recommendation for City Council to approve the Preliminary Plat for Block 2A, Prairie 
View Addition, a replat of Block 2, Prairie View Addition, and addition to the City of Gering, Nebraska, 
and unplatted lands in the North ½ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 12, Township 21 North, Range 55 
West of the 6th P.M., Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska 
 
Deny 
Make a Negative Recommendation for City Council to approve the Preliminary Plat Preliminary Plat for 
Block 2A, Prairie View Addition, a replat of Block 2, Prairie View Addition, and addition to the City of 
Gering, Nebraska, and unplatted lands in the North ½ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 12, Township 21 
North, Range 55 West of the 6th P.M., Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska 
 
Table 
Table making a recommendation on the Preliminary Plat of Preliminary Plat for Block 2A, Prairie View 
Addition, a replat of Block 2, Prairie View Addition, and addition to the City of Gering, Nebraska, and 
unplatted lands in the North ½ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 12, Township 21 North, Range 55 West of 
the 6th P.M., Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska 
 
Engineer Folck presented her report and highlighted the property’s location on a map—situated at the 
intersection of D Street and 7th Street. She commented that while the site may appear to be a single lot 
when driving by, it actually consists of three separate parcels. The current proposal involves removing 
the internal plat lines to consolidate the three parcels into one lot. 
 
Typically, this type of lot combination could be handled administratively. However, since part of the 
property is currently unplatted and some utility easement changes are proposed, it must be reviewed by 
both the Planning Commission and City Council. 
 
Engineer Folck summarized that the application seeks to: 1) Merge the three existing parcels into a 
single, larger lot by eliminating the interior plat lines; and, 2) Remove utility and access easements that 
will no longer be necessary once the parcels are combined.  She added that the City is requesting that 
the utility easement along the south side remain in place to ensure adequate access and space for 
maintenance of the sewer line located along the property line, and to allow room for the crews to place 
dirt as needed. Additionally, a slight adjustment to the easement on the west side was proposed 
because currently, there is no formal recorded easement—only a prescriptive easement—and this 
adjustment would formalize and clarify this information. 
 
Engineer Folck stated that this is the preliminary plat.  Access to all utilities, streets, etc. are already in 
place, making this proposal relatively straight forward. Based on these factors, staff is recommending 
approval of the preliminary plat. 
 
Commissioner Taylor asked if the applicant(s) were present and recognized that the applicant raised 
their hand. 
 
Commissioner Kaufmann made a motion to approve the Preliminary Plat for Block 2A, Prairie 
View Addition, a Replat of Block 2, Prairie View Addition, and Unplatted Lands in the N ½ of the 
NW ¼ of Section 12, Township 21 N, Range 55 W of the 6th P.M., City of Gering, Scotts Bluff 
County, Nebraska.  Second by Commissioner Crews.  There was no discussion.  The Secretary 



called the roll. “AYES”:  Taylor, Crews, Shimic, C. Kaufman and Hauck.  “NAYS”: None.  
Abstain: None.  Absent: Alvizar, T. Kaufman, Keener, and Miles.  Motion carried. 
 

C. Consider Final Plat for Block 2A, Prairie View Addition, a Replat of Block 2, Prairie View 
Addition, and Unplatted Lands in the N ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 12, Township 21 N, 
Range 55 W of the 6th P.M., City of Gering, Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska 

 
City of Gering 

PLANNING COMMISSION Recommendation and Report 
              
 

To: Planning Commission Date: 7/15/2025 
From: Planning & Community Development Zoning: RM 
Subject: Recommendation & Report – Final Plat for 

Block 2A, Prairie View Addition, A replat of 
Block 2, Prairie View Addition, an addition to 
the City of Gering, Nebraska and unplatted 
lands in the North half of the Northwest 
quarter of Section 12, Township 21 North, 
Range 55 West of the 6th P.M., Scotts Bluff 
County, Nebraska 

Property Size: 

3.05 ACRES 

Location: 665 D Street, Gering, Nebraska #Lots/Parcels: 1 
Owner: 

Kurt L. / Vicke E. Weber 
City Council 
Public 
Hearing: 

7/28/2025 

 
Agenda Item Summary 
The City has received an application for the Final Plat of Block 2A, Prairie View Addition. This is a 
replat that will combine three existing lots into one. The property owner has requested the replat for tax 
purposes. Because a portion of the property is currently unplatted, this must go through Planning 
Commission and Council instead of being approved administratively. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve 
Make a Positive Recommendation for City Council to approve the Final Plat of Block 2A, Prairie View 
Addition, a replat of Block 2, Prairie View Addition, and addition to the City of Gering, Nebraska, and 
unplatted lands in the North ½ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 12, Township 21 North, Range 55 West of 
the 6th P.M., Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska 
 
Deny 
Make a Negative Recommendation for City Council to approve the Final Plat Block 2A, Prairie View 
Addition, a replat of Block 2, Prairie View Addition, and addition to the City of Gering, Nebraska, and 
unplatted lands in the North ½ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 12, Township 21 North, Range 55 West of 
the 6th P.M., Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska 
 
Table 
Table making a recommendation on the Final Plat Block 2A, Prairie View Addition, a replat of Block 2, 
Prairie View Addition, and addition to the City of Gering, Nebraska, and unplatted lands in the North ½ 



of the Northwest ¼ of Section 12, Township 21 North, Range 55 West of the 6th P.M., Scotts Bluff 
County, Nebraska 
 
 
Engineer Folck explained that this report correlates with the previously presented preliminary plat for 
this location; this is the final plat, which will be the official document recorded with the Register of 
Deeds. She stated that staff is recommending approval of the final plat. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Kaufmann to approve the Final Plat for Block 2A, Prairie View 
Addition, a Replat of Block 2, Prairie View Addition, and Unplatted Lands in the N ½ of the NW ¼ 
of Section 12, Township 21 N, Range 55 W of the 6th P.M., City of Gering, Scotts Bluff County, 
Nebraska.  Seconded by Commissioner Crews. 
 
Discussion followed: Commissioner Hauck asked for clarification on whether this item would proceed 
to the City Council. Engineer Folck confirmed that the Planning Commission's recommendation will be 
forwarded to the City Council for final approval. 
 
The Secretary called the roll. “AYES”:  Taylor, Crews, Shimic, C. Kaufman and Hauck.  “NAYS”: 
None.  Abstain: None.  Absent: Alvizar, T. Kaufman, Keener, and Miles.  Motion carried. 
 

5. City Engineer Report 
 

Engineer Folck stated that, in the interest of time, she would distribute her report to the Planning 
Commission via email. 

 
6. Open Comments:   

 
Commissioner Taylor noted that discussion or action by the Planning Commission regarding 
unscheduled business will not take place.  This section is for citizen comment only.  He asked 
they state their name and address if they would like to address the Planning Commission. 

 
There was none.  

 
7. Adjourn 

 
Motion made by Commissioner C. Kaufmann to adjourn.  Seconded by Commissioner 
Crews.  There was no discussion.  The Secretary called the roll. “AYES”:  Taylor, Crews, 
Shimic, C. Kaufman and Hauck.  “NAYS”: None.  Abstain: None.  Absent: Alvizar, T. 
Kaufman, Keener, and Miles.  Motion carried. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:41 P.M.  
 
 

       
                                                         Jody Miles, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Karen Heins, Administrative Secretary  



CITY OF GERING 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION AND REPORT 

 
 
 

To: Planning Commission Date: 8/19/2025 

From: Planning & Community Development Zoning:  

Subject: Proposed Changes to Zoning Regulations Property Size:  

Location: N/A #Lots/Parcels:  

Owner: N/A City Council 
Public Hearing: 9/8/2025 

 
Public Notice: This Public Hearing was noticed meeting the requirements of Nebraska State Statutes and 
City of Gering Zoning Regulations. 
 
Agenda Item Summary 
 
Our zoning code is meant to be a living document that can be changed over time as needed to better fit 
the need of the community. The following are the changes that staff is putting forward for consideration: 
 

• Review uses of the C-1 zone. During consideration of a recent controversial zone change request, 
it became evident that many residents are not comfortable with all of the uses in the C-1 zone 
being close to where they live. The C-1 zone, Neighborhood Commercial, is intended by design to 
be compatible with nearby residential properties. The proposed changes in use are highlighted in 
red on the attached Land Use Table (Section 3.11). This would narrow down the number of 
allowable uses in this zone, making it less likely to have adverse effects on surrounding properties. 

• Add definitions related to Medical Marijuana (Section 5.12). The state of Nebraska has legalized 
medical marijuana, so now the City must incorporate it into our zoning code in order to have 
oversight over where these facilities will be located. 

• Determine which zones are appropriate for Medical Marijuana facilities. 
• Consider adding Greenhouse as a permitted use in the C-2 zone. 
• Consider changing the language in the zoning code regarding protests (Section 2.2.1.D) for zoning 

codes to be more consistent with state statute. Currently our zoning code allows for protests for 
any reason, and if over 20% of neighboring property owners protest a zone change, the Council 
must pass it by ¾ majority. State statute allows for protests as well, but only in cases where the 
proposed change is inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan. This would ensure that residents 
still have the right to protest arbitrary changes, while also ensuring that zone changes are 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan are not faced with insurmountable challenges.  

 
  



AG RR RL RM RH C-1 C-2 C-3 ML MH

USES AGG / AEDS RRE RL (RM + RML) (RMH) BNC(C-1) BCB(C-2)
(BHC(C-3)+ BTS(C-

4) +BEC(C-5)
ML MH

AGRICULTURAL
Agricultural Produce Stand P P
Agricultural Production P P
Agricultural Service C
Animal Husbandry P P
Bulk Grain Storage / Grain Elevator P P P
Feed Lots (1st / 2nd / 3rd Class) C
Livestock Auction / Sales Barn P

NATURAL RESOURCE
Gas / Oil Wells C C
Natural Resource Extraction / Processing C C

RESIDENTIAL
Boarding and Rooming Houses / Bed and Breakfasts C P C C C P
Convalescent / Nursing / Rest Homes P P
Group Home C C C C
Group Shelters / Transitional Housing C C C P
Home Occupation P P P P P
Independent and Assisted Living Center P P
Live Work  / Loft (Residential / Commercial) Dwelling (not in 1st 
floor/basement level)

P P

Mobile / Manufactured Home Park P
Multi-Family Dwellings - General P
Muti-Family Dwellings - Limited (6 units or less) C P
Short-term Residential Rental P P P P P P P
Single-Family Dwellings (attached) C C P P P
Single-Family Dwellings (dettached) P P P P P
Accessory Dwelling Unit P P C P
Tiny Homes / Tiny Home Community P
Two-Family Dwelling (Duplex) C P P

CIVIC / PUBLIC ASSEMBLY / SEMI-PUBLIC / UTILITY
Airports / Landing Strips / Heliports C C C C
Cemetaries C C C C C
Communication Equipment / Structures C C C P P P P
Communication Towers C C C C C C C C C C
Community / Cultural / Educational Facilities C C C C C C C P P
Golf Course C C C C C
Government / Public Service Administrative Facilities C C P P P
Government / Public Service Yards C C P P P
Hospital C C P P P
Libraries C C P P P

ZONING DISTRICTS



AG RR RL RM RH C-1 C-2 C-3 ML MH

USES AGG / AEDS RRE RL (RM + RML) (RMH) BNC(C-1) BCB(C-2)
(BHC(C-3)+ BTS(C-

4) +BEC(C-5)
ML MH

ZONING DISTRICTS

Parks (public / private) P P P P P P P P P P
Post Offices C P P P P
Public Safety / Emergency Service Facilities C C C C C C P P P P
Recreation / Entertainment Facilities - Indoor (public / private) C C C C C P P P C
Recreation / Enterainment Facilities - Outdoor (public / private) C C C C C C C P C
Religious Facilities / Institutions (Churches) C C C C C P P P
Sports Arenas / Stadiums (within buildings) C P P
Theaters / Auditoriums C P P P
Utility and Service Facilities C C C C C C C P P P
Water / Sewage Treatment Facilities C P P

COMMERCIAL / INDUSTRIAL
Art Galleries P P P P
Automatic Bank Teller Machines - external / stand alone C C P P P
Auto wrecking yard or junk yard only when located inside a building or 
when wholly enclosed by a well-maintained fence not less than eight 
(8) feet in height.

C P

Banks (with or without drive through or ATM) C P P P
Barber and Beauty Shops P P P P
Bars / Cocktail Lounges / Drinking Establishments / Nightclubs P P P
Bicycle Shops P P P P
Billiard / Pool Halls P P P
Bowling Alleys P P P
Bus Depots / Public Transit Transfer Stations P P P P
Bus / Transit Fleet (storage, repair or service) P P
Commercial Retail - stores / shops P P P P P
Commercial Services P P P
Commercial Services - limited P P P P P
Contractor / Equipment / Vehicle Fleet Yards P P
Convenience Stores C P P P P
Day Care - Child Care Centers C C C P P P C
Day Care - Family Child Care Home P P P P P
Day Care - Family Child Care Home (24 hours) C C C C C
Exterminators P P P
Farm Equipment Sales / Display - with or without repair services C P P P
Feed and Seed Stores (enclosed structure only) C P P P
Funeral Homes / Chapels / Mortuaries C P P P
Garden Supply / Outdoor Nurseries P P P P
Garden Supply Stores - Nurseries limited (enclosed area and contianer / 
packaged form)

C P P P

Hotels / Motels / Lodging Facilities P P P
Household Appliance / Repair Shops P P P P
Industrial Services P P



AG RR RL RM RH C-1 C-2 C-3 ML MH

USES AGG / AEDS RRE RL (RM + RML) (RMH) BNC(C-1) BCB(C-2)
(BHC(C-3)+ BTS(C-

4) +BEC(C-5)
ML MH

ZONING DISTRICTS

Kennels - indoor P P P P
Kennels - outdoor C C P P
Laundries / Dry Cleaning - self service or pick-up / drop off activities only P P P P P
Liquor Stores P P P
Manufacturing / Fabrication / Assembly P P
Manufacturing / Fabrication / Assembly - limited C C P P P
Meat Locker P P P
Meat and poultry packing, slaughtering, eviscerating and skinning; and 
the rendering of by-products of slaughtering and killing animals or 
poultry.

C

Medical Cannabis Cultivator
Medical Cannabis Dispensary
Medical Cannabis Product Manufacturer
Medical Cannabis Transporter
Medical / Health Facilities P P P P
Microbrewery C P P P P
Mini / Self- storage Rental Buildings / Units C P P
Music / Dance Studios C P P P P
New / Used Automobile Sales C P P P
New / Used Automobile Sales with limited repair services P P P
Office / Office Buildings business and professional P P P P P
Parking Lot (stand alone - public or private) P P P P P
Parcel Delivery Services P P P P
Pharmacy C P P P
Printing Shops P P P P
Recreational Vehicle Parking Area P P P
Recreational Vehicle Sales / Service / Rentals / Repair P P P
Repair Services - Automobile P P P
Repair Services - Automobile Limited C P P P
Restaurants - Drive-in / Drive-thru C C P P
Restaurants / Cafes P P P P
Retail Stores / Shops P P P P
Service / Gas Stations - Automobile (with or without minor repair 
services and/or carwash)

C P P P

Service / Gas Stations - Automobile Limited C P P P P
Storage / Warehouse P P
Storage / Warehouse - limited P P P P P
Tatoo Parlor / Body Piercing / Permanent Cosmetics and Branding P P P P
Truck Fueling / Repair Services (not including truck / trailer washing 
facilities) 

P P P

Truck Fueling / Repair Services (truck / trailer washing facilities) P P
Trucking / Distribution P P
Veterinary Clinic Limited C P P P



AG RR RL RM RH C-1 C-2 C-3 ML MH

USES AGG / AEDS RRE RL (RM + RML) (RMH) BNC(C-1) BCB(C-2)
(BHC(C-3)+ BTS(C-

4) +BEC(C-5)
ML MH

ZONING DISTRICTS

Veterinarian or animal hospitals, provided any such building, kennel, or 
exercise runway is located at least one hundred (100) feet away from 
any "R" District boundary.

C P P P



08/10/2020 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ZONING REGULATIONS 
UPDATE 

 
August 10, 2020 

 
Revised November 25, 2024 

 
 
 
 
  



08/10/2020 

PREAMBLE 
 
AN  ORDINANCE  ESTABLISHING  COMPREHENSIVE  ZONING  REGULATIONS,  AND 
PROVIDING FOR THE ADMINISTRATION, ENFORCEMENT AND AMENDMENT THEREOF, FOR 
THE REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; FOR THE 
CITY OF GERING, NEBRASKA. 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 19-901 through 19-915, Nebraska Revised Statutes, empowers the City to enact a 
zoning ordinance and to provide for its administration, enforcement and amendment, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it necessary for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, 
morals, and the general welfare of the City to enact such an Ordinance, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of Gering established a City Planning Commission pursuant to applicable 
Nebraska Statute and City of Gering Code, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended the boundaries of the various original districts 
and appropriate regulations to be enforced therein, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has divided the City into districts and has prepared regulations 
pertaining to such districts in accordance with a Comprehensive Plan, based on a Land Use Plan and 
designed to lessen congestion in the streets, to secure safety from fire, panic and other dangers, to promote 
health and the general welfare, to provide adequate light and air, to prevent the overcrowding of land, to 
avoid undue concentration of population, to facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, 
sewage, schools, parks and other public requirements, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has given reasonable consideration, among other things, to the 
character of the districts and their peculiar suitability of particular uses, with a view to conserving the value 
of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the City, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has made a preliminary report and held public hearings thereon, and 
submitted its final report to the City Council, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has given due public notice of hearings relating to zoning districts, 
regulations, and restrictions, and has held such public hearings, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it necessary for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals of 
the general welfare of the City; of providing for the harmonious development and coordinated layout for 
the subdivided area; for the proper arrangements of streets; for adequate sanitary facilities;  and  for  
reducing  flood damage  potentials  to the greatest extent possible, and 
 
WHEREAS, all requirements of Nebraska Statute with regard to the preparation of the report of the 
Planning Commission and subsequent action of the City Council have been met: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GERING, NEBRASKA: 
 
GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE PROVISIONS 
 



08/10/2020 

TITLE.  This Ordinance, and all Articles and Sections thereof, as set forth below and incorporated fully 
herein shall be known and may be cited and referred to as the "Zoning Ordinance" of the City of Gering, 
Nebraska.  All ordinances and regulations of the City of Gering in conflict herewith are repealed. 
 
JURISDICTION.  The provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to the incorporated area of the City of 
Gering, Nebraska, and to the two mile area of planning and zoning jurisdiction as set forth by Nebraska law 
and the Official Zoning Map of Gering, Nebraska, as may be amended from time to time, said Zoning Map 
incorporated herein by reference. 
 
PURPOSES AND OBJECTIVES OF THE ORDINANCE.  The Zoning Ordinance is adopted to preserve, 
protect and promote the public health, safety, peace, comfort, convenience, prosperity and general welfare. 
More specifically, the Zoning Ordinance is adopted in order to achieve the following objectives: 
 

1.  To provide a precise plan for the physical development of the municipality in such a manner 
as to achieve progressively the general arrangement of land uses depicted in the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

2.  To foster a harmonious, convenient, workable relationship among local uses and a 
wholesome, serviceable and attractive living environment. 

3.  To promote the stability of existing land uses which conform with objectives and 
policies of the Comprehensive Plan and to protect them from inharmonious influences and 
harmful intrusions. 

4.  To ensure that public and private lands ultimately are used for the purposes which are most 
appropriate and most beneficial from the standpoint of the municipality. 

5.  To promote the beneficial development of those areas which exhibit conflicting 
patterns of use. 

6.  To prevent excessive population densities and overcrowding of the land with 
structures. 

7.  To promote a safe, effective traffic circulation system. 
8.  To foster the provision of adequate off-street parking and truck loading facilities. 
9.  To facilitate the appropriate location of public facilities and institutions. 
10.  To protect and promote appropriately located agricultural, commercial, and industrial 

pursuits in order to preserve and strengthen its economic base. 
11.  To protect and enhance real property values. 
12.  To converse the municipality’s natural assets and to capitalize on the opportunities 

offered by its terrain, soils, vegetation and waterways. 
13.  To coordinate policies and regulations relating to the use of land with such policies and 

regulations of incorporated municipalities of the county in order to: Facilitate transition from 
county to municipal jurisdiction that land which is first developed in an unincorporated area 
and is subsequently annexed to a municipality; foster the 
protection of farming operations in areas of planned urban expansion, and ensure 
unimpeded development of such new urban expansion that is logical, desirable and in 
accordance with objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

08/10/2020 i 

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL APPLICATION         1 
1.1 Minimum Regulations          1 
1.2 Zoning Affects Every Building and Use        1 
1.3 Provisions of Ordinance Declared to be Minimum Requirements    1 
1.4 Construction           1 
1.5 General Terminology          1 
1.6 Definitions           1 
1.7 NonConformances                   14 

1.7.1 Intent 
1.7.2 Nonconforming Uses 
1.7.3 Nonconforming Structures 
1.7.4 Nonconforming Site Conditions 
1.7.5 Nonconforming Lots 
1.7.6 Nonconforming Signs 
1.7.7 Burden of Proof 

1.8 Penalties                     16 
1.9 Remedies                     16 
1.10 Severability                    16 
1.11 Purpose of Catch Heads                   16 
1.12 Effective Date                    17 

 
ARTICLE 2 REGULATION ADMINISTRATION                18 

2.1 General Administration                   18 
 2.1.1 Administration and Enforcement 
 2.1.2 Complaints Regarding Violations 
 2.1.3 Building Permits Required 
 2.1.4 Application for Building Permit 
 2.1.5 New Buildings on Streets 

2.1.6 Administrative Site Plan Review 
2.1.7 Administrative Adjustments 

2.2 Planning Commission                   20 
2.2.1 Zoning Amendments 
2.2.2 Conditional Uses 
2.2.3 Site Plan and Design Review 
2.2.4 Development Plan Review  

2.3 Board of Zoning Adjustment                  32 
 2.3.1 Creation, Terms, Meetings, Rules 
 2.3.2 Duties of Zoning Administrator, City Board of Zoning Adjustment, and Courts on 

Interpretation/Enforcement Matters of Appeal 
 2.3.3 Requirement for Written Application and Conditions 
 2.3.4 Effect on Non-Conformance 
 2.3.5 Public Hearing and Findings of the Board 
 2.3.6 Conditions Imposed 
 2.3.7 Use Variances 

 
ARTICLE 3 ZONING DISTRICTS                   34 

3.1 Districts Created                    34 
3.2 District Zoning Map                   34 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

08/10/2020 ii 

3.3 Zoning Map Changes                   34 
3.4 Zoning Map Replacement                   34 
3.5 Rules and Interpretation of District Boundaries            35 
3.6 Extra Territorial Jurisdiction / Annexation Rule                35 
3.7 Agricultural District                   35 
 3.7.1 AG Agricultural District 
 3.7.2 Agricultural Estate Dwelling Site Designation (AEDS) 
3.8 Residential Districts                   38 
 3.8.1 RR Rural Residential District 
 3.8.2 RL Residential Low-Density District 

3.8.3 RM Residential Medium-Density District 
3.8.4 RH Residential High-Density District 
3.8.5 Golf Course Estate Designation (GCE) 

3.9 Commercial Districts                   45 
 3.9.1 C-1 Neighborhood Commercial District 

3.9.2 C-2 Central Business District 
3.9.3 C-3 General Commercial District 

3.10 Industrial Districts                   48 
 3.10.1 ML Light Industrial District 
 3.10.2 MH Heavy Industrial District 
3.11 Land Use Table                    53 

 
ARTICLE 4 SPECIAL DISTRICTS                   58 

4.1 Special Districts                    58 
 4.2 WNR Airport Area District                  58 
  4.2.1 Intent 
  4.2.2 Definitions 
  4.2.3 Airport Hazard Area Description 
  4.2.4 Adoption of Western Nebraska Regional Airport, Layout Plan 
  4.2.5 Airport Encroachment Area 
  4.2.6 Height Limits 
  4.2.7 Use Regulations 
  4.2.8 Nonconforming Uses within the Airport Zone 
  4.2.9 Administration and Enforcement of Article 
  4.2.10 Permit; Required and Exceptions 
  4.2.11 Appeals 
 4.3 Flood Plain District                   62 

4.3.1 Statutory Authorization   
4.3.2 Findings of Fact 
4.3.3 Statement of Purpose   
4.3.4 Adherence to Regulations  
4.3.5 General Provisions 
4.3.6 Establishment of Zoning Districts.   
4.3.7 Floodplain Management Administration 
4.3.8 Standards for Floodplain Development 
4.3.9 Nonconforming Use 
4.3.10 Amendments 
4.3.11 Definitions 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

08/10/2020 iii 

 4.4 HSD Scotts Bluff National Monument Historic Site District              77 
  4.4.1 Intent 
  4.4.2 Performance Standard Maximum Height 
 4.5 WEA Wellhead Encroachment Area District                77 
  4.5.1 Intent 
  4.5.2 Definitions 
  4.5.3 Performance Standards 
 
ARTICLE 5 SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS                79 

5.1 Buildings and Structures                   79 
5.1.1 Accessory Buildings  
5.1.2 Architectural Projections  
5.1.3 Erection of More than One Principle Structure on a Lot  
5.1.4 Exceptions to Height Regulations  
5.1.5 Structure to Have Access  
5.1.6 Temporary Structures  

5.2 Lot and Site Conditions                   81 
5.2.1 Adjustments to Front Yard Requirements  
5.2.2 Visibility at Intersections  

5.3 Uses                     81 
5.3.1 Accessory Uses 

5.3.1.A Caretaker’s Quarters  
5.3.1.B Dwelling  

5.3.2 Feedlots 
5.3.3 Home Occupations  

5.4 Fences, Walls and Hedges                  82  
5.5 Landscaping and Screening Standards                  84 

5.5.1 Intent   
5.5.2 Applicability   
5.5.3 Landscaping Requirements   
5.5.4 Landscaping Materials and Installation Standards 
5.5.5 Bufferyard Provisions   
5.5.6 Screening Standards 
5.5.7 Tree Plantings   
5.5.8 General Provisions 

5.6 Parking Regulations                    87 
5.6.1Vehicle Parking Rates 
5.6.2 Maximum Parking 
5.6.3 Parking Reductions  
5.6.4 Shared Parking 

5.7 Planned Development Types                   90 
5.7.1 Mixed-Use 
5.7.2 Mobile/Manufactured Homes 
5.7.3 Mobile/Manufactured Home Parks  
5.7.4 Recreational Vehicle Parks and Campgrounds 
5.7.5 Tiny Homes and Tiny Home Communities 
5.7.6 Shipping Container Homes and Shipping Container Home Communities 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

08/10/2020 iv 

5.8 Satellite / Wireless Communications                           94 
5.8.1 Wireless Communication Towers 
5.8.2 Definitions 
5.8.3 Location of Towers and Construction Standards 
5.8.4 Application to Develop a Tower 
5.8.5 Tower Development Permit Procedure 
5.8.6 Setbacks and Separation or Buffer Requirements 
5.8.7 Structural Standards for Towers Adopted 
5.8.8 Illumination and Security Fences 
5.8.9 Exterior Finish 
5.8.10 Landscaping 
5.8.11 Maintenance, Repair or Modification of Existing Towers 
5.8.12 Inspections 
5.8.13 Maintenance 
5.8.14 Abandonment 
5.8.15 Satellite Dish Antennas, Regulation 
5.8.16 Amateur Radio Towers and Facilities Regulation 
5.8.17 Severability 

5.9 Sign Regulations                     98 
5.9.1 On and Off-Site Signs on Interstate or Federal Primary Highways  
5.9.2 On-Site Signs 
5.9.3 Off-Site Signs   
5.9.4 Central Business District 
5.9.5 Exempt Signs 
5.9.6 Prohibited Signs 
5.9.7 Development Identification Signs 

5.10 Solar Energy Systems                 102 
5.10.1 Solar Energy Systems Less Than 25 Kw 
5.10.2 Solar Energy 25 Kw or Larger 
5.10.3 Special Safety and Design Standards 

5.11 Wind Energy Conversion Systems               104 
5.11.1 Residential and Small Wind Energy Systems  
5.11.2 Commercial/Utility Grade Wind Energy Systems  

5.12 Medical Cannabis Establishments 115 
5.12.1 Statement of Purpose and Intent. 
5.12.2 Definitions. 
5.12.3 Medical Cannabis Cultivators. 
5.12.4 Medical Cannabis Product Manufacturers. 
5.12.5 Medical Cannabis Dispensaries. 
5.12.6 Medical Cannabis Transporters. 
5.12.7 Permitted Zoning Districts for Medical Cannabis Establishments. 
5.12.8 Distance Requirements for Medical Cannabis Establishments. 
5.12.9 Measurements for Distance Requirements. 
5.12.10 Other Locational Requirements. 
5.12.11 Unlicensed Medical Cannabis Establishments. 
5.12.12 Other Laws. 
5.12.13 Penalties.



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 1 

SECTION 1.1. MINIMUM REGULATIONS. The zoning regulations set forth by this Ordinance 
within each district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply uniformly to each class or kind of 
structure or land, except as hereinafter provided. 
 
SECTION 1.2. ZONING AFFECTS EVERY BUILDING AND USE. No building, structure, or land 
shall hereafter shall be used or occupied, and no building or structure or part thereof shall hereafter be 
erected, constructed, reconstructed, moved or structurally altered except in conformity with all of the 
zoning regulations herein specified for the district in which it is located. 
 
SECTION 1.3. PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE DECLARED TO BE MINIMUM 
REQUIREMENTS. Whenever the provisions of this Ordinance require a greater width or size of yards, 
courts or other spaces, or require a lower height of building or less number of stories, or require a greater 
percentage of lot to be left unoccupied, or impose other higher standards than are required in any other 
Ordinance, the provisions of this Ordinance shall govern.  Whenever the provisions of any other 
Ordinance require a greater width or size of yards, courts or other open spaces, or require a lower height 
of building or a less number of stories, or require a greater percentage of lot to be left unoccupied, or 
impose other higher standards than are required by the provisions of this Ordinance the provisions of such 
Ordinance shall govern. 
 
SECTION 1.4. CONSTRUCTION. The following rules of construction shall apply unless inconsistent 
with the plain meaning of the context of the Ordinance. 
1. TENSE:  Words used in the present tense include the future tense. 
2. NUMBER:  Words used in the singular include the plural, and words used in the plural include the 

singular. 
3. SHALL AND MAY:  The word "shall" is mandatory; the word "may" is permissive. 
4. GENDER:  The masculine shall include the feminine and the neutral. 
5. HEADINGS:  In the event that there is any conflict or inconsistency between the heading of an article, 

section or paragraph of this Ordinance and the context thereof, the said heading shall not be deemed to 
affect the scope, meaning or intent of such context. 

 
SECTION 1.5. GENERAL TERMINOLOGY. The words "city" and "municipality" shall mean the 
City of Gering, Nebraska.  The term "city council" shall mean the City Council of Gering, Nebraska.  The 
term "planning commission" shall mean the Planning Commission duly appointed by the municipality.  
The term "board of zoning adjustment" and "board" shall mean the Board of Zoning Adjustment duly 
constituted in accordance with these regulations. 
 
SECTION 1.6. DEFINITIONS. Words or terms not herein defined shall have their ordinary meaning in 
relation to the context.  For the purposes of this Ordinance certain words and terms used herein are 
defined as follows: 
1. Accessory Use or Building:  A subordinate building or use which is located on the same lot and 

customarily is incidental to that of the main or principal building or use of the premises.  Customary 
accessory uses include but are not limited to, tennis courts, swimming pools, detached garages, air 
conditioners, garden houses, children's playhouses, barbecue ovens, fireplaces, patios and residential 
storage sheds.  Garages or other accessory uses attached to the principal structure shall be considered 
a part thereof and meet the requirements of the principal structure. 

2. Agriculture:  The planting, cultivating, harvesting and storage of grains, hay or plants, commonly 
grown in the vicinity.  The raising and feeding of livestock and poultry shall be considered an 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 2 

agricultural venture if the area on which the livestock or poultry is kept is ten acres or more in the area 
and if such raising of livestock and poultry is incidental or supplemental to the raising of crops. 

3. Agricultural Produce Stand:  An open or enclosed area of 200 square feet or less that sells produce 
raised on the property on which the stand is located or is raised / produced within 1 mile of the stand 
location. 

4. Agricultural Services:  Agricultural and farming services providing information, consulting, 
equipment, and supplies to the agricultural industry. Examples include government agricultural 
extensions, crop brokers and shippers, produce distributors and wholesalers, and veterinarians. 

5. Airport:  Any area which is used or is intended to be used for the taking off and landing of aircraft 
included helicopters, and any appurtenant areas which are used or are intended to be used for airport 
buildings or facilities, including open spaces, taxiways and tie-down areas. 

6. Alley:  A dedicated public right-of-way, other than a street, which provides only a secondary means of 
access to the abutting property, with the right-of-way not exceeding twenty feet (20') in width. 

7. Alteration:  Alteration, as applied to a building or structure, is a change or rearrangement in the 
structural parts of an existing building or structure.  Enlargement, whether by extending a side, 
increasing in height, or the moving from one location or position to another, shall be considered as an 
alteration. 

8. Animal Hospital or Clinic:  An establishment where animals are admitted principally for examination, 
treatment, board or care, by a Doctor of Veterinary Medicine.  (This does not include open kennels or 
runs.) 

9. Animal Husbandry:  The science of breeding and caring for farm animals. 
10. Apartment:  A room or suite of rooms within a multiple dwelling, arranged, intended or designed for a 

plat of residence of a single family or a group of individuals living together as a single housekeeping 
unit. 

11. Apartment House:  See Dwelling, Multiple. 
12. Automobile Service Station:  Buildings and premises where gasoline, oil, grease, batteries, tires and 

automobile accessories may be supplied and dispensed at retail, and where, in addition, the following 
services may be rendered and sales made, and no other: 
a. Sale and servicing of spark plugs, batteries, and distributors and distributor parts; 
b. Tire servicing and repair, but not recapping or regrooving; 
c. Replacement of mufflers and tail pipes, water hose, fan belts, brake fluid, light bulbs, fuses, floor 

mats, seat covers, windshield wipers and wiper blades, grease retainers, wheel bearings, mirrors, 
and the like; 

d. Radiator cleaning and flushing; 
e. Washing and polishing, and sale of automotive washing and polishing materials; 
f. Greasing and lubrication; 
g. Providing and repairing fuel pumps, oil pumps, and lines; 
h. Minor servicing and repair of carburetors; 
i. Emergency wiring repairs; 
j. Adjusting and repairing brakes; 
k. Minor motor adjustments not involving removal of the head or crankcase or racing the motor; 
l. Sales of cold drinks, packaged foods, tobacco, and similar convenience goods for automobile 

service station customers; 
m. Provision of road maps and other information material to customers; provision of restroom 

facilities. 
Uses permissible at an automobile service station do not include major mechanical and body work, 
straightening of body parts, painting, welding, storage of automobiles not in operating condition, or 
other work involving noise, glare, fumes, smoke or other characteristics to an extent greater than 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 3 

normally found in automobile service stations.  An automobile service station is not a repair garage 
nor a body shop. 

13. Automobile Service Station – limited:  Same as Automobile Service Station except the number of 
gasoline pumps shall not exceed eight (8). 

14. Automobile Wrecking Yard:  Any lot, or the use of any portion of a lot, for the dismantling or 
wrecking of automobiles, tractors, farm machinery, or other motor vehicles, or for the storage or 
keeping for sale of parts and equipment resulting from such dismantling or wrecking. 

15. Basement:  That portion of a structure having more than one-half (½) of its height below grade.  A 
basement is counted as a story for height regulations if subdivided and used for a separate dwelling 
unit. 

16. Bed and Breakfast:  A residential dwelling, or portion thereof, in which rooms are rented to paying 
guests on an overnight basis with not more than one (1) meal served daily, with the entire service to 
be included in one (1) stated price. The operator of the bed and breakfast shall live on the premises. 

17. Block:  Is an area of land within a subdivision that is entirely bounded by streets, or by streets and the 
exterior boundary or boundaries of the subdivision, or a combination of the above with a river or lake, 
and which has been designated as such on a plat for description purposes. 

18. Block Front:  All of the property on one side of a street between two intersecting streets. 
19. Boarding or Lodging House:  A building other than a hotel where, for compensation and by pre-

arrangement for definite periods, meals, or lodging and meals, are provided for three (3) or more 
persons, but not exceeding twenty (20) persons.  Individual cooking facilities are not provided. 

20. Brewery:  Brewery shall mean any industrial use that brews ales, beers, meads and/or similar 
beverages on site.  Breweries are classified as a use that manufactures more than 10,000 barrels of 
beverage (all beverages combined) annually. 

21. Brewery, Micro:  Micro Brewery shall mean a facility for the production and packaging of malt 
beverages of low alcoholic content for distribution retail or wholesale, on or off premises, with a 
capacity of not more than 10,000 barrels per year. The development may include other used such as a 
standard restaurant, bar, or live entertainment as otherwise permitted in the zoning district.  

22. Brew Pub:  Brew Pub shall mean a restaurant or hotel which includes the brewing of beer as an 
accessory use. The brewing operation processes water, malt, hops, and yeast into beer or ale by 
mashing, cooking, and fermenting. By definition, these establishments produce no more than 10,000 
barrels of beer or ale annually.  The area, by definition, used for brewing, including bottling and 
kegging, shall not exceed 50 percent of the total floor area of the commercial space. 

23. Buildable Area:  The portion of a lot remaining after required yards have been provided. 
24. Building:  The word building includes the word structure and is a structure which is entirely separated 

from any other structure by space or by walls in which there are no communicating doors or windows 
or similar openings.  A principal building including covered porches and paved patios, is a building in 
which is conducted the principal use of the lot on which it is situated.  In any residential district, any 
dwelling shall be deemed to be the principal building on the lot which the same is situated. 

25. Building – Height of:  The vertical distance from the average elevation of the finished ground at the 
front of the structure to the highest point of the structural part of the building. 

26. Building Setback Line (Front):  A line nearest the front of and across a lot or parcel of land 
establishing the minimum open space to be provided between the front line of a building or structure 
and the lot line.  (Also see “Yard, Front” definition) 

27. Campground:  Any premises where two (2) or more camping units are parked/placed for camping 
purposes, or any premises used or set apart for supplying to the public, camping space for two (2) or 
more camping units for camping purposes. A campground includes any buildings, structures, vehicles 
or enclosure used or intended for use or intended wholly or in part for the accommodation of transient 
campers. 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 4 

28. Camping Unit:  Any vehicle, tent, trailer, or other moveable shelter used for camping purposes. 
29. Carport:  An open sided shelter for vehicle consisting of a roof supported on posts. A carport may be a 

stand-alone structure, built beside a building or attached to a building. For the purposes of these 
regulations a carport is considered an accessory structure. 

30. Cemetery:  Land used or intended to be used for the burial of the dead and dedicated for such 
purposes, including crematoriums and mausoleums. 

31. City:  Shall mean the City of Gering. 
32. Clinic:  (See Medical, Dental or Health Clinic.) 
33. Collector Street:  (See Street Network, Collector.) 
34. Commercial Retail:  The sale of goods to end users, not for resale, but for use and consumption by the 

purchaser. Retail involves the sale of merchandise from a single point of purchase directly to a 
customer who intends to use that product. 

35. Commercial Services:  The provision of non-manufacturing activities / services to households, as well 
as other commercial or industrial business customers.  Such services may require an external 
equipment yard, vehicle fleet parking, or storage area as part of conducting business. 

36. Commercial Services – limited:  The provision of non-manufacturing activities / services to 
households only.  Such services cannot have an external equipment yard, vehicle fleet parking, or 
storage area.  The service activity must be conducted within the primary building and/or off-site, and 
parking provision is limited to the employees working on site and customers visiting the site to do 
business.   

37. Common Open Space:  An area of land or water or combination thereof planned for passive or active 
recreation, but does not include area utilized for streets, alleys, driveways or private roads, off-street 
parking or loading areas.  However, the area of recreational activities such as swimming pools, tennis 
courts, shuffleboard courts, etc., may be included as common open spaces. 

38. Common Sewer System:  A sanitary sewage system in public ownership which provides for the 
collection and treatment of domestic effluent in a central sewage treatment plant which meets the 
minimum requirements of the Nebraska Department of Environmental Control for primary and 
secondary sewage treatment and which does not include individual septic tanks or portable sewage 
treatment facilities. 

39. Common Water System:  A water system which provides for the supply, storage and distribution of 
potable water on an uninterrupted basis and which is in public ownership. 

40. Comprehensive Plan:  Is the plan or series of plans for the future development of the City 
recommended by the Planning Commission and adopted by the City Council. 

41. Conditional Use Permit:  A conditional use permit is a written permit issued by the Zoning 
Administrator with the written authorization of the Planning Commission.  This conditional use 
permit provides permission under specific conditions to allow certain conditional uses of land in 
certain zoning districts as stipulated. 

42. Convenience Store:  A retail store in a convenient location, stocking a limited range of household 
goods and groceries.  Such a store may or may not be associated with on-site provision of gasoline as 
allowed or restricted by the applicable zoning district. 

43. Cul-De-Sac:  Is a street having one end open to traffic and being terminated by a vehicular turnaround. 
44. Day Care:  (each type of day care shall be governed by applicable home occupation standards, as well 

as other local, state and federal regulations) 
a. Family Child Care Home - licensed to provide a child care program in the licensee’s residence to 

at least four but not more than twelve children. The provider of the day care services must live in 
the home and those receiving day care services for more than 12 consecutive hours at a time. 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 5 

b. Child Care Center - licensed to provide a child care program for 13 or more children.  A center 
may be located in the licensee’s residence or another location.  Those receiving day care services 
for more than 12 consecutive hours at a time. 

c. In-home Day Care (Adult) - In-home day care for four (4) or more adults. The provider of the day 
care services must live in the home and those receiving care may not stay overnight. 

45. District:  A section or sections of the zoning area for which these regulations governing the use of 
land, the height of buildings, the size of yards and the intensity of use are uniform. 

46. Drive-In Restaurant:  Any place where food, beverages or related items may be purchased for 
consumption, either on the premises or at other places.  Drive-up windows, for the purchase of sale 
items to be consumed off the premises, are permitted within this definition. 

47. Dwelling:  Any building or portion thereof which is designed for and used exclusively for residential 
purposes. 

48. Dwelling, Accessory:  Is a room or set of rooms that has been designed or configured to be used as a 
separate dwelling unit from the primary dwelling unit and has been established by permit. 

49. Dwelling, Live/Work:  A live/work unit means a building providing the resident and opportunity to 
live and work at the same location. Generally, the work space has some street exposure and there is a 
separate entrance from the residence. The residence may be located above and/or behind the work 
area. 

50. Dwelling, Loft:  A dwelling unit located on the upper floor(s) (not on the ground or basement level) of 
a commercial building.  A lot may be part of a live/work unit. 

51. Dwelling, Single-Family:  A detached building containing not more than one (1) dwelling unit designed 
for residential use of one (1) family only and meeting the following standards (also see tiny home):  
a. If the dwelling is a mobile home or manufactured (modular) home, it bears an appropriate seal which 

indicates that it was constructed in accordance with the standards of the Uniform Standard Code for 
Manufactured Homes and Recreational Vehicles, the Nebraska Uniform Standards for Modular 
Housing Units Act, or the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development; 

b. The dwelling is permanently attached to a foundation system constructed on the site in accordance 
with the City building code.  Said foundation shall have a wall of the same perimeter dimensions as 
the dwelling and shall be constructed of such materials and type as required in the applicable 
building code for site-built, single-family dwellings in the applicable residential zoning district; 

c. The dwelling shall have no less than nine hundred (900) square feet of floor area; 
d. The dwelling has a minimum width across front, side, and rear elevations of eighteen (18) feet; 
e. The roof of the dwelling shall be pitched with a minimum vertical rise of two and one-half (2½) 

inches for each twelve (12) inches of horizontal run; 
f. The dwelling shall have a non-reflective roof material which is or simulates asphalt or wood 

shingles, tile, or rock; 
g. The exterior material of the dwelling shall be of a color, material, and scale comparable with those 

existing in residential site-built, single-family construction; and 
h. If the dwelling is a mobile home or manufactured (modular) home; the wheels, axles, transporting 

lights, and removable towing apparatus shall be removed. 
These standards do not apply to mobile homes located in a Mobile / Manufactured Home Park or a tiny 
home community. 

52. Dwelling, Two-Family:  A building designed for, and independently occupied by two (2) families 
exclusively. 

53. Dwelling, Multiple:  A residential building designed for, and independently occupied by three or more 
families, with the number of families in residence not exceeding the number of dwelling units 
provided. 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 6 

54. Dwelling Unit:  One room, or rooms connected together, constituting a separate, independent 
housekeeping establishment for owner occupancy, or rental or lease on a weekly, monthly, or longer 
basis, and physically separated from any other rooms or dwelling units which may be in the same 
structure, and containing independent cooking and sleeping facilities. 

55. Easement:  A grant by the property owner to the public, a corporation, or persons of the use of a tract 
of land for a specific purpose of purposes. 

56. Efficiency Unit:  A dwelling unit having only one room exclusive of bathroom, water closet 
compartment, kitchen, laundry, pantry, foyer, communicating corridor, closets, or any dining alcove.  
An efficiency unit shall be permitted only in a multi-family dwelling. 

57. Elderly Housing:  Many State agencies provide a degree of preference for projects for the elderly.  It 
is useful to understand the treatment of “housing for older persons” under the federal Fair Housing 
Act.  The Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination against families with children.  However, it 
exempts from this prohibition certain types of elderly housing.  The exemption applies to so called 
“62 or over housing” and “55 or over housing”, each of which must meet particular standards.  The 
former requires that all units in a project be restricted to tenants who are at least 62 years of age.  The 
latter requires that at least 80 percent of the units in a project have at least one resident who is at least 
55 years of age and that the project have “policies and procedures” which make clear that it is housing 
for older persons.  There appears to be nothing in the federal statute or HUD Regulations that would 
prevent State Agencies from predicating a preference for seniors housing on either standard or from 
imposing more stringent requirements on such a preference for seniors on either standard. 

58. Family:  One or more persons related by blood, marriage, or adoption, living together as a single 
housekeeping unit; or a group of not more than four (4) unrelated persons living together as a single 
housekeeping unit; plus in either case, usual domestic servants.  A family shall under no 
circumstances be construed as a boarding house, Fraternity, or sorority house, club, lodging house, 
hotel or motel. 

59. Farmstead:  An area of twenty (20) acres or more, on which is located at least one farm residence, and 
which is used for raising agricultural crops, livestock, poultry, or dairy products of a value of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000) or more is normally produced each year. 

60. Feedlot:  The confined feeding of food, fur, or pleasure animals in buildings, lots, pens, pools, or 
ponds which normally are not used for the raising of crops or for grazing animals. 
a. For purposes of this definition, feedlots shall be classified according to the registered capacity.  

The registered capacity of such feedlots shall be as follows: 
i. First Class Feedlot - 5,000 or more animal units 

ii. Second Class Feedlot - 501 to 4,999 animal units 
iii. Third Class Feedlot - 50 to 500 animal units 

b. One animal unit shall be equivalent to:  one (1) head of feeder, fat, beef, or dairy cattle;  one (1) 
horse or pony;  two (2) head of swine;  two (2) dogs;  ten (10) head of sheep;  forty (40) turkeys, 
geese, chickens, or ducks; or an equivalent number of other animals as determined by the Board of 
Zoning Adjustment. 

61. Fence:  Fence shall mean any structure constructed of wood, masonry, metal, or other material, 
permanently attached to the ground by posts, or set on a masonry foundation, for the purpose of 
enclosing or boarding a piece of land.  A solid fence is one that consists of open spaces of less than 
one-half (½) of the fence area. 

62. Floodway - Commission:  A floodway whose limits have been designated and established by order of 
the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission. 

63. Floodway - Selected:  A floodway within the limits of a Commission Floodway which is recognized 
by the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission as being subject to a high degree of flood hazard. 
 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 7 

64. Floor Area: 
a. For computing off-street parking requirements:  Shall mean the gross floor area of the building 

measured from the exterior faces of the exterior walls or from the centerline of walls separating 
two buildings and shall include the following areas: 

i. One-half (½) the basement floor area. 
ii. The area of each floor of the structure. 

b. Floor area determining floor area ratio:  As used herein shall be computed as the sum of the 
following areas: 

i. The gross horizontal areas of the several buildings measured from the exterior faces of exterior 
walls or from the centering of walls separating two buildings which shall include floor area 
utilized for stairwells or elevator shafts and floor spaced used for mechanical equipment 
(except equipment open or enclosed, located on the roof). 

ii. Penthouses. 
iii. One-half (½) the basement floor area. 
iv. Interior balconies. 
v. Enclosed porches. 

vi. Floor area devoted to accessory uses. 
vii. Interior walls. 

c. Floor Area Ratio:  The maximum percentage of allowable floor of a building or complex 
(including both principal and accessory buildings) computed by dividing the floor area of said 
complex or buildings by the area of the building site. 

65. Frontage:  The length of the property abutting on one side of a street measured along the dividing line 
between the property and the street. 

66. Garage, Private:  An accessory building or portion of a main building used for the storage only of 
motor vehicles owned and used for occupants of the building to which it is an accessory. 

67. Garage, Public:  A building or portion thereof, other than a private garage, designed or used for 
equipping, repairing, hiring, servicing, selling or storing motor-driven vehicles. 

68. Governing Body:  The Mayor and Council of the City of Gering, Nebraska. 
69. Grade:  The average level of the finished surface of the ground adjacent to the exterior walls of those 

buildings more than five feet from a street line. For buildings closer than five feet to a street line, the 
grade is the sidewalk elevation at the center of the building. If there is more than one street, an 
average sidewalk elevation is to be used. If there is no sidewalk, the city shall establish the grade.  

70. Group Home:  A home where a small number of unrelated people in need of care, support, or 
supervision can live together, such as those who are elderly or mentally ill. 

71. Group Shelter / Transitional Housing:  Housing which serves as temporary living quarters for a group 
of persons, who may include, but are not limited to, those who are homeless or who suffer from 
spousal, child, or substance abuse, or who are physically and mentally handicapped, and wherein 
counseling services may be provided to these persons.  

72. Home Occupation:  An accessory use of a dwelling unit for gainful employment involving the 
manufacture, provision or sale of goods and/or services.  

73. Hotel:  A building or portion thereof, or a group of buildings, used as a transient abiding place which 
may or may not serve meals and where such establishments are designated as a hotel, inn, automobile 
court, motel, motor lodge, motor court, tourist cabin, tourist court or other similar designation. 

74. Industrial Services:  The provision of services to customers engaged primarily in a process which 
creates or changes raw or unfinished materials into another form or product.  

75. Institution:  A building occupied by a non-profit corporation or non-profit establishment for public 
use. 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 8 

76. Junkyard:  Any area where waste, discarded or salvaged, are bought, sold, exchanged, bailed or 
packed, disassembled or handled, including the dismantling or "wrecking" of automobiles or other 
vehicles or machinery, house-wrecking yards, used lumber yards and places or yards or storage of 
salvaged house-wrecking and structural steel materials and equipment; but not including areas where 
such uses are conducted entirely within a completely enclosed building. 

77. Kennel-Boarding:  Any place, area, building or structure where dogs (including those under 1 year of 
age) are boarded, housed, cared for, fed or trained by other than the owner. 

78. Kennel-Breeder:  Any place, area, building or structure where more than one dog is kept for purposes 
of breeding or raising for a fee. 

79. Loading Space, Off-Street:  Space logically and conveniently located for bulk pickups and deliveries, 
scaled to deliver vehicles expected to be used and accessible to such vehicles when required off-street 
parking spaces are filled.  Required off-street loading space is not to be included as off-street parking 
space in computation of required off-street parking space. 

80. Local Street:  (See Street Network, Local.)  
81. Lot:  For purpose of this Ordinance, a lot is a parcel of land of at least sufficient size to meet 

minimum zoning and subdivision requirements for use, coverage and area, and to provide such yards 
and other open spaces as are herein required.  Such lot shall have frontage on any improved public 
street, or on an approved private street, and may consist of a single lot of record; a portion of a lot of 
record; a combination of complete lots of record, or of portions of lots of record; a parcel of land 
described by metes and bounds; provided that in no case of division or combination shall any residual 
lot or parcel be created which does not meet the requirements of this Ordinance. 

82. Lot Frontage:  The front of a lot shall be construed to be the portion nearest the street.  For the 
purposes of determining yard requirements on corner lots and through lots, all sides of a lot adjacent 
to streets shall be considered frontage, and yards shall be provided as indicated under yards in this 
article. 

83. Lot of Record:  Shall mean a lot which is a part of a subdivision, the plat of which has been recorded 
in the office of the Register of Deeds of the County. 

84. Lot Width:  Width of a lot shall be considered to be the distance between straight lines connecting 
front and rear lot lines at each side of the lot, measured across the rear of the required front yard, 
provided, however, that width between side lot lines at their foremost points where they intersect with 
the street line, shall not be less than eighty (80) percent of the required lot width except in the case of 
lots on the turning circle of cul-de-sacs, or on loop streets, where the eighty (80) percent requirement 
shall not apply. 

85. Lot, Corner:  Indicated as "A" in the diagram below, a corner lot is defined as a lot located at the 
intersection of two (2) or more streets.  A lot abutting on a curved street or streets shall also be 
considered a corner lot. See lots marked A1 in the diagram below. 

86. Lot Depth:  The distance between the midpoint of the front lot line and the midpoint of the rear lot 
line. 

87. Lot, Interior:  Indicated as "B" in the diagram, an interior lot is defined as a lot other than a corner lot 
with only one frontage on a street. 

88. Lot, Through:  Indicated as "C" in the diagram, a through lot is defined as a lot other than a corner lot 
with frontage on more than one street.  Through lots abutting two (2) streets may be referred to as a 
double frontage lot. 

89. Lot, Reversed Frontage:  A lot on which the frontage is at right angles or approximately right angles 
to the general pattern in the area.  A reversed frontage lot may be a corner lot (A-D in the diagram), an 
interior lot (B-D) or a through lot (C-D). 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 9 

  
90. Major Recreation Equipment:  Major equipment is defined as including boats and boat trailers, travel 

trailers, pickup campers or coaches, designed to be mounted on automotive vehicles, motorized 
dwellings, tent trailers and the like, and cases or boxes used for transporting recreational equipment, 
whether occupied by such equipment or not, and shall include the term Recreational Vehicle. 

91. Manufacturing / Fabrication / Assembly:  The process in which something is made (fabricated) from 
raw or semi-finished materials and/or assembled from ready-made components or parts by hand or by 
machinery. 

92. Manufacturing / Fabrication / Assembly – limited:  Same as manufacturing / fabrication / assembly 
except the activity is and is secondary to or supports the primary use of a building or property and is 
limited to hand made or the use of small power tools with no more than five (5) employees involved 
in the process. 

93. Meat Locker:  A refrigerated compartment, room or portion of a building used for the storage of fresh 
or frozen meat / food.  This use does not include the slaughtering / killing process or rendering of by-
products from such process. 

94. Medical, Dental or Health Clinic:  Any building designed for use by one or more persons lawfully 
engaged in the diagnosis, care and treatment of physical or mental diseases or ailments of human 
beings; including but not limited to doctors of medicine, dentists, chiropractors, osteopaths, 
optometrists, podiatrists and in which no patients are lodged overnight, but which may include 
apothecary. 

95. Mobile / Manufactured Home:  Any transportable dwelling unit designed and constructed on a chassis 
that is capable of being transported after fabrication on its own wheels, or detachable chassis and 
wheels.  This shall include double-wide mobile homes. 
a. Permanently Attached:  Attached to real estate owned by the title holder of the mobile home in 

such a way as to require dismantling, cutting away, unbolting from foundation or structural change 
in such mobile home in order to relocate it on another site. 

b. Modular Home: (Does not include double-wide mobile homes) Any prefabricated structure of 
conventional construction used for dwelling purposes moved on to a site in essentially complete 
constructed condition, in one or more parts and when completed is a single-family unit on a 
permanent foundation, attached to the foundation with permanent connection.  MODULAR 
HOMES shall be considered single-family dwellings for purposes of this Ordinance. 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 10 

96. Mobile / Manufactured Home Park:  Any area of land upon which one (1) or more mobile homes are 
parked, connected to utilities and used by one (1) or more persons for living or sleeping purposes.  A 
mobile home parked in this area can either be placed on a permanent foundation or supported only by 
its wheels, jacks, blocks, or skirting or combination of these devices.  A mobile home park includes 
any premises set apart for supplying to the public parking space, either free of charge or for revenue 
purposes for one (1) or more mobile homes, connected to utilities and used by one (1) or more persons 
for living, or sleeping purposes. A mobile park includes any building, structure, vehicle or enclosure 
used or intended for use as a part of the equipment of such mobile home park; and shall include any 
buildings, structures, vehicles, or enclosures used or intended for use or intended wholly or in part of 
the accommodation or automobile transients. 

97. Nonconforming Structure:  A structure which does not comply with the lot size requirement of bulk 
regulations applicable to new structures in the zoning district in which it is located. 

98. Nonconforming Use:  An existing use of a structure or land which does not conform with the 
regulations of the district in which it is situated as established by this regulation or any amendments 
thereto. 

99. Nursing Homes or Convalescent Homes:  An institution or agency licensed by the State for the 
reception, board, care or treatment of three (3) or more unrelated individuals, but not including 
facilities for the care and treatment of mental illness, alcoholism or narcotic addiction. 

100. Parkways:  Those streets which are similar to an arterial, but with a large median for landscaping and 
somewhat slower traffic flow. 

101. Parking Space, Off-Street:  For the purposes of this Ordinance, an off-street parking space shall 
consist of a space adequate for parking an automobile with room for opening doors on both sides, 
together with properly related access to a public street or alley and maneuvering room.  Required off-
street parking areas for three (3) or more automobiles shall have individual spaces marked and shall be 
so designed, maintained and regulated that no parking or maneuvering incidental to parking shall be 
on any public street, walk or alley, and so that any automobile may be parked and unparked without 
moving another.  For purposes of approximate computation, an off-street parking space and necessary 
access and maneuvering room may be estimated at three hundred (300) square feet, but off-street 
parking requirements will be considered to be met only when actual spaces meeting the requirements 
above are provided and maintained, improved in a manner appropriate to the circumstances of the case 
and in accordance with all ordinances and regulations of the City. 

102. Pedestrian Ways:  A tract of land dedicated to public use, which cuts across a block to facilitate 
pedestrian access to adjoining streets or properties. 

103. Planning Commission:  The Gering Planning Commission. 
104. Permanent Foundation:  The masonry or concrete substructure of a structure which directly supports 

the structure around its entire perimeter and at points within its perimeter where needed. 
105. Planned Development:  Special development of certain tracts of land, planned and designed as a unit 

for one or more land uses under the regulations and procedures contained in this Ordinance and as 
approved by the City Council. 

106. Professional Office:  Any building or part thereof used by one or more persons engaged in the practice 
of law, medicine, accounting, architecture, engineering or other occupation customarily considered as 
a profession. 

107. Public Utility:  Any business which furnishes the general public: (a) communication / data / 
information services, (b) electricity, (c) natural gas, (d) water and sewer, and (e) any other business so 
affecting the public interest as to be subject to the supervision or regulation by an agency of the State. 

108. Repair Services – Automobile:  An automobile service provider offering one or more of the allowed 
repair services listed under Automobile Service Station definition, and/or one or more of the following 
services: major mechanical and body work, straightening of body parts, painting, welding, 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 11 

refurbishing / restoration, or other similar services, and limited storage of automobiles not in operating 
condition awaiting repair.  Such facility is not an automobile or mechanical salvage or wrecking yard.  

109. Repair Services – Automobile limited:  An automobile service provider offering one or more of the 
allowed repair services listed under Automobile Service Station definition. 

110. Salvage Yard:  Any lot, or the use of any portion of a lot, for the dismantling of machinery, farm 
machinery, and including motor vehicles or for the storage or keeping for sale of parts of and 
equipment resulting from such dismantling or wrecking, or for the storage or keeping of junk 
including scrap metals or other scrap material, with no burning permitted. 

111. Sanitary Landfill:  A type of operation in which garbage and refuse or garbage is deposited by a plan 
on a specified portion of land, is compacted by force applied by mechanical equipment, and then is 
covered by compact suitable covering material to a depth of at least six to twelve inches over 
individual cells or garbage and refuse or garbage or refuse, which are closed at the end of each day, 
and to a depth of at least twenty-four inches over the furnished landfill. 

112. Screening:  Decorative fencing or vegetation maintained for the purpose of concealing from view the 
area behind such fencing or vegetation. 

113. Service Station:  (See Automobile Service Station.) 
114. Service Station - limited: (See Automobile Service Station – limited.) 
115. Setback:  Setback shall mean the minimum horizontal distance between a property line and the wall of 

a building / structure or any projection thereof (i.e. eaves, architectural projections, deck, etc.), 
excluding steps. (Projections into the front or rear yard setback may be allowed per Section 5.1.2.) 

116. Short-Term Rental:  As the rental of property, a dwelling unit or a portion thereof for a period of less 
than 30 consecutive days, unless the rental meets the definition of “Boarding or Lodging House”, 
“Hotel” or “Bed and Breakfast”. 

117. Sign:  Any structure or part thereof or device attached thereto or painted, or represented thereon, 
which shall display or include any letter, word, model, banner, flag, pennant, insignia, device or 
representation used as, or which is in the nature of an announcement, direction, or advertisement. 

118. Off-Site Sign:  A sign which directs attention to a business, profession, activity, commodity, service 
or entertainment other than one sold, conducted, or offered upon the site or premises where such sign 
is located.  Also referred to as an off-premise sign.  

119. On-Site Sign:  A sign which directs attention to a business, profession, activity, commodity, service, 
entertainment, or attraction sold, conducted or offered on the same site where such sign is located.  
Also referred to as an on-premise sign.  

120. Storage / Warehouse:  A building / property primarily used for storing / warehousing goods, materials, 
and products for assembly, distribution, manufacturing and/or sales purposes.  

121. Storage / Warehouse – limited:  A dedicated area that is used for storing / warehousing goods, 
materials, and products, and is secondary to or supports the primary use of a building or property. 

122. Story:  That portion of a building, other than a basement, included between the surface of any floor 
and the surface of the floor above it or if there is no floor above it, the space between the floor and the 
ceiling next above it. 

123. Story, Half:  A space under a sloping roof which has the line of intersection of roof decking and wall 
face not more than three (3) feet above the top floor level and in which space not more than sixty 
percent (60%) of the floor area is finished off for use. 

124. Street:  The street right-of-way or easement, whether public or private (not limited to the area of the 
paving or other improvements on the street right-of-way unless such paving or improvements coincide 
with the boundaries of such right-of-way). 

125. Street Centerline:  Shall mean a line midway between the street lines. 
126. Street Line:  The right-of-way line of a street.  A dividing line between a lot, tract or parcel of land 

and the contiguous street. 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 12 

127. Street Network: 
a. Arterial:  A street which provides for through traffic movement between and around areas with 

direct access to abutting property, subject to necessary control of entrances, exits and curb use. 
b. Collector:  A street which provides for traffic movement between arterials and local streets, with 

direct access to abutting property. 
c. Local:  A street which provides direct access to abutting land and local traffic movement whether 

in business, industrial or residential land. 
128. Structure:  Anything constructed or erected, which requires location on the ground or attached to 

something having a location on the ground; including, but not including fences or public items such as 
utility poles, street light fixtures and street signs. 

129. Structural Alteration:  Any changes in the structural members of a building, such as bearing walls, 
columns, beams, roof or girders; or any complete rebuilding of the roof or the exterior walls.  For the 
purpose of this regulation, the following shall not be considered as structural alterations: 
a. Attachment of a new front where structural supports are not changed. 
b. Addition of fire escapes where structural supports are not changed. 
c. New windows where lintels and support walls are not materially changed. 
d. Repair or replacement of non-structural members. 

130. Tavern:  An establishment in which the primary function is the public sale and serving of alcoholic 
beverages for consumption on the premises. 

131. Transitional Housing Facility:  A housing unit for facility which has, as residents, more than one 
person, supervised or unsupervised, who have been convicted of a crime and have served a sentence in 
a correctional facility, and are residing at the facility for the purpose of making a transition from 
confined living to community living.  A Transitional Housing Facility may not house more than six 
(6) individuals.  

132. Tiny Home:  A residential dwelling unit that complies with the requirements of Section 5.7.5 of these 
regulations and which is of such dimensions as to be able to be located upon lots with square footage 
less than that required by the RH Residential High-Density District and still comply with the height 
and yard requirements of the RH district. 

133. Tiny Home Community:  A planned community designed for tiny homes that complies with Section 
5.7.5 of these regulations.  

134. Variance:  Relief from or variation of the provisions of this ordinance, other than use regulations, as 
applied to a specific piece of property, as distinct from rezoning, as further set out hereinafter in the 
powers and duties of the Board of Adjustment.  As used in this ordinance, a variance is authorized 
only for height, area and size of structure or size of yards and open spaces; establishment or expansion 
of a use otherwise prohibited shall not be allowed by variance, nor shall a variance be granted because 
of the presence of non-conformities in the zoning district or uses in adjoining zoning district or 
because of conditions created by the landowner. 

135. Veterinary Clinic, Limited: A facility providing treatment of small animals, defined as domesticated 
animals typically kept as pets that can be comfortably and safely handled by an average adult, 
including but not limited to dogs, cats, rabbits, birds, and small reptiles. The following stipulations 
apply: 
a. Size of Animals: The clinic shall not provide on-site services to hoof stock, including, but not 

limited to, cattle, horses, pigs, sheep, and small ruminants. The clinic may provide ambulatory 
(off-site) services, but may not bring any of these animals back to the clinic. 

b. Boarding Prohibition: The clinic shall not provide pet boarding services. Overnight stays shall be 
limited to short-term care incidental to the clinic use. 

c. Waste Management: The clinic must adhere to all local and state regulations regarding the 
disposal of medical waste and animal by-products. 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 13 

d. No Outdoor Activity: Animals are prohibited from being outside of the clinic building, except for 
direct access to and from vehicles during transport. 

e. Distance from Residential: Clinic building must be located at least one hundred (100) feet away 
from any “R” district boundary. 

f. Off-Street Parking: The clinic must provide off-street parking in accordance with Table 5.6.1. No 
public parking or on-street parking may count towards these requirements. 

136. Yard:  An open space on the same lot with a building unobstructed from the ground upward and 
measured at the minimum horizontal distance between the lot line and the main building.  In the case 
of through lots, unless the prevailing front yard pattern on adjoining lots indicates otherwise, front 
yards shall be provided on all frontages.  Where one (1) of the front yards that would normally be 
required on a through lot is not in keeping with the prevailing yard pattern, the administrative official 
may waive the requirement which shall not exceed the average of the yards provided on adjacent lots.  
In the case of corner lots which do not have reversed frontage, a front yard of the required depth 
(primary front yard) shall be provided in accordance with the prevailing yard pattern and a second 
front yard (secondary front yard) of one-half the depth required generally for front yards in the district 
shall be provided on the other frontage, unless otherwise provided in the district regulations.  

137. Yard, Front: A yard extending from the front lot line adjoining a public street to the front vertical 
building line, not including the projection of usual steps, unenclosed porches or eave. In any required 
front yard, no fence or wall shall be permitted which materially impedes vision across such yard above 
the height of thirty (30) inches, and no hedge or other vegetation shall be permitted which materially 
impedes vision across such yard between the heights of thirty (30) inches and ten (10) feet.  In the case 
of corner lots with more than two (2) frontages, the administrative official shall determine the front yard 
requirements, subject to the following limitations: (1) at least one front yard (primary front yard) shall 
be provided having the full depth required generally in the district; and (2) no other front yard 
(secondary front yard) on such lot shall have less than one-half the full depth required generally.  On 
plats approved after October 1, 2003, corner lots in residential zones shall be developed in accordance 
with the primary and secondary front yards established in the plat. Depth of required front yards shall 
be measured at right angles to a straight line joining the foremost points of the side lot lines.  The 
foremost point of the side lot line, the case of rounded property corners at street intersections, shall be 
assumed to be the point at which the side and front lot lines would have met without such rounding.  
The front lot line and the inner edge of the front yard shall be parallel.  

138. Yard, Rear:  A yard extending across the rear of the lot between the side lot lines and measured 
between the rear lot line and the rear vertical building line, not including the projection of usual steps, 
unenclosed porches, entrance ways or eave.  On all lots, except corner lots, the rear yard shall be at the 
opposite end of the lot from the front yard, except that on corner lots only one yard shall be designated 
as a rear yard.  

139. Yard, Side:  A yard extending from the front lot line to the rear lot line and measured from the side lot 
line and the main building eave line, roof projection. 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 14 

140. Yard, Special:  A yard behind any required yard adjacent to a public street, required to perform the 
same functions as a side or rear yard, but adjacent to a lot line so placed or orientated that neither the 
term "side yard" nor the term "rear yard" clearly applies.  In such cases, the administrative official 
shall require a yard with minimum dimensions as generally required for a side yard or a rear yard in 
the district, determining which shall apply by the relation of the portion of the lot on which the yard is 
to be located to the adjoining lot or lots, with due regard to the orientation and location of structures 
and buildable areas thereon. 

141. Zone, or District:  A section of the Zoning Area for which uniform regulations governing the use, 
height, area, size and intensity of the use of buildings, land and open spaces about buildings are herein 
established. 

142. Zoning Administrator:  The person authorized and empowered by the Governing Body having 
jurisdiction to administer the requirements of these zoning regulations. 

143. Zoning Area:  The area to be zoned as set out on the Official Zoning Map filed on record. 
144. Zoning Regulations:  The term zoning regulations of this or these regulations shall mean the 

requirements stipulated in the regulations herewith attached. 
 
SECTION 1.7. NONCONFORMANCES. 
1.7.1. INTENT.  It is the general policy of the City to allow uses, buildings and lots that were created 
legally and in conformance with then-applicable requirements, but that do not conform to the current 
applicable requirements of these regulations, to continue. However, it is also the policy of the City to 
bring such uses, buildings and lots into conformance with current regulations as is reasonably practical. 
The intent of this section is to balance the interests of property owners in past investments, discourage 
investment that expands or reinforces nonconforming situations, and promote investment consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and these regulations. 
 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 15 

1.7.2. NONCONFORMING USES.  Uses that were legally initiated prior to the adoption or amendment 
of this Code, but which could not be continued under the current terms of this Code, may continue to exist 
subject to the following: 
1. The use may not be expanded beyond any specific area of the site or lot, but may be expanded within 

any existing building. 
2. Any activity that triggers specific site design standards shall require full compliance of the site design 

standards in order for the nonconforming use to be allowed to expand. 
3. A use that is discontinued for one year or more shall lose its nonconforming status, and all future use 

of the site or building shall comply with these regulations. 
4. Any change of use shall be to a conforming use. 

 
1.7.3. NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.  Structures that were legally constructed prior to the 
adoption or amendment of this Code, but which could not be constructed under the current terms of this 
Code may continue to exist subject to the following: 
1. Rehabilitation or expansion of the structure that increases the degree of nonconformity is prohibited. 

Other rehabilitation or expansions may occur; provided, that they comply with all other requirements 
of this Code, are not detrimental to the purposes, intent and objectives of the standards, and do not 
negatively impact development in conformance with this Code on adjacent property. 

2. If destroyed by fire, natural disaster, accident, public enemy or terrorist by less than 50 percent of its 
appraised value, the structure may be restored to its original condition if the restoration is started 
within six (6) months and completed within one (1) year of the event triggering the restoration. 

3. If the structure is determined obsolete or substandard by virtue of any applicable code beyond this 
title, and the cost of improvement or restoration is 50 percent or more of the appraised value of the 
structure, then the right to maintain the nonconformance shall terminate. 

 
1.7.4. NONCONFORMING SITE CONDITIONS.  Any site condition associated with a conforming 
use or structure (such as parking, landscape, open space or other non-building site characteristic) in 
existence prior to these regulations but which are not compliant with the standards of these regulations 
may continue to exist subject to the following: 
1. Any change of use or expansion of use shall require compliance with the new standards up to the 

proportion that is required by the change. 
2. Any site development activity on a portion of a site shall require compliance with the new standards 

up to that proportion that is subject to the development activity. 
3. Where any investment is greater than 50 percent of the appraised value of the site, or can reasonably 

be interpreted as impacting more than 50 percent of any one component of the site, the site or that 
component shall be brought into full compliance with these standards. 

4. To promote infill development or adaptive reuse of existing sites and buildings, administrative 
adjustment procedures may account for nonconforming site conditions. 
 

1.7.5. NONCONFORMING LOTS.  Any lots platted legally prior to the adoption or amendment of this 
Code, but which could not be platted under the current requirements of this Code, may continue to exist, 
provided they comply with all other applicable standards. Any difficulties meeting these standards caused 
by the nonconformance of the lot may be used as criteria in granting any discretionary relief to these 
standards. A nonconforming lot shall not be used, conveyed, transferred, subdivided, nor have its 
boundaries altered in any manner, except for government purpose, that would compound or further 
increase the nonconforming characteristics of the lot. Such nonconforming lots may be combined, per the 
applicable plat procedure, provided this merger does not increase the degree of any nonconformity, and 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 16 

any such newly combined lot that does not meet current lot standards will continue to be a legal 
nonconforming lot even though it was not platted legally prior to the adoption of this Code. 
 
1.7.6. NONCONFORMING SIGNS.  Existing signs which were lawful at the time, but made 
nonconforming by adoption or amendment to this Code, shall be legal, provided they are maintained in 
good condition. Nothing in this Code shall prohibit the ordinary maintenance repair of a nonconforming 
sign or replacement of a broken part of a nonconforming sign. Replacement of copy, content or message 
may be considered ordinary maintenance. 
1.    A legal nonconforming sign shall not be: 

a. Changed to another type or shape of nonconforming sign; 
b. Physically changed to expand or extend the size of the sign or to replace significant materials of 

the sign or sign structure; 
c. Continued after more than six months of abandonment or vacancy of the property; 
d. Reestablished after any removal of the sign that is not part of ordinary maintenance; or 
e. Continued if a substantial part of the property or building is redeveloped, including more than 25 

percent of the property or building by area or by value. 
2.    Nonconforming signs that are destroyed or damaged by 50 percent or more of their value shall not be 

rebuilt or repaired except in conformance with this Code. 
 
1.7.7. BURDEN OF PROOF.  The burden shall be on the applicant to establish entitlement to 
continuation of nonconforming situations or completion of nonconforming projects.  
 
SECTION 1.8. PENALTIES.  Any builder, contractor, agent or other person who commits, participates 
in, assists in or maintains such violation may each be found guilty of a separate offense and suffer the 
penalties herein provided. 
 
Any person, firm or corporation who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects or refuses to comply with, or who 
resists the enforcement of any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor and shall be fined not more than one hundred dollars ($100) for each offense.  Each day that 
such violation continues shall constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 1.9. REMEDIES.  In case any building or structure is erected, constructed, reconstructed, 
altered, repaired, converted, or maintained or any building, structure or land is used in violation of this 
Ordinance the appropriate authorities of the City may institute any appropriate action or proceedings to 
prevent such unlawful erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair, conversion, maintenance 
or use; to restrain, correct or abate such violation to prevent the occupancy of said building, structure of 
land; or to prevent any illegal act, conduct, business or use in or about such premises. 
 
SECTION 1.10. SEVERABILITY.  Should any section, clause or provision of this Ordinance be 
declared by a court to be invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole or in 
part, other than the part so declared to be invalid. 
 
SECTION 1.11. PURPOSE OF CATCH HEADS.  The catch heads appearing in connection with the 
foregoing sections are inserted simply for convenience, to serve the purpose of any index and they shall 
be wholly disregarded by any person, officer, court or other tribunal in construing the terms and 
provisions of this Ordinance. 
 



ARTICLE 1. GENERAL APPLICATION 
 

08/10/2020 17 

SECTION 1.12. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 
passage and publication according to law. 

 
 
 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 18 

SECTION 2.1. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION. 
2.1.1. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT. An administrative official who shall be known as 
the Zoning Administrator and who shall be designated by the City Administrator shall administer and 
enforce this Ordinance.  He/she may be provided with the assistance of such other persons as the City 
Administrator may direct. 
 
If the Zoning Administrator shall find that any of the provisions of this Ordinance are being violated, 
he/she shall notify in writing the person responsible for such violations, indicating the nature of the 
violation and ordering the action necessary to correct it.  He/she shall order discontinuance of illegal use 
of land, buildings, or structures; removal of illegal buildings or structures or of illegal additions, 
alterations, or structural changes; discontinuance of any illegal work being done; or shall take any other 
action authorized by this Ordinance to ensure compliance with or to prevent violation of its provisions. 
 
2.1.2. COMPLAINTS REGARDING VIOLATIONS. Whenever a violation of this Ordinance occurs, 
or is alleged to have occurred, any person may file a written complaint.  Such complaint stating fully the 
causes and basis thereof shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator.  He/she shall record properly such 
complaint, immediately investigate, and take action thereon as provided by this Ordinance. 
 
2.1.3. BUILDING PERMITS REQUIRED. All requirements of Chapter 150 of the Gering City Code 
shall be satisfied. 
 
2.1.4. APPLICATION FOR BUILDING PERMIT. In addition to the requirements of the Gering City 
Code, all applications for building permits shall be accompanied by plans in duplicate, and in electronic 
form if requested by the City, drawn to scale, showing the actual dimensions and shape of the lot to be 
built upon; the exact sizes and locations on the lot of buildings already existing, if any; and the location 
and dimensions of the proposed building or alteration.  The application shall include such other 
information as lawfully may be required by the Zoning Administrator, including existing or proposed 
building or alteration; existing or proposed uses of the building and land; the number of families, 
housekeeping units, or rental units the building is designed to accommodate; conditions existing on the 
lot; and such other matters as may be necessary to determine conformance with, the provide for the 
enforcement of, this Ordinance.  
 
2.1.5. NEW BUILDINGS ON STREETS. No building permit shall be issued for, or no building shall be 
erected on any lot without street access. The street giving access to the lot upon which said building is 
proposed to be placed shall be accepted or opened as, or shall have otherwise received the legal status of, 
a public or private street designated via plat or planned development process, approved by the City 
Council. Any building erected in violation of this section shall be deemed an unlawful structure and the 
City may bring action to enjoin such erection or cause it to be vacated or removed. 
 
2.1.6. ADMINISTRATIVE SITE PLAN REVIEW. 

2.1.6.A. APPLICABILITY. The administrative site plan review process, conducted by the Zoning 
Administrator, is a way to ensure that routine development projects meet the development and design 
standards of these regulations, and all other standards applicable to the property. Administrative site 
plans are initiated by the owners or authorized agents of any property affected and reviewed by city 
staff. The administrative site plan review process applies to any construction that meets all 
requirements of the regulations without requesting any deviations. 
 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 19 

2.1.6.B. REVIEW CRITERIA. An administrative site plan shall be reviewed according to the 
following criteria: 
1. In general, any site plan in compliance with all requirements of this Code, or within the 

administrative adjustment thresholds identified in Section 2.1.7 of these regulations shall be 
approved. 

2. In making a determination of compliance, or for site plans accompanying any discretionary 
review or administrative relief, the reviewer shall consider whether: 
a. The site is capable of accommodating the buildings, proposed use, access and other site 

design elements required by this Code and will not negatively impact the function and design 
of rights-of-way or adjacent property. 

b. The design and arrangement of buildings and open spaces is consistent with good planning, 
landscape design and site engineering principles and practices. 

c. The architecture and building design uses quality materials and the style is appropriate for the 
context considering the proportion, massing, and scale of different elements of the building. 

d. The overall design is compatible to the context considering the location and relationships of 
other buildings, open spaces, natural features or site design elements. 

e. Whether any additional site-specific conditions are necessary to meet the intent and design 
objectives of any of the applicable development standards. 

3. The application meets the criteria for all other reviews needed to build the project as proposed. 
 
The Zoning Administrator may determine if any application meeting these criteria still presents 
significant change or potential impacts on the area, or presents substantial interpretation questions on 
the application of development standards, and is not eligible for the administrative site plan review 
process. These applications must be reviewed through the full site plan and design review process 
(Section 2.2.3). 
 
2.1.6.C. EFFECT OF DECISION. Approval of an administrative site plan is required before a 
building permit or other applicable permits are issued. 
 
2.1.6.D. LAPSE OF APPROVAL. An approved administrative site plan shall expire and be of no 
further effect if an application for a building permit for one or more buildings shown on the site plan 
is not filed within two years of the approval. The Zoning Administrator may grant an extension for up 
to one additional year. Any other element of the plan not submitted for permits within two years shall 
expire, unless the application proposes a different schedule that is approved. 
 

2.1.7. ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS. 
2.1.7.A. APPLICABILITY.  The administrative adjustment process is intended to provide flexibility 
for application of specific standards to sites where it is clear that an alternative approach with minor 
modifications of the standards will equally or better meet the purpose, intent or design objectives of 
these regulations. Specifically, it applies to: 
1. Altering a building standard, such as setback, area or height by 10 percent or less of the stated 

standard. 
2. Reducing a site design standard, such as a landscape requirement, parking quantity or location, 

open space requirement or dimension by less than 10 percent of the required standard. 
3. Deviating from any building or site design standard, where an alternative “equal or better” 

standard is proposed by the applicant. 
4. In any of these cases the adjustment cannot create conflicts with any other applicable standard. 
 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 20 

2.1.7.B. SPECIFIC PROCEDURES. Applications for administrative adjustments shall follow the 
same procedures required for an administrative site plan review as applicable. The Zoning 
Administrator is the decision authority for making administrative adjustments. 
 
2.1.7.C. REVIEW CRITERIA. In considering an administrative adjustment, the Zoning 
Administrator shall find that the following criteria are met. 
1. The relief requested is compatible with the surrounding area in terms of building scale, building 

form, and landscape and site design. 
2. The relief requested supports the intent and applicability of the zoning district. 
3. The relief requested is based upon sound planning and urban design principles that are consistent 

with the intent and objectives behind the applicable standard. 
4. Compliance with the standard is not practical due to some factors specific to the site or context. 
5. The relief requested is not strictly for the convenience of the applicant or a specific tenant, and is 

the minimum necessary to result in the best design for the site. 
6. The relief requested produces no perceived impact on the adjacent property or public realm, than 

would otherwise occur if the standard were met. 
7. The relief requested may be limited to specific conditions, or proposed alternatives that equally 

or better meet the intent of the applicable standard. 
8. In the case of any specific standard where exceptions or alternative compliance is identified in 

this Code, the relief shall be limited only to the extent identified with that standard.  
 
SECTION 2.2. PLANNING COMMISSION. 
2.2.1. ZONING AMENDMENTS. The City Council may from time to time, supplement change or 
generally revise the zoning district map boundaries and the content of regulations contained in this 
Ordinance by amendment.  A proposal for such amendment may be initiated by the City Council, 
Planning Commission or upon application of the owner of the property affected. Zoning requests shall 
include a fee set by a resolution of the City Council. 
 
In addition to the filing fee, an application shall contain the following information: 
1. Applicant's name, address and phone number.  (Applicant must be owner or have written consent of 

owner to be considered.) 
2. Present owner. 
3. Present and proposed zoning. 
4. Property location address and/or legal description. 
5. Present and proposed use of property to be rezoned. 
6. Adjacent property use and zoning designation. 
7. Reasons for request. 
8. Applicant's signature. 
 

2.2.1.A. SUBMISSION TO PLANNING COMMISSION. All such proposed amendments shall first 
be submitted to the Planning Commission for recommendation and report.  Upon the development of 
tentative recommendations, the Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing thereon and shall 
cause an accurate written summary to be made of the proceedings and shall give notice in like manner 
as that required for the original zoning ordinance and official zoning map.  Such notice shall fix the 
time and place for such hearing and contain a statement regarding the proposed changes in 
regulations or restrictions or in the boundary of any district. 
 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 21 

If such proposed amendment is not a general revision of an existing provision of this Ordinance and 
will affect specific property, it shall be designated by legal description and general street location and 
in addition to such publication notice at least ten (10) days in advance in the City’s official newspaper 
and a sign being posted on the property. Written notice of such proposed amendment shall be mailed 
to all owners of lands located within three hundred (300) feet of the area proposed to be altered and 
an opportunity granted to interested parties to be heard. 
 
Failure to receive such notice shall not invalidate any subsequent action taken.  Such notice is 
sufficient to permit the Planning Commission to recommend amendments to regulations which affect 
only a portion of the land described in the notice or which gave all or any part of the land described in 
zoning classification of lesser change than that set forth in the notice; provided, that recommending a 
zoning classification or lesser change than that set forth in the notice shall not be valid without 
republication and, where necessary, remailing. 
 
2.2.1.B. AMENDMENT CONSIDERATION AND ADOPTION. The procedure for consideration 
and adoption of any such proposed amendments shall be in like manner as that required for the 
consideration and adoption of the Ordinance except hereinbefore or hereinafter modified.  For action 
on zoning amendments, a quorum of the Planning Commission is more than one-half (½) of all the 
members.  Voting procedures shall follow the by-laws adopted by the Planning Commission. 

 
2.2.1.B.i. AMENDMENTS TO TEXT. When a proposed amendment would result only in a 
change in the text of these regulations, the report of the Planning Commission shall contain a 
statement as to the nature and effect of such proposed amendment and determinations as to the 
following items: 
1. Whether such change is consistent with the intent and purposes of these regulations; and 
2. Whether the proposed amendment is made necessary because of changed or changing 

conditions in the zoning districts affected and, if so, the nature of such changed or changing 
conditions. 

 
2.2.1.B.ii. AMENDMENTS TO CHANGE ZONING DISTRICTS. When a proposed amendment 
would result in a change of the zoning classification of any specific property, the report of the 
Planning Commission, accompanied by a copy of the record of the hearing, shall contain 
statements as to the present classification, the classification under the proposed amendment, the 
reasons for seeking such reclassification, a summary of the facts presented, and a statement of the 
factors upon which the recommendation of the commission is based. The following questions are 
provided as example considerations: 
1. Would the change in district classification be consistent with the purposes of these regulations 

and the intent of the proposed district? 
2. What is the character and condition of the surrounding neighborhood? 
3. What are the uses of property nearby and their district classification? 
4. Is the proposed amendment requested because of changed or changing conditions in the area 

affected and, if so, what is the change? 
5. Is the subject property suitable for the uses to which it is restricted by the current district 

classification? 
6. Is the subject property suitable for the uses that are permitted by the proposed district 

reclassification? 
7. Would the uses permitted by the proposed district reclassification and the accompanying 

restrictions have a detrimental effect on nearby property? 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 22 

8. Would the proposed amendment correct an error in the application of these regulations as 
applied to the subject property? 

9. Should the length of time the subject property has remained vacant be a factor in the 
consideration for reclassification? 

10. Do adequate utilities and streets exist or will they be provided to serve the uses that would be 
permitted by the proposed district reclassification? 

11. Is there a recommendation from a professional staff or consultant? 
12. Would the proposed amendment be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan? 
13. Does the relative gain to the public health, safety and welfare outweigh the hardship imposed 

upon the applicant by not reclassifying the property? 
 

2.2.1.C.  PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION.  When the Planning Commission 
submits a recommendation of approval or disapproval of such amendment, the City Council, if it 
approves such recommendation, may either adopt such recommendation by Ordinance or take no 
further action thereon as appropriate.  In the event the Planning Commission fails to recommend, the 
City Council may take such action as it deems appropriate.  Upon receipt of a recommendation of the 
Planning Commission which the City Council disapproves, the said City Council may reach its own 
finding or return such recommendation to the Planning Commission with a statement specifying the 
basis for disapproval and such recommendation shall be considered in like manner as that required for 
the original recommendations returned to the Planning Commission.  If such amendment shall affect 
the boundaries of any district, the Ordinance shall define the change or the boundary as amended, 
shall order the Official Zoning Map to be changed to reflect such amendment and shall amend the 
section of the Ordinance incorporating the same and reincorporate such Map as amended. 
 
2.2.1.D. PROTEST.  Regardless of whether or not the Planning Commission approves or disapproves 
a proposed zoning amendment or fails to make a recommendation, if a protest against such 
amendment be filed in the office of the City Clerk within fourteen (14) days after the date of the 
conclusion of the public hearing pursuant to said publication notice, duly signed and acknowledged 
by the owners of twenty percent or more either of the area of the lots included in such proposed 
change, or of those immediately adjacent on the sides and in the rear thereof extending three hundred 
feet therefrom, and of those directly opposite thereto extending three hundred feet from the street 
frontage of such opposite lots, and such change is not in accordance with the comprehensive 
development plan, such proposed zoning amendment shall not become effective except by the 
favorable vote of three-fourths of all the members of the City Council. 
 

 
2.2.2. CONDITIONAL USES.  Because of particular factors associated with their activities, certain uses 
which might have an adverse effect upon nearby properties or upon the character and future development 
of a district are not permitted outright in districts, but are permitted as “conditional uses” when their 
proposed location is supplemented by additional conditions such as to make the use considered 
compatible with the surrounding property, the neighborhood and the zoning district. 
 
The Planning Commission may grant conditional uses to property owners for the use of their property.  
The granting of a conditional use permit shall only allow specific property owners to put their property to 
a specific use if it is among those uses specifically identified in the Zoning Ordinance, or interpreted by 
the Zoning Administrator, as classifications of uses which may require special conditions or requirements 
to be met by the owners before a use or building is authorized.  Authorization shall take effect upon the 
issuance of a conditional use permit. 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 23 

 
2.2.2.A. PROCESS. The Planning Commission shall have the power to decide in accordance with the 
provisions of these regulations conditional uses which it is specifically authorized to pass on by the 
terms of these regulations; to decide such questions as are involved in determining whether 
conditional uses should be granted; and to grant conditional uses with such conditions and safeguards 
as are appropriate under these regulations, or to deny conditional uses when not in harmony with the 
purpose and intent of these regulations. 
 
Conditional uses shall not exist as a matter of right, but only upon the issuance of the conditional use 
permit by the Planning Commission.   The recommendation of the Planning Commission upon 
hearing such application need not be limited to approval or disapproval of the application as filed, but 
also may be subject to conditions attached by Planning Commission. 
 
In granting a conditional use, the minimum requirements of approval for all similar types of 
permitted uses in the same district must be met unless otherwise reduced by specific reference in 
these regulations. The requirements may be made more stringent if there are potentially injurious 
effects which may be anticipated upon other property and the neighborhood or contrary to the 
welfare and convenience of the public. Such additional conditions may include but are not limited to 
requirements affecting: 
1. The lot size or yard dimensions; 
2. Changing street width; 
3. The extent and location of entrance or exit drives; 
4. Controlling the location and number of signs; 
5. The period and time of operation; 
6. The coverage and height of buildings; 
7. Requiring screening, fencing and/or landscaping to protect the surrounding property; 
8. Establishing environmental standards for air and water pollution, noise, vibration, lighting and 

other such conditions; 
9. Additional improvements such as street construction, sidewalks, utilities and storm drainage, if 

necessary, including platting and/or dedications and easements. 
 
Such conditions may be placed upon the property which is the subject of the conditional use 
application or upon the applicant or both.  Additionally, the Planning Commission shall have the 
authority to limit the length of time associated with a conditional use permit. Such time periods may 
be temporary (a period determined through the permit process) or permanent subject to meeting all 
conditions and being in compliance with all applicable code requirements.  
 
2.2.2.B. PROCEDURE. Although the official zoning map is not amended, the procedure for approval 
of a conditional use shall otherwise be the same as for an amendment to change zoning districts 
which is set forth in Section 2.2.1 of these regulations including the provisions for filing protests; 
provided, that any additional requirements which are further imposed upon the conditional use shall 
be made a part of the effectuating permit via Planning Commission action. Concurrent amendments 
may be processed for changing zoning classifications and approving conditional uses on the same 
property. 
  
2.2.2.C. APPLICATION. A written application for a conditional use permit, initiated by a property 
owner or authorized agent shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator indicating the following 
information: 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 24 

1. Applicant's name, address and phone number.  (Applicant must be owner or have written consent 
of owner to be considered.) 

2. Present zoning and use of the property. 
3. Property location address and/or legal description. 
4. Adjacent property use and zoning designation. 
5. Narrative description of the proposed conditional use functions and operations including: 

a. Description of the use sought, both as to function and operation, and as to any structures, 
installations, equipment or surface improvement or change incidental to such use. 

b.Period of time requested for the conditional use, if a temporary conditional use is requested. 
c. Special conditions as to operation, site development, signs, and other pertinent descriptive 

factors. 
d.Statement of the effect of such use with respect to adjoining property, and the zoning district in 

which the same is to be located. 
e. Statement of position of the applicant as to any other matters of information, requested in 

writing by the city staff after review of the preliminary form which shall be helpful to the 
commission or the council. If the applicant does not agree with the reasonableness of any such 
request, he may so state and give reasons in written form.  

6. A plat or site drawing showing the dimensions and location of such land, and of any structures, 
installations, equipment or change of surface contemplated, including all public ways, with 
access thereto. 

7. Applicant's signature. 
 
The application shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
Planning Commission's meeting.  All conditional use permits shall be submitted to the Planning 
Commission for review prior to the City Council.  
 
If such proposed request will affect specific property, it shall be designated by legal description and 
general street location, and in addition to such publication notice, at least ten (10) days in advance in 
the City’s official newspaper and a sign being posted on the property, written notice of such 
application shall be mailed to all owners of land located within three hundred (300) feet of the area 
proposed to be altered and an opportunity granted to interested parties to be heard. 
 
2.2.2.D. FINDINGS. Before any conditional use permit shall be issued, the Planning Commission 
shall make findings via resolution certifying compliance with the specific rules governing individual 
conditional uses and that satisfactory provision and arrangement has been made concerning the 
following where applicable: 
1. Ingress and egress to property and proposed structures thereon with particular reference to 

automotive and pedestrian safety and convenience, traffic flow and control, and access in case of 
fire or catastrophe. 

2. Off-street parking and loading areas where required, with particular attention to the noise, glare, or 
odor effects of the conditional use on adjoining properties and properties generally in the district. 

3. Refuse and service areas. 
4. Utilities, with reference to locations, availability, and incompatibility. 
5. Screening and buffering with reference to type, dimensions, and character. 
6. Signs, if any, and proposed exterior lighting with reference to glare, traffic safety, economic effect 

and compatibility and harmony with properties in the district. 
7. Required yards and other open spaces. 
8. General compatibility with adjacent properties and other property in the district. 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 25 

 
Both temporary and permanent conditional uses shall be in compliance with these criteria and these 
standards shall be maintained in consideration of the existing state of development of the district in 
which located. In the case of conditional uses granted for the indefinite term, the relation to the 
reasonably foreseeable future for the entire term of such conditional use and completed development 
of the district shall be considered. 
 
2.2.2.E. VIOLATION OR NONCOMPLIANCE.  Violation of or noncompliance with any of the 
stated conditions of such conditional use permit during the term thereof shall be subject to revocation 
action by the Planning Commission.  After notice to the owner and occupant of the land which is the 
subject of the use, and to the general public, by public notice, the Planning Commission shall conduct 
a public hearing to determine if revocation shall occur. Upon such revocation, such conditional use 
shall thereafter be void and of no effect. 
 
Such conditional use shall not constitute a defense to any lawful action for civil or private rights on 
account of any such use. 
 
If such conditional use shall be for a limited or stated term of use, the same may be extended by 
action of the Planning Commission for a term not to exceed the original term after a public hearing 
and upon notice of such hearing, upon application. For such extension, consideration by and public 
hearing before the Planning Commission is required. 
 
2.2.2.F. ASSIGNMENT OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  Every individual, partnership, 
association, or corporation holding a conditional use permit hereunder shall give notice in writing to 
the Zoning Administrator within seventy-two (72) hours after having sold, transferred, given away or 
otherwise disposed of interest in or control of a project, the subject of such permit. Such notice shall 
include the name and address of the successor in interest to the ownership or control of such project, 
the name and address of the manager of the new permit holder, and the name and address of the 
registered agent if the permit holder is a corporation. A conditional use permit may be reassigned to a 
new individual, partnership, association, or corporation only with the consent of the Zoning 
Administrator and/or Planning Commission, with such consent given after due consideration by the 
Zoning Administrator and/or Planning Commission to the qualifications of the assigned.  Such 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Enforcement of a security interest in the property 
covered by a conditional use by the holder of such security interest shall not be considered an 
assignment of such conditional use. 
 
2.2.2.G. CONSTRUCTION PLANS.  All plans for construction of or alteration of any structure shall 
be submitted to the Zoning Administrator for review. Such plan review shall be for the purpose of 
determining compliance with the conditions, stipulations and requirements of the Planning 
Commission. Should the plan not include all such conditions, stipulations and requirements, the City 
Administrator or his/her designee shall not authorize the issuance of a building permit. 
 
2.2.2.H. TIME LIMIT AND EXPIRATION OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS.  The Planning 
Commission will determine a time period for a Conditional Use Permit as part of the approval 
process.  Such permits shall apply to the land and assigned to the owner / operator of the use to which 
the permit was issued.  If there is a change to the use, property, operation or owner / operator to 
which the permit was issued the permit shall be subject to renewal and be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission to determine if such conditional use should be allowed to continue. 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 26 

 
Within one (1) year of the approval, the proposed project shall have commenced, or the approval is 
void.  However, the applicant may file a letter requesting an extension prior to the expiration of the 
approval.  The Planning Commission shall review the extension request and approve for a specified 
period up to twelve (12) months or disapprove, indicating their reasons for such action.  The Planning 
Commission’s determination shall be forwarded to the applicant. 
 
After expiration, a new application is required if the project has not started and progressed according 
to the provisions outlined in this Ordinance.  
 
All conditional use permits are subject to meeting any and all conditions attached to the permit via 
Planning Commission approval and all applicable municipal, state and federal regulations.  Failure to 
comply with such conditions or regulations, as well as the creation of a nuisance impacting 
surrounding properties shall be grounds for the Planning Commission to consider revocation of such 
permit. 

 
2.2.3.  SITE PLAN AND DESIGN REVIEW. 

2.2.3.A.  APPLICABILITY. The site plan and design review process is a way to coordinate 
development projects within the public realm and with adjacent sites, and specifically to demonstrate 
how new projects meet the development and design standards of this Code for compatible 
arrangement of buildings, pedestrian and vehicle access, lighting and landscaping. Site plans are 
initiated by the owners or authorized agents of any property affected. In addition to the general 
requirements of these regulations the following requirements are specific to site plan and design 
review applications. The site plan and design review process specifically applies to projects that meet 
the following: 
1. Any new building that does not qualify for Administrative Site Plan Review as determined by 

the Zoning Administrator and Section 2.1.6 of these regulations. 
2. Any changes to the site access and circulation which present a significant change impacting the 

design of the public realm or traffic conditions near the site. 
 
2.2.3.B.  REVIEW CRITERIA AND PROCESS. A site plan and design review shall be reviewed by 
the Planning Commission according to the following criteria: 
1. In general, any site plan in compliance with all requirements of this Code shall be approved. 
2. In making a determination of compliance, or for site plans accompanying any discretionary 

review or administrative relief, the review body shall consider whether: 
a. The site is capable of accommodating the buildings, proposed use, access and other site 

design elements required by these regulations and will not negatively impact the function 
and design of rights-of-way or adjacent property. 

b. The design and arrangement of buildings and open spaces is consistent with good planning, 
landscape design and site engineering principles and practices. 

c. The architecture and building design uses quality materials and the style is appropriate for 
the context considering the proportion, massing, and scale of different elements of the 
building. 

d. The overall design is compatible to the context considering the location and relationships of 
other buildings, open spaces, natural features or site design elements. 

e. Whether any additional site-specific conditions are necessary to meet the intent and design 
objectives of any of the applicable development standards. 

3. The application meets the criteria for all other reviews needed to build the project as proposed. 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 27 

4. The recommendations of professional staff. 
 
The Planning Commission shall conduct a public hearing as part of this process.  Such hearing shall 
be noticed and conducted in the same manner as that of a rezoning application. 
 
2.2.3.C.  ADJUSTMENTS ALLOWED.  As part of the site plan and design review process, and in 
consideration of meeting the review criteria in Section 2.2.3.B., the Planning Commission may grant 
adjustments related to and limited by the following: 
1. Altering a building standard, such as setback, area or height by 20 percent or less of the stated 

standard. 
2. Reducing a site design standard, such as a landscape requirement, parking quantity or location, 

open space requirement or dimension by 25 percent or less of the required standard. 
3. Deviating from any building or site design standard, where an alternative “equal or better” 

standard is proposed by the applicant. 
4. In any of these cases the adjustment cannot create conflicts with any other applicable standard. 
 
2.2.3.D.  EFFECT OF DECISION. Approval of a site plan and design review shall authorize the 
applicant to apply for a building permit and other applicable permits. The Zoning Administrator may 
approve minor amendments to approved site plans and design reviews without the refiling of a new 
application, but in no event shall the Zoning Administrator approve any change that does not qualify 
for an administrative site plan, or any change that is different from any condition of approval of the 
site plan and design review. 
 
2.2.3.E.  LAPSE OF APPROVAL. An approved site plan and design review shall expire and be of no 
further effect if an application for a building permit for one or more buildings shown on the site plan 
is not filed within two years of the approval. The Planning Commission may grant an extension for 
up to one additional year. Any other element of the plan not submitted for permits within two years 
shall expire, unless the application proposes a different schedule that is approved. 

 
2.2.4.  DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW.  

2.2.4.A.  GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW.  Any land use / 
development application that requests exceptions or deviations beyond those accommodated via 
Section 2.1.6. Administrative Site Plan Review or Section 2.2.3 Site Plan and Design Review; is 
considered a planned development type per Section 5.7; or that is a mixed-use development of any 
type is subject to development plan review and approval per the provisions of this section of these 
regulations.  Additionally, any approved plan shall be noted on the official zoning map with a P 
designation and a case locator number within the identified geographic boundaries of the plan area. 

 
2.2.4.B.  DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS AND STANDARDS.  Each plan shall include due 
consideration and incorporation of desirable existing conditions and features, as well as incorporate 
the best practices of the associated design profession(s) (architecture, engineering, landscape 
architecture, urban planning and design).  
 
Submitted concepts and plans shall address the following in respect to architectural and site design as 
proposed for the site: 
1. Relationship of proposed development to existing site features, as well as surrounding features – 

woodland, water, topographic, geologic, historic, etc.  Existing natural or cultural features shall 
be incorporated into the proposed plan whenever possible, or remediation plans for the loss of 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 28 

such features shall also be provided.  Impacts related to storm water drainage, visual change and 
habitat, as well as other considerations may be of influence.  

2. Consideration of surrounding context - uses, building materials, styles and size, etc.  Functional 
and design compatibility or differentiation with the surrounding built environment (use, 
buildings, circulation, etc.) must be demonstrated or justified, while using the highest quality 
materials and best practice methods. 

3. Incorporation of architectural elements and / or design features of all structures.  Such elements 
and features should create both visual / structural variety in form and scale, yet retain uniformity 
among structures in the same development and be harmonious with or of a higher level than 
structures on adjacent parcels or tracts. 

4. Incorporation of landscape and hardscape features.   Such features shall be complementary to the 
structure(s) and the development in its entirety considering both views from and views of the 
development, screening of various utilities, mechanical equipment, other functional elements 
(trash receptacles, shipping docks, etc.), highlighting and enhancement of entry areas and public 
spaces, addressing storm water drainage short and long term establishment and maintenance, as 
well as variety of form, material and size. 

5. Integration of circulation methods and elements as a functional network with minimal conflicts. 
Circulation and access shall address a variety of methods (pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular) 
including patterns, volumes and routes on site for service, emergency and routine daily use, as 
well as connections to the existing / planned adjacent system(s). 

  
2.2.4.C.  PLAN CONTENTS. The plan shall contain, at minimum the information as is required by 
city codes and ordinances, in addition to meeting the content, filing, and submission requirements of 
this Article.  
1. Preliminary development plan.  Every request for exceptions or deviations beyond those 

accommodated via Section 2.1.6. Administrative Site Plan Review or Section 2.2.3 Site Plan and 
Design Review; is considered a planned development type per Section 5.7; or that is a mixed-use 
development of any type shall include a preliminary plan.  Such plan shall depict or reflect the 
following: 
a. Existing topography at 5-foot contour intervals, and proposed topography at 2-foot contour 

intervals. 
b. Proposed location, height, and arrangement of buildings, including pad sites, parking areas, 

existing and proposed streets or internal circulation systems, open spaces, landscaped areas, 
storm water detention/retention area, and drainage easements. 

c. Identification of phases of development, interim phases time frame in improvements. 
d. Identification on the site plan of the name, address, and telephone number of the property 

owner, the developer, and the person preparing the plan. 
e. A project schedule that shall include a tabulation of square footage of development, floor area 

ratios, types of uses, parking spaces, impervious materials coverage, residential development 
density, and/or land area of each proposed usage as a percentage of the total site. 

f. Preliminary sketches, showing the general style, size and exterior construction material of any 
and all proposed buildings; in the event of several building types, a separate sketch shall be 
prepared for each type. 

g. Preliminary sketches related to proposed location and size of signage on buildings and the site. 
h. The relationship of the site to surrounding uses, buildings, zoning districts, existing and 

proposed (approved but not built) developments and structures and streets and driveways 
within two-hundred (200) feet of the exterior boundaries of the property. 

i. A Traffic Impact Analysis may be required if recommended by the city staff. 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 29 

j. A Parking Analysis shall be performed to demonstrate the adequacy of off-street parking that 
must meet applicable design or zoning code requirements in all phases of the development.  

k. A list of proposed plan deviations and exceptions from the standards and requirements of the 
zoning code and this article.  Such list shall identify the desired deviation / exception and the 
reason for the requested deviation / exception. 

l. Such additional materials as may be required from time to time by city staff, the Planning 
Commission, or the City Council. 

2. Final Development Plan.  Upon review and approval of a preliminary development plan, the 
developer shall then submit a final development plan, which shall reflect or depict changes made 
as a result of conditions resulting from preliminary development plan approval, as well as the 
following: 
a. Finished grades or contours for the entire site (five- or two-foot contour intervals may be 

required depending upon the site). 
b. All adjacent public street rights-of-way, existing and proposed, within the centerline location 

thereof. 
c. The location, width, curb cuts and radii of all public streets and private drives, existing and 

proposed. 
d. The location, width, and limits of all existing and proposed sidewalks. 
e. The location, size, and radii of all existing and proposed median breaks and turning lanes. 
f. The distance between all buildings, between buildings and property lines, and between all 

parking areas and property lines. 
g. The location of all required building and parking setbacks. 
h. The location, dimensions, number of stories, and area in square feet of proposed buildings. 
i. The area of land included on the site plan, in square feet or acres. 
j. The limits, location, size, and material to be used in all proposed retaining walls.  
k. The location and dimensions of all driveways, parking lots, parking stalls, aisles, loading and 

service areas and docks. 
l. The location, height, candle power, and type of outside lighting fixtures for buildings and 

parking lots. 
m. The location, size, type of material, and message of all proposed monuments or detached 

signage.  
n. Pertinent peripheral information, including adjacent developments, alignment and location of 

public and private driveways and streets, medians, and public and semi-public easements. 
o. Preliminary drainage design, and location of existing drainage facilities. 
p. Elevations of all sides of proposed buildings, including notations indicating the building 

materials to be used on exterior walls and roofs thereof. 
q. The location, size and materials to be used in all screening of rooftop mechanical equipment.   
r. A landscaping plan or depiction that shows the size, species, location and number of all 

proposed landscaping material; notations depicting all areas to be seeded or sodded; and the 
location, size, and materials to be used for all landscaping, and screening, as well as irrigation 
plans for such materials. 

s. A list of proposed plan deviations and exceptions from the standards and requirements of the 
zoning code and this article.  Such list shall identify the desired deviation / exception and the 
reason for the requested deviation / exception. 

 
2.2.4.D.  DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW PROCEDURE.  Each proposed development plan shall 
be subject to the review and approval process. The intent of development plan review is to provide 
for adequate review and consideration of the potential effects of the proposed development upon 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 30 

surrounding uses and activities, and to require and maintain a high standard of site planning and 
building design.  The two (2) step (preliminary development and final development plan) approval 
process shall consist of a coordinated meeting and review of applications and plans by the city staff, a 
public hearing by the Planning Commission, and approval by the Planning Commission (in the case 
of preliminary development plans with or without stipulations) or approval by the City Council (in 
the case of final development plans with or without stipulations).  In circumstances where rezoning is 
required to accommodate the proposed development plan such rezoning shall be considered 
concurrently with the final development plan following the procedures in Section 2.2.1. 
 
The City Engineer or his / her designee shall be responsible for coordinating City Staff review and 
analysis of each preliminary and final development plan application.  The results of staff reviews 
shall be compiled and reported to the applicant and to the Planning Commission for review and 
consideration following the procedures in Section 2.2.1.A.   
 
The Planning Commission shall have final authority to approve, with or without stipulations, or 
disapprove a preliminary development plan after conducting a public hearing and appeals of Planning 
Commission decisions can be made to the City Council by the applicant / property owner within 
seven (7) days of the Planning Commission decision date.  Such appeals shall be heard by the City 
Council in a timely fashion and the City Council shall hold a public hearing to consider the appeal 
following the public notification procedures in Section 2.2.1.A. Protests to Planning Commission 
decisions can be made to the City Council following the procedures outlined in Section 2.2.1.D.  
 
Additionally, the Planning Commission shall make recommendations to the City Council regarding 
approval, with or without stipulations, or disapproval of the final development plan and may consider 
the final development plan concurrently with the preliminary development plan. If the final 
development plan is found to be in keeping with the approved preliminary development plan the 
Planning Commission may not hold a public hearing as part of the Planning Commission 
consideration of the final development plan.  If certain changes have been made to the final 
development plan that are deemed to be significant or inconsistent with an approved preliminary 
development plan the applicant will be required to follow the procedures in Section 2.2.4.E.  
 
The City Council shall have final authority to approve, with or without conditions, or disapprove a 
final development plan.  The final development plan shall be subject to Planning Commission review 
resulting in a recommendation of approval, with or without stipulations, or disapproval being made to 
the City Council. Such Planning Commission recommendation is subject to the same appeal and 
protest provision described in the previous paragraph. Absent an appeal or protest, the City Council 
at its discretion may hold a Public Hearing as part of its consideration of the final development plan 
submission following the public notification procedures in Section 2.2.1.A.   
 
The general focus of the development plan review process is: 
1. The demonstration that the proposed development is consistent with the zoning district and that 

the overall plan meets or exceeds the design principles and objectives of all applicable zoning 
regulations and review criteria. 

2. The demonstration of the compatibility of the proposed development with existing or permitted 
uses on abutting or adjoin sites or properties, in respect to building height, building materials, 
bulk and scale, setbacks and open spaces, landscaping and site development, and access and 
circulation features. 



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 31 

3. The demonstration of safety and convenience of vehicular and pedestrian circulation in the 
vicinity, including accommodation of fire and safety vehicles, traffic reasonably expected to be 
generated by the proposed uses and other uses reasonably anticipated in the area, considering 
existing zoning and land uses in the area. 
 

2.2.4.E.  FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - CERTAIN DEVIATIONS FROM PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN – PUBLIC NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES.  When a final development 
plan deviates from an approved preliminary development plan the City Administrator and/or his / her 
designee shall notify the applicant of the need to initiate and submit a revised preliminary 
development plan to staff.  At the expense of the applicant, if certain deviations from an approved 
preliminary development plan are presented in the final development plan application a the revised 
preliminary plan with be submitted and reviewed by staff for approval prior to the final development 
plan can be considered by the Planning Commission.  Such deviations include: 
1. Increase density or intensity of residential uses by more than five percent (5%). 
2. Increase the floor area of nonresidential building by more than ten percent (10%). 
3. Increase by more than five percent (5%) the ground covered by buildings. 
4. Increase the number of stories of a building. 
5. Involve changes that will result in a different development concept, create less architectural 

harmony or quality, or impose greater loads upon streets and neighborhood facilities. 
 
2.2.4.F.  CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS.  In approving final development plan applications, 
the City Council, upon the recommendation of the staff and the Planning Commission, may vary the 
standards set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, provided that the overall plan demonstrates site and 
architectural design that meets or exceeds the intent, principles and objectives of all zoning 
regulations. 
 
The Planning Commission and City Council shall use the requirements and standards set forth in the 
zoning regulations as a guide, and may permit adjustments of those requirements and standards in the 
interest of efficient land development and utilization, if it is deemed that other amenities or 
conditions thus gained will result in a development of equal or higher quality than would be 
accommodated by the applicable zoning district and supplementary regulations. 
 
In its review and approval of preliminary and final development plan applications, the Planning 
Commission and City Council may increase the minimum requirements designated in the applicable 
sections of the zoning code based upon its review of the topography of the individual site, the 
orientation of buildings in relationship to street rights-of-way and adjoining properties, the building 
materials used, and the mass and height of buildings.  A purpose of such increases in minimum 
requirements shall be to minimize any adverse impacts of the proposed development on adjoining or 
nearby properties and the general community.   
 
If the Planning Commission imposes conditions or restrictions upon a preliminary development plan, 
it shall designate specific requirements that must be met before  the Planning Commission will 
consider a final development plan application.  If the Planning Commission or City Council imposes 
conditions or restrictions upon a final development plan, it shall designate specific requirements that 
must be met before issuance of a building permit.  The Planning Commission or City Council may 
delegate to the City Administrator or his / her designee the authority to determine if specifically 
prescribed conditions have been satisfied by an applicant without coming back to the Planning 
Commission or City Council.  



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 32 

 
2.2.4.G.  PERIOD OF VALIDITY OF PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL.  If a 
preliminary development plan is approved, the approval shall not be valid for a period longer than 
twelve (12) months from the date of its approval, unless within such period a final development plan 
application is submitted.  The Planning Commission shall be authorized to impose new conditions or 
restrictions upon an approval of the resubmission, or to disapprove the resubmission of a preliminary 
development plan.  Preliminary development plan resubmission procedures shall follow Section 
2.2.4.D. 
 
2.2.4.H.  PERIOD OF VALIDITY OF FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL.  If a final 
development plan is approved, the approval shall not be valid for a period longer than twelve (12) 
months from the date it is approved, unless within such a period a building permit is obtained and 
substantial construction is commenced.  The Planning Commission / City Council may grant one 
extension, not to exceed twelve (12) months, upon written request of the original applicant, and 
resubmission of the application, provided that the application as resubmitted is substantially the same 
as the application originally approved; however, the Planning Commission / City Council shall be 
authorized to impose new conditions upon an approval of the resubmission, or to disapprove the 
resubmission of a final development plan.  Final development plan resubmission procedures shall 
follow Section 2.2.4.D. 

 
SECTION 2.3. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT. 
2.3.1.  CREATION, TERMS, MEETINGS, RULES. All requirements of Sections 2-3-1 through 2-3-5 
of the Gering Code shall be satisfied. 
 
2.3.2.  DUTIES OF ZONING ADMINISTRATOR, CITY BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT, 
AND COURTS ON INTERPRETATION / ENFORCEMENT MATTERS OF APPEAL. It is the 
intent of this Ordinance that all questions of interpretation and enforcement shall be first presented to the 
Zoning Administrator and that such questions shall be presented to the City Board of Zoning Adjustment 
only on appeal from the decision of the Zoning Administrator, and that recourse from the decisions of the 
City Board of Zoning Adjustment shall be to the courts as provided by law. 
 
The formal process for matters of interpretation and enforcement shall follow those outlined in Sections 
2.3.3. and Sections 2.3.5. of these regulations.  A written application with supporting narrative and other 
materials explaining the interpretation / enforcement question shall be provided by the party challenging 
the ruling of the Zoning Administrator.  Additionally, the Zoning Administrator shall provide supporting 
narrative / materials as to such staff interpretation.  The Board of Zoning Adjustment shall consider the 
question as part of a public hearing on the matter and make a determination.  As a result of the 
determination clarifying language may be incorporated into the zoning regulations at a later date. 
 
It is further the intent of this Ordinance that the duties of the City Council in connection with this 
Ordinance shall not include hearing and deciding questions of interpretation and enforcement that may 
arise.  The procedure for deciding such questions shall be as stated in this section and this Ordinance.   
 
2.3.3.  REQUIREMENT FOR WRITTEN APPLICATION AND CONDITIONS.  A variance from 
the terms of this Ordinance shall not be authorized by the City Board of Zoning Adjustment unless per 
Nebraska State Statute (19-910) it finds that: 

1. the strict application of the zoning regulation would produce undue hardship;  



ARTICLE 2. REGULATION ADMINISTRATION 
 

08/10/2020 33 

2. such hardship is not shared generally by other properties in the same zoning district and the same 
vicinity; 

3. the authorization of such variance will not be of substantial detriment to adjacent property and the 
character of the district will not be changed by the granting of the variance; and  

4. the granting of such variance is based upon reason of demonstrable and exceptional hardship as 
distinguished from variations for purposes of convenience, profit, or caprice.  

 
No variance shall be authorized unless the board of adjustment finds that the condition or situation of the 
property concerned or the intended use of the property is not of so general or recurring a nature as to make 
reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation to be adopted as an amendment to the 
zoning regulations. 
 
A written application for a variance, initiated by a property owner or authorized agent, shall be submitted 
to the Zoning Administrator.  The application shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator at least thirty 
(30) days prior to the Board of Adjustment meeting.   
 

 All variance applications shall be submitted to the Board of Adjustment for review.  The Board of 
Adjustment may grant variances from the provisions of these regulations but only upon reviewing the 
following and making the required findings: 

1. Completed application forms including the payment of all fees; 
2. Required findings for the zoning variance; and 
3. Board of Adjustment action form completed. 

 
2.3.4.  EFFECT OF NON-CONFORMANCE.  No non-conforming use of neighboring lands, 
structures, or buildings in the same district, and no permitted or non-conforming use of lands, structures, 
or buildings in other districts shall be considered grounds for the issuance of a variance. 
 
2.3.5.  PUBLIC HEARING AND FINDINGS OF THE BOARD.  Notice of public hearing shall be 
given as in Section 2.2.1.A. above. Any party may appear in person or by agent or by attorney. The City 
Board of Zoning Adjustment shall make findings that all requirements of this Article have been met by 
the application for a variance. The Board shall further make a finding that the reasons set forth in the 
application justify the granting of the variance and that the variance is the minimum variance that will 
make possible the reasonable use of the land, building, or structure. The Board shall further make a 
finding that the granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this 
Ordinance and will not be injurious to the neighborhood, or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 
 
2.3.6.  CONDITIONS IMPOSED.  In granting any variance, the City Board of Zoning Adjustment may 
prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in conformity with this Ordinance.  Violation of such 
conditions and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under which the variance is granted, shall be 
deemed a violation of this Ordinance and punishable under Section 1.8 of this Ordinance. 
 
2.3.7.  USE VARIANCES.  Under no circumstances shall the City Board of Zoning Adjustment grant a 
variance to allow a use not permissible under the terms of this Ordinance in the district involved, or any 
use expressly or by implication prohibited by the terms of this Ordinance in said district. 

 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 34 

SECTION 3.1.  DISTRICTS CREATED.  For purposes of this Ordinance, the City of Gering and all 
area within two miles thereof is hereby divided into zoning districts to be known as follows: 
 
AG   Agricultural District 
RR  Rural Residential District 
RL    Residential Low-Density District 
RM    Residential Medium-Density District 
GCE  Golf Course Estates District  
RH    Residential High-Density District 
C-1 Neighborhood Commercial District 
C-2 Central Business District 
C-3   General Commercial District 
ML    Light Industrial District 
MH    Heavy Industrial District 
  
SECTION 3.2.  DISTRICT ZONING MAP.  The boundaries of these districts are shown on the 
"Zoning District Map" which is made part of this Ordinance, said map and all information shown thereon 
shall have the same force and effect as if fully set forth or described herein. 
 

 The official Zoning District Map shall be identified by the signature of the Mayor, attested by the City 
Clerk under the following statement: 
 

"This is to certify that this is the Official Zoning District Map referred to in Section 3.2 of 
Ordinance No.       of the City of Gering, Nebraska, passed this     day of                 , 20     .” 

 
SECTION 3.3.  ZONING MAP CHANGES.  If, in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, 
changes are made in the district boundaries or other matter portrayed on the Official Zoning Map such 
changes shall be entered on the Official Zoning Map promptly after the amendment has been approved by 
the City Council, with an entry on the Official Zoning Map as follows: “On (date), by official action of 
the City Council the following change was made in the Official Zoning Map:  (brief description of nature 
of change)”, which entry shall be signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk.  No amendment to 
this Ordinance which involves matter portrayed on the Official Zoning Map shall become effective until 
after such change and entry has been made on said map. 
 
No changes of any nature shall be made in the Official Zoning Map or matter shown thereon except in 
conformity with the procedures set forth in this Ordinance. 
 
Regardless of the existence or purported copies of the Official Zoning Map which may, from time to time, 
be made or published, the Official Zoning Map which shall be located in the office of the City Clerk shall 
be the final authority as to the current zoning status of land and water areas, buildings, and other 
structures in the City. 
 
SECTION 3.4.  ZONING MAP REPLACEMENT.  In the event that the Official Zoning Map becomes 
damaged, destroyed, lost or difficult to interpret because of the nature or number of changes and 
additions, the City Council may, by resolution, adopt a new Official Zoning Map which shall supersede 
the prior Official Zoning Map.  The new Official Zoning Map may correct drafting or other errors or 
omissions in the prior Official Zoning Map but no such correction shall have the effect of amending the 
original Official Zoning Map, or any subsequent amendment thereof. 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 35 

 
Each of the new Official Zoning Map(s) shall be identified by the signature of the Planning Commission 
Chair and the Mayor attested by the City Clerk and bearing the seal of the City under the following 
words: 
 

“This is to certify that this Official Zoning Map supersedes and replaced the Official Zoning Map 
adopted   (date)    as part of Ordinance No.       of the City of Gering, Nebraska.” 

 
Unless the prior Official Zoning Map has been lost, or has been totally destroyed, the prior map or any 
significant parts thereof remaining, shall be preserved, together with all available records pertaining to its 
adoption or amendment. 
 
SECTION 3.5.  RULES AND INTERPRETATION OF DISTRICT BOUNDARIES.  Where 
uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of districts as shown on the Official Zoning Map, the following 
rules shall apply: 
1. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of streets, highways or alleys shall be 

construed to follow such center lines. 
2. Boundaries indicated as approximately following platted lot lines shall be construed as following such 

lot lines. 
3. Boundaries indicated as approximately following city limits shall be construed as following such city 

limits. 
4. Boundaries indicated as following railroad lines shall be construed to be midway between the main 

tracks. 
5. Boundaries indicated as following shore lines shall be construed to follow such shore lines and in the 

event of change in the shore line shall be construed as moving with the actual shore line; boundaries 
indicated as approximately following the center line of streams, rivers, canals, lakes or other bodies of 
water shall be construed to follow such center lines. 

6. Boundaries indicated as parallel to or extensions of features indicated in Subsections 1 through 5 above 
shall be so construed.  Distances not specifically indicated on the Official Zoning Map shall be 
determined by the scale of the map. 

7. Where physical or cultural features existing on the ground are at variance with those shown on the 
Official Zoning Map(s), or in other circumstances not covered by Subsections 1 though 6 above, the 
City Board of Zoning Adjustment shall interpret the district boundaries. 

8. Where a district boundary line divides a lot which was in single ownership at the time of passage of 
this Ordinance, the City Board of Zoning Adjustment may permit, as a variance, the extension of the 
regulations for either portion of the lot not to exceed fifty (50) feet beyond the district line into the 
remaining portion of the lot. 

 
SECTION 3.6.  EXTRA TERRITORIAL JURISDICTION / ANNEXATION RULE.  All territory 
which may hereafter be regulated by this Ordinance because of its location within the Extra Territorial 
Jurisdiction area of the City of Gering or annexation of the City of Gering shall retain the zoning district 
classification assigned to the territory prior to annexation.  Any territory that is within the Extra Territorial 
Jurisdiction of the City or annexed into the City of Gering that is unzoned at the time of annexation is 
considered to be zoned AG Agricultural District until otherwise classified by amendment in accordance 
with the provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 3.7.  AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT.  The purpose and objective of the Agricultural District 
and the Agricultural Estate Dwelling Site (AEDS) designation is to preserve land best suited for 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 36 

agriculture from the encroachment of incompatible uses, to prevent the intrusion of urban development 
into agricultural areas which would make agricultural production uneconomical or impractical, to 
preserve in agricultural use land suited to eventual development in other uses until such time as streets, 
utilities and other community facilities may be provided or programmed as to ensure the orderly and 
beneficial conversion of these lands to nonagricultural use; to provide appropriate locations for certain 
types of establishments primarily serving agricultural procedures; to permit the application or regulations 
to major agricultural areas of the city and surrounding area which will reflect basic physical differences 
and attractions among such areas. 
 
3.7.1.  AG AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT. 

3.7.1.A. INTENT. This district is intended primarily for application to those rural areas of the City’s 
Extraterritorial Zoning Jurisdiction or undeveloped portions of the City where it is necessary and 
desirable to reserve for exclusive agricultural use appropriately located areas suitable for the raising 
of crops or livestock because of high quality soils, scenic characteristics, existing or potential 
irrigation or exclusive agricultural character of the area. 
 
3.7.1.B. PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES. Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in Section 3.11. 
 
3.7.1.C. PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES. Accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to 
the permitted principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the 
parameters of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions.  
 
3.7.1.D. CONDITIONAL USES. Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 3.11. 
After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and applicable 
supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses identified 
in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per Section 2.2.2 
of this ordinance. 
 
3.7.1.E. PROHIBITED USES. All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not permissible 
as conditional uses shall be prohibited, unless determined to be a permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning Administrator or the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or conditional use allowed by 
documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land use schedule accordingly 
through periodic amendment of these regulations. 
 
3.7.1.F. MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS. 
1. LOT AREA: The minimum lot area shall be twenty-five (25) acres; 
2. LOT WIDTH: The minimum lot width at the front building line shall be three hundred (300) feet. 
 
3.7.1.G. MINIMUM YARD SETBACK AND SEPARATION REQUIREMENTS. 
1. FRONT YARD: Fifty (50) feet.  
2. REAR YARD:  Fifty (50) feet. 
3. SIDE YARD:  Fifteen (15) feet. 
4. SEPARATION:  The minimum distance between structures used for human habitation shall be 

ninety (90) feet.  The minimum distance between structure used for human habitation and barns / 
stables or other structures used for agricultural purposes shall be one hundred (100) feet. 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 37 

5. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 
regulated by Section 5.1.1. of the zoning regulations. 

 
3.7.1.H. MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE.  No limitations. 
 
3.7.1.I. MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  No limitations. 

 
3.7.2.  AGRICULTURAL ESTATE DWELLING SITE DESIGNATION (AEDS). 

3.7.2.A. INTENT. The intent of this subsection is not to encourage the creation of a large number of 
agricultural estate dwelling sites (AEDS), but such intent is to allow "subdivision" or sale, of a 
portion of a larger tract of land, whereby the smaller parcel created is to be used primarily for 
dwelling site, agricultural and /or agricultural support purposes allowed in the AG Agricultural 
District, upon the following more specific requirements. The AEDS designation is not a zoning 
district but is a specific designation which may be placed upon certain property that guides the 
subdivision of such property within the AG Agricultural District. 
 
3.7.2.B. CONDITIONS FOR CREATION OF AEDS. The AEDS must consist of one or more of the 
following: 

1. An existing farmstead site (an existing vacant home, and accessory units of buildings, on 
farm-ranch land). 

2. A parcel which would allow a conveyance of property to be used for dwelling, agricultural 
and/or agricultural support purposes allowed in the AG Agricultural District. 

3. A parcel of marginal usage land (marginal usage, defined as: "land with little, or relatively 
little, agricultural productivity capability"). 

 
3.7.2.C. RESERVATION OF BALANCE OF LAND. For each AEDS, the owner shall reserve the 
balance of 80 acres of vacant or agricultural district land (such 80 acres, may, however, have 
residences including mobile home for farm residence or adjacent to farm residence for relatives of 
consanguinity and marriage or farm workers). This reservation shall be required (reserved), for as 
long as the reserved land is zoned AG Agricultural District. The City Planning Commission and the 
City Council of the City of Gering, Nebraska, may permit the creation of an AEDS out of less than 
80 acres of reserved land when there is an existing farmstead site on the subject property which 
predates the adoption of this Ordinance, and in other circumstances where the intent of this 
subsection is maintained. Each 80-acre tract (or less), shall serve the reservation requirements of only 
one AEDS. 
 
3.7.2.D. MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS. 
1. FRONTAGE: Each AEDS with frontage on an existing dedicated public road, shall have a 

minimum width of 150 feet (as a front lot width).  In the event such AEDS is of an interior-
section type, it shall have a dedicated access road, at least 25 feet in width, to a dedicated public 
road.  Access road(s) serving an AEDS, shall be separated by a distance of no less than 1,000 feet 
from another access road, along a dedicated public road. 

2. AREA: Each AEDS shall be a minimum of 2 acres, and a maximum of 25 acres. 
 
3.7.2.E. MINIMUM YARD SETBACK AND SEPARATION REQUIREMENTS.  
The provisions of minimum yard requirements, minimum separation requirements as provided for in 
the AG Agricultural District (Section 3.1.7.G.) shall be applicable to an AEDS. 
 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 38 

 
 
3.7.2.F. PROCEDURE FOR OBTAINING APPROVAL FOR AEDS. 
1. Each AEDS shall be shaped and located so as to allow accurate plotting on the official zoning 

map of the City of Gering, Nebraska (i.e.  abutting on lines identifiable as a segment of a section, 
such as a section line or a 1/4 section line, or upon other readily identifiable features).  
Additionally, each AEDS, shall be subject to the provisions for plat review and submittal 
requirements as provided for in of the Subdivisions Regulations of the City of Gering, Nebraska. 

2. In reviewing an application for an AEDS, the Zoning Administrator of the City of Gering, 
Nebraska, shall take into consideration the effect of such an AEDS upon:  utilities, roads, 
drainage, terrain, usage, zoning, future subdividing, and so forth.  If approved, the AEDS parcel, 
along with the reserved tract, shall be noted by the Zoning Administrator, for future reference. 
Applications where it is found that easements and/or right-of-way is necessary will require 
Planning Commission and the City Council review and approval.  

3. The procedure to obtain an AEDS shall be:  an application for the same shall be presented by the 
owner(s) to the Zoning Administrator of the City of Gering, Nebraska, pursuant to the 
Subdivision Regulations of the City of Gering, Nebraska, and if approved by the Planning 
Commission and the City Council of the City of Gering, Nebraska, a certificate shall be prepared, 
identifying the AEDS, which certificate shall be filed on the real estate records of the County of 
Scotts Bluff, Nebraska. 

 
SECTION 3.8.  RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS.  The purposes and objectives of the Residential Districts 
are to preserve and protect areas in the City which by their location, proximity to other land uses, and the 
character of the natural environment, and accessibility to public services and facilities exhibit a high 
potential as living areas for the people.  The regulations are intended to preserve the quality and character 
of existing residential neighborhoods, as well as encourage continuing maintenance and rehabilitation by 
ensuring that incompatible uses of the land will not encroach upon the residential areas. 
 
3.8.1.  RR RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

3.8.1.A. INTENT.  The district is intended primarily to allow for the subdivision of land in 
agricultural and scenic areas to:  (a) permit the opportunity of developing estate-type lots which, 
because of their size, cannot be economically accommodated within urban areas; and (b) to 
encourage the provision of estate-type lots as a subdivision of land which will assure the provisions 
of at least those minimum physical improvements necessary to protect the health, safety and general 
welfare of people living on estate-type lots or parcels. 
 
3.8.1.B.  PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES.  Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in Section 3.11. 
 
3.8.1.C.  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES.  Accessory uses normally appurtenant to the permitted 
principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the parameters of this 
Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions.  
 
3.8.1.D.  CONDITIONAL USES.  Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 
3.11. After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and 
applicable supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses 
identified in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per 
Section 2.2.2 of this ordinance. 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 39 

 
3.8.1.E.  PROHIBITED USES.  All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not permissible 
as conditional uses shall be prohibited unless determined to be a permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning Administrator or the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or conditional use allowed by 
documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land use schedule accordingly 
through periodic amendment of these regulations. 
 
3.8.1.F.  MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS. 
1. LOT AREA: The minimum lot area is three (3) acres.  
2. LOT WIDTH: The minimum width is one hundred (100) feet. Except when a lot fronts on a cul-

de-sac or loop street where there are curbs and gutters, then the minimum lot width shall be 
eighty (80) feet. 

3. LOT DEPTH: Each lot shall have a depth of not less than one hundred fifty (150) feet. 
 
3.8.1.G.  MINIMUM YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS. 
1. FRONT YARD:  Fifty (50) feet. 
2. REAR YARD: Twenty-five (25) feet provided, however, that where construction involves more 

than one story, the rear yard shall be increased by fifteen (15) feet for each additional story. 
3. SIDE YARDS:  Ten (10) feet provided that where construction involves more than one story, the 

side yard shall be increased by seven and one-half (7 ½) feet for each additional one-half story, or 
fifteen (15) feet for each additional story.   

4. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 
regulated by Section 5.1.1. of the zoning regulations. 

 
3.8.1.H.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE.  The maximum lot coverage shall not exceed thirty 
percent (30%) of the total lot area. 
 
3.8.1.I.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  The height of all structures shall not exceed thirty-five (35) feet.  

 
3.8.2.  RL RESIDENTIAL LOW-DENSITY DISTRICT. 

3.8.2.A.  INTENT. This district is intended primarily to provide living areas within the City where 
development is limited to low density concentrations of single-family dwellings and where 
regulations are designed to accomplish the following:  To promote and encourage a suitable 
environment for family life; to provide space for community facilities needed to complete urban 
residential areas and for institutions which require a residential environment; to minimize traffic 
congestion and to avoid the overloading of a utilities and public facilities designed to service only 
single-family residential uses in accord with the comprehensive plan. 
 
3.8.2.B.  PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES. Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in Section 3.11. 
 
3.8.2.C.  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES.  Accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to 
the permitted principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the 
parameters of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions.  
 
3.8.2.D.  CONDITIONAL USES.  Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 
3.11. After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 40 

applicable supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses 
identified in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per 
Section 2.2.2 of this ordinance. 
 
3.8.2.E.  PROHIBITED USES.  All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not permissible 
as conditional uses shall be prohibited unless determined to be a permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning Administrator or the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or conditional use allowed by 
documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land use schedule accordingly 
through periodic amendment of these regulations. 
 
3.8.2.F.  MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS. 
1. LOT AREA: The minimum lot area is eight thousand (8,000) square feet; 
2. LOT WIDTH: The minimum lot width is eighty (80) feet. Except when a lot fronts on a cul-de-

sac or loop street the minimum lot width shall be fifty (50) feet. 
3. LOT DEPTH: Each lot shall have a minimum lot depth of one hundred (100) feet. 

 
3.8.2.G.  MINIMUM YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS. 
1. FRONT YARD:  Twenty-five (25) feet. 
2. REAR YARD:  Twenty-five (25) feet provided, however, that where construction involves more 

than one story, the rear yard shall be increased by ten (10) feet for each additional story.  
Accessory structures shall be subject to the provisions of Article 5 of this Ordinance. 

3. SIDE YARD:  Seven (7) feet, provided that where construction involves more than one story, the 
side yards shall be increased by five (5) feet for each additional one-half story, or ten (10) feet for 
each additional story.  Accessory structures shall be subject to the provisions of Article 5 of this 
Ordinance.   

4. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 
regulated by Section 5.1.1. of the zoning regulations. 

 
3.8.2.H.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE. The maximum lot coverage shall not exceed forty (40) 
percent of the total lot area. 
 
3.8.2.I.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT. The height of all principal structures shall not exceed thirty-five (35) 
feet.  The maximum height of all accessory structures shall not exceed eighteen (18) feet.   

 
3.8.3.  RM RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM-DENSITY DISTRICT. 

3.8.3.A.  INTENT. This district is intended primarily to provide living areas within the City where 
development is limited to low to medium density concentrations of single-family dwellings and 
multiple-family dwellings where regulations are designed to accomplish the following:  To promote 
and encourage a suitable environment for family life; to provide space for areas and for institutions 
which require a residential environment; to minimize traffic congestion and to avoid the overloading 
of utilities and public facilities designed to service only one-family residential uses in accord with 
standards of the comprehensive plan. 
 
3.8.3.B.  PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES. Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in Section 3.11. 
 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 41 

3.8.3.C.  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES. Accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to 
the permitted principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the 
parameters of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions. 
 
3.8.3.D.  CONDITIONAL USES.  Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 
3.11. After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and 
applicable supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses 
identified in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per 
Section 2.2.2 of this ordinance. 
 
3.8.3.E.  PROHIBITED USES. All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not permissible 
as conditional uses shall be prohibited unless determined to be a permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning Administrator or the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or conditional use allowed by 
documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land use schedule accordingly 
through periodic amendment of these regulations. 
 
3.8.3.F.  MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS. 
1. LOT AREA: The minimum lot area for single-family dwellings shall be six thousand (6,000) 

square feet; the minimum lot area for two family dwellings shall be ten thousand (10,000) square 
feet and the minimum lot area per dwelling unit for 3 to 6 unit multifamily dwellings shall be four 
thousand (4,000) square feet per dwelling unit. 

2. LOT WIDTH: The minimum width is sixty (60) feet. Except when a lot fronts on a cul-de-sac or 
loop street the minimum lot width shall be forty (40) feet.  

3. LOT DEPTH: Each lot shall have a depth of not less than eighty (80) feet. 
 
3.8.3.G.  MINIMUM YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS.  
1. FRONT YARD: Twenty-five (25) feet.  
2. REAR YARD: The minimum rear yard setback for principal structures shall be ten (10) feet from 

the rear lot line provided the structure does not cover more than forty (40) percent of the width of 
the rear yard and does not exceed one story.  If the principal structure covers more than forty (40) 
percent of the width of the rear yard, the minimum setback shall be twenty (20) feet.  If the 
principal structure is more than one story the rear yard shall be increased by five (5) feet for each 
additional one-half story or ten (10) feet for each additional story. Accessory structures shall be 
subject to the provisions of Article 5 of this Ordinance. 

3. SIDE YARDS: The minimum interior side yard setback for the one -story principal structure 
shall be five (5) feet from the property line.  The side yards shall be increased by five (5) feet for 
each additional one-half story or ten (10) feet for each additional story.  The minimum setback 
for the principal structure from a side yard which is adjacent to a street on a corner lot shall be 
one-half (1/2) the distance of the front setback or twelve and one-half (12 1/2) feet.  Attached or 
detached garages or carports fronting on the street side yard of a corner lot shall be set back a 
minimum of twenty (20) feet from the property line on a straight driveway approach or fifteen 
(15) feet from the property line where the garage opening is perpendicular to the property line 
requiring a curved driveway approach. Accessory structures shall be subject to the provisions of 
Article 5 of this Ordinance. 

4. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 
regulated by Section 5.1.1. of the zoning regulations. 

 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 42 

3.8.3.H.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE.  The maximum lot coverage shall not exceed forty (40) 
percent of the total lot area. 
 
3.8.3.I.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  The height of all principal structures shall not exceed thirty-five (35) 
feet.  The maximum height of all accessory structures shall not exceed eighteen (18) feet.  

 
3.8.4.  RH RESIDENTIAL HIGH-DENSITY DISTRICT. 

3.8.4.A. INTENT. This district is intended primarily to provide living areas within the City where 
development is limited to high density concentrations of multiple-family dwellings and single family 
dwellings which are compatible in character and density with the multiple-family residential 
environment where regulations are designed to accomplish the following:  To promote and encourage 
a suitable environment for family life; to provide space for community facilities needed to 
compliment urban residential areas and for institutions which require a residential environment; to 
minimize traffic congestion and to avoid the overloading of utilities and public facilities designed to 
service only residential and residential service uses in accord with standards of the comprehensive 
plan. 
 
3.8.4.B.  PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES.  Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in Section 3.11. 
 
3.8.4.C.  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES.  Accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to 
the permitted principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the 
parameters of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions. 
 
3.8.4.D.  CONDITIONAL USES.  Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 
3.11. After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and 
applicable supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses 
identified in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per 
Section 2.2.2 of this ordinance. 
 
3.8.4.E.  PROHIBITED USES.  All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not permissible 
as conditional uses shall be prohibited unless determined to be a permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning Administrator or the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or conditional use allowed by 
documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land use schedule accordingly 
through periodic amendment of these regulations. 
 
3.8.4.F.  MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS. 
1. LOT AREA:  The minimum lot area for single-family dwellings shall be four thousand (4,000) 

square feet; The minimum lot area for two-family dwellings and multiple-family dwellings, 
containing from two to six dwelling units, shall be three thousand (3,000) square feet per 
dwelling unit; for multiple-family dwelling containing more than six dwelling units, there shall be 
one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet per dwelling unit. 

2. LOT WIDTH:  The minimum width of each lot shall be fifty (50) feet. Each lot shall have not 
less than forty (40) feet of frontage when a lot fronts on a cul-de-sac or loop street. 

3. LOT DEPTH:  Each lot shall have a depth of not less than eighty (80) feet. 
 
 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 43 

3.8.4.G.  MINIMUM YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS.   
1. FRONT YARD:  Fifteen (15) feet. 
2. REAR YARD:  The minimum rear yard of a permitted use and its accessory structures shall be 

ten (10) feet, provided, however, that where construction involves more than one story, and the 
site lies adjacent to a site in a single-family residential district, the rear yard shall be increased by 
ten (10) feet for each additional story.  Where the rear of the site abuts on an alley right-of-way, 
the rear yard may be decreased one (1) foot for each two (2) feet of such alley right-of-way.  
Accessory structures under six (6) feet in height may be located within any portion of a required 
rear yard subject to the provisions of Article 5 of this Ordinance. 

3. SIDE YARDS:  The minimum side yards of a permitted use and its accessory structures shall be 
five (5) feet per story, subject to the following conditions: 

a. On the street side of a corner lot, side yards shall not be less than ten (10) feet; 
b. A side yard providing access to more than one dwelling unit shall be not less than ten (10) 

feet; 
c. Where construction involves more than one story and the site lies adjacent to a site in a 

single-family residential district, the side yards shall be increased by five (5) feet for each 
additional story. 

d. Attached or detached garages or carports fronting on the street side yard of a corner lot shall 
be set back a minimum of twenty (20) feet from the property line on a straight driveway 
approach or fifteen (15) feet from the property line where the garage opening is 
perpendicular to the property line requiring a curved driveway approach. 

4.   ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 
regulated by Section 5.1.1 of the zoning regulations. 

 
3.8.4.H.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE.  The maximum lot coverage shall not exceed seventy (70) 
percent of the total lot area. 
 
3.8.4.I.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  The maximum height of a permitted use and its accessory structures 
shall be fifty-five (55) feet.  The maximum height of a use permitted as a conditional use and its 
accessory structures shall be seventy (70) feet. 

 
3.8.5.  GOLF COURSE ESTATE DESIGNATION (GCE). 

3.8.5.A. INTENT. This designation applies to specific developments that existed and are reflected on 
the official zoning map prior to the adoption date of these regulations No future development of this 
type will receive this designation. Future development of this type will be considered a form of 
planned development and addressed via Section 2.2.4 Development Plan Review.  For existing 
development with this designation the intent of the prior zoning district was to establish a residential 
zone which allows the development of a golf course and a residential living environment as a joint 
use with a variety of single family housing types while preserving the value and quality which are 
customarily appurtenant to and associated with a golf course/open area development. 
 
3.8.5.B.  PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES.  Within developments with this designation the 
following shall be permitted as uses by right. 
1. Single family detached and single family attached (not more than six {6} dwellings attached in 

one cluster) dwellings. 
2. Independent and assisted living facilities for elderly and disabled (not to include or to be 

interpreted as rest homes, nursing homes or group care homes). 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 44 

3. Golf courses and activities appurtenant to and customarily associated with a golf course which 
would include but not be limited to: driving range, golf cart storage and repair facilities, pro-shop, 
club house, restaurant (provided it is included in the same building as the club house or pro-shop), 
snack food services, rest rooms and starter facilities. 

4. Accessory structures and uses normally appurtenant to the permitted uses. 
 
3.8.5.C.  CONDITIONAL USES. The following shall be permitted upon satisfying reasonable 
conditions as imposed through the process outlined in Section 2.2.2 of these regulations. 
1. Home Occupations. 
2. Public utility facilities. 
3. Temporary subdivisions sales offices and signs and model home display areas. 
 
3.8.5.D.  PROHIBITED USES. All other uses and structures which are not specifically permitted or 
not permissible as conditional uses shall be prohibited from the GCE Golf Course Estates zoning 
district. 
 
3.8.5.E.  MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS. 
1. The minimum lot area shall be eleven thousand five hundred (11,500) square feet. 
2. Each lot shall have not less than ninety (90) feet of width measured at a distance of twenty-five 

(25) feet within the lot from the front lot line. 
 
3.8.5.F.  MINIMUM YARD REQUIREMENTS. 
1. PRINCIPAL STRUCTURES: 

a. Front yard: The minimum front yard setback is twenty-five (25) feet from the front lot line. 
b. Side yards, interior lot: The minimum side yard setback is eight (8) feet from the property line. 
c. Rear yard, interior lot: The minimum rear yard setback is twenty-five (25) feet from the rear 

property line. 
d. Side yards, corner lot: The minimum side yard setback on the side which faces a street on a 

corner lot shall be twenty-five (25) feet.  The remaining interior side yard setback shall be ten 
(10) feet from the property line. 

e. Rear yard, corner lot: The minimum rear yard setback on a corner lot (rear yard is opposite the 
front of the dwelling) shall be ten (10) feet from the property line. 

2. ACCESSORY STRUCTURES: 
a. Detached accessory buildings shall be located a minimum of five (5) feet beyond the back line 

of the principal structure and shall have a minimum setback of five (5) feet from interior side lot 
lines, twenty-five (25) feet from a side lot line facing a street.  The minimum setback from the 
rear lot line shall be ten (10) feet. 

b.No buildings shall be allowed in the required front yard or side yard facing a street. 
 
3.8.5.G.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE. The maximum lot coverage (principal structures or 
dwelling and all accessory buildings) shall be forty (40) percent. 
 
3.8.5.H.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT. The height of all principal structures shall not exceed thirty-five 
(35) feet measured on the side of the building facing the front yard.  The maximum height of 
accessory buildings shall be eighteen (18) feet measured from the average grade contiguous to the 
accessory building. 
 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 45 

3.8.5.I.  FENCES.  No fences shall be allowed in a required front yard or a required side yard which 
faces a street in the GCE Golf Course Estates District. 

 
SECTION 3.9.  COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS.  The several classes of commercial districts included in 
this Ordinance are designed to provide the opportunity for the various types of retail stores, offices, 
service establishments and wholesale business to concentrate for the convenience of the public; to be 
established in such relationships to each other as to be mutually beneficial; and to be located and grouped 
on sites that are in logical proximity to the respective geographical areas and respective categories of 
patrons which they serve. 
 
3.9.1.  C-1 NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT. 

3.9.1.A.  INTENT.  The C-1 Neighborhood Commercial District is intended primarily for the 
provision of retail and personal service facilities to satisfy the convenience-goods needs of the 
consumer relatively close to his/her place of residence. 
 
3.9.1.B.  PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES. Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in Section 3.11. 
 
3.9.1.C.  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES.  Accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to 
the permitted principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the 
parameters of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions. 
 
3.9.1.D. CONDITIONAL USES.  Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 3.11. 
After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and applicable 
supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses identified 
in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per Section 2.2.2 
of this ordinance. 
 
3.9.1.E.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.  These regulations shall apply as minimum requirements 
for all non-residential uses in the C-1 Neighborhood Commercial District. 
1. Where a site adjoins or is located across an alley from any R Residential district or residential use, 

a solid wall or fence, vine covered open fence or compact evergreen hedge six (6) feet in height 
shall be located on the property line common to such districts, except in a required front yard. 

2. No outdoor or open storage of material is allowed.  Accessory uses such as outdoor eating areas / 
retail sales displays are allowed but cannot interfere with safe pedestrian and vehicular movement. 
Outdoor entertainment uses may be allowed through the issuance of a special event permit or 
Conditional Use Permit. 

3. Not less than five (5) feet of a required yard adjoining a street shall be landscaped and 
permanently maintained. 

4. No use shall be permitted and no process, equipment or materials shall be used which are found to 
be objectionable to persons living or working in the vicinity by reasons of odor, fumes, dust, 
smoke, cinders, dirt, refuse, water-carried waste, noise, vibrations, illumination, glare, or 
unsightliness or to involve any hazard of fire or explosion. 

 
3.9.1.F.  PROHIBITED USES.  All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not permissible 
as conditional uses shall be prohibited unless determined to be a permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning Administrator or the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or conditional use allowed by 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 46 

documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land use schedule accordingly 
through periodic amendment of these regulations. 
 
3.9.1.G.  MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS.  No limitation. 
 
3.9.1.H.  MINIMUM YARD SETBACK AND SEPARATION REQUIREMENTS. 
1. FRONT YARD:  No minimum setback provided that where a lot is abutting on property in any 

Residential District and fronting on the same street, there shall be a minimum front yard of ten 
(10) feet. 

2. REAR YARD:  None, except the minimum rear yard abutting a Residential District or residential 
use shall be ten (10) feet. 

3. SIDE YARD:  None, except the minimum side yard abutting a Residential District or residential 
use shall be ten (10) feet. 

4. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 
regulated by Section 5.1.1. of the zoning regulations. 

 
3.9.1.I.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE.  The maximum lot coverage shall not exceed seventy (70) 
percent of the total lot area. 
 
3.9.1.J.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  No structure shall exceed thirty-five (35) feet in height. 

 
3.9.2.  C-2 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT. 

3.9.2.A. INTENT. The intent of the C-2 Central Business District is to provide a commercial area for 
those establishments serving the general shopping needs of the trade area and in particular, those 
establishments customarily oriented to the pedestrian shopper.  The grouping of uses is intended to 
strengthen the central business area as the urban center of trade, service, governmental and cultural 
activities. 
 
3.9.2.B.  PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES.  Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in Section 3.11. 
 
3.9.2.C.  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES.  Accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to 
the permitted principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the 
parameters of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions.  
 
3.9.2.D.  CONDITIONAL USES.  Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 
3.11. After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and 
applicable supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses 
identified in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per 
Section 2.2.2 of this ordinance. 
 
3.9.2.E.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.  The following regulations shall apply as minimum 
requirements for all non-residential uses in the C-2 Central Business District. 
1. Where a site adjoins or is located across an alley from any Residential District or residential use, a 

solid wall or fence, vine covered open fence or compact evergreen hedge six (6) feet in height shall 
be located on the property line common to such districts or uses except in a required front yard.  

2. No outdoor or open storage of materials is allowed.  Accessory uses such as outdoor eating areas 
/ retail sales displays are allowed but cannot interfere with safe pedestrian and vehicular 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 47 

movement. Outdoor entertainment uses may be allowed through the issuance of a special event 
permit or Conditional Use Permit. 

3. No use shall be permitted and no process, equipment or materials shall be used which are found 
to be objectionable to persons living or working in the vicinity by reasons of odor, fumes, dust, 
smoke, cinders, dirt, refuse, water-carried waste, noise, vibrations, illumination, glare, or 
unsightliness or to involve any hazard of fire or explosion. 

 
3.9.2.F.  PROHIBITED USES.  All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not permissible 
as conditional uses shall be prohibited unless determined to be a permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning Administrator or the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or conditional use allowed by 
documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land use schedule accordingly 
through periodic amendment of these regulations. 
 
3.9.2.G. MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS.  No Limitations. 
 
3.9.2.H.  MINIMUM YARD REQUIREMENTS. 
1. FRONT YARD: No minimum setback provided that where a lot is abutting on property in any 

Residential District and fronting on the same street, there shall be a minimum front yard of ten 
(10) feet. 

2. REAR YARD:  None, except the minimum rear yard abutting any Residential District or 
residential use shall be twenty (20) feet. 

3. SIDE YARD:  None, except the minimum side yard abutting any Residential District or residential 
use shall be ten (10) feet.  Where a lot is abutting on property in a RH Residential High Density 
District across an alley, there shall be a minimum side yard setback of five (5) feet.  

4. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 
regulated by Section 5.1.1. of the zoning regulations. 

 
3.9.2.I.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE.  No limitations. 
 
3.9.2.J.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  No structures shall exceed seventy-five (75) feet. 

 
3.9.3.  C-3 GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT. 

3.9.3.A.  INTENT.  The C-3 District is intended primarily for application to areas along major 
highways and arterials for the development of higher traffic commercial retail businesses, businesses 
that cater to the traveling public, and office and/or industrial employment uses carried on entirely 
indoors that cannot fit the scale and character of the central business district. This district is not 
intended for industrial uses or commercial service businesses requiring fleets of vehicles, outdoor 
storage of equipment or product, etc.  Commercial businesses primarily engaged in the provision of 
commercial or industrial services serving residential, commercial and industrial uses should be 
located in industrial zoning districts. 
 
3.9.3.B.  PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES.  Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in 3.11. 
 
3.9.3.C.  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES. Accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant to 
the permitted principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the 
parameters of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions.  



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 48 

 
3.9.3.D.  CONDITIONAL USES.  Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 
3.11. After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and 
applicable supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses 
identified in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per 
Section 2.2.2 of this ordinance. 
 
3.9.3.E.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.  The following regulations shall apply as minimum 
requirements for all non-residential uses in the C-3 General Commercial District. 
1. Where a site adjoins or is located across the alley from any Residential District or residential use, 

a solid wall or fence, vine covered open fence or compact evergreen hedge six (6) feet in height, 
shall be located on the property line common to such districts, except in a required front yard. 

2. Outdoor storage of materials attendant to a permitted use or conditional use shall be permitted 
only within an area surrounded or screened by a solid wall or fence six (6) feet in height, 
provided that no materials or equipment shall be stored to a height greater than that of the wall or 
fence. 

3. No use shall be permitted and no process, equipment or materials shall be used which are found 
to be objectionable to persons living or working in the vicinity by reasons of odor, fumes, dust, 
smoke, cinders, dirt, refuse, water-carried waste, noise, vibrations, illumination, glare, or 
unsightliness or to involve any hazard of fire or explosion. 

 
3.9.3.F.  PROHIBITED USES.  All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not permissible 
as conditional uses shall be prohibited unless determined to be a permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning Administrator or the 
Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or conditional use allowed by 
documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land use schedule accordingly 
through periodic amendment of these regulations. 
 
3.9.3.G.  MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS.  There shall be no minimum lot area. 
 
3.9.3.H.  MINIMUM YARD REQUIREMENTS. 
1. FRONT YARD:  Twenty-five (25) feet.  
2. REAR YARD:  None, except the minimum rear yard abutting a Residential District or residential 

use, or adjacent to a street or alley shall be twenty-five (25) feet. 
3. SIDE YARD:  None except the minimum side yard abutting a Residential District or residential 

use, or street or alley shall be twenty-five (25) feet.  
4. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 

regulated by Section 5.1.1. of the zoning regulations. 
  

3.9.3.I.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE.  No lot shall be covered by buildings and/or parking areas 
or other impervious surfaces in excess of 85% of the total land area available.  Land shall not be 
deemed covered if used for growing grass, shrubs, trees, plants or flowers, or if covered by 
decorative gravel or wood chips if suitably landscaped. 
 
3.9.3.J.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  No structure shall exceed thirty-five (35) feet. 

 
SECTION 3.10.  INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS. The industrial zones are intended to achieve the 
following purposes:  To reserve appropriately located areas for various types of industrial plants and 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 49 

related activities; to protect areas appropriate for industrial use from intrusion by residences and other 
inharmonious uses; to protect residential and to protect nuisance-free non-hazardous commercial and 
industrial uses; to provide opportunities for certain types of industrial plants to concentrate in the needs of 
modern industrial development, including off-street parking and truck loading areas, and to provide 
industrial opportunities for residents of the City. 
 
3.10.1.  ML LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT. 

3.10.1.A.  INTENT.  The intent of this district is to provide space for certain commercial uses and a 
wide range of warehouse / distribution and light industrial uses which are able to meet certain 
performance standards to protect nearby property from undesirable environmental conditions.  
Residential and other similar uses are prohibited from this district in order to limit environmental 
effects associated with certain commercial and industrial uses, irrespective of meeting performance 
standards. 
 
3.10.1.B. PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USES.  Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in Section 3.11. 
 
3.10.1.C. PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES.  Accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant 
to the permitted principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the 
parameters of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions.  
 
3.10.1.D.  CONDITIONAL USES.   Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 
3.11. After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and 
applicable supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses 
identified in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per 
Section 2.2.2 of this ordinance. 
 
3.10.1.E.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. The following regulations shall apply as minimum 
requirements for all uses in the ML Light Industrial District. 
1. Physical Appearance:  All operations shall be carried on within an enclosed building except that 

new materials or equipment in operable condition may be stored in the open.  Normal daily 
wastes of an inorganic nature may be stored in containers not in a building when such containers 
are not readily visible from the street. 

2. Fire Hazard:  No operation shall involve the use of highly flammable gases, acid, liquids, 
grinding processes or other inherent fire hazard.  This provision shall not be constructed to 
prohibit the use of normal heating fuels, motor fuels and welding gases when handled in 
accordance with other City regulations. 

3. Noise:  No operation shall be carried on which involves noise in excess of the normal traffic 
noise of the adjacent street at the time of the daily peak hour of traffic volume.  Noise shall be 
measured at the property line and when the level of such noise cannot be determined by 
observation with the natural senses, a suitable instrument may be used and measurement may 
include breakdowns into a reasonable number of frequency ranges.  All noises shall be muffled so 
as not to be objectionable due to intermittence, beat frequency or shrillness. 

4. Sewage and Liquid Wastes:  No operation shall be carried on which involves the discharge into a 
sewer, water course on the ground of liquid wastes of any radioactive nature, or liquid wastes of a 
chemical nature which are detrimental to normal sewage plant operation or corrosive and 
damaging to sewer pipes and installations. 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 50 

5. Air Contaminants:  Air contaminants and smoke shall be less dark than designated Number One 
on the Ringleman Chart as published by the United States Bureau of Mines, except that smoke of 
a density designated as Number One shall be permitted for one (1) four (4) minute period in each 
one-half (½) hour.  Light colored contaminants of such an opacity as to obscure an observer's 
view to a degree equal to or greater than the aforesaid shall not be permitted.  Particulate matter 
of dust as measured at the point of emission by any generally accepted method shall not be 
emitted in excess of two-tenths (.2) grains per cubic foot as corrected to a temperature of five 
hundred (500) degrees Fahrenheit, except for a period of four (4) minutes in any one-half (½) 
hour, at which time it may equal but not exceed six-tenths (.6) grains per cubic foot as corrected 
to a temperature of five hundred (500) degrees Fahrenheit. 

6. Due to the fact that the possibilities of air contamination cannot reasonably be comprehensively 
covered in this section there shall be applied the general rule that there shall not be discharged 
from any sources whatsoever such quantities of air contaminants or other material in such 
quantity as to cause injury, detriment, nuisance or annoyance to any considerable number of 
persons or to the public in general or to cause or have a natural tendency to cause injury or 
damage to business, vegetation or property. 

7. Odor:  The omissions of odors that are generally agreed to be obnoxious to any considerable 
number of persons, shall be prohibited.  Observations of odor shall be made at the property line 
of the establishment causing the odor.  As a guide to classification of odor it shall be deemed that 
strong odors of putrefaction and fermentation tend to be obnoxious and that such odors as 
associated with baking or the roasting of nuts and coffee shall not normally be considered 
obnoxious within the meaning of this Ordinance. 

8. Gases:  The gases sulphur dioxide, hydrogen sulphide and carbon monoxide shall not exceed five 
(5) parts per million.  All nitrous fumes shall not exceed one (1) part per million.  Measurements 
shall be taken at the property line of the particular establishment involved. 

9. Vibration:  All machines including punch presses and stamping machines shall be so mounted as 
to minimize vibration and in no case shall such vibration exceed a displacement of three 
thousandths (3/1,000) of an inch measured at the property line.  The use of steam or broad 
hammers shall not be permitted. 

10. Glare and Heat:  All glare, such as welding arcs and open furnaces, shall be shielded so that they 
shall not be visible from the property line.  No heat from furnaces or processing equipment shall 
be sensed at the property line to the extent of raising the temperature of air or materials more than 
five (5) degrees Fahrenheit. 

11. A use not conducted entirely within a completely enclosed structure, on a site across a street or 
alley from a Residential District or residential use, shall be screened by a solid wall or fence, vine 
covered open fence or compact evergreen hedge, not less than six (6) feet in height. 

12. Where a site adjoins a Residential District or residential use, a solid wall or fence, vine covered 
open fence or compact evergreen hedge, six (6) feet in height, shall be located on the property 
line except in a required front yard. 

13. Open storage of materials and equipment shall be permitted only within an area surrounded and 
screened by a solid wall or fence or compact evergreen hedge (with solid gates where necessary), 
not less than six (6) feet in height, provided that no material shall be stored to a height greater 
than that of the wall, fence or hedge. 

14. The storage above ground or below ground of liquid petroleum products or chemicals of a 
flammable or noxious nature shall not exceed one hundred fifty thousand (150,000) gallons when 
stored on one (1) lot of less than one (1) acre in area nor shall storage exceed more than twenty-
five thousand (25,000) gallons in one (1) tank.  Storage of liquid petroleum products or chemicals 
of a flammable or noxious nature in excess of twenty-five thousand (25,000) gallons, shall not be 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 51 

located closer than fifty (50) feet from any structure intended for human inhabitation or closer 
than two hundred (200) feet from any Residential or Commercial District or residential or 
commercial use. 

15. All portions of any lot shall be maintained in good condition free from weeds, trash and debris. 
 
3.10.1.F.  PROHIBITED USES.  All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not 
permissible as conditional uses shall be prohibited unless determined to be a permitted principal, 
accessory or conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning 
Administrator or the Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use allowed by documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land 
use schedule accordingly through periodic amendment of these regulations. 

 
3.10.1.G.  MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS.  No limitations. 
 
3.10.1.H.  MINIMUM YARD REQUIREMENTS. 
1. FRONT YARD:  Twenty-five (25) feet. 
2. REAR YARD:  None, except the minimum rear yard abutting a Residential District or residential 

use shall be twenty-five (25) feet. 
3. SIDE YARD:  None, except the minimum side yard abutting a Residential District or residential 

use shall be ten (10) feet. 
4. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 

regulated by Section 5.1.1. of the zoning regulations. 
 
3.10.1.I.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE.  No limitations. 
 
3.10.1.J.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  No structure shall exceed seventy-five (75) feet. Except structures 
with a height greater than seventy-five (75) feet may be allowed if the structure is placed on the 
property in such a manner that the setback from all property lines is equal to or exceeds the height of 
the structure. 

 
3.10.2.  MH HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT. 

3.10.2.A.  INTENT.  The intent of this district is to provide space for the widest range of industrial 
operations permitted in the City, for those industrial uses which are able to meet certain performance 
standards to protect nearby property from undesirable environmental conditions.   Residential and 
other similar uses are prohibited from this district in order to limit environmental effects associated 
with certain commercial and industrial uses, irrespective of their meeting performance standards. 
 
3.10.2.B.  PERMITTED PRINCIPAL USE.  Permitted principal uses are listed in the land use 
schedule in Section 3.11. 
 
3.10.2.C.  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES.  Accessory uses and structures normally appurtenant 
to the permitted principal uses and permitted conditional uses shall be permitted subject to the 
parameters of this Ordinance and other applicable regulations and conditions. 
 
3.10.2.D.  CONDITIONAL USES.  Conditional uses are listed in the land use schedule in Section 
3.11. After the provisions of the regulations relating to the conditional use permit process and 
applicable supplementary district regulations have been fulfilled the City may permit conditional uses 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 52 

identified in the land use schedule with or without additional conditions attached to the permit per 
Section 2.2.2 of this ordinance. 
 
Due to the nature of the processing, and the rendering and disposal of both useable and un-useable 
(waste) by-products the following uses is subject to City Council review and approval with the 
Planning Commission serving in a review and recommending capacity: 

1. Meat and poultry packing, slaughtering, eviscerating and skinning; and the rendering of by-
products of slaughtering and killing animals or poultry. 

 
3.10.2.E.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.  The following regulations shall apply as minimum 
requirements for all uses in the MH Heavy Industrial District. 
1. Physical Appearance:  Junk, salvage, auto wrecking and similar operations shall be shielded from 

view from streets and from adjacent properties in another district by means of a sturdy, sight-
obscuring fence in good repair, or two rows of alternate planted evergreen trees. 

2. Fire Hazard:  All flammable substances involved in any activity established in the district shall be 
handled in conformance with the latest edition of the Fire Prevention Code published by the 
American Insurance Association and other City Ordinances. 

3. Noise:  All noises and noise causing activities shall be muffled so that they will not create a 
disturbance greater than normal peak hour traffic noise of a major street when observed from any 
area in a Residential District.  Major street noise for comparison purposes shall be measured at 
the property line. 

4. Sewage and Liquid Waste:  No operations shall be carried on which involves the discharge into a 
sewer, water course or the ground of liquid wastes of any radioactive nature, or liquid wastes of a 
chemical nature which are detrimental to normal sewage plant operation or corrosive and 
damaging to sewer pipes and installations. 

5. Air Contaminants:  Air contaminants and smoke shall be less dark than designated Number One 
on the Ringleman Chart as published by the United States Bureau of Mines, except that smoke of 
a density designated as Number Two shall be permitted for an aggregate ten (10) minute period in 
each one-half (½) hour.  Light colored contaminants of such opacity as to obscure an observer's 
view to a degree equal to or greater than the aforesaid shall not be permitted.  Particulate matter 
of dust as measured at the point of emission by any generally accepted method shall not be 
emitted in excess of two-tenths (.2) grains per cubic foot as corrected to a temperature of five 
hundred degrees (500 ) Fahrenheit, except for a period of four (4) minutes in any one-half (½) 
hour, at which time it may equal but not exceed six-tenths (.6) grains per cubic foot as correct to a 
temperature of five hundred degrees (500 ) Fahrenheit. 

6. Due to the fact that the possibilities of air contamination cannot be comprehensively covered in 
this section there shall be applied the general rule that there shall not be discharged from any 
sources whatsoever such quantities of air contaminants or other material in such quantity as to 
cause injury, detriment, nuisance or annoyance to any considerable number of persons or to the 
public in general or to endanger the comfort, repose, health or safety of any such considerable 
number of persons or to the public in general or to cause or have a natural tendency to cause 
injury or damage to business, vegetation or property. 

7. Odor:  Odor causing operations shall be controlled so as to reduce escape of odors to the 
minimum practical within the limits of technology and economics. 

8. Gases:  All noxious gases shall be controlled to the extent that they will not be injurious to life 
and property.  The gases sulphur dioxide and hydrogen sulphide shall not exceed five (5) parts 
per million, carbon monoxide shall not exceed twenty-five (25) parts per million, and nitrous 
fumes shall not exceed five (5) parts per million.   



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 53 

9. Vibration:  All machines including punch presses and stamping machines shall be mounted so as 
to minimize vibration.  Vibration shall not be so excessive that it interferes with industrial 
operations on nearby lots. 

10. Where a site adjoins a Residential District or residential use, a solid wall, or fence, vine covered 
open fence or compact evergreen hedge, six (6) feet in height. 

11. A use not conducted entirely within a completely enclosed structure, on a site across a street or 
alley from a Residential District or residential use, shall be screened by a solid wall or fence, vine 
covered open fence or compact evergreen hedge, not less than six (6) feet in height. 

12. Storage of liquid petroleum products or chemicals of a flammable or noxious nature in excess of  
twenty-five thousand (25,000) gallons, shall not be located closer than fifty (50) feet from any 
structure intended for human inhabitation or closer than two hundred (200) feet from any 
Residential or Commercial District or residential or commercial use. 

 
3.10.2.F.  PROHIBITED USES.  All other uses which are not specifically permitted or not 
permissible as conditional uses shall be prohibited unless determined to be a permitted principal, 
accessory or conditional use via a documented comparative interpretation by the Zoning 
Administrator or the Board of Zoning Adjustment.  Such permitted principal, accessory or 
conditional use allowed by documented interpretative comparison will be incorporated into the land 
use schedule accordingly through periodic amendment of these regulations. 
 
3.10.2.G.  MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS.  No limitations. 
 
3.10.2.H.  MINIMUM YARD REQUIREMENTS. 
1. FRONT YARD:  Twenty-five (25) feet. 
2. REAR YARD:  None, except the minimum rear yard abutting a Residential District or a 

residential use shall be twenty-five (25) feet. 
3. SIDE YARD:  None, except the minimum side yard abutting a Residential District or residential 

use shall be ten (10) feet. 
4. ACCESSORY STRUCTURE LOCATION: The placement of accessory structures is further 

regulated by Section 5.1.1. of the zoning regulations. 
 
3.10.2.I.  MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE.  No limitations. 
 
3.10.2.J.  MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  No structure shall exceed one hundred (100) feet. Except structures 
with a height greater than one hundred (100) feet may be allowed if the structure is placed on the 
property in such a manner that the setback from all property lines is equal to or exceeds the height of 
the structure. 

 
3.11. LAND USE TABLE. The land use table provides a summary of the land use types allowed within 
each zoning district. The table is intended for reference and does not necessarily reflect all of the 
regulations that may apply to particular uses or districts. In the event of conflict between the schedule and 
the permitted and conditional use regulations found within the individual district sections of this article 
the text of the individual district regulations shall prevail. 
 
1. Permitted: Uses identified in a particular district column of the land use schedule with a “P” are 

“permitted by right” and shall be permitted in such district, subject to such all other requirements of 
this article and these regulations. 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 54 

2. Conditional permit uses: Uses identified in a particular district column of the land use schedule with 
an “C” are “conditional permit uses” and shall be permitted in such district if reviewed and approved 
by the City Council in accordance with the procedures and standards of this article. Conditional 
permit uses shall be subject to such supplementary use regulations all other requirements of this 
article and these regulations. 

3. Not permitted: Uses not identified in a particular district column of the land use table as permitted or 
by special use permit are not allowed in such district unless otherwise expressly permitted by other 
regulations of this article or via the interpretation of such proposed use as comparable to those listed 
in the table and in keeping with the intent of the applicable zoning district. 

 
P = Permitted 
C = Conditional permit use 
 
Certain development types (Section 5.7), as well as development seeking plan exceptions or deviations 
per (Section 2.2.4) are subject to the development plan review process (Section 2.2.4).  All uses and 
property development is subject to the applicable specific district regulations (Article 3), special district 
regulations (Article 4) and supplemental regulations (Article 5). 
 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 55 

 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 56 
 



ARTICLE 3. ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 57 
  



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 58 

4.1.  SPECIAL DISTRICTS.  These special district regulations are intended to provide specific 
conditions for uses and structures which would otherwise not be included in the district regulations of 
Article 3 of this Ordinance.  These special districts are indicated on the Official Zoning Map.  The 
applicable regulations for property located within a special district would, therefore, include the district 
regulations for the parent zoning district and the respective special district regulations. 
 
4.2.  WNR AIRPORT AREA DISTRICT. 
4.2.1.  INTENT.  This article shall be known as airport zoning regulations. These regulations are intended 
to provide for the safe operation of aircraft into and out of Western Nebraska Regional Airport, William G. 
Heilig Field. 
 
4.2.2.  DEFINITIONS. The following definitions shall be used for terms contained in this section that are 
not otherwise defined. 
1. Airport:  Western Nebraska Regional Airport, William G. Heilig Field, Scottsbluff, Nebraska. 
2. Airport Elevation:  William G. Heilig: 3,944 feet MSL. 
3. Airport Encroachment:  Any structure, tree or use of land which obstructs the airspace required for the 

flight of aircraft in landing or taking off at Western Nebraska Regional Airport, William U. Heilig 
Field, or is otherwise hazardous to the operation of aircraft. 

4. Airport Encroachment Area:  Any area of land or water upon which an airport hazard might be 
established if not prevented by this article. 

5. Departure Limit:  The horizontal line perpendicular to the runway center line, established as the 
beginning of the usable takeoff runway. 

6. Electrical Facility:  Electrical facility means an overhead electrical line, including poles or other 
supporting structures, owned or operated by an electric supplier as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. 70-
1001.01, for the transmission or distribution of electrical power to the electric supplier’s customers. 

7. Existing Runway:  Existing runway means an instrument runway or a visual runway that is paved or 
made of turf that has been constructed or is under construction. 

8. Landing Area:  The area of the airport intended for use for the landing, taking off or taxiing of aircraft. 
9. Landing Threshold:  A horizontal line, perpendicular to the runway center line, established as the 

beginning of the usable landing runway. 
10. Locations and Borders:  Vicinity of the airport located in Sections 16, 17, 20 and 21, Township 22, 

Range 54, Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska. 
11. Mean Sea Level: The United States Coast and Geodetic Survey zero datum plane, abbreviated “MSL”. 
12. Nonconforming Use:  Any structure, tree or use of land which does not conform to the requirements 

of this article, or an amendment thereto, as of the effective date of this article or amendment. 
13. Person:  Any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, company, association, joint stock association, 

or body politic, and includes any trustee, receiver, assignee or other similar representatives thereof. 
14. Political Subdivision:  Political subdivision means any municipality, city, village, or county. 
15. Proposed Runway:  Proposed runway means an instrument runway or a visual runway that has not 

been constructed and is not under construction, but that is depicted on the airport layout plan that has 
been conditionally or unconditionally approved by, or has been submitted for approval to, the Federal 
Aviation Administration. 

16. Runway:  Runway means a defined area at an airport that is prepared for the landing and takeoff of 
aircraft along its length. 

17. Structure:  Any object constructed or installed by man, including, but without limitation, buildings, 
towers, smokestacks, and overhead transmission lines. 

18. Tree:  Any object of natural growth, except farm crops which are cut at least once a year, and except 
shrubs, bushes or plants which do not grow to a height of more than five feet. 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 59 

19. Zoning Reference Point:  The point of intersection of the center line of William B. Heilig Field, 
Runway 12/30 with the center line of William B. Heilig Field, Runway 5/23. 

 
4.2.3.  AIRPORT HAZARD AREA DESCRIPTION.  The Airport Hazard Area shall consist of the 
Operation Zones, Approach zones, Turning Zones and Transition Zones as described in this section. 
Zone Descriptions: 
1. The Operation Zones are longitudinally centered on each existing or proposed runway. 

a. Length.  For existing and proposed paved runways, the operation zones begin and end 200 feet 
beyond the end of each runway.  For existing and proposed turf runways, the operation zones begin 
and end at the runway ends. 

b. Width.  For existing and proposed instrument runways, the operation zones are 1,000 feet wide, 
with 500 feet on either side of the runway centerline.  For all other existing and proposed runways, 
the operation zones are 500 feet wide, and two hundred fifty feet on either side of the runway 
centerline. 

c. Height.  The height limit of the operation zones is the same as the height of the nearest point on the 
existing or proposed runway or the surface of the ground, whichever is higher. 

2. The Approach Zones extend from the end of each operation zone and are centered along the extended 
runway centerlines.  An approach zones’ dimensions are as follows: 
a. Instrument Runways 

i. Length and Width.  The approach zone extends ten miles from the operation zone, measured 
along the extended runway centerline.  The approach zone is one thousand (1,000) feet wide at 
the end of the nearest runway (i.e., adjacent to the operation zone) and expand uniformly to 
sixteen thousand eight hundred forty (16,840) feet wide at the farthest end of the zone (i.e., ten 
miles (10) from the operation zone). 

ii. Height Limit.  The height limit of an approach zone begins at the elevation of the runway end for 
which it is the approach and rises one foot vertically for every fifty feet horizontally (50:1), 
except that the height limit shall not exceed one hundred fifty (150) feet above the nearest 
existing or proposed runway end elevation within three (3) miles from said operation zone, the 
height limit resumes sloping one foot vertically for every fifty feet horizontally (50:1) and 
continues to the ten (10) mile limit. 

b. Visual Runways 
i. Length and Width.  An approach zone extends from the operational zone to the limits of the 

turning zone, measured along the extended runway centerline.  The approach zone is five hundred 
(500) feet wide at the end of the zone nearest the runway (i.e., adjacent to the operation zone) and 
expands uniformly so that at a point on the extended runway centerline three (3) miles from the 
operation zone, the approach zone is three thousand seven hundred feet wide. 

ii. Height.  The height limit of an approach zone begins at the elevation of the runway end for which 
it is the approach and rises one foot vertically for every forty (40) feet horizontally, except that 
the height limit shall not exceed one hundred fifty (150) feet above the nearest existing or 
proposed runway end elevation within three miles of the end of the operation zone at the runway 
end. 

3. The Transition Zones extend outward at a right angle to the runway centerline and upward at a rate of 
one foot vertically for every seven feet horizontally (7:1).  The height limit of a transition zone begins 
at the height limit of the adjacent approach zone or operation zone and ends at a height of one hundred 
fifty (150) feet above the highest elevation on the existing or proposed runway. 

4. The Turning Zones are located at the distance of three miles (3) radius from the corners of the 
operational zone of each runway and connection adjacent arcs with tangent lines, excluding any area 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 60 

within the operation zone, approach zone, or transition zone.  The height limit of the turning zone is 
one hundred fifty feet above the highest elevation on the existing or proposed runway. 

 
4.2.4.  ADOPTION OF WESTERN NEBRASKA REGIONAL AIRPORT, LAYOUT PLAN.  In 
order to define the dimensions of the zones established by these regulations, the City of Gering hereby 
adopts the Airport Project No. 3-31-0072-22, Airport Layout Plan, dated February 8, 2016.  All 
subsequent adopted Airport Layout Plans are hereby incorporated by reference. 
 
4.2.5.  AIRPORT ENCROACHMENT AREA.  There is hereby created an airport encroachment area 
which consists of runway area zones, approach departure zones, transition zones, horizontal zone, and 
conical zone, which are shown on the airport zoning map and defined as follows: 
1. Runway Area Zones   Runway area zones are established along the runways, having a width of 1,000 

feet symmetrically located along both sides of the center line of the runway and all other area between 
parallel runways, and extended longitudinally 200 feet beyond the outermost landing threshold, 
departure limit, or of the runway. 

2. Approach-Departure Zones  Approach-departure zones are established beyond and outward from the 
landing thresholds and departure limits of the runways, having a width of 1,000 feet at their 
beginning, and a distance of 200 feet outward from the landing thresholds and departure limits, 
symmetrically located along both sides of the extended center line of the runway, and widening 
uniformly to a width of 16,000 feet at the outer limit of the zone, a distance of 50,000 feet outward 
from the landing thresholds and department limits. 

3. Transition Zones  Transition zones are established along both sides of all runways, and adjacent to the 
runway area zone, extending laterally outward there from for varying distances to a line formed by the 
locus of the points where the height limits of the transition zones equal the height limit of the 
horizontal zone or equal the transition zone of runway area zones, and being between the beginning of 
the approach-departure zones at each end of the runway.  Further, transition zones are established 
along both sides of all approach departure zones, and extending laterally outward therefrom for 
varying distances to a line formed by the locus of the points where the height limits of the transition 
zone equal the height limits of the horizontal zone or the height limits of the conical zone, or for a 
distance of 5,000 feet, whichever is less. Transition zones so established extend longitudinally 
between the inner and outer limits of the approach-departure zones, which is a distance of 50,000 feet. 

4. Horizontal Zone    A horizontal zone is established which has as its outer boundary a line which is at 
all times 10,000 feet beyond the landing area and 150 feet above airport elevation. 

5. Conical Zone   The conical zone is established as the area that commences at the periphery of the 
horizontal zone and extends outward therefrom a horizontal distance of 4,000 feet. 

6. Conflicts of Height Limits.  Where an area is subject to more than one height limit, the most 
restrictive limit shall apply. 

 
4.2.6.  HEIGHT LIMITS.  No building, transmission line, pole, tower, chimney, wires, or other 
structures or appurtenance of any kind or character shall hereafter be erected, constructed, repaired or 
established, nor shall any tree or other object of natural growth be allowed to grow, above the heights 
described in Section 4.2.5.  
 
4.2.7.  USE REGULATIONS.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, no use may be made 
of any land within any runway area zone, approach-departure zone, horizontal zone, conical zone or 
transition zone in any manner as to create electrical interference with the radio or radar communication or 
navigation aids between the airport and aircraft; make it difficult for air crews to distinguish between 
airport lights and others; result in glare in the eye of air crews using the airport; impair visibility in the 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 61 

vicinity of the airport; or otherwise endanger the landing, taking off or maneuvering of aircraft within 
these zones. 
 
4.2.8.  NONCONFORMING USES WITHIN THE AIRPORT ZONE.  
1. Continuation of lawful nonconforming uses. Any land use lawfully existing on the effective date of 

this chapter may continue, subject to the provisions of this section. 
2. Enlarging degree of nonconformance.   No nonconforming structure or tree shall be built, replaced, 

altered, replanted or allowed to grow to a height that increases the degree of nonconformance or that 
violates the height limits established by this section. 

3. Damage or destruction.  
a. Should a structure occupied by a lawful nonconforming use be damaged to the extent that the cost 

of restoration exceeds 50 percent of the replacement cost of the structure, the nonconforming use 
shall no longer be permitted. 

b. Any nonconforming tree which has been damaged or decayed to the extent of 50 percent or more 
shall be removed. 

4. Abandonment.  If any structure or property containing a lawful nonconforming use becomes vacant or 
unused for a continuous period of six months, any subsequent use must conform to all airport zoning 
regulations. 

5. Unlawful nonconforming uses. These provisions shall not he interpreted as authorization for or 
approval of the continuation of any structure, use or tree in violation of any zoning regulations in 
effect on or before the effective date of this chapter. 

 
4.2.9.  ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF ARTICLE. 
1. Enforcement by Appropriate Political Subdivision.  The location of various encroachment area(s) is 

within the zoning authority of the City of Gering. 
2. Administrative Agency.  It shall be the duty of the City of Gering to enforce this section, and the 

appropriate political subdivision is hereby appointed the “administrative agency” provided for in 
R.R.S.; 1943, 3-3 JS.  The appropriate administrative agency shall have all the powers and perform 
all duties as provided by the Airport Zoning Act. 

3. Permit Applications.  Applications for permits shall be made to the City of Gering upon a form 
furnished by it.  Any application shall be promptly considered and granted or denied.  Applications 
for action by the Board of Zoning Adjustment shall be transmitted in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of this “Airport Zoning Regulations”, appropriate city ordinances and state law. 

 
4.2.10.  PERMIT; REQUIRED AND EXCEPTIONS. 
1. Permit Required.  It shall hereafter be unlawful to erect, construct, reconstruct, repair, or establish any 

building, transmission line, pole, tower, chimney, wires or any other structure or appurtenance within 
the Hazard Area without first obtaining a permit from the City of Gering as the case may be, upon a 
form furnished by it.  Any application shall be promptly considered and granted or denied.  
Applications for action by the City of Gering shall be transmitted in accordance with the application 
provisions of the City of Gering, appropriate city and/or county ordinances, and/or state law.  It shall 
also be unlawful to plant or replant any tree or other object of natural growth without the necessary 
permit. 

2. Permit Exceptions.  Within the outer area of the Approach Zones and within the Turning Zones, no 
permit shall be required for any construction or planting that is not higher than seventy-five (75) feet 
above the nearest existing or proposed runway end.  The repair, reconstruction, or replacement of 
non-conforming electric facilities will be permitted in compliance with Neb. Rev. Stat., 3-311(3). 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 62 

3. Location Sketch and Zoning Map.  The boundaries, Approach Zones, Operations Zone, Transition 
Zones, and Turning Zones of the airport are indicated on the Zoning Map that accompanies and is 
hereby made a part hereof by reference.  A copy of the airport hazard area zoning regulations shall at 
all times be on file in the office of the Airport Director located at Western Nebraska Regional 
Airport. 

 
4.2.11.  APPEALS. 
1. Designation of Board of Adjustment.  The City Council for the City of Gering or its designee, shall 

be the Board of Adjustment with respect to this section and shall have and exercise the powers 
conferred by R.R.S. 1943, 3-320, and such other powers and duties as are conferred and imposed by 
law.  Any person aggrieved or affected by any decisions or actions made in the administration of this 
article may appeal such decision or action to the appropriate Board of Adjustment.  Any appeal taken 
pursuant to this section shall be by the procedure established by law. 

2. Powers of the Board of Adjustment.  The City Council for the City of Gering shall have the following 
powers: 
a. To hear and decide appeals from any order, requirement or decision made by the permits and 

inspections division in the enforcement of this section. 
b.To hear and decide any special exemptions to the terms of this section which such Board may be 

required to pass under this section. 
c. To hear and decide specific variances under R.R.S. 1943 3-312. 

3. Appeal from decisions of the Board of Adjustment.  Any person aggrieved or affected by a decision 
of the City of Gering may appeal to the District Court for Scotts Bluff County, Nebraska, in the 
manner provided in R.R.S. 1943, 3-324 et seq. 

 
4.3.  FLOOD PLAIN DISTRICT. 
4.3.1.  STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION.  The Legislature of the State of Nebraska has delegated the 
responsibility to local governmental units to adopt zoning regulations designed to protect the public 
health, safety, general welfare, and property of the people of the state. The Legislature, in Nebraska 
Revised Statutes Sections 31-1001 to 31-1023 (as amended), has further assigned the responsibility to 
adopt, administer, and enforce floodplain management regulations to the county, city, or village with 
zoning jurisdiction over the floodprone area. Therefore the City Council of Gering, Nebraska ordains as 
follows: 
 
4.3.2.  FINDINGS OF FACT. 
1. Flood Losses Resulting from Periodic Inundation. The flood hazard areas of Gering, Nebraska are 

subject to inundation that results in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of 
commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and 
relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety, and 
general welfare.  

2. General Causes of the Flood Losses.  These flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of 
obstructions in floodplains causing increases in flood heights and velocities as well as the occupancy 
of flood hazard areas by uses vulnerable to floods or hazardous to others that are inadequately 
elevated or otherwise unprotected from flood damages. 

 
4.3.3.  STATEMENT OF PURPOSE.  It is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the public health, 
safety, and general welfare and to minimize those losses described in Section 1.2 by applying the 
provisions of this ordinance to: 
1. Restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety, or property in times of flooding or cause 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 63 

undue increases in flood heights or velocities. 
2. Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including public facilities that service such uses, be provided 

with flood protection at the time of initial construction. 
3. Reduce financial burdens from flood damage borne by the community, its governmental units, is 

residents, and its businesses by preventing excessive and unsafe development in areas subject to 
flooding. 

4. Assure that eligibility is maintained for property owners in the community to purchase flood 
insurance from the National Flood Insurance Program. 
 

4.3.4.  ADHERENCE TO REGULATIONS.  The regulations of this ordinance are in compliance with 
the National Flood Insurance Program Regulations as published in Title 44 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations and the Nebraska Minimum Standards for Floodplain Management Programs as published in 
the Nebraska Administrative Code Title 455, Chapter 1. 
 
4.3.5.  GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

4.3.5.A.  LANDS TO WHICH ORDINANCE APPLIES.  This ordinance shall apply to all lands 
within the jurisdictions of the Gering identified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panels 
310371 005 and 310371 005A dated February 15, 1979 as well as 310473 0175 A and 310473 
0150A, dated June 18th, 1990.  In all areas covered by this ordinance, no development shall be 
allowed except upon the issuance of a floodplain development permit to develop, granted by the 
floodplain administrator or the governing body under such safeguards and restrictions as the City 
of Gering or the designated representative may reasonably impose for the promotion and 
maintenance of the general welfare, health of the inhabitants of the community and where 
specifically noted in Sections 4.0 and 5.0. 
 
4.3.5.B.  RULES FOR INTERPRETATION OF DISTRICT BOUNDARIES.  The boundaries of 
the floodway and the flood fringe overlay districts shall be determined by scaling distances on the 
official zoning map of on the effective Flood Insurance Rate Map. Where interpretation is needed 
to the exact location of the boundaries of the districts as shown on the zoning or other community 
map, the floodplain administrator shall make the necessary interpretation. In such cases where the 
interpretation is contested, the City Board of Zoning Adjustment will resolve the dispute. The 
regulatory flood elevation for the point in question shall be the governing factor in locating the 
district boundary on the land. The person contesting the location of the district boundary shall be 
given a reasonable opportunity to present their case to the City Board of Zoning Adjustment and 
to submit their own technical evidence, if so desired. 
 
4.3.5.C.  COMPLIANCE.  Within identified floodplains of this community, no development shall 
be located, extended, converted, or structurally altered without full compliance with the terms of 
this ordinance and other applicable regulations. 
 
4.3.5.D.  ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.  This ordinance does not intend to 
repeal, abrogate, or impair any existent easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. However, 
where this ordinance imposes greater restrictions, the provision of this ordinance shall prevail. All 
other ordinances inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the 
inconsistency only. 
 
4.3.5.E.  INTERPRETATION.  In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be held to be minimum requirements and shall be liberally construed in favor of 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 64 

the governing body and shall not be deemed a limitation or repeal of any other powers granted by 
state statutes. 
 
4.3.5.F.  WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY.  The degree of flood protection 
required by this ordinance is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on 
engineering and scientific methods of study. Larger floods may occur or the flood height may be 
increased by manmade or natural causes, such as ice jams and bridge openings restricted by 
debris. This ordinance does not imply that areas outside floodway and flood fringe district 
boundaries or land uses permitted within such districts will be free from flooding or flood damage. 
This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of the City of Gering or any officer or 
employee thereof for any flood damages that may result from reliance on this ordinance or any 
administrative decision lawfully made thereunder. 
 
4.3.5.G.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is 
adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this 
ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 

 
4.3.6.  ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS.  Along watercourses where a floodway has 
been established, the mapped floodplain areas are hereby divided into the two following districts: a 
floodway overlay district (FW) and a flood fringe overlay district (FF) as identified in the Flood Insurance 
Study dated August 1978 (areas within the corporate limits at the time) and the Flood Insurance Study 
dated June 18, 1990 (recently annexed areas and areas in the City’s extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction) 
and on accompanying FIRM panels as established in Section 2.1. The flood fringe overlay district shall 
correspond to flood zones A, AE, A1-30, AH, AO, AR, A99, and floodway areas in Zone AE that are 
identified on FIRM panels. The floodway overlay district shall correspond to the floodway areas in Zone 
AE that are identified on the FIRM panels. Within these districts, all uses not meeting the standards of 
this ordinance and those standards of the underlying zoning district shall be prohibited. 
 
4.3.7.  FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION. 

4.3.7.A.  DESIGNATION OF FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR.  The City Engineer of the 
community is hereby designated as the community’s local floodplain administrator. The 
floodplain administrator is authorized and directed to administer, implement, and enforce all 
provisions of this ordinance. If the local floodplain administrator position is unfilled, the 
community CEO shall assume the duties and responsibilities herein. 
 
4.3.7.B.  PERMITS REQUIRED.  A floodplain development permit shall be required before any 
development, construction, or substantial improvement is undertaken. No person, firm, 
corporation, government agency, or other entity shall initiate any floodplain development without 
first obtaining a floodplain development permit. 
 
4.3.7.C.  DUTIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR. Duties of the floodplain 
administrator shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
1. Review, approve, or deny all applications for floodplain development permits. 
2. Review all development permit applications to assure that sites are reasonably safe from 

flooding and that the permit requirements of this ordinance have been satisfied. 
3. Review applications for proposed development to assure that all necessary permits have been 

obtained from those federal, state, or local government agencies from which prior approval is 
required. 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 65 

4. Review all subdivision proposals and other proposed new development, including 
manufactured home parks or subdivisions, to determine whether such proposals will be 
reasonably safe from flooding. 

5. Notify adjacent communities and the Nebraska Department of Natural Resources prior to any 
alteration or relocation of a watercourse and submit evidence of such notification to the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

6. Assure that maintenance is provided within the altered or relocated portion of the watercourse 
so that the flood carrying capacity is not diminished. 

7. Verify, record, and maintain record of the actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of 
the lowest floor, including basement, of all new or substantially improved structures in the 
floodplain. 

8. Verify, record, and maintain record of the actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to 
which all new or substantially improved structures have been floodproofed. 

9. Verify, record, and maintain record of all improved or damaged structures to ensure 
compliance with standards in applicable sections. Track value of improvements and market 
value with permits. Also, ensure consistent market value estimations to evaluate against 
damaged or improved values. 

10. Ensure comprehensive development plan as amended is consistent with this ordinance. 
11. In the event the floodplain administrator discovers work done that does not comply with 

applicable laws or ordinances, the floodplain administrator shall revoke the permit and work 
to correct any possible violation in accordance with this ordinance. 

 
4.3.7.D.  APPLICATION FOR PERMIT AND DEMONSTRATION OF COMPLIANCE. 
1. To obtain a floodplain development permit, the applicant shall first file an application in 

writing on a form furnished for that purpose. Every such application shall: 
a. Identify and describe the proposed development and estimated cost to be covered by the 

floodplain development permit. 
b. Describe the land on which the proposed development is to be done by lot, block, tract, 

and house and streets address, or similar description that will readily identify and 
definitely locate the proposed building or development. 

c. Indicate the use or occupancy for which the proposed development is intended. 
d. Be accompanied by plans and specifications for proposed construction. 
e. Be signed by the permittee and authorized agent who may be required to submit evidence 

to indicate such authority. 
2. If any proposed development is located entirely or partially within a floodplain, applicants 

shall provide all information in sufficient detail and clarity to enable the floodplain 
administrator to determine that: 
a. All such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage; 
b. All utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, water, electrical, and other systems are 

located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; 
c. Structures will be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement; 
d. Construction materials are flood resistant; 
e. Appropriate practices to minimize flood damage have been utilized; and 
f. Electrical, heating, ventilation, air conditioning, plumbing, and any other service facilities 

have been designed and located to prevent entry of floodwaters. 
3. For all new and substantially improved structures, an elevation certificate based upon the 

finished construction certifying the elevation of the lowest floor, including basement, and 
other relevant building components shall be provided to the floodplain administrator and be 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 66 

completed by a licensed surveyor, engineer, or architect. 
4. When floodproofing is utilized for an applicable structure, a floodproofing certificate shall be 

provided to the floodplain administrator and be completed by a licensed professional engineer 
or architect. 

5. For all development proposed in the floodway, no-rise certification shall be provided to the 
floodplain administrator and be completed by a licensed professional engineer. 

6. Any other such information as reasonably may be required by the floodplain administrator 
shall be provided. 

7. Letters of Map Revision: Federal regulations in Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 
Chapter 1, Part 65.5 and 65.6 allow for changes to the special flood hazard area through a 
Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) or a Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F), 
provided the community determines that the land and any existing or proposed structures that 
would be removed from the floodplain are “reasonably safe from flooding.” The community 
acknowledgement form asserting this is required for LOMR and LOMR-F applications and 
must be signed by the floodplain administrator. The floodplain administrator shall not sign a 
community acknowledgement form unless all criteria set forth in the following paragraphs are 
met: 
a. Applicant shall obtain floodplain development permit before applying for a LOMR or 

LOMR-F. 
b. Applicant shall demonstrate that the property and any existing or proposed structures will 

be “reasonably safe from flooding,” according to the minimum design standards in FEMA 
Technical Bulletin 10-01. 

c. All requirements listed in the Simplified Approach in FEMA Technical Bulletin 10-01 
shall be met and documentation from a registered professional engineer shall be provided. 
If all of these requirements are not met, applicant must provide documentation in line with 
the Engineered Approach outlined in FEMA Technical Bulletin 10-01. 

 
4.3.7.E.  FLOOD DATA REQUIRED. 
1. All Zone A areas on the FIRM are subject to inundation of the base flood; however, the base 

flood elevations are not provided. Zone A areas shall be subject to all development provisions 
of this ordinance. If Flood Insurance Study data is not available, the community shall utilize 
any base flood elevation or floodway data currently available from federal, state, or other 
sources, including from a study commissioned by the applicant pursuant to best technical 
practices. 

2. Until a floodway has been designated, no development or substantial improvement may be 
permitted within the floodplain unless the applicant has demonstrated that the proposed 
development or substantial improvement, when combined with all other existing and 
reasonably anticipated developments or substantial improvements, will not increase the water 
surface elevation of the base flood more than one (1) foot at any location as shown in the 
Flood Insurance Study or on base flood elevation determinations.  

 
4.3.7.F. VARIANCES AND APPEALS.  Variance and Appeals Procedures 
1. The Board of Zoning Adjustment as established by the City of Gering shall hear and decide 

appeals and requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance. 
2. The Board of Zoning Adjustment shall hear and decide appeals when it is alleged that there is 

an error in any requirement, decision, or determination made by the floodplain administrator in 
the enforcement or administration of this ordinance. 

3. Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Board of Zoning Adjustment or any taxpayer may 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 67 

appeal such decision to the District Court as provided in Nebraska Revised Statutes Section 
19-192. 

4. In evaluating such appeals and requests, the Board of Zoning Adjustment shall consider 
technical evaluation, all relevant factors, standards specified in other sections of this 
ordinance, and: 

a. The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage; 
b. The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others; 
c. The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the 

effect of such damage on the individual owner, future owners, and neighboring 
properties; 

d. The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community; 
e. The necessity of the facility to have a waterfront location, where applicable; 
f. The availability of alternative locations that are not subject to flooding or erosion 

damage for the proposed use; 
g. The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development; 
h. The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and the floodplain 

management program for that area; 
i. The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency 

vehicles; 
j. The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the 

floodwaters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and, 
k. The costs of providing government services during and after flood conditions including 

emergency management services and maintenance and repair of public utilities and 
facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, water systems, streets, and bridges.  

5. Conditions for Variances 
a. Variances shall only be issued upon a showing of good and sufficient cause and also 

upon a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in an exceptional 
hardship to the applicant. 

b. Variances shall only be issued based upon a determination that the granting of a 
variance will not result in increased flood heights. 

c. Variances shall only be issued based upon a determination that the granting of a 
variance will not result in additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public 
expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict 
with existing local laws or ordinances. 

d. Generally, variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements 
to be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous to and surrounded by 
lots with existing structures constructed below the base flood level, providing items E-I 
below have been fully considered. As the lot size increases beyond one-half acre, the 
technical justification required for issuing the variance increases. 

e. Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon a 
determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure’s 
continued designation as an historic structure on the National Register of Historic 
Places and the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and 
design of the structure. 

f. Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in water 
surface elevations along the floodway profile during the base flood discharge would 
result. 

g. Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 68 

necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. 
h. The applicant shall be given a written notice over the signature of a community that the 

issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the base flood elevation will result 
in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 for $100 
of insurance coverage and also that such construction below the base flood elevation 
increases risks to life and property. Such notification shall be maintained with the 
record of all variance actions as required by this ordinance. 

i. All requests for variances and associated actions and documents, including justification 
for their issuance, shall be maintained by the community. 

 
4.3.7.G.  ENFORCEMENT. 
1. Violations. Failure to obtain a floodplain development permit or the failure of a structure or 

other development to be fully compliant with the provisions of this ordinance shall constitute a 
violation. A structure or other development without a floodplain development permit, 
elevation certificate, certification by a licensed professional engineer of compliance with these 
regulations, or other evidence of compliance is presumed to be in violation until such time as 
documentation is provided. 

2. Notices. When the floodplain administrator or other authorized community representative 
determines, based on reasonable grounds, that there has been a violation of the provisions of 
this ordinance, the floodplain administrator shall give notice of such alleged violation as 
hereinafter provided. Such notice shall: 
a. Be in writing; 
b. Include an explanation of the alleged violation; 
c. Allow a reasonable time for the performance of any remedial act required; 
d. Be served upon the property owner or their agent as the case may require; and 
e. Contain an outline of remedial actions that, if taken, will bring the development into 

compliance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
3. Penalties 

a. Violation of the provisions of this ordinance or failure to comply with any of its 
requirements (including violations of conditions and safeguards established in connection 
with grants of variances or special exceptions) shall constitute a misdemeanor. Any person, 
firm, corporate, or other entity that violates this ordinance or fails to comply with any of its 
requirements shall upon conviction thereof be fined not more than $100, and in addition, 
shall pay all costs and expenses involved in the case. Each day such violation continues 
shall be considered a separate offense. 

b. The imposition of such fines or penalties for any violation or non-compliance with this 
ordinance shall not excuse the violation or non-compliance or allow it to continue. All such 
violations or non-compliant actions shall be remedied within an established and reasonable 
time. 

c. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the City of Gering or other appropriate authority 
from taking such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation. 

 
4.3.8.  STANDARDS FOR FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT. 

4.3.8.A.  GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
1. Alteration or Relocation of a Watercourse 

a. A watercourse or drainway shall not be altered or relocated in any way that in the event of 
a base flood or more frequent flood will alter the flood carrying characteristics of the 
watercourse or drainway to the detriment of upstream, downstream, or adjacent locations. 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 69 

b. No alteration or relocation shall be made until all adjacent communities that may be 
affected by such action and the Nebraska Department of Natural Resources have been 
notified and all applicable permits obtained. Evidence of such notification shall be 
submitted to the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

2. Encroachments 
a. When proposing to permit any of the following encroachments, the standards in Section 

5.1 (B) (ii) shall apply: 
i. Any development that will cause a rise in the base flood elevations within the floodway; 

or 
ii. Any development in Zones A, A1-30, and Zone AE without a designated floodway that 

will cause a rise of more than one foot in the base flood elevation; or 
iii. Alteration or relocation of a stream; then 

b. The applicant shall: 
i. Apply to FEMA for conditional approval of such action via the Conditional Letter of 

Map Revision process (as per Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Chapter 1, 
Part 65.12) prior to the permit for the encroachments; and 

ii. Supply the fully approved package to the floodplain administrator including any 
required notifications to potentially affected property owners. 

3. Floodway Overlay District 
a. Standards for the Floodway Overlay District 

i. New structures for human habitation are prohibited. 
ii. All encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements, and 

other development must be prohibited unless certification by a registered professional 
engineer or architect is provided demonstrating that the development shall not result in 
any increase in water surface elevations along the floodway profile during the 
occurrence of the base flood discharge. These developments are also subject to all the 
standards of Section 5. 

iii. In Zone A areas, obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any flood elevation and 
floodway data available through federal, state, or other sources, including studies done 
under Section 5.3 (H) “Subdivisions”, in meeting the standards of this section. 

b. Only uses having a low flood-damage potential and not obstructing flood flows shall be 
allowed within the Floodway Overlay District to the extent that they are not prohibited by 
any other ordinance. The following are recommended uses for the Floodway Overlay 
District: 
i. Agricultural uses such as general farming, pasture, nurseries, and forestry 

ii. Residential uses such as lawns, gardens, parking, and play areas 
iii. Nonresidential uses such as loading areas, parking, and airport landing strips 
iv. Public and private recreational uses such as golf courses, archery ranges, picnic 

grounds, parks, and wildlife and nature preserves. 
 
4.3.8.B.  ELEVATION AND FLOODPROOFING REQUIREMENTS. 
1. Residential Structures 

a. In Zones A, AE, A1-30, and AH, all new construction and substantial improvements shall 
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above one (1) foot above the base 
flood elevation. 

b. In Zone AO, all new construction and substantial improvements shall have the lowest 
floor, including basement, elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least as high as one 
(1) foot above the depth number specified in feet on the FIRM or, if no depth number is 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 70 

specified on the FIRM, at least as high as three (3) feet. 
c. In the floodway, new structures for human habitation are prohibited. 

2. Nonresidential Structures 
a. In Zones A, AE, A1-30, and AH, all new construction and substantial improvements shall 

have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above one (1) foot above the base 
flood elevation or, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, floodproofed so 
that below one (1) foot above the base flood elevation: 
i. The structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water 

and 
ii. The structure has structural components with the capability of resisting hydrostatic and 

hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy. 
b. A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the standards of this 

subsection are satisfied. A floodproofing certificate shall be provided to the floodplain 
administrator as set forth in Section 4. 

c. In Zone AO, all new construction and substantial improvements shall have the lowest floor 
elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least as high as one (1) foot above the depth 
number specified in feet on the FIRM or, if no depth number is specified on the FIRM, at 
least as high as three (3) feet; or, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, 
floodproofed so that below one (1) foot above the base flood elevation: 
i. The structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water 

and 
ii. The structure has structural components with the capability of resisting hydrostatic and 

hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy. 
d. A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the standards of this 

subsection are satisfied. A floodproofing certificate shall be provided to the floodplain 
administrator as set forth in Section 4. 

3. Space Below Lowest Floor 
a. Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor (excluding basements) and below the base 

flood elevation shall be used solely for the parking of vehicles, building access, or limited 
storage of readily removable items. 

b. Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor (excluding basements) and below the base 
flood elevation shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on 
exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this 
requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect or 
meet or exceed the following minimum criteria: 
i. A minimum or two openings having a net total area of not less than one (1) square inch 

for every one (1) square foot of enclosed space, 
ii. The bottom of all openings shall not be higher than one (1) foot above grade, and 

iii. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devices 
provided that they allow the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. 

4. Appurtenant Structures 
a. Structures accessory to a principal building may have the lowest floor below one foot 

above base flood elevation provided that the structure complies with the following 
requirements: 
i. The structure shall not be used for human habitation. 

ii. The use of the structure must be limited to parking of vehicles or storage of items 
readily removable in the event of a flood warning. 

iii. The floor area shall not exceed 400 square feet. 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 71 

iv. The structure shall have a low damage potential. 
v. The structure must be adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or other lateral 

movement. 
vi. The structure shall be designed to automatically provide for the entry and exit of 

floodwaters for the purpose of equalizing hydrostatic forces. Designs for meeting this 
requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect or 
meet or exceed the following minimum criteria: 
1. A minimum of two openings having a net area of not less than one (1) square inch for 

every one (1) square foot of enclosed space, 
2. The bottom of all openings shall not be higher than one (1) foot above grade, and 
3. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or 

devices provided that they allow the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. 
vii. No utilities shall be installed except electrical fixtures in the structure, which must be 

elevated or floodproofed to one (1) foot above base flood elevation. 
viii. The structure shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer the 

minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters. 
ix. If the structure is converted to another use, it must be brought into full compliance with 

the minimum standards governing such use. 
5. Manufactured Homes 

a. Require that all manufactured homes to be placed or substantially improved within 
floodplains on sites: 
i. Outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision, 

ii. In a new manufactured home park or subdivision, 
iii. In an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision, or 
iv. In an existing manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home 

as incurred substantial damage as the result of a flood, 
b. Be elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured 

home is at or above one (1) foot above the base flood elevation and be securely anchored 
to an adequately anchored foundation system in accordance with the provisions of this 
Section. 

c. Require that manufactured homes to be placed or substantially improved on sites in an 
existing manufactured home park or subdivision within special flood hazard areas that are 
not subject to the provisions of Section 5.2 (D) (b) be elevated so that either; 
i. The lowest floor of the manufactured home is at or above one (1) foot above the base 

flood elevation, or 
ii. The manufactured home chassis is supported by reinforced piers or other foundation 

elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less than 36 inches in height above 
grade; and be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 5.2 (E) (iv). 

d. New manufactured home parks of five (5) acres or fifty (50) lots, whichever is less, shall 
follow the standards of Section 5.3 (H) “Subdivisions”. 

e. All manufactured homes shall be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement. Manufactured homes must be anchored in accordance with local building codes 
or FEMA guidelines. In the event that over-the-top ties to ground anchors are used, the 
following specific requirements (or their equivalent) shall be met: 
i. Over-the-top ties be provided at each of the four corners of the manufactured home, 

with two additional ties per side at intermediate locations and manufactured homes less 
than 50 feet long requiring one additional tie per side; 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 72 

ii. Frame ties be provided at each corner of the manufactured home with five additional 
ties per side at intermediate points and manufactured homes less than 50 feet long 
requiring four additional ties per side; 

iii. Any additions to the manufactured home be similarly anchored. 
6. Existing Structures 

a. The provisions of this ordinance do not require any changes or improvements to be made 
to lawfully existing structures. However, when an improvement is made to a structure in 
the floodplain, a floodplain development permit is required and the provisions of 5.2 (F) 
(ii-iv) shall apply. 

b. Any addition, alteration, reconstruction, or improvement of any kind to an existing 
structure where the costs of which would equal or exceed fifty (50) percent of the pre-
improvement market value shall constitute a substantial improvement and shall fully 
comply with the provisions of this ordinance.  

c. Any addition, alteration, reconstruction, or improvement of any kind to an existing 
structure in the floodway shall comply with the provisions of 5.1 (C).  

d. Any addition, alteration, reconstruction, or improvement of any kind to an existing 
structure that will change the compliance requirements of the building shall require 
applicable documentation including an elevation certificate, floodproofing certificate, or no 
rise certification. 

 
5.3.8.C.  DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS. 
1. Anchoring 

a. All buildings or structures shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including 
the effects of buoyancy. 

2. Building Materials and Utilities 
a. All buildings or structures shall be constructed with materials and utility equipment 

resistant to flood damage. All buildings or structures shall also be constructed by methods 
and practices that minimize flood and flood-related damages. 

b. All buildings or structures shall be constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, 
plumbing, air conditioning equipment, and other service facilities that are designed and/or 
located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during 
conditions of flooding. 

3. Drainage 
a. Within Zones AO and AH, adequate drainage paths around structures on slopes shall be 

required in order to guide floodwaters around and away from proposed structures. 
4. Water Supply and Sanitary Sewer Systems 

a. All new or replacement water supply and sanitary sewer systems shall be located, 
designed, and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damages to such systems and the 
infiltration of floodwaters into the systems. 

b. All new or replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or 
eliminate discharge from the system into floodwaters. 

c. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and designed to avoid impairment to them 
or contamination from them during flooding. 

5. Other Utilities 
a. All other utilities such as gas lines, electrical, telephone, and other utilities shall be located 

and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage to such utilities and facilities. 
 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 73 

6. Storage of Materials 
a. The storage or processing of materials that are in time of flooding buoyant, flammable, 

explosive, or could be injurious to human, animal, or plant life is prohibited. 
b. The storage of other material or equipment may be allowed if not subject to major damage 

by floods and firmly anchored to prevent flotation or if readily removable from the area 
within the time available after flood warning. 

7. Recreational Vehicles 
a. Recreational vehicles to be placed on sites within the floodplain shall: 

i. Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and ready for 
highway use, which shall mean it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the 
site by only quick-disconnect type utilities and security devices, and no permanently 
attached additions; or 

ii. Meet the permit requirements and the elevation and anchoring requirements for 
manufactured homes of this ordinance. 

8. Subdivisions 
a. Subdivision proposals and other proposed new development, including manufactured 

home parks or subdivisions, shall require assurance that: 
i. All such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage; 

ii. All public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems are 
located, elevated, and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; 

iii. Adequate drainage is provided so as to reduce exposure to flood hazards; and 
iv. Proposals for development (including proposals for manufactured home parks and 

subdivisions) of five (5) acres or fifty (50) lots, whichever is less, where base flood 
elevation data are not available, shall be supported by hydrologic and hydraulic analyses 
that determine base flood elevations and floodway information. The analyses shall be 
prepared by a licensed professional engineer in a format required by FEMA for 
Conditional Letters of Map Revision and a Letters of Map Revision. 

 
4.3.9.  NONCONFORMING USE. 
1. A structure or use of a structure or premises that was lawful before the passage or amendment of this 

ordinance, but that is not in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance may be continued subject 
to the following conditions: 
a. If such use is discontinued for 36 consecutive months, any future use of the building premises shall 

conform to this ordinance. The Utility Department shall notify the floodplain administrator in 
writing of instances of nonconforming uses where utility services have been discontinued for a 
period of 36 months. 

b. Uses or adjuncts thereof that are or become nuisances shall not be entitled to continue as 
nonconforming uses. 

2. If any nonconforming use or structure is destroyed by any means, including flood, it shall not be 
reconstructed if the cost is more than 50% of the market value of the structure before the damage 
occurred except that if it is reconstructed in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance. This 
limitation does not include the cost of any alteration to comply with existing state or local health, 
sanitary, or safety code or regulations or the cost of any alteration of a structure listed on the National 
Register of Historic Places, provided that the alteration shall not preclude its continued designation. 

 
4.3.10.  AMENDMENTS. 
1. The regulations, restrictions, and boundaries set forth in this ordinance may from time to time be 

amended, supplemented, changed, or appealed to reflect any and all changes in federal, state, or local 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 74 

regulations provided, however, that no such action may be take until after a public hearing in relation 
thereto, at which citizens and parties in interest shall have an opportunity to be heard. Notice of the 
time and place of such hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of 
Gering. At least ten days shall elapse between the date of this publication and the public hearing. 

2. A copy of such amendments will be provided to the Nebraska Department of Natural Resources and 
the Federal Emergency Management Agency for review and approval before being adopted. 

 
4.3.11.  DEFINITIONS.  Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance shall 
be interpreted so as to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this ordinance it’s 
most reasonable application: 
1. Appurtenant Structure: shall mean a structure on the same parcel of property as the principal structure, 

the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. Also shall be known as “accessory 
structure.” 

2. Area of Shallow Flooding: means a designated AO or AH zone on a community's Flood Insurance 
Rate Map (FIRM) with a one percent or greater annual chance of flooding to an average depth of one 
to three feet where a clearly defined channel is unpredictable and where velocity flow may be evident. 
Such flooding is characterized by ponding or sheet flow. 

3. Base Flood: means the flood having one (1) percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given 
year. 

4. Base Flood Elevation: means the elevation to which floodwaters are expected to rise during the base 
flood. 

5. Basement: means any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides. 
6. Building: means “structure.” See definition for “structure.” 
7. Development: means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not 

limited to the construction, reconstruction, renovation, repair, expansion or alteration of buildings or 
other structures; the placement of manufactured homes; streets and other paving; utilities; filling, 
grading, and excavation; mining; dredging; drilling operations; storage of equipment or materials; or 
obstructions. 

8. Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision: means a manufactured home park or subdivision 
for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to 
be affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either 
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is complete before the effective date of the 
floodplain management regulations adopted by a community. 

9. Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision: means the preparation of 
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured 
homes are to be affixed (including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either 
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). 

10. Flood or Flooding: means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of 
normally dry land areas. 

11. Flood Fringe: is that area of the floodplain, outside of the floodway, that has a one percent chance of 
flood occurrence in any one year. 

12. Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM): means an official map of a community, on which the Flood 
Insurance Study has delineated the special flood hazard area boundaries and the risk premium zones 
applicable to the community. 

13. Flood Insurance Study (FIS): is the official report provided by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency. The report contains flood profiles, as well as the Flood Insurance Rate Map and the water 
surface elevation of the base flood. 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 75 

14. Floodplain: means any land area susceptible to being inundated by water from any source (see 
definition of "flooding"). Floodplain includes flood fringe and floodway. Floodplain and special flood 
hazard area are the same for use by this ordinance. 

15. Floodproofing: means any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or 
adjustments to structures that reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real 
property, water and sanitary facilities, and structures and their contents. 

16. Floodway or Regulatory Floodway: means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent 
land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing 
the water surface elevation more than one foot. 

17. Freeboard: means a factor of safety usually expressed in feet above a flood level for purposes of 
floodplain management. "Freeboard" tends to compensate for the many unknown factors that could 
contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for a selected size flood and floodway 
conditions, such as wave action, clogged bridge openings, and the hydrological effect of urbanization 
of the watershed. 

18. Highest Adjacent Grade: means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure. 

19. Historic Structure: means any structure that is: (a) Listed individually in the National Register of 
Historic Places (a listing maintained by the Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the 
Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register; 
(b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the 
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the 
Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district; (c) Individually listed on a state inventory of 
historic places in states with historic preservation programs which have been approved by the 
Secretary of the Interior; or (d) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in 
communities with historic preservation programs that have been certified either: (1) By an approved 
state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior or (2) Directly by the Secretary of the 
Interior in states without approved programs. 

20. Lowest Floor: means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An unfinished 
or flood-resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage, in an 
area other than a basement area, is not considered a building's lowest floor, provided that such 
enclosure is not built or modified so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-
elevation design requirements of this ordinance. 

21. Manufactured Home: means a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a 
permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when attached to 
the required utilities. The term "manufactured home" does not include a "recreational vehicle". 

22. Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision: means a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided into 
two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale. 

23. New Construction: for floodplain management purposes, "new construction" means structures for 
which the "start of construction” commenced on or after the effective date of the floodplain 
management regulation adopted by a community and includes any subsequent improvements to such 
structures. 

24. New Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision: means a manufactured home park or subdivision for 
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be 
affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either 
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of 
floodplain management regulations adopted by a community. 

25. Obstruction: means any wall, wharf, embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, projection, excavation 
(including the alteration or relocation of a watercourse or drainway), channel rectification, bridge, 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 76 

conduit, culvert, building, stored equipment or material, wire, fence, rock, gravel, refuse, fill, or other 
analogous structure or matter which may impede, retard, or change the direction of the flow of water, 
either in itself or by catching or collecting debris carried by such water, or that is placed where the 
natural flow of the water would carry such structure or matter downstream to the damage or detriment 
of either life or property. Dams designed to store or divert water are not obstructions if permission for 
the construction thereof is obtained from the Department of Natural Resources pursuant to the Safety 
of Dams and Reservoirs Act (Nebraska Revised Statutes 46-1601 to 46-1670 as amended).  

26. Overlay District: is a district in which additional requirements act in conjunction with the underlying 
zoning district(s). The original zoning district designation does not change. 

27. Post-FIRM Structure: means a building that was constructed or substantially improved on or after the 
community’s initial Flood Insurance Rate Map dated February 15, 1979. 

28. Pre-FIRM Structure: means a building that was constructed or substantially improved on or before the 
community’s initial Flood Insurance Rate Map dated February 15, 1979. 

29. Principally Above Ground: means that at least 51 percent of the actual cash value of the structure is 
above ground.  

30. Recreational Vehicle: means a vehicle which is (i) built on a single chassis; (ii) 400 square feet or less 
when measured at the largest horizontal projections; (iii) designed to be self-propelled or permanently 
towable by a light duty truck; and (iv) designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as 
temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

31. Regulatory Flood Elevation: means the base flood elevation (BFE) plus a freeboard factor as specified 
in this ordinance. 

32. Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA): is the land in the floodplain within a community subject to one 
percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. 

33. Start of Construction: means the date the floodplain development permit was issued, provided the 
actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other 
improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. “Start of construction” also includes substantial 
improvement, and means the date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of 
construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement was 
within 180 days of the permit date. The actual start means the first placement of permanent 
construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, 
the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a 
manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such 
as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor 
does it include excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary 
forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or 
sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, 
the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural 
part of a building, whether or not the alteration affects the external dimensions of the building. 

34. Structure: means a walled and roofed building that is principally above ground, as well as a 
manufactured home and a gas or liquid storage tank that is principally above ground. 

35. Subdivision: means the division or re-division of a lot, tract, or parcel of land by any means into two 
or more lots, tracts, parcels, or other divisions of land including changes in existing lot lines for the 
purpose, whether immediate or future, of lease, partition by the court for distribution to heirs or 
devisees, transfer of ownership, or building or lot development.   

36. Substantial Damage: means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cumulative 
cost of restoring the structure to its before-damage condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the 
market value of the structure before the damage occurred. Cumulative costs shall include all costs for 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 77 

reconstruction, rehabilitation, or other improvement of the structure to repair damage incurred within 
5 years preceding the date of the floodplain development permit. 

37. Substantial Improvement: means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement of 
a structure, the cumulative cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the 
structure before "start of construction" of the improvement. This includes structures which have 
incurred "substantial damage," regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, 
however, include either (1) any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of 
state or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local 
code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions, or 
(2) any alteration of a "historic structure," provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's 
continued designation as a "historic structure." Cumulative costs shall include all costs for 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, or other improvement of the structure to repair damage incurred within 
5 years preceding the date of the floodplain development permit and shall include any costs resulting 
from substantial damage. 

38. Variance: is a grant of relief to an applicant from the requirements of this ordinance that allows 
construction in a manner otherwise prohibited by this ordinance where specific enforcement would 
result in unnecessary hardship. 

39. Violation: means a failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 
community’s floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development without the 
Elevation Certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in this ordinance 
is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided. 

40. Watercourse: means any depression two feet or more below the surrounding land that serves to give 
direction to a current of water at least nine months of the year and that has a bed and well-defined 
banks. 

 
4.4.  HSD SCOTTS BLUFF NATIONAL MONUMENT HISTORIC SITE DISTRICT. 
4.4.1.  INTENT.  The intent of this district is to preserve, protect, and enhance the historical view and 
significance of the Scotts Bluff National Monument.  The boundaries of this district are shown on the 
Official Zoning map of Gering.  This district is created to be appended to and supplement and/or 
supersede (where there is a conflict among regulations) those of the Parent District as applicable to all 
uses in the HSD Scotts Bluff National Monument Historic Site District.  
 
4.4.2.  PERFORMANCE STANDARD MAXIMUM HEIGHT.  The height of any structures or sign 
must not exceed one (1) story in height within the first 150 feet west of the Five Rocks Road right-of-way 
line within the Historic Site District.  A story is hereby defined as fifteen (15) feet in height. 
 
Structure height in the remainder of the Historic Site District must not exceed two (2) stories in height. 
Two stories is defined as thirty (30) feet in height. 
 
4.5.  WEA WELLHEAD ENCROACHMENT AREA DISTRICT.  
4.5.1.  INTENT.  This district is designed to designate a Wellhead Encroachment Area for the City of 
Gering, Nebraska, for the purpose of protection of the public water supply system.  This district is created 
to be appended to and supplement and/or supersede (where there is a conflict among regulations) those of 
the Parent District as applicable to all uses in the WEA Wellhead Encroachment Area District.  
 
4.5.2.  DEFINITIONS. Wellhead Encroachment Area means the surface and subsurface area surrounding 
municipal water wells, through which contaminants are reasonably likely to move toward and reach such 
water or water wells. 



ARTICLE 4. SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
 

08/10/2020 78 

 
4.5.3.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. The City of Gering designates a Wellhead Encroachment Area 
for the purpose of protection of the public water supply system.   
1. Within the designated Wellhead Encroachment Area, the City shall not issue any permit to operate 

any of the below described facilities within the indicated number of horizontal feet from the City of 
Gering municipal water wells. 

2. Any well drilled within the Wellhead Encroachment Area for monitoring and dewatering of 
groundwater shall meet Nebraska Health and Human Services Regulations. 

3. Private wells for domestic, commercial, industrial and agricultural use shall not be drilled within the 
Wellhead Encroachment Area.  However, the above restrictions do not apply to dewatering and 
groundwater monitoring wells which are allowed within WEA Wellhead Encroachment Area District. 

 
CATEGORY  DISTANCE  

Feet  
Water Well  1,000 
Sewage Lagoon  1,000 
Land application of municipal/industrial waste 
material  

1,000 

Feedlot or Feedlot Runoff  1,000 
Underground disposal system (septic system, 
cesspool, etc.)  

500 

Corral  500 
Pit Toilet/Vault Toilet  500 
Wastewater Holding Tanks  500 
Sanitary Landfill/Dump  500 
Chemical or Petroleum Product Storage  500 
Sewage Treatment Plant  500 
Sewage Wet Well  500 
Sanitary Sewer Connection  100 
Sanitary Sewer Manhole  100 
Sanitary Sewer Line  50  

 
NOTE: If the distance requirements in 179 NAC 13 Attachment 2 are not met, the well is subject to 
testing to determine if it is ground water under the direct influence of surface water. If a well meets 
that definition, it is treated as a surface water source subject to all the requirements of the rules 
regarding surface water. 

 
 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 79 

5.1.  BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES. 
5.1.1.  ACCESSORY BUILDINGS.  When the application of the following requirements are in conflict 
with other setback and separation requirements in the district regulations the more restrictive requirement 
shall apply. 

5.1.1.A. SIDE YARD REQUIREMENTS: Same as district in which accessory use is located 
except an accessory building may be located in the side yard as close as three (3) feet to the 
property line providing it is located between the rear building line of the principal building and the 
rear property line. 

 
5.1.1.B. FRONT YARD REQUIREMENTS: No accessory building shall be located between the 
front building line of the principal building and the front property line. 
 
5.1.1.C. REAR YARD REQUIREMENTS: Unless specifically permitted, no accessory building 
shall be located closer than three (3) feet from the rear property line, and no accessory building 
shall be located within any easement or right-of-way along the rear property line. 
 
5.1.1.D. VEHICLE ACCESS: Unless otherwise specifically permitted, any accessory building 
requiring vehicle access from an alley way shall be located a minimum of five (5) feet from the 
rear property line. 
 
5.1.1.E. ATTACHED ACCESSORY USE: An accessory structure attached to the principal 
building shall be considered as a part of the principal building and shall meet the same 
requirements as specified for the principal building in said district. 
 
5.1.1.F. SHIPPING CONTAINERS: 

a. Shipping containers defined. For the purposes of this Article, a shipping container shall mean 
any container, which may otherwise be known as a container, freight container, ISO container, 
shipping container, high-cube container, box, C container or container van, designed to store 
and move materials and products across various modes of the Intermodal Freight 
Transportation System. 

b. General restrictions for shipping containers: 
1. A shipping container may be placed in the front yard setback only if being used for 

moving or relocating purposes. 
2. A shipping container placed on a corner lot must meet the visibility requirements in 

Article 5.2.2 of the City of Gering Zoning Code. 
3. A shipping container may not exceed 8 feet in width, 9 feet in height or 40 feet in 

length. 
4. A shipping container must be kept out of easements, public rights of way, and setbacks 

except as otherwise provided for in this Code. 
5. A shipping container may be placed on a lot if it is incidental to the permitted 

construction activities on the same lot. The shipping container must be removed at the 
completion of the construction project or expiration of the building permit. 

c. All zoning districts. A shipping container is allowed on a temporary basis only if a valid permit 
is issued by the City. The shipping container will be permitted only on a temporary basis for 
moving or if used for construction activities. A shipping container may be allowed on a 
developed lot for a period of 30 days if used for moving.  If additional time is required, the 
owner of the lot may apply for one 30 day permitted extension. 

d. Shipping containers shall be prohibited within the City's zoning jurisdiction except as 
provided herein. In agricultural, rural residential, commercial, and manufacturing zoning 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 80 

districts, shipping containers may be placed permanently only when the following 
requirements are met: 

1. A building permit is required for a shipping container used for onsite storage of 
material incidental to the permitted or accessory use of the lot. The building permit 
must be procured through the City. 

2. All shipping containers must be located in areas not generally utilized by the customers 
of the commercial business and where shipping and receiving are conducted on the lot. 

3. Any signage or language on a shipping container must conform to the requirements of 
the City's sign code. 

4. A shipping container may not be connected to any City utility. 
5. A shipping container must be kept in good repair with no holes or rust and must be 

adequately secured to prevent entry by unauthorized people. 
6. A shipping container must be placed on a level surface with a base of rock or concrete 

so as to prevent any settling of the shipping container while it is on the lot. 
7. A shipping container may not be used as a primary structure and must comply with all 

requirements for an accessory building. 
8. In rural residential and commercial zoning districts, only one shipping container may 

be placed per lot. The shipping container may not be placed in the front yard. 
 

5.1.2.  ARCHITECTURAL PROJECTIONS.  Architectural projections including covered porches and 
carports may be allowed to extend up to five (5) feet into any required front or rear yard setback.  Such 
architectural projections including roofs shall not extend into any side yard setback requirements. Any 
porches or carports totally or partially enclosed with screen windows, permanent construction extending 
shall be considered a part of the principal structure and meet all setback requirements of the principal 
structure.   
 

5.1.2.A. EXCEPTION.  Open porches, decks, platforms, or terraces not over three (3) feet above 
the average level of the adjoining ground may extend not more than eight (8) feet into the required 
front yard.  This exception shall not apply to any front yard setback on a corner lot that is less than 
the distance of the full front yard setback established in the zoning district.  Any safety railing 
required by the building code shall not exceed the minimum height required by such building code 
and shall be at least fifty-percent open to the passage of air and light.  

 
5.1.3.  ERECTION OF MORE THAN ONE PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE ON A LOT.  In commercial 
and industrial districts, more than one structure housing a permitted or permissible use may be erected on 
a single lot, provided that yard and other requirements of these regulations shall be met for each structure 
as though it were on an individual lot. 
 
5.1.4.  EXCEPTIONS TO HEIGHT REGULATIONS.  The height limitations contained in these 
regulations shall not apply to spires, belfries, cupolas, antennas, water tanks, ventilators, domes, 
chimneys, grain elevators and accessory agricultural structures or other appurtenances usually required to 
be placed above the roof level and not intended for human occupancy. 
 
5.1.5.  STRUCTURES TO HAVE ACCESS.  Every building hereafter erected or moved with the 
exception of non-residential agricultural related structures in an agricultural district, shall be on a lot 
adjacent to a public or approved private street and all structures shall be so located on lots as to provide 
safe and convenient access for servicing, fire protection and required off-street parking. 

 
5.1.6.  TEMPORARY STRUCTURES.  Temporary structures incidental to construction work, but only 
for the period of such work, are permitted in all districts. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 81 

 
5.2.  LOT AND SITE CONDITIONS. 
5.2.1.  ADJUSTMENTS TO FRONT YARD REQUIREMENTS.  In the case of rehabilitation / 
remodeling / retrofitting / adding to existing structures with a front yard setback different than the required 
setback, the required front yard setback may be modified to correspond with the setback established by the 
existing structure and/or by the predominate setback established by the existing buildings on the block 
face. Such modification is intended to reinforce the existing character of the established neighborhood and 
may not create a situation that would adversely affect the rights of adjacent property owners or residents, 
or adversely affect the public health, safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity, or general welfare.  
Such required front yard setback may also be modified in the same manner for a new structure in an 
established neighborhood. 
 
5.2.2.  VISIBILITY AT INTERSECTIONS. On a corner lot in all districts, except C-2, a sight triangle 
shall be provided such that nothing shall be erected, placed, planted, or allowed to grow in such a manner 
as to materially impede vision between a height of two and one-half (2 ½) and ten (10) feet above the 
centerline grades of the intersecting streets in the area bounded by the street lines of such corner lots and a 
line joining points along said street lines fifty (50) feet from the point of the intersection and nothing shall 
be erected, placed or allowed to grow in such a manner as to materially to impede vision between a height 
of two and one-half (2 ½) and ten (10) feet above the centerline grades of the intersecting street and alley 
between the lot line and curb line. 
 
5.3.  USES. 
5.3.1.  ACCESSORY USES. 

5.3.1.A. CARETAKER’S QUARTERS.  Caretaker’s quarters are permitted in all districts as an 
accessory use, if included in the principal structure, providing said use is incidental to the principal 
use. 

 
5.3.1.B. DWELLING.  Accessory structures shall not be used for dwelling purposes unless 
specifically permitted as part of an approved development plan per Section 2.2.4. 

 
5.3.2.  FEEDLOTS. 
No feedlot (first, second or third class) shall be located within one-half (1/2) mile of an existing residential 
structure other than that of the owner or operator of the feedlot, or shall a residential structure other than 
that of the owner, or operator, be located within one-half (1/2) mile of an existing first, second, or third 
class feedlot. 
 
5.3.3.  HOME OCCUPATIONS. 
The intent of this section is to allow residents the opportunity to use their residence as a place to either 
produce or supplement their personal and family income, while protecting residential areas from adverse 
impacts associated with a home business, and to achieve and maintain an attractive and efficiently 
functioning community. 
1. A home occupation shall not be conducted on any residential property unless the home occupation is 

registered with the Zoning Administrative Officer of the City of Gering or his or her designee.  A “no-
fee” registration shall be for an unlimited time period and shall continue to be effective until re-
registration or cancellation occurs.  A home occupation registration shall be canceled in the event of 
the cessation of the home occupation or if the home occupation is found to be in violation of the 
standards in this Section or any other applicable city, state or federal regulations.  In the event the 
nature and activities associated with the home occupation change or if a different home occupation 
than originally registered is conducted on the premises, the premises shall be re-registered.  The 
Zoning Administrative Officer may cancel any registration upon determining that the home occupation 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 82 

is no longer being conducted on the premises.  Failure to register as provided in this section shall 
constitute an offense. 

2. Applicants for a home occupation shall permit inspection of the premises, at a reasonable time, by the 
Zoning Administrative Officer of the City of Gering or his or her designee to determine compliance 
with these regulations. 

3. There shall not be any alterations of the exterior of any building which changes its character of the 
building. 

4. A home occupation may be carried on within a dwelling unit or accessory building under the 
following conditions: 
a. The home occupation shall be accessory and incidental to the residential use of the property where 

it is conducted. 
b. Home occupations shall not occupy more than forty-nine (49) percent of the total floor area of the 

main building; or, if located in an accessory building, shall not occupy more than forty-nine (49) 
percent of the total building area. 

c. No outdoor storage of any equipment, machinery, parts, goods, materials or any other articles used 
in connection with the home occupation is allowed. 

d. Any activities carried on outdoors in connection with the home occupation shall be screened from 
view. 

e. There shall be no sign other than one (1) non-illuminated, non-animated wall sign, not exceeding 
two (2) square feet in area, indicating only the name of the home occupation. 

f. The home occupation shall not involve the parking or storage of tractor trailers, semi-trucks or 
heavy equipment such as construction equipment used in a business. 

g. Commercial welding, vehicle body repair, vehicle painting, automobile mechanical repair or 
rebuilding or dismantling of vehicles are not allowed as home occupations. 

h. The number of persons engaged in such home occupation other than the family occupying such 
dwelling shall be limited to two. 

i. The home occupation shall not cause glare, noise or odors disturbing to residents of surrounding 
property or interference with television or radio reception. 

j. The home occupation shall not constitute a fire hazard or a nuisance to neighboring properties. 
k. Service oriented businesses where employees pick up vehicles and leave to work off premise must 

provide parking for said employees.  No traffic shall be generated by such any home occupation in 
greater volume than would normally be expected in the residential neighborhood, and any need for 
parking generated by the conduct of such occupation shall be off street parking and shall not be in 
the front yard of the residence.  The number of extra parking spaces shall not exceed two (2). 

l. Home based day care operations may have permanent play equipment such as slides and swing sets 
located in the required side or rear yards.  All home based day care operations must comply with all 
state statutes and regulations pertaining to them. 

 
5.4.  FENCES, WALLS AND HEDGES.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in these regulations 
or in other codes and regulations, the following regulations shall apply to the construction of fences, walls 
and hedges: 
1. No fences or walls shall be constructed on any lot within any zone within the City of Gering until a 

permit for the construction of said fence is first obtained from the proper authority as authorized by the 
City of Gering.   

2. Fences in the required front yard or in the primary front yard of a corner lot in any residential zone 
may not be chain link or constructed of wire mesh, welded wire, or any other form of woven wire or 
stranded wire.  

3. Fences or walls constructed within the required front yard or within the primary front yard of a corner 
lot side yard adjacent to a street of any residentially zoned property shall be decorative fences which 
shall include, but not be limited to: 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 83 

a. split rail, pickets or slats:  wood or PVC or components thereof 
b. ornamental iron 
c. decorative brick or block 

4. The maximum height for any fence, wall or hedge or any part of a fence, wall or hedge, within the 
required front yard setback or within the primary or secondary front yard of a corner lot in all 
residential zones shall be forty-eight (48) inches measured from the average grade of the ground, 
measured within eighteen (18) inches on either side of the fence, wall, or hedge; provided the corner 
triangular site distance is maintained per Section 5.2.2. of these regulations with the maximum height 
of the fence being thirty (30) inches measured from the front corner property line point of intersection. 
The maximum height for any fence, wall, or hedge, in any interior side yard, or rear yard is six (6) 
feet, measured from the average grade of the ground, measured within eighteen (18) inches on either 
side of the fence, wall or hedge. 

5. Fences, walls and hedges in commercial zones or industrial zones may be constructed to a height of 
greater than six (6) feet but no more than eight (8) feet, except where the commercial or industrial 
zone or use abuts a residential zone.  In a circumstance where a residential zone abuts a commercial or 
industrial zone, the regulations for residential zones shall apply for a fence, wall or hedge constructed 
between the commercial and/or industrial zone or use and the residential zone. 

6. All fences and walls shall conform to the construction standards of the building code.  No fences, 
walls or hedges are allowed in the public right of way. 

7. No fence shall be constructed in such a manner or be of such design as to be hazardous or dangerous 
to persons or animals or constitute a traffic hazard.  In residential zones, all chain link or other wire 
fence fabric shall be installed with knuckled ends.  Fences with barbed ends including barbed wire 
shall be prohibited in residential zones.  

8. No barbed wire, other sharp pointed, or electrically charged fence may be constructed or maintained.   
9. The building inspector may order any dilapidated or dangerous fence to be removed or repaired. 
10. Utility Conflicts/Requirements: 

a. Fences, shrubs, hedges, trees shall not interfere with operation or maintenance of City utility services.  
No permanent foundations should be placed within four (4) feet of a water shut off. 

b. Easy access is required for meter reading and/or remote reading devices shall be installed and paid 
for by the property owner when directed by the City Utility Department Head. 

c. The property owner shall be responsible for fence, shrub, hedge and tree removal and/or replacement 
if the City notifies or has to remove such in the case of utility repairs or maintenance.  

11. Drawing is incorporated into this Zoning Ordinance for reference.  Section 10/1:  Visibility at 
Intersections, is incorporated for corner lots. 

 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 84 

 
 

5.5.  LANDSCAPING AND SCREENING STANDARDS. 
5.5.1.  INTENT.  The Landscaping and Screening Regulations provide additional guidance on the 
development of sites within Gering by addressing landscaping and screening requirements. They are 
designed to improve the appearance of the community; buffer potentially incompatible land uses from one 
another; and conserve the value of properties within the City of Gering and more particularly along the 
expressway corridor. 
 
5.5.2.  APPLICABILITY.  The provisions of this section shall apply to all new development on each lot 
or site upon application for a building permit. 
 
5.5.3.  LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS.  Landscaping shall be required adjacent to each street 
property line as set forth in Table 5.5.1. 

 
5.5.4.  LANDSCAPING MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION STANDARDS. 
1. Official List of Plant Materials:  All plant material installed in landscaped areas or bufferyards shall be 

consistent with the Official List of Plant Materials provided by the Gering Parks, Cemetery and Tree 
Board through the office of the Zoning Administrator. All plant materials shall conform in size, 
species and spacing with this section of the regulations. 

2. Use of Inorganic Landscaping Materials:  No artificial trees, shrubs, plants or turf shall be used to 
fulfill the minimum requirements for landscaping. Inorganic materials, such as stone or decorative 
pavers, may be used provided that such material does not comprise more than 25% of the minimum 
required landscaped area. Other concrete and/or asphalt pavement surfaces may not be used within the 
minimum required landscaped area, except for walkways less than 5 feet in width. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 85 

 
5.5.5.  BUFFERYARD PROVISIONS.  These provisions apply when use is established in a more 
intensive zoning district (District A) which is adjacent to a less intensive zoning district (District B). The 
owner, developer, or operator of the use within District A shall install and maintain a landscaped 
bufferyard on his/her lot or site, as set forth in this section. Bufferyard requirements apply only to those 
districts indicated in Table 5.5.2. Bufferyards are not required of single-family, 2-family, duplex, or 
townhouse use types in the more intensive zoning district. 
1. The bufferyard dimensions set forth in Table 5.5.2 apply to zoning districts which share a common lot 

line or are adjacent but separated by an intervening alley. 
2. When a street separates adjacent zoning districts requiring a bufferyard, no bufferyard is required.  

Applicable setback and landscaping requirements will apply in these cases. 
3. Each required bufferyard must be entirely landscaped and free of paved areas, access ways, storage, or 

other disturbances. 
 

Table 5.5.1: Required Landscape Depth 
   Zoning District   Depth of Landscaping Adjacent to    
     Street Property Line Including Expressway  

 
C-1                10 feet 

 
C-2                10 feet 

 
ML      10 feet 

 
MH      10 feet 

 
RR      10 feet 

 
Table 5.5.2:  Bufferyard Requirements (Feet) 
    DISTRICT B  (Less Intensive Adjacent District)   

      AG             RR  RL  RM  RH            C-3  ML 
          (Note 1)          (Note 1)         (Note 1) 

 
     C-1       10’            10’             10’       10’   10’        ---  ---      
 
     C-2       10’      10’  10’  10’   10’        ---  --- 
 
     C-3       15’      15’  15’  15’  15’        ---  --- 
 
     ML       15’      15’  15’  15’   15’        10’ --- 
 
     MH       15’             15’             15’             15’             15’        10’ 10’ 

Notes to Table 5.5.2: 
Note 1:  Applies to residential uses previously established in the zoning district.  
Note 2:  Vertical screening only is required as set forth in Section 5.5.6. 
Note 3: Buffer requirements do not apply to single-family, duplex or townhouse residential uses 

established in District A. 
 
 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
A

 
M

or
e 

In
te

ns
iv

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 

(N
ot

e 
3)

 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 86 

5.5.6.  SCREENING STANDARDS. 
1. Application:  Screening is required between adjacent zoning districts indicated in Table 5.5.2 when 

one or more of the following conditions in the more intensive zoning district is directly visible from 
and faces toward the boundary of the less intensive zoning district. 

a. The rear elevation of buildings. 
b. Outdoor storage areas or storage tanks, unless otherwise screened. 
c. Loading docks, refuse collection points, and other service areas. 
d. Major machinery or areas housing a manufacturing process. 
e. Major on-site traffic circulation areas or truck, trailer or equipment parking. 
f. Sources of glare, noise, or other environmental effects. 

2. Screening Method:  A six-foot opaque barrier shall be provided which visually screens the conditions 
listed in Section 5.5.6 (1) from less intensive uses as follows: 

a. A solid wood, S2S lumber fence, and/or decorative, split-face or similar wall at least six 
feet in height. 

b. A landscaping screen, using evergreen or deciduous materials, capable of providing a 
substantially opaque, hedge-like barrier which will be capable of providing a solid screen 
within three years of planting. 

c. A landscaped earth berm with a maximum slope of three to one, rising no less than six feet 
above the existing grade of the lot line separating the zoning districts. 

d. Any combination of these methods that achieves a cumulative height of six feet. 
3. Location of Screening:  Any screening method shall be installed within the required bufferyard or in 

close proximity of items listed in this section (1 a-f above) so as to block direct visibility from adjacent 
uses and public visibility from public areas (e.g. parks, roads, trails, etc.). 

4. Effect on Drainage:  Screening shall not adversely affect surface water drainage. 
5. Permitted Interruptions of Screening:  Screening may be interrupted to provide access drives to service 

areas or for loading purposes to buildings. Such breaks or interruptions shall not exceed 20% of the 
length of the required screened area. 

6. Alternative Screening Plans:  When an opaque barrier is required between adjacent zoning districts, the 
Zoning Administrator may approve alternative plans for the bufferyard requirement for small lots (less 
than one-half acre) of record and/or unique situations at the time of passage of this regulation. 

 
When an alternate bufferyard requirement is proposed, the developer shall be required to plant an equal 
number of plantings or groups of plantings to meet the intention of the ordinance to improve the 
community appearance.     

 
5.5.7.  TREE PLANTINGS.  In any landscaped area required by the Minimum Depth Requirements, the 
Bufferyard Requirements, or the Parking Lot Interior Landscaping Requirements, one tree of an approved 
species listed on the Official List of Plant Materials shall be planted and maintained for each 500 square 
feet of required landscaped area. Existing trees approved for preservation shall be counted toward 
satisfaction of this requirement.   All required deciduous trees shall have a minimum 1 ½” caliper.  All 
required coniferous trees shall be at least four feet in height. 
 
5.5.8.  GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
1. Time of Application:  The provisions contained in Section 5.5 shall be applied for each new 

construction / development or substantial remodel or redevelopment on the individual lot or site when 
an application for a building permit on such lot or site is made.  When a substantial remodel or 
redevelopment project, the cost of which exceeds $100,000.00 based upon the building permit issued 
by the City of Gering, upon property that does not then meet the requirements of Section 5.5 the 
property owner or occupant will be required to spend 3% of any substantial remodel or redevelopment 
project toward bringing the property and landscaping up to the development standards in Section 5.5. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 87 

Once the property and landscaping meet the requirements of this section, the property owner or 
occupant will no longer have to spend a portion of the remodel or redevelopment project to make 
improvements in order to comply with this section. In addition, if the property owner or occupant is 
able to show they are unable to bring the property into compliance because of the property’s 
topography or features, then the property owner or occupant may appear before the Planning 
Commission to explain why they cannot comply. If the Planning Commission finds the property 
owner or occupants are unable to comply with the requirements of this section for the reasons stated 
above, then it may excuse the property owner or occupant from attempting to comply and instead 
allow them to pay an amount equal to 3% of their project directly to the City for use by the City on 
streetscape improvement projects along arterial roadways or other City improvements to public parks 
or trails. Maintenance of Required Landscaping:  Upon installation of required landscape materials, 
each owner shall take appropriate actions to ensure their continued health and maintenance. 

2. Obstruction of View:  Landscaping or screening installed in any landscaped area shall not obstruct the 
view from or to any driveway approach, street, alley, or sidewalk.  See sight triangle for intersections. 

3. Earth Berm Locations:  All earth berm locations shall be reviewed by the Public Works Director, or 
his/her designee to determine how the berms shall relate to drainage and public utilities. 

4. Exceptions:  A development shall continue to comply with the bufferyard and screening requirements 
in effect at the time of issuance of its original permit, regardless of whether an adjacent lot or site is 
subsequently rezoned to a less intensive district which would otherwise require compliance with 
bufferyard or screening provisions. 

5. Performance Guarantee:  A performance guarantee (e.g. performance bond, letter of credit, etc.) will 
be required in the event a certificate of occupancy is issued prior to installation of all required 
landscaping. 

6. In-ground sprinkling and/or drip irrigation systems are to be installed in all required landscape areas. 
 
5.6  PARKING REGULATIONS. 
5.6.1.  VEHICLE PARKING RATES.  Table 5.6.1, Required Parking, provides general minimum 
requirements for rates of all similar uses. Where the classification of the use is not determinable from the 
table, the Zoning Administrator shall determine the appropriate classification based on industry guides and 
the most similar use in terms of scale, function and operation. The following criteria shall be used in 
interpreting the table: 
1.    A rate based on employees shall consider maximum number of employees likely to be on-site at one 

time. 
2.    A rate based on square footage shall consider the service area open to the public or patrons, or 

leasable floor area. Where this number is not easily or readily determined, 85 percent of gross floor 
area may be used. 

3.    A rate based on seating shall consider total number of seats based on industry standards for typical 
layouts of buildings. 

4.    A rate based on capacity shall be the maximum permitted under public safety and building codes. 
5.    Where uses or sites have components of different uses (i.e., hotel with a restaurant), each component 

shall be calculated under most applicable rate. 
 
 

Table 5.6.1: Required Parking  
Residential 
Detached House; Duplex 2 per dwelling unit 
Row House, Apartments, etc. 1.5 per dwelling unit 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 1 per dwelling unit 
Group Living 0.5 per bed/room; AND 1 per employee 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 88 

Civic/Institutional 
Generally 2.5 per 1,000 s.f. 

Schools 

1 per 1,000 s.f.; AND 1 per classroom 

OR 

1 per 3 seats of any assembly area (whichever is greater) 
Assembly 1 per 4 seats 
Hospital/Institutional Living 0.5 per room; AND 1 per 2 employees 
Outdoor Recreation 1 per 10,000 s.f. passive; 1 per 1,000 s.f. active/programmed; 1 per 5 

seats for any venues 
Commercial 

General Retail 
1 – 2,000 s.f. = 2.5 per 1,000 s.f. 
2,001 – 25,000 s.f. = 5 per 1,000 s.f. 
25,001 or more s.f. = 4 per 1,000 s.f. 

Convenience Store/Gas 
Station 

5 per 1,000 s.f. 

Outdoor Sales 1 per 1,000 s.f. 
Service/Office 3 per 1000 s.f. 
Barber/Beauty 2 per seat/service stall 
Live/Work 3 per unit 
Lodging 1 per room 
Entertainment Venue/Theater 1 per 4 seats 
Mortuary/Funeral Home 1 per 3 seats 
Fitness/Exercise Studio 1 per 3 persons occupancy 
Medical/Dental Office/Clinic 5 per 1,000 s.f. 
Athletic Club/Sports Complex 2.5 per 1,000 s.f.; AND 1 per 5 seats for any venue 
Bowling Alley 2.5 per lane; AND 2 per 1,000 s.f. for ancillary entertainment areas 
Restaurant, General 1 per 3 seats 
Bar/Tavern 5 per 1,000 s.f. 
Veterinary Clinic/Hospital 1.5 per 1,000 s.f. 
Bank 3 per 1,000 s.f. 
Industrial 
Generally 2 per 1,000 s.f for any customer service area; AND 0.75 per 

employee 

5.6.2.  MAXIMUM PARKING.  No use shall provide greater than 20 percent more than the minimum 
required parking without documented evidence of actual parking demand based on studies of similar uses 
in similar contexts. In addition, any parking permitted over 20 percent shall require mitigating potential 
impacts of more parking through one or more of the following strategies: 

1.    Provide shared parking for other uses on the block or adjacent blocks according to subsection (D) of 
this section. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 89 

2.    Design all parking areas over the minimum as dual purpose space, such as plazas, playgrounds, or 
event areas for regular use of the space during nonpeak times. 

3.    Use alternative surface areas designed to infiltrate stormwater. 
4.    Provide additional buffers and site open spaces to screen parking or provide more active usable 

outdoor spaces for people in relation to the streetscape, of at least a 10 percent increase in the open 
space or buffers and at least a 20 percent increase in the amount of landscape material required for the 
parking. 

 
5.6.3.  PARKING REDUCTIONS.  The parking required by Table 5.6.1 may be reduced depending on 
context, and according to the following strategies: 
1.    Downtown / Neighborhood Commercial. In the C-1 and C-2 districts, any use under 2,000 square feet 

is exempt from any on-site parking. All other uses in the C-1 and C-2 districts may reduce the 
required on-site parking by 40 percent, in addition to all other applicable credits and shared parking 
reductions. 

2.    On-Street Parking Credit. All on-street parking within 600 feet of any lot frontage shall count towards 
the parking requirement at a rate of one space for every three on-street spaces. 

3.    Bicycle Parking Credit. All properly designed and located on-site bicycle parking may reduce the 
required vehicle parking at a rate of one space for every four bicycle parking spaces up to a maximum 
of 15 percent of the required vehicle parking. 

4.    Public Parking Credit. Any site within 600 feet of a public parking area may reduce the required 
vehicle parking at a rate of one space for every two public parking spaces. 

5.    Deferral of Parking Space Requirements. A portion of the required parking may remain unimproved 
until it is necessary to adequately serve parking demand. The Planning Commission or City Council, 
whichever is charged with granting final approval, shall determine that the initial occupancy of the 
premises will be adequately served by the lesser number of spaces and a site plan shall indicate the 
location, pattern and circulation to and from the deferred parking spaces. Any approved deferral shall 
specifically indicate what event will trigger the construction of the deferred parking. The area 
reserved for future parking shall be brought to finished grade and shall be landscaped, and it shall not 
be used for any permanent purpose or structure unless a revised site plan and parking plan is 
approved. 

5.6.4.  SHARED PARKING.  Required parking may be reduced for any site containing multiple uses or 
for adjacent sites with different uses according to Table 5.6.2: Shared Parking. Any shared parking 
arrangement shall require an agreement among all landowners participating in the agreement to ensure 
access, joint use, maintenance, and other operational issues. A reduction program that differs from Table 
5.6.2 may also be approved in association with the agreement upon preparation of the joint parking study 
for the sites and uses. 

Table 5.6.2: Shared Parking  
  Percentage of Required Parking by Time Period 
  Weekday Weekend All 

Use 6 a.m. to 5 
p.m. 

5 p.m. to 1 
a.m. 

6 a.m. to 5 
p.m. 

5 p.m. to 1 
a.m. 

1 a.m. to 6 
a.m. 

Employment 100% 10% 5% 5% 5% 
Retail or Service 75% 75% 100% 90% 5% 
Restaurant 50% 100% 75% 100% 25% 
Entertainment and 
Recreation 

30% 100% 75% 100% 5% 

Church 5% 25% 100% 50% 5% 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 90 

Table 5.6.2: Shared Parking  
  Percentage of Required Parking by Time Period 
  Weekday Weekend All 

Use 6 a.m. to 5 
p.m. 

5 p.m. to 1 
a.m. 

6 a.m. to 5 
p.m. 

5 p.m. to 1 
a.m. 

1 a.m. to 6 
a.m. 

School 100% 10% 10% 10% 5% 
Dwellings 25% 90% 50% 90% 100% 
Lodging 50% 90% 75% 100% 100% 
 
5.7.  PLANNED DEVELOPMENT TYPES. 
5.7.1.  MIXED-USE.  Mixed-use development is the intentional grouping of various commercial retail, 
office and/or residential uses by design within a planned development area approved by the City via the 
development plan review process (Section 2.2.4).  A mixed-use development may be made up of solely 
residential uses with a variety of housing types (e.g. townhomes, single-family residences – attached and 
detached; apartments; etc.). The approval of a development plan for a mixed-use development project is 
effectively a rezoning of the property within the proposed project development area to an MUP (Mixed-
Use Planned) District designation, with a case located number, to be reflected on the official zoning map.  
The approved plan serves as the regulating document for the allowed land uses, design features and 
development patterns within the mixed-use development.  Additionally, the review of the development 
plan by City staff, Planning Commission and City Council shall take into consideration the applicable 
factors in Section 2.2.1.B.ii. of these regulations. 
 
5.7.2.  MOBILE / MANFACTURED HOMES.   

5.7.2.A. TEMPORARY PLACEMENT ON INDIVIDUAL LOT / PARCEL.  Notwithstanding the 
provisions of the district regulations of this Ordinance, no mobile / manufactured home shall be parked 
and occupied in any district outside an approved mobile / manufactured home park for more than 
forty-eight (48) hours, except upon a special permit issued by the Zoning Administrator.  Such permit 
shall be issued for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days and shall not be renewable within the same 
calendar year.  Provided, however, a permit may be issued for parking and occupying a mobile / 
manufactured home on land owned by the owner of said mobile / manufactured home during:  

1. the construction of a house thereon;  
2. the repair or reconstruction of any residence thereon as a result of damages suffered by 

explosion, fire, earthquake, wind or other natural disasters or manmade disasters; or  
3. a period of illness or physical disability necessitating special facilities for care of the occupant 

or  
4. for the purposes of providing security for the property on a temporary basis, or  
5. for any cause created by conditions pertaining to the police, health or welfare of the community 

generally.  
Such permit shall be issued for a period not exceeding one hundred eighty (180) days, and which shall 
be renewable for an additional period not exceeding one hundred eighty (180) days. However, if said 
condition shall not occur within forty-five (45) days from the issuance of the permit or if material 
progress in house construction is not made within forty-five (45) days from the issuance of a permit, or 
if said condition ceases or construction work on the property ceases for a consecutive period of forty-
five (45) days, said permit shall terminate and become void.  If the mobile / manufactured home is 
being parked on the site waiting to be placed on and connected to a permanent foundation, the mobile 
homeowner does not originally need a permit.  After thirty (30) days, if the mobile / manufactured 
home has not been placed on and connected to a permanent foundation, a permit must be acquired in 
accordance with this section. 
 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 91 

5.7.2.B. PERMANENT PLACEMENT ON INDIVIDUAL LOT / PARCEL.  Mobile / manufactured 
homes may be permanently placed on individual lots / parcels outside of a mobile / manufactured 
home park in compliance with receiving the appropriate permit(s) and meeting the following design 
criteria: 
1. The roof must be double-pitched and have a vertical rise of 3.0 feet for each 12 feet of horizontal 

run, and covered with material that is residential in appearance, including, but not limited to, 
approved wood, asphalt composition shingles or fiberglass, but excluding corrugated aluminum, 
corrugated fiberglass or metal roof. 

2. Exterior siding cannot have a high-gloss finish and must be residential in appearance, including, 
but not limited to, clapboards, simulated clapboards such as conventional vinyl or metal siding, 
wood shingles, shakes, or similar material, but excluding smooth, ribbed, or corrugated metal or 
plastic panels. 

3. The home must be placed on a permanent foundation that complies with the city building code for 
residential structures. 

4. The hitch, axles, and wheels must be removed. 
5. The unit must be oriented on the lot so that its long axis is parallel with the street. A perpendicular 

or diagonal placement may be permitted if there is a building addition or substantial landscaping 
so that the narrow dimension of the unit, as so modified and facing the street, is no less than 50% 
of the unit's long dimension. 

6. The lot improvements including driveways, yard areas and landscaping must be made in a manner 
that complies with applicable regulations to ensure compatibility with surrounding properties. 

7. The home must be at least 24 feet in width, and at least 40 feet in length, not including overhang, 
and shall contain at least 960 square feet of living space exclusive of basements, open or screened 
porches and garages. 

8. All fuel supply systems shall be constructed and installed in compliance with all applicable 
building and safety codes. Bottled gas tanks may be permitted only if gas service is not available 
on the nearest street and installation shall be in compliance with NFPA 58. Connection is to be 
made as soon as the gas service is available on the nearest street. 

9. A garage is required. The external material and roofing of the garage must be of a comparable 
material as that of the dwelling unit. 

 
5.7.3.  MOBILE / MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS.  A mobile home park may be established in 
specified zoning districts, provided that a development plan (Section 2.2.4) for the proposed mobile / 
manufactured home park has been approved by the City and meets all of the following requirements: 
1. Certification of compliance with all ordinances and regulations regarding mobile / manufactured home 

park licensing, and zoning, health, plumbing, electrical, building, fire prevention and all other 
applicable ordinances and regulations. 

2. Individual mobile / manufactured home lots shall have an area of not less than five thousand (5,000) 
square feet for single wide mobile / manufactured homes and six thousand (6,000) square feet for 
double wide mobile homes, and the total number of lots per gross acre shall not exceed six (6). 

3. Planting of trees and shrubs is required to the extent needed to provide for: (a) screening of 
objectionable views; (b) adequate shade; (c) a suitable setting for the mobile / manufactured homes in 
the park as well as neighboring uses. 

4. A minimum of twenty-five (25) feet measured from any entrance, lean-to or other extension from said 
mobile home shall be maintained between mobile homes. 

5. A mobile / manufactured home park shall have an area of not less than two (2) acres or more than ten 
(10) acres and no mobile / manufactured home parking or office or service building shall be closer to a 
street right-of-way or other property line than twenty-five (25) feet. 

6. A development plan reviewed and approved by the City shall set forth the location and legal 
description of the proposed mobile / manufactured home parking property, and a sketch of the 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 92 

proposed mobile / manufactured home park, showing dimensions, driveways, proposed locations of 
mobile / manufactured homes, the location of sanitary, conveniences and other buildings and 
improvements. 

7. The area of the mobile / manufactured home or trailer stand shall be improved to provide an adequate 
and approved foundation for the placement and tie-down of the mobile / manufactured home or trailer, 
thereby securing the super-structure against uplift, sliding, rotation or overturning.  The mobile / 
manufactured home or trailer stand shall be on incombustible materials and shall not shift or settle 
unevenly under the weight of the mobile / manufactured home or trailer due to frost action, inadequate 
drainage, vibration or other forces acting upon the super-structure.  The mobile / manufactured home 
or trailer stand may be provided by means of a solid concrete footer block (16" x 16" x 4"minimum) 
placed on solid uniform soil with at least two standard concrete blocks with cells placed vertically 
beside each other on the footer block.  A solid 4" concrete cap covering the two concrete blocks shall 
be provided as the bearing area to be positioned directly beneath the steel frame of the mobile / 
manufactured home or trailer.  Such blocking shall be provided along the full length of the mobile / 
manufactured home or trailer unit, spaced not more than ten (10) feet apart, and not more than five (5) 
feet from the ends of the unit. 

8. The mobile / manufactured home or trailer stand shall be provided with anchors and tie-downs such as 
cast-in-place concrete "dead men", eyelets embedded in concrete foundations or runways, screw 
augers, arrowhead anchors or other devices securing the stability of the mobile / manufactured home 
or trailer.  The tie-down devices shall be compatible with the foundation system provided for the 
mobile / manufactured home or trailer such that the tie-downs are designed to resist the action of frost 
in the same manner as the foundation. 

9. The skirting of all mobile / manufactured homes and trailers is required.  Such skirting shall not attach 
a mobile / manufactured home or trailer permanently to the ground but shall be sufficient to withstand 
wind load requirements and shall not provide a harborage for junk or rodents, nor create a fire hazard.  
Such skirting shall be provided with removable access panels sufficient to provide easy access to all 
utility connection points of the mobile home or trailer and its subsequent connection to the utility 
risers if they are located within the skirted area. 

10. Licensing of Mobile / Manufactured Home Parks shall be complete in accord with Section 5-4-2 and 
5-4-3 of the Gering City Code. 

 
5.7.4.  RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKS AND CAMPGROUNDS.  A recreational vehicle park 
or campground may be established in specified districts provided that a development plan (Section 2.2.4) 
for the proposed recreational vehicle park or campground has been approved by the City and meets all the 
following requirements: 
1. A recreational vehicle park or campground shall have an area of not less than one (1) acre, and no 

recreation vehicle spot, camping unit or service structure shall be closer to a street/road/highway right-
of-way or other property line than twenty-five (25) feet; 

2. A recreational vehicle park or campground shall provide minimum facilities including central travel 
trailer sanitary and water stations, toilets and refuse containers; 

3. Certification of compliance with all ordinances and regulations regarding zoning, health, plumbing, 
electrical, building, fire prevention and all other applicable ordinances and regulations; 

4. Individual recreational vehicle spots and camping units, other than tents, shall have a lot area of not 
less than seven hundred fifty (750) square feet and the total number of units per gross acre shall not 
exceed twenty (20); 

5. Individual tent camping units shall be located in separate areas designated for tent camping; 
6. The layout of the recreational vehicle park or campground shall be such that there is minimal 

disturbance of the natural vegetation and topography of the area is minimized; 
7. A development plan reviewed and approved by the City shall set forth the location and legal 

description of the proposed recreational vehicle park or campground property and include a layout of 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 93 

the proposed recreational vehicle park or campground showing dimensions, roads, parking stations, 
location of services and any other buildings or improvements. 

 
5.7.5.  TINY HOMES AND TINY HOME COMMUNITIES.  It is the intent of this section to allow 
housing meeting certain qualifications to be located upon lots that are developed as part of planned tiny 
home community. Such accommodation provides wider housing stock choices for citizens.  Tiny homes 
must be located in a planned tiny home community, no less than 2 acres in size, approved by the City via 
the planned development process in Section 2.2.4 of these regulations. Tiny home communities are 
permitted in the RH Residential High-Density District.  All tiny homes must meet all of the following 
requirements:  
1. Be complete dwelling units containing a kitchen, sanitary and sleeping facilities within the unit, for the 

exclusive use of a single-family maintaining a household. 
2. Be permanently attached on a City-approved foundation. 
3. Comply with the height and yard requirements of the RH district.  
4. Maximum lot coverage of 40%. 
5. Comply with the City-adopted building code. 
6. Minimum structure size: 

a. 170 sq. ft. for one occupant 
b. 100 sq. ft. for each additional occupant  
c. 8.5 foot width 

 
5.7.6.  SHIPPING CONTAINER HOMES AND SHIPPING CONTAINER HOME COMMUNITIES.  
It is the intent of this section to allow housing meeting certain qualifications to be located upon lots that are 
developed as part of a planned Shipping Container Home Community.  Such accommodation provides wider 
housing stock choices for citizens.  Shipping Container Homes must be located in a planned Shipping 
Container Home Community, no less than 2 acres in size, approved by the City via the planned development 
process in Section 2.2.4 of these regulations.  Shipping Container Home Communities are permitted in the 
RH Residential High-Density District and RM Residential Medium-Density District.   
For purposes of this section, Shipping Container Home is defined as a shipping container as described in 
section 5.1.1.F(a) of the City of Gering Zoning Ordinance, which shipping container has been modified 
and adapted for permanent habitation and which meets all of the following requirements: 
 
1.  Be complete dwelling units containing a kitchen, sanitary and sleeping facilities within the unit, for the 
exclusive use of a single-family maintaining a household. 
2.  Be permanently attached on a City-approved foundation. 
3.  Comply with the City-adopted building code. Plans must also be approved by a licensed architect. 
4.  Minimum structure size (may be met by more than one shipping container being combined): 
 a.  170 sq. ft. for one occupant 
 b.  100 sq. ft. for each additional occupant 
 c.   8.0 foot external width 
 d.   19.8 foot external length 
 e.   8.5 foot external height 
Approved Shipping Container Homes and Shipping Container Home Communities are not subject to the 
standards for a Dwelling, Single-Family as defined in Article 1, Section 1.6, Paragraph 51 of the City of 
Gering Zoning Ordinance.  
 

5.8.  SATELLITE / WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS. 
5.8.1.  WIRELESS COMMUNICATION TOWERS.  Based upon the Communications Act of 1934, as 
amended by the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the Act) grants the Federal Communications 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 94 

Commission (FCC) exclusive jurisdiction over certain aspects of telecommunication services. This section 
is intended to regulate towers, telecommunications facilities and antennas in the City in conformance with 
the Act without prohibiting or tending to prohibit any person from providing wireless telecommunication 
service. Telecommunication facilities, towers and antennas in the City’s jurisdiction, to protect residential 
areas and land uses from potential adverse impact of installation of towers and antennas through careful 
design, siting, and camouflaging, to promote and encourage shared use / collocation of towers and other 
antenna support structures rather than the construction of additional single use towers, to avoid potential 
damage to property caused by towers, telecommunications facilities and antennas by ensuring such 
structures are soundly and carefully designed, constructed, modified, maintained, repaired and removed 
when no longer used or are determined to be structurally unsound and to ensure that towers and antennas 
are compatible with surrounding land uses. 
 
5.8.2.  DEFINITIONS.  All terms in this Section which are not specifically defined herein shall be 
construed in accordance with the Communications Act of 1934, the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and 
the Rules and Regulations of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC). As used in this Section, 
the following terms shall have the following meanings: 
1. Antenna: shall mean a device, designed and intended for transmitting or receiving television, radio, or 

microwave signals, direct satellite service (including direct-to-home satellite service), and/or video 
programming services via multi-point distribution services. 

2. Antenna Support Structure: shall mean any building or structure other than a tower which can be used 
for location of telecommunications facilities. 

3. Applicant: shall mean any person that applies for a Tower Development Permit. 
4. Application: shall mean a process by which the owner of a tract of land within the zoning jurisdiction 

of the City submits a request to develop, construct, modify, or operate a tower upon such tract of land. 
The term application includes all written documentation, verbal statements, and representations, in 
whatever, formal forum, made by an applicant to the City concerning such request. 

5. Conforming Commercial Earth Station: shall mean a satellite dish which is two meters or less in 
diameter and is located in an area where commercial or industrial uses are generally permitted under 
this ordinance. 

6. Engineer: shall mean any engineer qualified and licensed by any state or territory of the United States 
of America. 

7. Owner: shall mean any person with a fee simple title or a leasehold exceeding 10 years in duration to 
any tract of land within the zoning jurisdiction of the City who desires to develop, construct, modify, 
or operate a tower upon such tract of land. 

8. Person: shall mean any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company, or other legal 
entity, private or public, whether for profit or not for profit. 

9. Satellite Dish Antenna: shall mean an antenna consisting of a radiation element intended for 
transmitting or receiving television, radio, microwave, or radiation signals and supported by a 
structure with or without a reflective component to the radiating dish, usually circular in shape. 

10. Stealth: shall mean any telecommunications facility, tower, or antenna which is designed to enhance 
compatibility with adjacent land uses, including, but not limited to, architecturally screened roof-
mounted antennas, antennas integrated into architectural elements, and towers designed to look other 
than a tower, such as light poles, power poles and trees. 

11. Telecommunications Facilities: shall mean any cables, wires, lines, waive guides, antennas, or any 
other equipment or facilities associated with the transmission or reception of communications which a 
person seeks to locate or has installed upon or near a tower or antenna support structure. However, 
telecommunications facilities shall not include: 
a. Any Conforming Commercial Earth Station antenna two meters or less in diameter which is 

located on real estate zoned TA, RE, MUC, HC, GC, I-1 or I-2. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 95 

b. Any earth station antenna or satellite dish antenna of one meter or less in diameter, regardless of 
zoning applicable to the location of the antenna. 

12. Tower: shall mean a self-supporting lattice, guyed, or monopole structure which supports 
Telecommunications Facilities. The term Tower shall not include non-commercial amateur radio 
operator’s equipment as licensed by the FCC or structure supporting an earth station antenna serving 
residential premises or dwelling units exclusively. 

13. Tower Development Permit: shall mean a permit issued by the City upon recommendation of the 
Planning Commission and approval by the City Council of an application to develop a tower within 
the zoning jurisdiction of the City; which permit shall continue in full force and effect for so long as 
the tower to which it applies conforms to this Section. Upon issuance, a Tower Development Permit 
shall be deemed to run with the land during the permits duration and may be transferred, conveyed, 
and assigned by the applicant to assigns and successors-in-interest. A tower development permit shall 
follow the same procedure as a conditional use permit and be administered the same. 

14. Tower Owner: shall mean any person with an ownership interest of any nature in a proposed or 
existing tower following the issuance of a Tower Development Permit. 

 
5.8.3.  LOCATION OF TOWERS AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS. 
1. Towers shall be permitted by conditional use permit. 
2. No person shall develop, construct, modify or operate a tower upon any tract of land within the zoning 

jurisdiction of the City prior to approval of its application for a Tower Development Permit by the 
City Council and issuance of the permit by the City. Applicants shall submit their application for a 
Tower Development Permit to the Zoning Administrator / Building Inspector and shall pay a filing 
fee. 

3. All towers, telecommunications facilities and antennas on which construction has commenced within 
the zoning jurisdiction of the City after the effective date of these regulations shall conform to the 
Building Codes and all other construction standards set forth by the City, County, federal, and state 
law and applicable American National Standards Institute (ANSI). Upon completion of construction of 
a tower and prior to the commencement of use, an engineer’s certification that the tower is structurally 
sound and in conformance with all of the aforementioned applicable regulatory standards shall be filed 
with the Zoning Administrator / Building Inspector. 

 
5.8.4.  APPLICATION TO DEVELOP A TOWER.  Prior to commencement of development or 
construction of a tower, an application shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator / Building Inspector 
for a Tower Development Permit and shall include the following: 
1. Name, address, and telephone number of the owner and if applicable, the lessee of the tract of land 

upon which the tower is to be located. Applicants shall include the owner of the tract of land and all 
persons having an ownership interest in the proposed tower. The application shall be executed by all 
applicants. 

2. The legal description and address of the tract of land on which the tower is to be located. 
3. The names, addresses and telephone numbers of all owners of other towers or useable antenna support 

structures within a one mile radius of the proposed tower, including publicly and privately owned 
towers and structures. 

4. An affidavit attesting to the fact that the applicant has made diligent but unsuccessful efforts to obtain 
permission to install or collocate the applicants telecommunications facilities on a tower or useable 
antenna support or written technical evidence from an engineer that the applicants telecommunications 
facilities cannot be installed or collocated on another tower or useable antenna support structure. 

5. Written technical evidence from an engineer that the proposed tower will meet the established 
Building Code, and all other applicable construction standards set forth by the City Council and 
federal and state and ANSI standards. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 96 

6. Color photo simulations showing the proposed location of the tower with a photo-realistic 
representation of the proposed tower as it would appear viewed from the nearest residentially used and 
/ or zoned property and nearest roadway, street or highway. 

7. Descriptions and diagrams of the proposed tower, telecommunications facilities and/or antenna, 
manufacturers literature, appurtenances such as buildings, driveways, parking areas, and fences or 
other security enclosures with significant detail to allow persons reviewing the application to 
understand the kind and nature of the proposed facility. 

 
5.8.5.  TOWER DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PROCEDURE.  After receipt of an application for a 
Tower Development Permit, the City shall schedule a public hearing before the Planning Commission, 
following all Statutory requirements for publication and notice, to consider such application. The Planning 
Commission shall receive testimony on the Tower Development Permit and shall make a recommendation 
to the City Council. Upon the completion of the Planning Commission Public Hearing the City shall 
schedule a public hearing before the City Council, following all Statutory requirements for publication 
and notice, to consider such application and the recommendation of the City Planning Commission. 
Notice, for each Public Hearing, shall be made at least one time and at least 10 days prior to such hearing. 
In addition, the City shall cause a notice to be posted in a conspicuous place on the property on which 
action is pending. The Planning Commission and City Council may approve the Tower Development 
Permit as requested in the pending application with any conditions or safeguards it deems reasonable and 
appropriate based upon the application and / or input received at the public hearings or deny the 
application. In all zoning districts in which towers are a permitted conditional use of land, the Tower 
Development Permit shall be deemed a conditional use permit for said tract of land. 
 
5.8.6.  SETBACKS AND SEPARATION OR BUFFER REQUIREMENTS. 
1. All towers up to 50 feet in height shall be setback on all sides a distance equal to the underlying 

setback requirement in the applicable zoning district. Towers in excess of 50 feet in height shall be 
setback one additional foot for each foot of tower height in excess of 50 feet. The height of the tower 
shall be measured from the grade at the foot of the base pad to the top of any telecommunications 
facilities or antennas attached thereto. Setback requirements shall be measured from the base of the 
tower to the property line of the tract of land on which it is located. 

2. Towers exceeding 100 feet in height must be separated from all residentially zoned districts and 
occupied structures other than those utilized by the tower owner, by a minimum of 200 feet or 100 
percent of the height of the proposed tower, whichever is greater. 

3. Towers of 100 feet or less in height may be located in residentially zoned districts provided said tower 
is separated from any residential structure, school, church, and/or occupied structures other than those 
utilized by the tower owner, by a minimum of 100 percent of the height of the tower. 

4. Towers must meet the following minimum separation requirements from other towers: 
a. Monopole tower structures shall be separated from all other towers, whether monopole, self-

supporting lattice, or guyed by a minimum of 750 feet. 
b. Self-supporting lattice or guyed towers shall be separated from all other self-supporting lattice or 

guyed towers by a minimum of 1,500 feet. 
 
5.8.7.  STRUCTURAL STANDARDS FOR TOWERS ADOPTED.  The Structural Standards for Steel 
Antenna Towers and Antenna Supporting Structures, 1991 Edition (ANSI/EIA/TIA 222-E-1991) is hereby 
adopted, together with any amendments thereto as may be made from time to time, except such portions 
as are hereinafter deleted, modified, or amended by regulation and set forth in this Article of the Zoning 
Regulation. 
 
5.8.8.  ILLUMINATION AND SECURITY FENCES. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 97 

1. Towers shall not be artificially lighted except as required by the Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA). In cases where there are residential uses / zoned properties within a distance of 300 percent of 
the height of the tower, any tower subject to this Section shall be equipped with dual mode lighting. 

2. All self-supporting lattice or guyed towers shall be enclosed within a security fence of at least six feet 
in height or other structure designed to preclude unauthorized access. Monopole towers shall be 
designed and constructed in a manner which will preclude to the extent practical, unauthorized 
climbing of said structure. 

 
5.8.9.  EXTERIOR FINISH.  Towers not requiring FAA painting or marking shall have an exterior 
finish which enhances compatibility with adjacent land uses, subject to review and approval by the Zoning 
Administrator / Building Inspector as part of the application approval process. All towers, which must be 
approved as a conditional use, shall be stealth design unless stealth features are impractical or the cost of 
such features represents an undue burden on the applicant. 
 
5.8.10.  LANDSCAPING.  All tracts of land on which towers, antenna support structures, 
telecommunications facilities and/or antennas are located shall be subject to the landscaping requirements 
of the City. 
 
5.8.11.  MAINTENANCE, REPAIR OR MODIFICATION OF EXISTING TOWERS.  All towers 
constructed or under construction on the date of approval of this ordinance may continue in existence as a 
non-conforming structure and may be maintained or repaired without complying with any of the 
requirements of this Section. Non-conforming structures or uses may not be enlarged or the degree of 
nonconformance increased without complying with this Section, including applying for and obtaining a 
Tower Development Permit. Any modification or reconstruction of a tower constructed or under 
construction on the date of approval of this ordinance shall be required to comply with the requirements of 
this Section including applying for and obtaining a Tower Development Permit. Said application shall 
describe and specify all items which do not comply with this Section and may request, subject to final 
review and approval of the City Council, an exemption from compliance as a condition of the Tower 
Development Permit. 
 
5.8.12.  INSPECTIONS.  The City reserves the right to conduct inspection of towers, antenna support 
structures, telecommunications facilities and antenna upon reasonable notice to the tower owner or 
operator to determine compliance with this Section and to prevent structural and equipment failures and 
accidents which may cause damage, injuries or nuisances to the public. Inspections may be made to 
determine compliance with the City’s Building Codes and any other construction standards set forth by 
the City, federal and state law or applicable ANSI standards. Inspections shall be made by either the 
Building Inspector, or a duly appointed independent representative of the City. 
 
5.8.13.  MAINTENANCE.  Towers, antenna support structures, telecommunications facilities and 
antennas shall at all times be kept and maintained in good condition, order and repair so that the same 
does not constitute a nuisance to or a danger to the life or property of any person or the public. 
 
5.8.14.  ABANDONMENT.  If any tower shall cease to be used for a period of one year, the Building 
Inspector shall notify the tower owner that the site will be subject to determination of abandonment. Upon 
issuance of written notice to show cause by the Building Inspector, the tower owner shall have 30 days to 
show preponderance of evidence that the tower has been in use or under repair during the period of 
apparent abandonment. In the event the tower owner fails to show that the tower has been in use or under 
repair during the relevant period, the Building Inspector shall issue a final determination of abandonment 
of the site and the tower owner shall have 75 days thereafter to dismantle and move the tower. In the event 
the tower is not dismantled and removed, the tower shall be declared a public nuisance by the Building 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 98 

Inspector, or his/her designee and a written request shall be directed to the City Attorney to proceed to 
abate said public nuisance pursuant to authority of the Revised Nebraska State Statutes and City of Gering 
codes, and charge the costs thereof against the real estate on which the tower is located or the owner of 
record of the said real estate. 
 
5.8.15.  SATELLITE DISH ANTENNAS, REGULATION.  Upon adoption of this ordinance, 
installation of satellite dish antennas shall be permitted within the zoning jurisdiction of the City of Gering 
only upon compliance with the following criteria and the issuance of a permit: 
1. In residentially zoned districts, satellite dish antennas may not exceed a diameter of 10 feet. 
2. Single family residences may not have more than one satellite dish antenna over 3 feet in diameter. 
3. Multiple family residences with 10 or less dwelling units may have no more than one satellite dish 

antenna over three feet in diameter. Multiple family residences with more than 10 dwelling units may 
have no more than two satellite dish antennas over three feet in diameter. 

4. In residential zoning districts, satellite dish antennas shall not be installed in the required front yard 
setback or side yard setback area. 

5. All satellite dish antennas installed within the zoning jurisdiction of Gering, upon adoption of this 
ordinance, shall be of a neutral color such as black, gray, brown, or such color as will blend with the 
surrounding dominant color in order to camouflage the antenna. 

 
5.8.16.  AMATEUR RADIO TOWERS AND FACILITIES REGULATION.  All amateur radio 
antennas, towers, and associated facilities not in compliance with the provisions for accessory structures 
within individual zoning districts shall comply with the standards of Section 5.8. 
 
5.8.17.  SEVERABILITY.  If any clause, subsection, or any other part of this Section shall be held 
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Section shall not 
be affected thereby but shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
5.9.  SIGN REGULATIONS. 
5.9.1.  ON AND OFF-SITE SIGNS ON INTERSTATE OR FEDERAL PRIMARY HIGHWAYS.  
The erection or maintenance of any advertising sign, display, or device which is visible to the traveled 
way of the National System of Interstate and Defense Highways, and the System of Federal-Aid Primary 
roads of the State of Nebraska as defined by the Nebraska Department of Roads, is hereby prohibited 
unless in compliance with regulations set forth within the Rules and Regulations Relating to the Control of 
Advertising in Areas Adjacent to the Interstate and Federal Aid and Primary Highways; as amended, 
adopted and published by the Nebraska Department of Roads and made a part of these zoning regulations 
by reference, except there is specifically prohibited the construction of any off-site advertising signs, 
displays or devices in the area bounded by the Highway 71 By-Pass and the west boundary of the zoning 
jurisdiction of the City of Gering, Nebraska between Highway 92 (M Street) on the South and Country 
Club Road on the North.  Said prohibition shall apply notwithstanding compliance with regulations set 
forth as amended, adopted and published by the Nebraska Department of Roads.  
 
5.9.2.  ON-SITE SIGNS.  On-site signs not on Interstate or Federal Aid-Primary highways, and erected 
as an on-site sign in those districts where such is permitted, shall conform to the following requirements: 
1. The maximum surface area of all sides of all signs shall not exceed three (3) square feet per lineal foot 

front footage of the lot upon which said signs are located. 
2. The highest point of any free standing or pole sign provided for in this Section shall not extend more 

than thirty (30) feet, measured from ground level at its supports; except that the highest point of any 
on-site sign in the area bounded by the Highway 71 By-Pass and the west boundary of the zoning 
jurisdiction of the City of Gering, Nebraska between Highway 92 (M Street) on the South and Country 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 99 

Club Road on the North shall not extend more than fifteen (15) feet, measured from ground level at its 
supports. 

3. All free standing and pole signs shall be located in an area from the street right-of-way to a point 
fifteen (15) feet beyond the right-of-way.  

4. One Home Occupation sign not exceeding two (2) square feet in area, which is non-illuminated, non-
animated and mounted flat against the wall of the principal building associated with an active home 
occupation is allowed. 

 
5.9.3.  OFF-SITE SIGNS.  Off-site signs not on Interstate or Federal Aid-Primary highways, erected in 
those districts where permitted, shall conform to the following requirements: 
1. Each sign shall have a maximum surface area of eighty (80) square feet; 
2. The highest point of any sign shall not extend more than twenty (20) feet measured from ground level 

at its supports; 
3. Each sign shall be no less than one hundred (100) feet from any other sign erected on the same side of 

a street; 
4. Each sign shall not be closer than fifty (50) feet from a street intersection at grade; 
5. Each sign shall be located in an area from the street or road right-of-way to a point fifteen (15) feet 

beyond the right-of-way. 
6. Each sign permitted under the Nebraska Department of Roads Rules and Regulations of Specific 

Information Business (Logo) Signs may be erected and maintained within the City right-of-way.  The 
rules and regulations were set forth to adopt requirements of Nebraska Revised Statutes 39-634.01 and 
39-634.02 and the federal requirements regulating specific information and business (logo) signs. 

 
5.9.4.  CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT.  All signs proposed for the C-2 Central Business District 
shall comply with the following regulations.  A detailed design sketch of the proposed sign, including 
information indicating the proposed material, color, lighting, size and placement of such sign, shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator.  The Zoning Administrator shall either approve or disapprove said 
application within five (5) business days of its original submission.  Not until such approval is received 
shall a building permit for such sign be issued.  Once such permit is issued, such sign shall be constructed 
in accordance with submitted plans as amended and approved by the City.  All signs shall comply with the 
following requirements: 
1. All signs excluding free standing and pole signs shall be attached to buildings, wall and projecting 

signs shall not extend over more than 2/3 of the sidewalk adjacent to the building. 
2. The gross area of all signs for a single property shall not exceed three (3) square feet for each lineal 

front street foot or 300 square feet, whichever number is smaller. Such signs shall not exceed the top 
of the building, except signs on single story buildings may exceed the height of the top of the building 
but not exceed twenty (20) feet in height from mean curb level.  

3. Minor signs may be printed on an awning or canopy or may be located beneath an awning or canopy if 
such sign is at least seven (7) feet above the ground level and does not exceed an area of six (6) square 
feet per side. 

4. No moving or flashing signs are permitted. Except for electronic animated message signs under the 
following conditions: 
a. The message area of the panel must be oriented toward a local thoroughfare street or highway and 

shall not be readily visible from any existing residence within a 300-foot radius of the sign. 
b.The mode of operation for the panel display shall be limited to the fade in/fade out mode where a 

message appears on the sign, is dissolved or turned off, and another message takes its place, not to 
exceed a change of message or animated image more than six per minute.  The display area of the 
panel shall not be operated to attract the attention of viewers through flashing displays. 

c. The proposed message panel will not degrade traffic safety given its size, height, color, brightness, 
mode of operation and its relationship to surrounding traffic patterns, speeds and roadway geometrics. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 100 

d.The proposed message panel shall be designed as an integral part of a larger sign package for the 
principal land use of the parcel. 

e. No portion of the animation or electronic message panel shall exceed the height limit for the sign in 
the subject district, or 20 feet in height above the average elevation of the surrounding grade, 
whichever is less. 

f. Animated signs permitted by the provisions of this section shall comply with all other sign 
requirements. 

5. Murals are permitted if provisions are made for their maintenance and if they comply with the sign 
size requirements of this section. 

6. Free standing and pole signs are not to extend over 2/3 of the public right-of-way adjacent to property 
line.  (This is interpreted as 2/3 of the public right-of-way left after deducting the street to the curb 
line.) 

7. Temporary signs placed within windows to advertise a particular product or sale for a period not to 
exceed three (3) months and which do not flash or move shall be exempt from all of these regulations. 

8. No trailer mounted or portable signs are allowed. 
 
5.9.5.  EXEMPT SIGNS.  The following types or categories of signs are exempt from the permit provisions 
of these regulations but shall comply with the general rules pertaining to traffic hazards, intersection vision, 
right of way placement or other provisions which may pertain to the public welfare and safety. 
 

5.9.5.A. PERMANENT SIGNS EXEMPT. 
1. Address signs (as required). 
2. Directional or instructional signs, located on-site, which provide internal direction or instruction 

to guide persons. 
3.  Flags.  That are: 

a. Not exceeding 40 square feet in area; 
b. On a maximum pole height of thirty-five (35) feet, or not more than ten (10) feet above the 

roofline of the primary building, whichever is less; 
c. Not located in such a way as to intentionally attract the attention of the public for 

commercial purposes; and 
d. Flown on poles with a maximum of three (3) poles per property, no more than one (1) of 

which may be a corporate or business flag. Corporate or business flag measurements shall 
be included within the maximum sign area total. 

4. Governmental signs for control of traffic, wayfinding and other regulatory purposes and signs of 
public service companies indicating danger and aids to service or safety. 

5. Public notice signs required by governmental bodies authorized for a specific public purpose by 
any law or ordinance and posted by public officers or employees in their line of duty. 

 
5.9.5.B. TEMPORARY SIGNS EXEMPT. 

1. Construction project signs.  One (1) sign not more than eighty (80) square feet in area and fifteen 
(15) in height advertising a site under construction in a commercial or industrial zone may be 
located on said site until construction is completed, whichever is sooner. 

2. Holiday decorations or signs temporarily displayed on traditionally accepted civic, patriotic or 
religious holidays, providing such sign shall be removed within a reasonable time after the 
holiday, but not exceeding thirty (30) days. 

3. Political signs announcing political candidates seeking public office, political parties, and or 
political issues contained on a ballot for an election may be located only on private property, not 
sooner than eight (8) weeks prior to a primary or general election, and shall be removed no more 
than five (5) days following the election. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 101 

4. Real estate signs advertising the sale, lease or rent of the premises upon which the sign is posted.  
The area of such signs shall be limited to sixteen (16) square feet per sign face with a maximum 
of two (2) sign faces.  Only one (1) sign per lot frontage shall be permitted.  Temporary real 
estate signs may be in place until the property sale is finalized.  One (1) sign not more than eighty 
(80) square feet in area and fifteen (15) in height announcing the sale of lots and/or houses in a 
subdivision may be located on said development.  Said sign shall be removed when seventy-five 
(75) percent of the lots have been sold, whichever is sooner. 

5. Special event signs promoting an event or occurrence which is expected to end within a relatively 
short amount of time, shall be allowed in the commercial and industrial zones provided that said 
signs are placed no sooner than two (2) weeks prior to the event or occurrence and are removed 
no more than five (5) days following the event or occurrence.  Said signs shall follow the same 
area, height, and setback requirements for off-site signs as set forth in Section 5.9.3.  

 
5.9.6.  PROHIBITED SIGNS.  It shall be a violation of these regulations to erect, install, place or 
maintain the following signs and attraction getting devices: 
1. Architectural light banding/wrapping (visibly exposed light source). 
2. Attention-attracting devices:  

a. Using lights or illuminations (including spotlights and searchlights) that flash, move, rotate, 
scintillate, blink, flicker or vary in intensity or color; 

b. That are of such intensity or brilliance as to cause glare or impair the vision of motorists, cyclists or 
pedestrians; 

c. That have animated parts intended to attract the attention of the public; 
d. That are inflatable or emit sound or smoke. 

3. Banners / Pennant / Streamers, except as a temporary sign associated with a temporary event or 
activity and used only during the event or activity. 

4. Changeable copy signs without locked vandal proof covers. 
5. Illuminated / Animated signs using methods such as flashing, blinking, oscillating, rotating, or 

intermittent turning on-and-off of any illuminating device (except as noted in Section 5.9.4). 
6. Portable signs designed to be temporarily placed upon the ground or a structure, and not otherwise 

affixed to it, having the capability of being readily moved from one location to another including: 
a. Signs mounted on a trailer, with or without wheels. 
b. A-frame or sandwich board signs (except such signs may be allowed in the C-1or C-2 zoning 

districts). 
c. Umbrellas used for advertising. 
d. Inflatable signs. 
e. Vehicle. Any such sign shall be in violation of this article if the vehicle is parked in the same 

location, easily viewable from a public right-of-way for more than three (3) consecutive days or the 
sign is otherwise determined by the city to be a blatant attempt to circumvent this article. Such 
determinations shall be based upon considerations including, but not limited to size, location, 
persistence, and attention-attracting methods. 

7. Roof signs. 
8. Signs posing traffic or pedestrian hazards. 
9. Snipe signs - signs attached to any public utility pole or structure, street tree, fence, fire hydrant, 

bridge, curb, sidewalk, park bench or other location on public property except those placed by 
agencies of the federal, state or local government. 

10. Wall mounted signs (extending beyond the top any wall or façade except as noted in Section 5.9.4). 
11. Window displays/signs (exterior). 
12. Other signs: 

a. Not specifically exempt or permitted. Any signs or advertising structures which are not specifically 
exempt or permitted in these sign regulations. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 102 

b. Signs without valid permits. It shall be unlawful to construct or maintain a sign or sign structure 
without a valid permit unless otherwise exempted under section 14.04.007. 

c. Noncompliance. Any other sign that does not comply with the terms, conditions or provisions of 
these sign regulations. 

d. Obstruction of egress, openings, ventilation. A sign shall not be erected, constructed, or maintained 
so as to obstruct any fire escape, window, door or other opening or path of ingress and/or egress, or 
so as to prevent free passage from one part thereof. A sign shall not be attached in any form, shape, 
or manner to a fire escape, nor be so placed as to interfere with an opening which is required for 
legal ventilation. 

 
5.9.7.  DEVELOPMENT IDENTIFICATION SIGNS.  Certain types of development involve multiple 
property owners or tenants.  Such developments typically desire a location name / identification sign 
which may or may not incorporate the names of entities located in the development. Applications for a 
development identification sign (i.e. subdivision entry sign, office / business / industrial park entry sign, 
shopping center entry sign) shall be subject to the review of the Planning Commission and approval of the 
City Council.  Said application shall include a site plan, construction drawings, landscape plan, and a 
maintenance plan and any other information deemed necessary by the Planning Commission or City 
Council.  
 
5.10.  SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS. 
It is the purpose of this regulation to promote the safe, effective and efficient use of solar energy. No solar 
panel shall be constructed within zoning jurisdiction unless a permit is approved and issued by the Zoning 
Administrator and such panel is constructed in conformance with applicable building codes and the 
following requirements. For those devices that include electrical, plumbing and heating components, the 
applicable permits shall also be obtained.  
 
5.10.1.  SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS LESS THAN 25 KW.  Solar energy systems less than 25 kW 
shall be permitted as an Accessory Use within any district where the use is listed and allowed. Certain 
requirements as set forth below shall be met:  
1. A description of the project including: Generating capacity, agreement and means of interconnecting 

with the electrical grid unless not connected to electrical grid.  
2. Site layout, including the location of property lines, solar panels, electrical grid, and all related 

accessory structures. This site layout shall include distances and be drawn to scale. 
3. Solar panels shall conform to the required front, side and rear lot setback requirements except as 

provided herein:  
a. A solar panel which is attached to an integral part of the principal building may project two feet 

into the front yard: six feet into the rear yard; and two feet into the side yard.  
b. A solar panel which is freestanding shall be located only in the required rear or side yard provided 

it does not exceed 12 feet in height and not closer than five foot to any existing easement as 
measured from the closest point of the structure including its foundation and anchorage’s nor shall 
the solar panel be located in the required front yard.  

c. The physical structure and connections to existing structures shall conform to the applicable state 
building and electrical codes.  

d. Comply with any and/or all State and Federal regulations if applicable.  
4. Compliance with National Electrical Code: Permit applications for solar energy systems shall be 

accompanied by a line drawing of the electrical components in sufficient detail to allow for a 
determination that the manner of installation conforms to the National Electrical Code.  

 
5.10.2.  SOLAR ENERGY 25 KW OR LARGER.  Commercial/Utility Grade solar energy systems 
shall only be permitted as a Conditional Use within any district where the use is listed and allowed. The 

https://z2.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?doccode=z20000065&z2collection=edwardsville#JD_14.04.007


ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 103 

following requirements and information shall be met and supplied and no later than 30 days prior to 
construction:  
1. The name(s) of project applicant.  
2. The name of the project owner.  
3. The Legal Description and address of the project.  
4. A description of the project including: number, type, nameplate generating capacity, agreement and 

means of interconnecting with the electrical grid.  
5. Site layout, including the location of property lines, easements, wetlands, protected areas, solar panels, 

electrical grid, and all related accessory structures. This site layout shall include distances and be drawn 
to scale and in sufficient detail to allow for a determination that the manner of installation conforms to 
the National Electrical Code.  

6. Certification by an Engineer competent in disciplines of solar energy.  
7. Documentation of land ownership or legal control of the property.  
8. Location of wetlands, designated scenic area, and natural areas within 1,320 feet of the proposed solar 

panels(s)  
9. Vegetation management plan dealing with over-growth and soil stabilization.  
10. The applicant shall supply the local Fire Department with a basic emergency response plan and a map 

showing all shut offs, disconnects, valves, etc.  
11. Evidence provided by Engineer / Architect, or equivalent that there will be no inference with any 

commercial and/or public safety communication towers.  
12. All solar panels shall adhere to the setbacks as measured from centerline of solar panel established in 

the following table.  
Solar Panels  

Property Lines        150 Feet  
Neighboring Dwelling Units*      1320 Feet  
Road Rights-of-Way**       150 Feet  
Other Rights-of-Way        150 Feet  
Wildlife Management Areas and State Recreational Areas   1320 Feet  
Wetlands, USFW Types III, IV, and V     1320 Feet  
Other structures and cemeteries adjacent to the applicant’s sites  150 Feet  
* The setback for dwelling units shall be reciprocal in that no dwelling unit shall be constructed within the same 
distance required for a commercial/utility solar energy system.  
**The setback shall be measured from any future Rights-of-Way if a planned change or expanded Right-of-Way is 
known. 

13. Preexisting solar panels: Not withstanding noncompliance with the requirements of this section, a 
solar panel erected prior to the adoption of these regulations may continue to be utilized so long as it is 
continuously maintained in operational condition.  

14. Proof of Liability insurance and/or bond.  
15. A decommissioning plan including the financial means to implement the plan.  
16. Aggregated Projects:  

a. Aggregated projects may jointly submit a single application and be reviewed under joint 
proceedings, including notices, public hearings, reviews and as appropriate approvals.  

b. Permits may be issued and recorded separately.  
c. Joint projects will be assessed fees as one project.  

 
5.10.3.  SPECIAL SAFETY AND DESIGN STANDARDS.  All Solar Energy Systems shall adhere to 
the following safety and design standards:  
1. All solar energy systems 25 kW or Larger shall have an illuminated sign or signs posted, 911 address, 

warning of “high voltage” and have other emergency contact information. All other signage shall 
comply with the sign regulation found in these regulations. 

2. All structures, building, components, etc. shall be natural or non-obtrusive in color.  



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 104 

3. Feeder Lines: All communications and feeder lines associated with the project distribution system 
installed as part of the solar energy system shall be buried, where physically feasible.  Where obstacles 
to the buried lines create a need to go above ground, these lines may be placed above ground only to 
miss the obstacle. All distribution and/or transmission lines outside of the project distribution system 
may be above ground. 

4. Waste Disposal: Solid and Hazardous wastes, including but not limited to crates, packaging materials, 
damaged or worn parts, as well as used oils and lubricants, shall be removed from the site promptly and 
disposed of in accordance with all applicable local, state and federal regulations.  

5. Discontinuation and Decommissioning:  
a. A solar Energy System shall be considered a discontinued use after one year without energy 

production, unless a plan is developed and submitted to the Zoning Administrator outlining the steps 
and schedule for returning the solar energy system to service. All solar energy system and accessory 
facilities shall be removed to four feet below ground level within 180 days of the discontinuation of 
use. The 180 days may be extended if proof of weather delays is provided.  

b. Each solar energy system shall have a decommissioning plan outlining the anticipated means and 
cost of removing solar energy system at the end of their serviceable life or upon being discontinued 
use. The cost estimates shall be made by a competent party; such as a Professional Engineer, a 
contractor capable of decommissioning or a person with suitable expertise or experience with 
decommissioning. The plan shall also identify the financial resources that will be available to pay for 
decommissioning and removal of the solar energy system and accessory facilities.  

c. A Bond on each solar panel shall be set and issued by a 3rd party of sound financial institution in a 
form reasonably acceptable to the City for decommissioning. The amount will be set after 
Professional Engineer assesses how much it will cost to remove the solar panel and restore the area 
to its original state.  

6. Interference: The applicant shall minimize or mitigate interference with any commercial or public 
safety electromagnetic communications, such as radio, telephone, microwaves, or television signals 
caused by any solar energy system. The applicant shall notify all communication tower operators 
within five miles of the proposed solar energy system location upon application to the county for 
permits.  

7. Roads: Applicants shall:  
a. Identify all county, municipal or township roads to be used for the purpose of transporting solar 

energy systems, substation parts, cement, and/or equipment for construction, operation or 
maintenance of the solar energy system and obtain applicable weight and size permits from the 
impacted jurisdictions prior to construction.  

b. Conduct a pre-construction survey, in coordination with the appropriate jurisdictions to determine 
existing road conditions. The survey shall include photographs and a written agreement to document 
the condition of the public road.  

c. Be responsible for restoring the road(s) and bridges to preconstruction conditions.  
8. Drainage System(s): The applicant shall be responsible for immediate repair of damage to public 

drainage systems stemming from construction, operation or maintenance of the solar energy system.  
9. The City of Gering may require other testing and safeguards such as Soil Testing, water testing, etc. 
 
5.11.  WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS. 
5.11.1.  RESIDENTIAL AND SMALL WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS.  It is the purpose of these 
regulations to promote the safe, effective and efficient use of small wind energy systems installed to 
reduce the on-site consumption of utility supplied electricity and that such systems are appropriately sited 
within Gering’s zoning jurisdiction. 
 

5.11.1.A. DEFINITIONS. The following are defined for the specific use of this section. Additional 
definitions pertaining to wind energy systems are found in Section 5.11.2.1. herein. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 105 

1. Building-Mounted Wind Turbine (BMWT): a wind energy conversion system consisting of a 
wind turbine mounting system and associated control or conversion electronics and which is 
mounted to a building and intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility power. 

2. Decibel (db): The measurement of a sound pressure relative to the logarithmic conversion of the 
sound pressure reference level often set as 0 dbA. In general, this means the quietest sound we 
can hear is near 0 dbA and the loudest we can hear without pain is near 120 dbA. Most sounds in 
the typical day-to-day environment range from 30 dbA to 100 dbA. Normal speech at 3 feet 
averages about 65dbA. 

3. FAA: Federal Aviation Administration. 
4. Micro-Wind Energy Conversion System: shall mean a Wind Energy Conversion System of 1 kW 

nameplate generating capacity or less and utilizing supporting towers of 40 feet or 
5. less. 
6. Residential Wind Energy Conversion System (RWECS): a wind energy conversion system 

consisting of a wind turbine, tower, and associated control or conversion electronics, and which is 
intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility power. A system is considered a 
residential wind energy system only if it supplies electrical power solely for on-site use, except 
that when a parcel on which the system is installed also receives electrical power supplied by a 
utility company, excess electrical power generated and not presently needed for on-site use may 
be used by the utility company. 

7. Small Wind Energy Conversion System (SWECS): a wind energy conversion system consisting 
of a wind turbine, a tower, and associated control or conversion electronics, and which will be 
used primarily to reduce on-site consumption of utility power. Such system has a rated capacity of 
not more than 100 kW and which is intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility 
power. 

8. Total Height: shall mean the highest point, above ground level, reached by a rotor tip or any other 
part of the Wind Energy Conversion System. 

9. Tower Height: shall mean the height above grade of the first fixed portion of the tower, excluding 
the wind turbine itself. 

 
5.11.1.B. REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEM 
(RWECS). Residential wind energy systems may be permitted as a conditional use within any 
district. Certain requirements as set forth below shall be met in addition to any conditions placed on 
the permit by the Planning Commission. See Section 5.11.2.6. for regulations on building mounted 
wind turbines. 
1. Wind energy towers shall to the extent possible blend into the surrounding environment and 

architecture, including painting to reduce visual obtrusiveness. The Zoning Administrator may 
require a photo of an RWECS system of the same model that is the subject of the landowner’s 
application adjacent to a building or some other object illustrating scale (e.g., manufacturer’s 
photo). 

2. RWECS shall not be artificially lighted unless required by the FAA or another appropriate 
authority. 

3. No tower should have any sign, writing, or picture that may be construed as advertising. 
4. RWECS shall not exceed 60 dBA, as measured at the closest property line. The level, however, 

may be exceeded during short-term events such as utility outages and/or severe windstorms. 
5. An RWECS shall be located on a parcel that is at least one-half (1/2) acre in size. 
6. The applicant shall provide information demonstrating that the system will be used primarily to 

off-set on-site consumption of electricity. No residential wind energy system shall be installed 
until evidence has been given that the utility company has been informed of the customer’s intent 
to install an interconnected customer-owned generator. Off-grid systems shall be exempt from 
this requirement. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 106 

7. The minimum distance between the ground and any protruding blades utilized on an RWECS 
shall be 20 feet, as measured at the lowest point on the arc of the rotor. The supporting tower shall 
also be enclosed with a six foot tall fence or the base of the tower shall not be climbable for a 
distance of 12feet. 

8. Compliance with FAA regulations: An RWECS must comply with applicable regulations of the 
Federal Aviation Administration, including any necessary approvals for installations close to 
airports. 

9. Compliance with the International Building Code: Building permit applications for an RWECS 
shall be accompanied by standard drawings of the wind turbine structure, including the tower 
base, and footings. An engineering analysis of the tower showing compliance with the 
International Building Code and certified by a professional engineer licensed in the State of 
Nebraska shall also be submitted. 

10. Compliance with National Electric Code: Building permit applications for an RWECS shall be 
accompanied by a line drawing of the electrical components in sufficient detail to allow for a 
determination that the manner of installation conforms to the National Electric Code. This 
information may be supplied by the manufacturer. 

11. Setbacks 
a. See Section 5.11.2.4 for setbacks. 
b.No part of the wind system structure, including guy-wire anchors, may extend closer than10 

feet to the property lines of the installation site 
12. Tower Height: The applicant shall provide evidence that the proposed height of the RWECS does 

not exceed the height recommended by the manufacturer or distributor of the system. 
a. The maximum tower height shall not exceed the maximum height allowed in the applicable 

zoning district, unless a greater restriction is imposed by FAA regulations. 
 
5.11.1.C. REQUIREMENTS FOR SMALL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEM (SWECS). 
Small wind energy systems shall be permitted as a conditional use within any district where the use is 
listed and allowed. Certain requirements as set forth below shall be met. See Section 5.11.2.6. for 
regulations on building mounted wind turbines. 
1. Small wind energy towers shall maintain a galvanized steel finish, unless FAA standards require 

otherwise, or if the owner is attempting to match the finish on the tower to the surrounding 
environment and architecture, in which case it may be painted to reduce visual obtrusiveness. The 
Zoning Administrator may require a photo of an SWECS system of the same model that is the 
subject of the landowner’s application adjacent to a building or some other object illustrating 
scale (e.g., manufacturer’s photo). 

2. SWECS shall not be artificially lighted unless required by the FAA or another appropriate 
authority. 

3. No tower should have any sign, writing, or picture that may be construed as advertising. 
4. SWECS shall not exceed 60 dBA, as measured at the closest property line. The level, however, 

may be exceeded during short-term events such as utility outages and/or severe windstorms. 
5. An SWECS shall be located on a parcel that is at least three (3) acres in size. 
6. The applicant shall provide information demonstrating that the system will be used primarily to 

off-set on-site consumption of electricity. No residential wind energy system shall be installed 
until evidence has been given that the utility company has been informed of the customer’s intent 
to install an interconnected customer-owned generator. Off-grid systems shall be exempt from 
this requirement. 

7. The minimum distance between the ground and any protruding blades utilized on an SWECS 
shall be 20 feet, as measured at the lowest point on the arc of the rotor. The supporting tower shall 
also be enclosed with a six foot tall fence or the base of the tower shall not be climbable for a 
distance of 12 feet. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 107 

8. Compliance with FAA regulations: An SWECS must comply with applicable regulations of the 
Federal Aviation Administration, including any necessary approvals for installations close to 
airports. 

9. Compliance with the International Building Code: Building permit applications for an SWECS 
shall be accompanied by standard drawings of the wind turbine structure, including the tower 
base, and footings. An engineering analysis of the tower showing compliance with the 
International Building Code and certified by a professional engineer licensed in the State of 
Nebraska shall also be submitted. 

10. Compliance with National Electric Code: Building permit applications for an SWECS shall be 
accompanied by a line drawing of the electrical components in sufficient detail to allow for a 
determination that the manner of installation conforms to the National Electric Code. This 
information may be supplied by the manufacturer. 

11. Setbacks 
a. See Section 5.11.2.4 for setbacks. 
b. No part of the wind system structure, including guy-wire anchors, may extend closer than 10 

feet to the property lines of the installation site. 
12. Tower Height: The applicant shall provide evidence that the proposed height of the SWECS does 

not exceed the height recommended by the manufacturer or distributor of the system. 
a. The maximum tower height shall not exceed the maximum height limitation of the applicable 

zoning district, unless a greater restriction is imposed by FAA regulations. 
 
5.11.2.  COMMERCIAL/UTILITY GRADE WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS.  It is the purpose of these 
regulations to promote the safe, effective and efficient use of commercial/utility grade wind energy 
systems and that such systems are appropriately sited within the zoning jurisdiction of the City of Gering. 
 

5.11.2.A. DEFINITIONS. The following are defined for the specific use of this section. 
1. A-weighted Sound Level (dbA): a measurement of sound pressure level, which has been filtered 

or weighted to progressively de-emphasize the importance of frequency components below 1,000 
Hz and above 5,000 Hz. This reflects the fact that human hearing is less sensitive at low 
frequencies and at extremely high frequencies, relative to the mid-range of the frequency 
spectrum. This area of sensitivity also corresponds to the human speech band. This measurement 
is the most commonly used filter in both industrial noise applications (governed by OSHA) and 
community noise regulations. 

2. Aggregate Project: shall mean projects that are developed and operated in a coordinated fashion, 
but which have multiple entities separately owning one or more of the individual WECS within 
the larger project. Associated infrastructure such as power lines and transformers that service the 
facility may be owned by a separate entity but are also part of the aggregated project. 

3. Applicant: A property owner, or any person or entity acting as an agent for the property owner, in 
an application for a WECS Permit under this Article. 

4. Blade Glint: The intermittent reflection of the sun off the gloss surface of wind turbine blades. 
5. Building-Mounted Wind Turbine (BMWT): a wind energy conversion system consisting of a 

wind turbine mounting system and associated control or conversion electronics and which is 
mounted to a building and intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility power. 

6. Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System (CWECS): an electrical generating facility 
comprised of one or more wind turbines and accessory facilities generating capacity, including 
but not limited to: power lines, transformers, substations and meteorological towers that operate 
by converting the kinetic energy of wind into electrical energy. The energy generated will be used 
by a utility company for off-site use. A wind energy conversion system of equal to or greater than 
100 kW in total name plate generating capacity. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 108 

7. Decibel (db): The measurement of a sound pressure relative to the logarithmic conversion of the 
sound pressure reference level often set as 0 dbA. In general, this means the quietest sound we 
can hear is near 0 dbA and the loudest we can hear without pain is near 120 dbA. Most sounds in 
the typical day-to-day environment range from 30 dbA to 100 dbA. Normal speech at 3 feet 
averages about 65dbA. 

8. FAA: Federal Aviation Administration. 
9. Fall Zone: shall mean the area, defined as the furthest distance from the tower base, in which a 

guyed tower will collapse in the event of a structural failure. This area is less than the total height 
of the structure. 

10. FCC: Federal Communications Commission. 
11. Feeder Line: shall mean any power line that carries electrical power from one or more wind 

turbines or individual transformers associated with individual wind turbines to the point of 
interconnection with the electric power grid, in the case of interconnection with the high voltage 
transmission systems the point of interconnection shall be the substation serving the wind energy 
conversion system. 

12. Furling: A design characteristic of a wind turbine intended to limit its power output in high winds 
by changing the rotor’s plane of rotation to a plane that is not perpendicular to the prevailing wind 
direction. 

13. Hub Height: the distance measured from ground level to the centerline of the rotor. 
14. Ice Throw: Ice build-up that is thrown by the spinning turbine blades. 
15. Meteorological Tower: shall mean, for purposes of this ordinance, a tower, including the tower, 

base plate, anchors, guy cables and hardware, anemometers (wind speed indicators), wind 
direction vanes, booms to hold equipment, data loggers, instrument wiring, and any telemetry 
devices that are used to monitor or transmit wind speed and wind flow characteristics over a 
period of time for either instantaneous wind information or to characterize the wind resource at a 
given location. Meteorological towers do not include towers and equipment used by airports, the 
Nebraska Department of Roads, or other applications to monitor weather conditions. 

16. Micro-Wind Energy Conversion System: shall mean a Wind Energy Conversion System of 1 kW 
nameplate generating capacity or less and utilizing supporting towers of 40 feet or less. 

17. Nacelle: A cover housing that holds all of the generating components of a WECS, such as the 
gearbox, drive train, rotor shaft, and brake assembly. 

18. Operator: The person or entity responsible for the day-to-day operation and maintenance of the 
WECS. 

19. Public Conservation Lands: shall mean land owned in fee title by State or Federal agencies and 
managed specifically for conservation purposes, including but not limited to State Wildlife 
Management Areas, State Parks, Federal Wildlife Refuges and Waterfowl Production Areas. For 
purposes of this ordinance, public conservation lands will also include lands owned in fee title by 
non-profit conservation organizations. Public conservation lands will also include private lands 
upon which conservation easements have been sold to public agencies or non-profit conservation 
organizations. 

20. Pure Tone: A sound whose instantaneous sound pressure is a simple sinusoidal function of the 
time and is characterized by a single frequency or singleness of pitch. For the purpose of these 
regulations, a pure tone shall exist if the one-third octave band sound pressure level in the 
bandwidth of the tone exceeds the arithmetic average of the sound pressure levels on the two 
contiguous one-third octave bands by five db for center frequencies of 500 Hz and above, and 
eight db for center frequencies between 160 and400 Hz, and by 15 db for center frequencies less 
than or equal to 125Hz. 

21. Residential Wind Energy Conversion System (RWECS): a wind energy conversion system 
consisting of a wind turbine, tower, and associated control or conversion electronics, and which is 
intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility power. A system is considered a 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 109 

residential wind energy system only if it supplies electrical power solely for on-site use, except 
that when a parcel on which the system is installed also receives electrical power supplied by a 
utility company, excess electrical power generated and not presently needed for on-site use may 
be used by the utility company. 

22. Rotor: The rotating part of a turbine, including the blades. 
23. Rotor Diameter: shall mean the diameter of the circle described by the moving rotor blades. 
24. Sensitive Receptor: Structures that have occupants on a routine basis and whose occupants could 

be negatively affected by noise, vibration, shadow, or flicker, including those structures intended 
for four season human habitation (whether inhabited or not), public parks, state designated 
wildlife areas, the manicured areas of private recreational establishments such as golf courses or 
the campsites in a state approved campground, schools, daycare centers, elderly care facilities, 
hospitals, places of public assembly, and businesses. 

25. Shadow Flicker: When the blades of an operating wind turbine pass between the sun and an 
observer, casting a readily observable, moving shadow on the observer and his or her immediate 
environment. 

26. Small Wind Energy Conversion System (SWECS): a wind energy conversion system consisting 
of a wind turbine, a tower, and associated control or conversion electronics, and which will be 
used primarily to reduce on-site consumption of utility power. Such system has a rated capacity of 
not more than 100 kW and which is intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility 
power. 

27. Stall Control: A braking mechanism on wind turbines where the rotor blades are bolted onto the 
hub at a fixed angle. The rotor blade profile is aerodynamically designed to ensure that the 
moment the wind speed becomes too high it creates turbulence on the side of the rotor blade 
which is not facing the wind. This stall prevents the lifting force of the rotor blade from acting on 
the rotor. 

28. Substations: shall mean any electrical facility to convert electricity produced by wind turbines to a 
voltage greater than 35,000 (35,000 KV) for interconnection with high voltage transmission lines. 

29. Total Height: shall mean the highest point, above ground level, reached by a rotor tip or any other 
part of the Wind Energy Conversion System. 

30. Tower: shall mean the vertical structures that support the electrical, rotor blades, or 
meteorological equipment. 

31. Tower Height: shall mean the total height of the Wind Energy Conversion System exclusive of 
the rotor blades. 

32. Transmission Line: shall mean the electrical power lines that carry voltages of at least 69,000 
volts (69 KV) and are primarily used to carry electric energy over medium to long distances 
rather than directly interconnecting and supplying electric energy to retail customers. 

33. Turbine, or Wind Turbine: see “Wind Energy Conversion System.” 
34. Upwind Rotor: A design in which the rotor on a wind turbine tower faces into the wind. 
35. Well-designed Braking System: The primary braking system, which uses a mechanical brake, 

pitch-control of the turbine blades, or stall-control to bring the turbine to a stop in such a way that 
stall-induced vibrations/noise area voided. 

36. Wind Energy Conservation System (WECS): shall mean an electrical generating facility 
comprised of one or more wind turbines and accessory facilities, including but not limited to: 
power lines, transformers, substations and meteorological towers that operate by converting the 
kinetic energy of wind into electrical energy. The energy may be used on-site or distributed into 
the electrical grid. 

37. Wind Energy Conversion System (WECS) Facility: An electric generating facility, whose main 
purpose is to supply electricity, consisting of one or more wind turbines and other accessory 
structures and buildings, including substations, meteorological towers, electrical infrastructure, 
transmission lines and other appurtenant structures and facilities. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 110 

38. Wind Turbines: shall mean any piece of electrical generating equipment that converts the kinetic 
energy of blowing wind into electrical energy using airfoils or similar devices to capture the wind. 

 
5.11.2.B. REQUIREMENTS. Commercial/Utility Grade wind energy systems shall be permitted as a 
Conditional Use within any district. Certain requirements as set forth below shall be met in addition 
to any conditions placed on the permit by the Planning Commission. The following requirements and 
information shall be met and supplied: 
1. The name(s) of project applicant. 
2. The name of the project owner. 
3. The legal description and address of the project. 
4. A description of the project of the project including: Number, type, name plate generating 

capacity, tower height, rotor diameter, and total height of all wind turbines and means of 
interconnecting with the electrical grid. 

5. Site layout, including the location of property lines, wind turbines, electrical grid, and all related 
accessory structures. This site layout shall include distances and be drawn to scale. 

6. Engineer’s certification from a professional engineer licensed in the State of Nebraska. 
7. Documentation of land ownership or legal control of the property. 
8. The latitude and longitude of individual wind turbines. 
9. A USGS topographical map, or map with similar data, of the property and surrounding area, 

including any other Wind Energy Conversion System, within 10 rotor distances of the proposed 
CWECS not owned by the applicant. 

10. Location of wetlands, scenic, and natural areas (including river and bluffs) within 1,320 feet of 
the proposed CWECS. 

11. An Acoustical Analysis that certifies that the noise requirements within these regulations can be 
met. 

12. FAA and FCC permit, if necessary. Applicant shall submit permit or evidence that the permit has 
been filed with the appropriate agency. 

13. Location of all known Communication Towers within two miles of the proposed Wind Energy 
Conversion System and evidence that there will be no interference with any such commercial 
and/or public safety communications towers. 

14. Decommissioning Plan as required by this ordinance. 
15. Description of potential impacts on nearby Wind Energy Conversion Systems and wind resources 

on adjacent properties.  
16. A CWECS shall be located on a parcel that is at least ten (10) acres in size. 
17. Setbacks identified as required in Section 5.11.2.4. 
18. There also shall be submitted with the application a copy of the proposed policy of liability 

insurance which will comply with the requirements of Section 150.142 of the City’s Municipal 
Code of Ordinances and Section 5.11.2.11 of these regulations. 
 

5.11.2.C. AGGREGATED PROJECTS. 
1. Aggregated projects may jointly submit a single application and be reviewed under joint 

proceedings, including notices, public hearings, reviews and as appropriate approvals. 
2. Permits may be issued and recorded separately. 
3. Joint projects will be assessed fees as one project. 

 
5.11.2.D. SETBACKS.  All towers shall adhere to the setbacks established in the following table: 

 Wind Turbine–Non Commercial WECS 
(residential & small) 

Wind Turbine – 
Commercial/Utility WECS 

Meteorological Towers 

Property Lines 1.1 times the total height or in an 
Agricultural or Transitional 
Agricultural Districts only. In other 
districts, the setback shall be the 

1.25 times the total height. The greater of: The fall zone, as 
certified by a professional 
engineer, + 10 feet or 1.1 times the 
total height. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 111 

distance of the fall zone, as certified by 
a professional engineer, + 10feet 

Neighboring Dwelling Units*  750 feet The greater of: The fall zone, as 
certified by a professional 
engineer, + 10 feet or 1.1 times the 
total height. 

Road Rights-of-Way** The greater of: The fall zone, as 
certified by a professional engineer, + 
10 feet or one times the total height. 

One times the height. The greater of: The fall zone, as 
certified by a professional 
engineer, + 10 feet or one times 
the total height. 

Other Rights-of-Way The greater of: The fall zone, as 
certified by a professional engineer, + 
10 feet or one times the total height. 

The greater of: The fall zone, as 
certified by a professional 
engineer, + 10 feet or one times 
the total height. 

The greater of: The fall zone, as 
certified by a professional 
engineer, + 10 feet or one times 
the total height. 

Public conservation lands NA 1320 feet 600 feet 
Wetlands, USFW Types III, IV, 
and V 

NA 1320 feet 600 feet 

Other structures NA The greater of: The fall zone, as 
certified by a professional 
engineer, + 10 feet or one times 
the total height. 

The greater of: The fall zone, as 
certified by a professional 
engineer, + 10 feet or one times 
the total height. 

Other existing WECS NA To be considered based on: 
•Relative size of the existing and 
proposed WECS 
•Alignment of the WECS relative 
to the predominant winds 
•Topography 
•Extent of wake 
interference impacts on existing 
WECS 
•Property line setback of existing 
WECS 
•Other setbacks required Waived 
for internal setbacks in multiple 
turbine projects including 
aggregated projects 

 

River / Bluffs NA 1,320feet NA 
 
*The setback for dwelling units shall be reciprocal in that no dwelling unit shall be constructed within the same distance required for a 
commercial/utility Wind Energy Conversion System. 
**The setback shall be measured from any future rights-of-way if a planned change or expanded right-of-way is known. 

 
5.11.2.E. SPECIAL SAFETY AND DESIGN STANDARDS.  All towers shall adhere to the following 
safety and design standards: 
1. Clearance of rotor blades or airfoils must maintain a minimum of 20 feet of clearance between 

their lowest point and the ground. 
2. All CWECS shall have a sign or signs posted on the tower, transformer and substation, warning of 

high voltage. Other signs shall be posted on the turbine with emergency contact information. 
3. All wind turbines, which are a part of a CWECS, shall be installed with a tubular, monopole type 

tower. 
4. Consideration shall be given to painted aviation warnings on all towers less than 200feet. 
5. The design of the nacelles of turbines and towers shall not use designs or construction methods 

that provide perches for avian predators. 
6. Turbine identification: 

a. Each site access road shall be named according to the City street (or county road) naming 
convention; 

b. Each individual turbine shall be designated with a numeric or alphanumeric identifier; 
c. Each individual turbine shall be labeled with its respective identifier and the name of the access 

road it is located along; and 
d. Signage shall be provided at the intersection of each access road with the public right-of-way 

indicating the towers that may be found along that access road, along with subsequent signage 
at each road intersection within the site further indicating the direction to specific towers. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 112 

7. Wind turbines that are not designed in “accordance with proven good engineering practices” shall 
be prohibited. Turbines designed with the following characteristics shall be deemed in “accordance 
with proven good engineering practices:” 
a. at least 3blades; 
b. upwind rotor; 
c. no furling; 
d. tapered and twisted blades; and 
e. a well-designed braking system. 

8. Color and finish: 
a. All wind turbines and towers that are part of a CWECS shall be white, grey or another non-

obtrusive single color. 
b. Blades may be black in order to facilitate deicing. 
c. Finishes shall be matte or non-reflective. 
d. CWECS shall not display advertising, except for reasonable identification of the manufacturer, 

facility owner or operator, which may be placed on the nacelle. 
9. Visual Impact 

a. To provide visual order to a WECS facility, all individual turbines shall have the same number 
of rotor blades and all rotor blades shall spin in the same direction (i.e., clockwise or counter-
clockwise) in relation to the wind. 

b. To promote visual uniformity, all turbines at a similar ground elevation shall have the same 
height from blade tip to the ground. 

c. Distinct groupings or clusters of wind turbines shall be limited to no more than 12 machines per 
cluster. A cluster shall be defined as a grouping of machines that are greater than 1,320 feet (¼ 
mile) from another grouping. 

d. In light wind conditions, turbine rotor blades shall not be kept in a locked position except as 
necessary to meet operational or maintenance requirements; 

e. Except during construction, re-construction or removal, outdoor storage is not permitted within 
the facility boundary except at locations that are screened from view, as shown on the approved 
site plan; 

f. If turbines become inoperable for any reason, they shall be repaired as soon as reasonably 
possible; 

g. To avoid cluttering the skyline, inverters and pendant power cables shall be located inside the 
wind turbine tower, nacelle or structure; 

h. No telecommunications dishes, antennas, cellular telephone repeaters or other similar devices 
shall be attached to wind turbine towers; 

i. The maximum total height of the turbines shall be 355 feet. Greater height, but not in excess of 
400 feet, may be considered on a case by case basis if the applicant can sufficiently demonstrate 
that the increased height will result in increased energy efficiencies thereby reducing the overall 
number of turbines in the project.  However, in all cases, due consideration shall be given to the 
scale of the turbines in relation to the surrounding landscape. 

10. Lighting: 
a. Lighting, including lighting intensity and frequency of strobe, shall adhere to but not exceed 

requirements established by the FAA permits and regulations. 
b. Red strobe lights shall be used during nighttime illumination to reduce impacts on neighboring 

uses and migratory birds. 
c. Red pulsating incandescent lights shall be prohibited. 

11. All signage shall comply with the sign regulations found in these regulations. 
12. All communications and feeder lines installed as part of a CWECS shall be buried, where feasible. 
13. No CWECS shall exceed 50 dbA at the nearest structure or use occupied by humans. 
14. Controls and brakes: 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 113 

a. All WECS shall be equipped with a redundant braking system. This includes both aerodynamic 
overspeed controls (including variable pitch, tip, and other similar systems) and mechanical 
brakes. Mechanical brakes shall be operated in a fail-safe mode. 

b. Stall regulation shall not be considered a sufficient braking system for over speed protection. 
15. Interference. 

a. The applicant shall minimize or mitigate interference with any commercial or public safety 
electromagnetic communications, such as radio, telephone, microwaves, or television signals 
caused by any CWECS. 

b. The applicant shall notify all communication tower operators within five miles of the proposed 
CWECS location upon application to the City for permits. 

16. Roads, applicant shall: 
a. Identify all city, county or townships streets/roads to be used for the purposes of transporting 

CWECS, substation parts, cement, and/or equipment for construction, operation or maintenance 
of the CWECS and obtain applicable weight and size permits from the impacted jurisdictions 
prior to construction. 

b. Conduct a pre-construction survey, in coordination with the appropriate jurisdictions to 
determine existing road conditions. The survey shall include photographs and a written 
agreement to document the condition of the public road/facility. 

c. Be responsible for restoring or paying damages as agreed to by the applicable jurisdiction 
sufficient to restore the road(s) and bridges to preconstruction conditions. 

17. The applicant shall be responsible for immediate repair of damage to public drainage systems 
stemming from construction, operation or maintenance of the CWECS. 

18. Solid and Hazardous wastes, including but not limited to crates, packaging materials, damaged or 
worn parts, as well as used oils and lubricants, shall be removed from the site promptly and 
disposed of in accordance with all applicable local, state and federal regulations. 

 
5.11.2.F. BUILDING-MOUNTABLE WIND TURBINES(BMWT). A BMWT and its essential 
support facilities shall be allowed as a permitted accessory use when attached to the principle structure 
in any zoning district subject to the following: 
1. A simple site plan shall be submitted for each BMWT providing the following information: 
2. Mounting location of the BMWT on the principle structure. 
3. Description of the BMWT height and width, including a photo (if available) or other visual 

representation. 
4. BMWT shall not exceed 60 dBA, as measured at the closest property line. The level, however, 

may be exceeded during short-term events such as utility outages and/or severe windstorms. 
5. BMWT shall comply with the maximum height requirement of the zoning district in which it is 

located. Applicants proposing an installation higher than allowed by the zoning district in which it 
will be located may apply for a variance to the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

6. No BMWT may occupy, encroach or “overhang” any public right-of-way without the expressed 
approval of the City of Gering. 

7. Each BMWT installation shall require a separate building permit. 
 
5.11.2.G. NOISE AND SHADOW FLICKER 
1. Audible sound from a WECS facility shall not exceed 50 dbA if it is determined a pure tone is 

generated by the facility, as measured at the exterior of any occupied building on a non-
participating landowner's property. Methods for measuring and reporting acoustic emissions from 
the WECS facility shall be equal to or exceed the minimum standards for precision described in 
AWEA Standard 2.1 (1989) titled Procedures for the Measurement and Reporting of Acoustic 
Emissions from Wind Turbine Generation Systems Volume I: First Tier. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 114 

2. The Facility owner and Operator shall make reasonable efforts to minimize shadow flicker to any 
occupied building on a non-participating landowner's property. 

 
5.11.2.H. USE OF PUBLIC ROADS; BOND REQUIRED. The property owner of a CWECS facility 
shall be responsible for extraordinary maintenance and restoration of all City roads leading to the 
project site that may be damaged during construction or due to activities involving the CWECS 
facility unless the property owner can prove that operation of the CWECS facility was not the cause of 
the roadway damage. All maintenance and restoration of roads shall be done with the approval of and 
to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director. The following information shall be submitted along 
with an application for a CWECS Permit: 
1. Detailed maps of access and haul routes; 
2. If weight and size permits are required by the Nebraska Department of Roads, a pre-construction 

baseline survey shall be provided to document and determine existing road conditions; 
3. A report on potential road damage that may result from the construction and maintenance of the 

CWECS facility; 
4. If, in the discretion of the Public Works Department, road damage may occur, a road damage 

mitigation plan and/or long-term road maintenance agreement shall be submitted, which shall 
include a bond, escrow, security agreement, or other form of guarantee approved by the City 
Attorney, in an amount determined by the Public Works Director to be sufficient to guarantee the 
necessary restoration or extraordinary maintenance required due to the construction or operation of 
the CWECS facility; and 

5. If impacts may occur to public roads in other jurisdictions, the Applicant shall give notice to such 
other jurisdictions, providing information regarding road impacts, and submit to the Public Works 
Department proof that such notice was given. 

 
5.11.2.I. DECOMMISSIONING PLAN; BOND REQUIRED. 
1. The facility owner and operator shall, at its expense, complete decommissioning of the CWECS 

facility, or individual turbines, within six months after the end of the useful life of the facility or 
individual turbines. The CWECS facility or individual turbines will presume to be at the end of 
their useful life if no electricity is generated for a continuous period of 12 months. A 
decommissioning plan shall be submitted with an application fora CWECS permit, which shall 
document: 
a. The removal of turbines, buildings, cabling, electrical components, roads, foundations to a 

depth of four feet within 180days; 
b. Grading and re-seeding all disturbed earth; 
c. A report prepared by an independent professional engineer licensed in the State of Nebraska 

that estimates the total cost of decommissioning ("Decommissioning Costs") without regard to 
salvage value of the equipment, and the cost of decommissioning net salvage value of the 
equipment ("Net Decommissioning Costs"). Said estimates shall be submitted to the City of 
Gering after the first year of operation and every fifth year thereafter. 

d. The facility owner or operator shall post and maintain Decommissioning Funds in an amount 
equal to Net Decommissioning Costs, provided, at no point shall Decommissioning Funds be 
less than 25 percent of Decommissioning Costs. The Decommissioning Funds shall be posted 
and maintained as a bond, escrow, security agreement, or other form of guarantee approved by 
the City Attorney. 

e. If the facility owner or operator fails to complete decommissioning within the period prescribed 
herein, then the landowner shall have six months to complete decommissioning. 

f. If neither the facility owner or operator, nor the landowner complete decommissioning within 
the periods prescribed herein, then the City of Gering may take such measures as necessary to 
complete decommissioning. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 115 

g. An easement allowing the City of Gering access to the project site, pursuant to reasonable 
notice, to effect or complete decommissioning. 

h. The escrow agent shall release the Decommissioning Funds when the facility owner or operator 
has demonstrated and the City of Gering concurs that decommissioning has been satisfactorily 
completed, or upon written approval of the City of Gering in order to implement the 
decommissioning plan. 

i. An agreement that the City of Gering is granted the right to seek injunctive relief to effect or 
complete decommissioning, as well as the right to seek reimbursement from the facility owner 
or operator, or property owner, for decommissioning costs in excess of the amount guaranteed, 
and to file a lien against any real estate owned by the facility owner or operator, or property 
owner, or in which they have an interest, for the amount of the excess, and to take all steps 
allowed to enforce such lien. 

2. Financial provisions shall not be so onerous as to render CWECS facilities unfeasible in the City 
of Gering. 

 
5.11.2.J. REPAIR; ABANDONMENT; REMOVAL SMALL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION 
SYSTEMS. Any SWECS found to be unsafe by the Building Official shall be repaired by the owner to 
meet federal, state and local safety standards, or removed within six months. If any SWECS is not 
operated for a continuous period of 12 months, the City shall notify the landowner by registered mail 
that such SWECS is deemed abandoned and provide 45 days for a response. In their response, the 
landowner shall set forth reasons for the operational difficulty and provide a timetable for corrective 
action not exceeding six months. If the corrective action is not completed with six months, the City 
shall notify the landowner that such SWECS shall be removed within 12 days of receipt of the notice. 
 
5.11.2.K. LIABILITY INSURANCE. For each CWECS facility, there shall be maintained a current 
general liability policy covering bodily injury and property damage with limits of at least $1 million 
per occurrence and $1million in the aggregate. Copies of such certificates shall be made available to 
the City of Gering upon request. 
 

5.12.  MEDICAL CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS. 
5.12.1.  STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND INTENT. 
In order to balance the various interests and manage the effects medical cannabis establishments have on 
adjacent land uses and to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of the city, the City 
Council adopts the following regulations, recognizing that it has a great interest in the present and future 
character of the city's residential and commercial neighborhoods. 
 
5.12.2.  DEFINITIONS. 
Unless an alternative definition is explicitly stated in this section, this chapter utilizes the definitions for 
medical cannabis related terms which are defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 71-24,104 and 71-24,107. 

1. "Medical Cannabis (or Medical Marijuana)" means cannabis for medical purposes as defined in 
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-24,107. 

2. "Medical Cannabis Cultivator" means a registered establishment licensed to cultivate and process 
cannabis plants for sale and transport to dispensaries, product manufacturers, and to other 
cultivators, but cannot transfer cannabis plants or cannabis products to qualified patients or 
caregivers. 

3. "Medical Cannabis Dispensary" means a registered establishment licensed to dispense medical 
cannabis to qualified patients or caregivers in accordance with the Nebraska Medical Cannabis 
Regulation Act. 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 116 

4. "Medical Cannabis Establishment" means a medical cannabis cultivator, medical cannabis product 
manufacturer, medical cannabis dispensary, or medical cannabis transporter as those terms are 
defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 71-24,104 and 71-24,107 and Title 238 NAC 1. 

5. "Medical Cannabis Product Manufacturer" means a registered establishment licensed to process 
cannabis, conduct extractions, and manufacture cannabis products for sale or transfer to 
dispensaries, but cannot sell or transfer cannabis plants or cannabis products to qualified patients 
or caregivers. 

6. "Medical Cannabis Products" means products that contain medical cannabis or an extract thereof 
and are intended for use or consumption by humans for medical purposes, including edible 
cannabis products, beverages, topical products, ointments, oils, and tinctures, subject to the 
allowable and unallowable products specified in Title 238 NAC 1. 

7. "Medical Cannabis Transporter" means a registered establishment licensed to transport cannabis, 
cannabis products, and cannabis accessories between medical cannabis licensees, provide logistical 
services for medical cannabis licensees, or store cannabis. 

8. "Covered Location" means any school, childcare center or child day care, church, or hospital. 
9. "Residence" means any dwelling unit intended for human habitation, including single-family 

homes, multi-family units, apartments, and other residential structures as defined in the City of 
Gering Zoning Ordinance. 

 
5.12.3.  MEDICAL CANNABIS CULTIVATORS. 
A medical cannabis cultivator, in addition to the definitions and requirements in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 71-
24,104 and 71-24,107 and Title 238 NAC 1, is further defined as a legally licensed entity that acquires, 
possesses, cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells medical cannabis and related supplies 
to a medical cannabis establishment. All medical cannabis cultivators must comply with the licensing, 
operational, record-keeping, and other requirements set forth in Title 238 NAC 1, including but not 
limited to residency requirements, fingerprinting, prohibited persons, location restrictions, and 
management standards. 
 
5.12.4.  MEDICAL CANNABIS PRODUCT MANUFACTURERS. 
A medical cannabis product manufacturer, in addition to the definitions and requirements in Neb. Rev. 
Stat. §§ 71-24,104 and 71-24,107 and Title 238 NAC 1, is further defined as a legally licensed entity that 
acquires, possesses, manufactures, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells medical cannabis 
products to a medical cannabis dispensary. All medical cannabis product manufacturers must comply with 
the licensing, operational, record-keeping, packaging, labeling, and other requirements set forth in Title 
238 NAC 1, including but not limited to residency requirements, fingerprinting, prohibited persons, 
location restrictions, and management standards. 
 
5.12.5.  MEDICAL CANNABIS DISPENSARIES. 
A medical cannabis dispensary, in addition to the definitions and requirements in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 71-
24,104 and 71-24,107 and Title 238 NAC 1, is further defined as a legally licensed entity that acquires, 
possesses, stores, delivers, transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or dispenses medical cannabis, medical 
cannabis products, paraphernalia, or related supplies and educational materials to qualified patients or 
caregivers. All medical cannabis dispensaries must comply with the licensing, operational, record-
keeping, sales restrictions, quantity limits, allowable products, and other requirements set forth in Title 
238 NAC 1, including but not limited to residency requirements, fingerprinting, prohibited persons, 
location restrictions, management standards, and limits on the number of licenses per judicial district. 
 
5.12.6.  MEDICAL CANNABIS TRANSPORTERS. 
A medical cannabis transporter, in addition to the definitions and requirements in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 71-
24,104 and 71-24,107 and Title 238 NAC 1, is further defined as a legally licensed entity that transports 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 117 

medical cannabis, medical cannabis products, and cannabis accessories between medical cannabis 
licensees, provides logistical services, or stores medical cannabis. All medical cannabis transporters must 
comply with the licensing, operational, record-keeping, manifest, vehicle, driver, and other requirements 
set forth in Title 238 NAC 1, including but not limited to residency requirements, fingerprinting, 
prohibited persons, location restrictions, and management standards. 
 
5.12.7.  PERMITTED ZONING DISTRICTS FOR MEDICAL CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS. 
Medical cannabis establishments are permitted only in areas so designated in Section 3.11 Land Use 
Table. 
 
5.12.8.  DISTANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR MEDICAL CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS. 
No medical cannabis establishment may be located or operate within one thousand (1,000) feet of any 
covered location or within five hundred (500) feet of any residence. 
 
5.12.9.  MEASUREMENTS FOR DISTANCE REQUIREMENTS. 
One thousand (1,000) feet and five hundred (500) feet distances required herein will be measured in a 
straight line from the nearest property line of the parcel on which the covered location or residence is 
located to the nearest property line of the parcel on which the licensed premises of the medical cannabis 
establishment is located. 
 
5.12.10.  OTHER LOCATIONAL REQUIREMENTS. 
No medical cannabis establishment shall relocate from the place specified in its state license. Vertical 
licensing is prohibited, and no entity may possess more than one license type. All operations must comply 
with state restrictions on minors, consumption on premises, and employee qualifications. 
 
5.12.11.  UNLICENSED MEDICAL CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS. 
Unlicensed medical cannabis establishments are prohibited from being located or operating in any zoning 
district. 
 
5.12.12.  OTHER LAWS. 
All medical cannabis establishments shall be in compliance with the Nebraska Medical Cannabis 
Regulation Act (Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 71-24,101 et seq.) and Title 238 NAC 1. If the state adopts stricter 
regulations governing medical cannabis establishments than those set forth herein, the stricter regulation 
shall control the establishment or operation of any medical cannabis establishment within the City of 
Gering. Medical cannabis establishments shall remain in compliance with applicable federal, state, and 
local laws and building codes (including but not limited to the prevailing building, plumbing, electrical, 
mechanical, fuel gas, fire code, and property maintenance code adopted by the City of Gering). 
 
5.12.13.  PENALTIES. 
It is unlawful to own, manage, or operate a medical cannabis establishment in zoning districts other than 
the zoning district permitted by this article or in violation of any distance or locational requirements 
herein. Any person who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, or refuses to comply with any provisions of 
this ordinance, any requirement, provision, or regulation of this ordinance, or who fails to perform any act 
or duty required by this ordinance, or who violates any lawful order issued by the City, or who violates 
any condition, limitation, safeguard, or requirement established in connection with any medical cannabis 
establishment shall be fined not more than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for each violation nor more 
than thirty (30) days imprisonment for each violation.  Each calendar day a violation occurs shall be 
considered a separate offense. 
Severability. The provisions of this ordinance are severable. If any provision of this ordinance or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect 



ARTICLE 5. SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS 
 

08/10/2020 118 

other provisions or applications of this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision 
or application. 
 
 

   ________________________________________ 
     Kent E. Ewing, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Kathleen Welfl, City Clerk 
 
 





TITLE 238  NEBRASKA MEDICAL CANNABIS COMMISSION 
 
CHAPTER 1  REGISTERED CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS 
 
 
001.  SCOPE AND AUTHORITY. These regulations implement the Nebraska Medical Cannabis 
Regulation Act as authorized by Nebraska Revised Statute (Neb. Rev. Stat.) § 71-24,111.  
 
002.  DEFINITIONS. The definitions found in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-24,104 and § 71-24,107 and 
the following definitions apply: 
 

002.01 COVERED LOCATION. Covered location means any school, childcare center or child 
day care, church or hospital. 

 
002.02  CULTIVATOR. Cultivator means a registered establishment licensed to cultivate and 
process cannabis plants for sale and transport to dispensaries, product manufacturers, and 
to other cultivators, but cannot transfer cannabis plants or cannabis products to qualified 
patients or caregivers. 
 
002.03  DISPENSARY. Dispensary means a registered establishment licensed to possess, 
sell or transfer medical cannabis to qualified patients or caregivers. 
 
002.04  LICENSE. License means a registration granted by the Nebraska Medical Cannabis 
Commission in accordance with the Nebraska medical Cannabis Regulation Act. 
 
002.05  PRODUCT MANUFACTURER. Product Manufacturer means a registered 
establishment license to process cannabis, conduct extractions, and manufacture cannabis 
products for sale or transfer to dispensaries, but cannot sell or transfer cannabis plants or 
cannabis products to qualified patients or caregivers.   
 
002.06  TRANSPORTER. Transporter means a registered establishment licensed to transport 
cannabis, cannabis products, and cannabis accessories between medical cannabis licensees, 
provide logistical services for medical cannabis licensees, or store cannabis. 

 
003.  DISPENSARY LICENSE APPLICATION.  
 

003.01  VERTICLE LICENSING. Vertical licensing is not permitted. An applicant may not 
possess more than one license type authorized by this chapter. 
 
003.02  FINGER PRINTING. An applicant for initial issuance of any license under this Chapter 
shall also submit two legible sets of fingerprints to be furnished for every person included in 
the application to the Federal Bureau of Investigation through the Nebraska State Patrol for a 
national criminal history record information check and fee for such record check payable to 
the patrol. The applicant shall authorize the release of the national criminal history record 
information check to the commission. 
 
003.03  RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS. The following residency and citizenship 
requirements apply to any licensee applicant: 



(A)  At least fifty-one (51%) percent of the ownership of the applicant must be comprised 
of natural person(s) who have been residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding 
years and a United States citizen; and  

(B) It shall be unlawful to operate as a licensee unless at least fifty-one (51%) percent of 
the ownership of the licensee is comprised of natural persons who have been 
residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding years and be United States 
citizen(s).  

 
003.04  REQUIRED INFORMATION. An application shall include the following: 

(A) The name and address of the applicant and if applicable, the applicant’s officers, 
directors, or managers;  

(B) A statement that the applicant and the applicant’s officers, directors, or managers 
satisfy the residency requirements provided in this chapter, and none have a 
disqualifying conviction;  

(C) The premises for which a license is desired, designating the premises by street and 
number, if practicable, or by such other description as to definitively locate the 
premises; 

(D) The name of the owner of the premises upon which the business licensed is to be 
operated; 

(E) Certification of approval for the registered cannabis establishment by the local health 
department and either the village board, city council, or county board and statement 
providing that the proposed registered cannabis establishment meets all local 
requirements if any; and 

(F) Any additional requirements based on the type of license the applicant is applying for 
as set forth in this chapter. 

 
003.05  FALSE STATEMENTS. If any false statement is made in any part of the application 
the license may be denied or revoked.  

 
003.06  PROHIBITED PERSONS. A license shall not be issued to or held by: 

(A) Any person who has been convicted of any felony or any controlled substance related 
offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 

(B) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have been convicted of any felony 
or any controlled substance related offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 

(C) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have had a license or permit 
suspended or revoked pursuant to these regulations; 

(D) A person under eighteen years of age; 
(E) Any state, county, municipality, or other political subdivision, any branch, department, 

agency, or subdivision of any of the foregoing, or any corporation or other body 
established by law to carry out any government function; or 

(F) A health care practitioner who has issued one or more written recommendations in 
the preceding five years. 

 
003.07  APPLICATION HEARING. The commission may hold a hearing on any application 
for a license at its own discretion.  
 
003.08  LICENSE EXPIRATION. A license granted by the commission expires two years from 
the date of issuance. 



003.09  LOCATION. No dispensary license will be issued for any premises located within one 
thousand feet of any school, daycare, church or hospital. Except that this subsection shall not 
apply to any licensee operating an established registered cannabis establishment that was in 
operation prior to the covered location being established within one thousand feet of such 
establishment. One thousand feet will be measured in a straight line from the nearest property 
line of the covered location to the nearest perimeter wall of the licensed premises.  
 
003.10  LICENSEE RELOCATION. A licensee shall not relocate a registered cannabis 
establishment from the place specified in the license. 
 
003.11  LICENSE TRANSFER. Licenses are non-transferrable. 
 
003.12  NUMBER OF LICENSES ALLOWED. No more than one (1) dispensary license shall 
be issued in any one District Court Judicial District as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 24-301.02. 

 
004.  CULTIVATOR LICENSE APPLICATION. 
 

004.01  VERTICLE LICENSING. Vertical licensing is not permitted. An applicant may not 
possess more than one license type authorized by this chapter. 
 
004.02  FINGER PRINTING. An applicant for initial issuance of any license under this Chapter 
shall also submit two legible sets of fingerprints to be furnished for every person included in 
the application to the Federal Bureau of Investigation through the Nebraska State Patrol for a 
national criminal history record information check and fee for such record check payable to 
the patrol. The applicant shall authorize the release of the national criminal history record 
information check to the commission. 
 
004.03  RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS. The following residency and citizenship 
requirements apply to any licensee applicant: 

(A)  At least fifty-one (51%) percent of the ownership of the applicant must be comprised 
of natural person(s) who have been residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding 
years and a United States citizen; and  

(B) It shall be unlawful to operate as a licensee unless at least fifty-one (51%) percent of 
the ownership of the licensee is comprised of natural persons who have been 
residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding years and be United States 
citizen(s).  

 
004.04  REQUIRED INFORMATION. An application shall include the following: 

(A) The name and address of the applicant and if applicable, the applicant’s officers, 
directors, or managers;  

(B) A statement that the applicant and the applicant’s officers, directors, or managers 
satisfy the residency requirements provided in this chapter, and none have a 
disqualifying conviction;  

(C) The premises for which a license is desired, designating the premises by street and 
number, if practicable, or by such other description as to definitively locate the 
premises; 

(D) The name of the owner of the premises upon which the business licensed is to be 
operated; 



(E) Certification of approval for the registered cannabis establishment by the local health 
department and either the village board, city council, or county board and statement 
providing that the proposed registered cannabis establishment meets all local 
requirements if any; and 

(F) Any additional requirements based on the type of license the applicant is applying for 
as set forth in this chapter. 

 
004.05  FALSE STATEMENTS. If any false statement is made in any part of the application 
the license may be denied or revoked.  

 
004.06  PROHIBITED PERSONS. A license shall not be issued to or held by: 

(A) Any person who has been convicted of any felony or any controlled substance related 
offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 

(B) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have been convicted of any felony 
or any controlled substance related offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 

(C) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have had a license or permit 
suspended or revoked pursuant to these regulations; 

(D) A person under eighteen years of age; 
(E) Any state, county, municipality, or other political subdivision, any branch, department, 

agency, or subdivision of any of the foregoing, or any corporation or other body 
established by law to carry out any government function; or 

(F) A health care practitioner who has issued one or more written recommendations in 
the preceding five years. 

 
004.07  APPLICATION HEARING. The commission may hold a hearing on any application 
for a license at its own discretion.  
 
004.08  LICENSE EXPIRATION. A license granted by the commission expires two years from 
the date of issuance. 
 
004.09  LOCATION. No cultivator license will be issued for any premises located within one 
thousand feet of any school, daycare, church or hospital. Except that this subsection shall not 
apply to any licensee operating an established registered cannabis establishment that was in 
operation prior to the covered location being established within one thousand feet of such 
establishment. One thousand feet will be measured in a straight line from the nearest property 
line of the covered location to the nearest perimeter wall of the licensed premises.  

 
004.10  LICENSEE RELOCATION. A licensee shall not relocate a registered cannabis 
establishment from the place specified in the license. 
 
004.11  LICENSE TRANSFER. Licenses are non-transferrable. 

 
005.  PRODUCT MANUFACTURER LICENSE APPLICATION. 
 

005.01  VERTICLE LICENSING. Vertical licensing is not permitted. An applicant may not 
possess more than one license type authorized by this chapter. 
 



005.02  FINGER PRINTING. An applicant for initial issuance of any license under this Chapter 
shall also submit two legible sets of fingerprints to be furnished for every person included in 
the application to the Federal Bureau of Investigation through the Nebraska State Patrol for a 
national criminal history record information check and fee for such record check payable to 
the patrol. The applicant shall authorize the release of the national criminal history record 
information check to the commission. 
 
005.03  RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS. The following residency and citizenship 
requirements apply to any licensee applicant: 

(A)  At least fifty-one (51%) percent of the ownership of the applicant must be comprised 
of natural person(s) who have been residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding 
years and a United States citizen; and  

(B) It shall be unlawful to operate as a licensee unless at least fifty-one (51%) percent of 
the ownership of the licensee is comprised of natural persons who have been 
residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding years and be United States 
citizen(s).  

 
005.04  REQUIRED INFORMATION. An application shall include the following: 

(A) The name and address of the applicant and if applicable, the applicant’s officers, 
directors, or managers;  

(B) A statement that the applicant and the applicant’s officers, directors, or managers 
satisfy the residency requirements provided in this chapter, and none have a 
disqualifying conviction;  

(C) The premises for which a license is desired, designating the premises by street and 
number, if practicable, or by such other description as to definitively locate the 
premises; 

(D) The name of the owner of the premises upon which the business licensed is to be 
operated; 

(E) Certification of approval for the registered cannabis establishment by the local health 
department and either the village board, city council, or county board and statement 
providing that the proposed registered cannabis establishment meets all local 
requirements if any; and 

(F) Any additional requirements based on the type of license the applicant is applying for 
as set forth in this chapter. 

 
005.05  FALSE STATEMENTS. If any false statement is made in any part of the application 
the license may be denied or revoked.  

 
005.06  PROHIBITED PERSONS. A license shall not be issued to or held by: 

(A) Any person who has been convicted of any felony or any controlled substance related 
offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 

(B) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have been convicted of any felony 
or any controlled substance related offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 

(C) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have had a license or permit 
suspended or revoked pursuant to these regulations; 

(D) A person under eighteen years of age; 



(E) Any state, county, municipality, or other political subdivision, any branch, department, 
agency, or subdivision of any of the foregoing, or any corporation or other body 
established by law to carry out any government function; or 

(F) A health care practitioner who has issued one or more written recommendations in 
the preceding five years. 

 
005.07  APPLICATION HEARING. The commission may hold a hearing on any application 
for a license at its own discretion.  
 
005.08  LICENSE EXPIRATION. A license granted by the commission expires two years from 
the date of issuance. 
 
005.09  LOCATION. No Manufacturer license will be issued for any premises located within 
one thousand feet of any school, daycare, church or hospital. Except that this subsection shall 
not apply to any licensee operating an established registered cannabis establishment that 
was in operation prior to the covered location being established within one thousand feet of 
such establishment. One thousand feet will be measured in a straight line from the nearest 
property line of the covered location to the nearest perimeter wall of the licensed premises.  
 
005.10  LICENSEE RELOCATION. A licensee shall not relocate a registered cannabis 
establishment from the place specified in the license. 
 
005.11  LICENSE TRANSFER. Licenses are non-transferrable. 

 
006.  TRANSPORTER LICENSE APPLICATION.  
 

006.01  VERTICLE LICENSING. Vertical licensing is not permitted. An applicant may not 
possess more than one license type authorized by this chapter. 
 
006.02  FINGER PRINTING. An applicant for initial issuance of any license under this Chapter 
shall also submit two legible sets of fingerprints to be furnished for every person included in 
the application to the Federal Bureau of Investigation through the Nebraska State Patrol for a 
national criminal history record information check and fee for such record check payable to 
the patrol. The applicant shall authorize the release of the national criminal history record 
information check to the commission. 
 
006.03  RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS. The following residency and citizenship 
requirements apply to any licensee applicant: 

(A)  At least fifty-one (51%) percent of the ownership of the applicant must be comprised 
of natural person(s) who have been residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding 
years and a United States citizen; and  

(B) It shall be unlawful to operate as a licensee unless at least fifty-one (51%) percent of 
the ownership of the licensee is comprised of natural persons who have been 
residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding years and be United States 
citizen(s).  

 
006.04  REQUIRED INFORMATION. An application shall include the following: 



(A) The name and address of the applicant and if applicable, the applicant’s officers, 
directors, or managers;  

(B) A statement that the applicant and the applicant’s officers, directors, or managers 
satisfy the residency requirements provided in this chapter, and none have a 
disqualifying conviction;  

(C) The premises for which a license is desired, designating the premises by street and 
number, if practicable, or by such other description as to definitively locate the 
premises; 

(D) The name of the owner of the premises upon which the business licensed is to be 
operated; 

(E) Certification of approval for the registered cannabis establishment by the local health 
department and either the village board, city council, or county board and statement 
providing that the proposed registered cannabis establishment meets all local 
requirements if any; and 

(F) Any additional requirements based on the type of license the applicant is applying for 
as set forth in this chapter. 

 
006.05  FALSE STATEMENTS. If any false statement is made in any part of the application 
the license may be denied or revoked.  
 
006.06  PROHIBITED PERSONS. A license shall not be issued to or held by: 

(A) Any person who has been convicted of any felony or any controlled substance related 
offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 

(B) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have been convicted of any felony 
or any controlled substance related offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 

(C) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have had a license or permit 
suspended or revoked pursuant to these regulations; 

(D) A person under eighteen years of age; 
(E) Any state, county, municipality, or other political subdivision, any branch, department, 

agency, or subdivision of any of the foregoing, or any corporation or other body 
established by law to carry out any government function; or 

(F) A health care practitioner who has issued one or more written recommendations in 
the preceding five years. 

 
006.07  APPLICATION HEARING. The commission may hold a hearing on any application 
for a license at its own discretion.  
 
006.08  LICENSE EXPIRATION. A license granted by the commission expires two years from 
the date of issuance. 
 
006.09  LOCATION. No Transporter license will be issued for any premises located within one 
thousand feet of any school, daycare, church or hospital. Except that this subsection shall not 
apply to any licensee operating an established registered cannabis establishment that was in 
operation prior to the covered location being established within one thousand feet of such 
establishment. One thousand feet will be measured in a straight line from the nearest property 
line of the covered location to the nearest perimeter wall of the licensed premises.  

 



006.10  LICENSEE RELOCATION. A licensee shall not relocate a registered cannabis 
establishment from the place specified in the license. 
 
006.11  LICENSE TRANSFER. Licenses are non-transferrable. 
 

007.  LICENSE RENEWAL FOR ALL LICENSE TYPES. 
 

007.01  RENEWAL APPLICATION PROCESS. A licensee may apply for renewal beginning 
ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of an existing license.  

 
007.02  FINGER PRINTING. An applicant for renewal of any license under this Chapter shall 
also submit two legible sets of fingerprints to be furnished for every person included in the 
application to the Federal Bureau of Investigation through the Nebraska State Patrol for a 
national criminal history record information check and fee for such record check payable to 
the patrol. The applicant shall authorize the release of the national criminal history record 
information check to the commission. 
 
007.03 RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS. The following residency and citizenship 
requirements apply to any licensee renewal applicant: 

(A)  At least fifty-one (51%) percent of the ownership of the applicant must be comprised 
of natural person(s) who have been residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding 
years and a United States citizen; and  

(B) It shall be unlawful to operate as a licensee unless at least fifty-one (51%) percent of 
the ownership of the licensee is comprised of natural persons who have been 
residents of Nebraska for at least four preceding years and be United States 
citizen(s).  

 
007.04  REQUIRED INFORMATION. An application for any type of license renewal shall 
include the following: 

(A) The name and address of the applicant and if applicable, the applicant’s officers, 
directors, or managers;  

(B) A statement that the applicant and the applicant’s officers, directors, or managers 
satisfy the residency requirements provided in this chapter, and none have a 
disqualifying conviction;  

(C) The premises for which a license is desired, designating the premises by street and 
number, if practicable, or by such other description as to definitively locate the 
premises; 

(D) The name of the owner of the premises upon which the business licensed is to be 
operated; 

(E) Certification of approval for the registered cannabis establishment by the local health 
department and either the village board, city council, or county board and statement 
providing that the proposed registered cannabis establishment meets all local 
requirements if any; and 

(F) Any additional requirements based on the type of license the applicant is applying for 
as set forth in this chapter. 

 
007.05  FALSE STATEMENTS. If any false statement is made in any part of the renewal 
application the license may be denied or revoked.  



007.06  PROHIBITED PERSONS. A license shall not be granted to, renewed to or held by: 
(A) Any person who has been convicted of any felony or any controlled substance related 

offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 
(B) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have been convicted of any felony 

or any controlled substance related offense within the preceding ten (10) years; 
(C) An entity if any of its officers, directors, or owners have had a license or permit 

suspended or revoked pursuant to these regulations; 
(D) A person under eighteen years of age; 
(E) Any state, county, municipality, or other political subdivision, any branch, department, 

agency, or subdivision of any of the foregoing, or any corporation or other body 
established by law to carry out any government function; or 

(F) A health care practitioner who has issued one or more written recommendations in 
the preceding five years. 

 
007.07  APPLICATION HEARING. The commission may hold a hearing on any application 
for renewal at its own discretion.  

 
008.  LICENSE DENIAL.  

 
008.01  DENIAL. In addition to the other factors and requirements set forth in the Nebraska 
Medical Cannabis Regulation Act and these regulations, the commission may deny issuance 
or renewal of a license for good cause.  
 
008.02  GOOD CAUSE. For purposes of this section, good cause means: 

(A)  The licensee or applicant has violated the Nebraska Medical Cannabis Regulation 
Act or rules and regulations adopted and promulgated thereunder, particularly when 
such violations adversely affect public health or safety; 

(B) The licensee or applicant has made materially false statement to the commission; 
(C) The licensee or applicant has failed to comply with any special terms or conditions 

that were placed on its license pursuant to an order of the commission; or 
(D) The license would otherwise violate conditions contained in this chapter. 
 

009.  LICENSE SANCTIONS. 
 

009.01  SANCTIONS. A licensee may be sanctioned by the commission for violations of this 
chapter or the Nebraska Medical Cannabis Regulation Act. Sanctions may include: 

(A) License suspension; 
(B) Licenses revocation; 
(C) Fines; 
(D) Limitations upon license; 
(E) Terms of probation; 
(F) Seizure or destruction of cannabis, cannabis products, or cannabis accessories; or 
(G) Any combination of the above. 

 
009.02  INACTIVE REGISTERED CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENT. If a registered cannabis 
establishment has been inactive, without good cause, for two or more years the commission 
may revoke, cancel or elect not to renew the license of the registered cannabis establishment. 



009.03  CONVICTIONS. A registered establishment’s license may be revoked if the license 
holder is convicted of any felony or any controlled substance related offense during the term 
of the license. 

 
010.  APPEALS. 
 

010.01  APPEALS OF COMMISSION ACTIONS. A licensee may appeal a decision of the 
commission to deny a license or to sanction a license or licensee by requesting a fair hearing 
in accordance with the Nebraska Administrative Procedures Act. A request to appeal must be 
submitted in writing to the commission within thirty (30) days of the action to be appealed. 
Hearings will be conducted in accordance with the Nebraska Administrative Procedures Act.  

 
011.  REGISTERED CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENT MANAGEMENT STANDARDS.  
 

011.01  MANAGER. Each licensee shall personally manage the licensed registered cannabis 
establishment or employ a separate and distinct manager for the licensed registered cannabis 
establishment and shall report the name of the manager to the commission. 
 
011.02  MANAGEMENT CHANGE. The licensee shall report any change in manager to the 
commission in the manner provided by the commission. 
 
011.03  LICENSE PUBLISHING. A licensee shall possess and maintain a copy of the license 
in a conspicuous place visible to the public on the licensed premises. 
 
011.04  MINORS ON PREMISES. No licensee shall allow any individual under the age of 
eighteen (18) on or in any licensed premises.  
 
011.05  CONSUMPTION ON PREMISIS. No licensee shall allow the consumption or use of 
cannabis or cannabis products on or in any licensed premises.  
 
011.06  EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS. No licensee shall employ or maintain as an employee or 
agent a prohibited person as set forth in this chapter. 

 
012.  DISPENSARY REQUIREMENTS.  
 

012.01  POSSESSION FOR SALE OR TRANSFER.  A dispensary may only possess, sell 
or transfer cannabis for medical purposes, as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat § 71-24,107, or 
those purposes expressed in this chapter. A dispensary shall not give away or otherwise 
offer or transfer cannabis as part of a promotional event. 
 
012.02  CANNABIS PRODUCT. A Dispensary may only obtain cannabis products from a 
Nebraska licensed cultivator, a Nebraska licensed transporter, or a Nebraska licensed 
manufacturer.   

 
012.03  SALE OR TRANSFER. A dispensary may only sell or transfer medical cannabis 
to a qualified patient or caregiver in possession of a valid written recommendation which 
comports both to the requirements contained in the Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-24,104 and 
includes the following: 



(A) The medical cannabis product being recommended; 
(B) The recommended dosage and potency; 
(C) The number of doses; 
(D) The directions for use; and 
(E) The name of the patient for whom medical cannabis is being recommended. 

 
012.04  QUALIFIED PATIENT REQUIREMENT. A dispensary shall only sell or transfer 
cannabis to the qualified patient, who is eighteen (18) years of age or older, as specified 
in the valid, unexpired written recommendation which includes the requirements 
contained in the Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-24,104 and this section. 

 
012.05  QUALIFIED CAREGIVER REQUIREMENT. A dispensary shall only sell or 
transfer medical cannabis to a Qualified Caregiver under the following circumstances: 

(A) When the Qualified Patient is at least eighteen (18) years of age and the Qualified 
Caregiver has been designated by the Qualified Patient in a signed affidavit; 

(B) When the Qualified Patient is under eighteen (18) years of age and the Qualified 
Caregiver is the legal guardian or parent of the qualified Patient and produces a 
signed attestation stating as such, or the Qualified Caregiver is a person 
designated by the legal guardian or parent of the qualified Patient in a sworn 
affidavit with the authority to make health care decisions on behalf of the Qualified 
Patient; or 

(C) A health care facility or home health agency which meets the requirements set 
forth in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-24,104.  

 
012.06  QUANTITY REQUIREMENT. A dispensary may not sell or transfer any amount of 
cannabis that would result in the qualified patient or caregiver possessing more than five (5) 
ounces as allowed by Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-24,104 or the amount contained in the written 
recommendation if less than five (5) ounces. 

 
012.07  DISPENSABLE PRODUCTS. A dispensary shall not sell or transfer any cannabis or 
cannabis product that that does not meet the requirements of this chapter.  
 

012.07(A)  ALLOWABLE PRODUCTS. The following product types or formulations are 
allowed: 

(i) Oral tablets, capsules, or tinctures; 
(ii) Non-sugarcoated gelatinous cubes, gelatinous rectangular cuboids, or lozenges 

in a cube or rectangular cuboid shape; 
(iii) Gels, oils, creams, or other topical preparation; 
(iv) Suppositories; 
(v) Transdermal patches; or 
(vi) Liquids or oils for administration using a nebulizer or inhaler. 
 

012.07(B)  UNALLOWABLE PRODUCTS. The following product types or formulations are 
not allowed: 

(i) Raw plant material; 
(ii) Any product administered by smoking, combustion, or vaping;  
(iii) Any product containing artificial flavoring, natural flavoring, or coloring;   
(iv) A food or drink that has cannabis baked, mixed, or otherwise infused into it; or 



(v) Any product that includes a hemp-based product or intoxicating cannabinoids in 
a cannabis product, including, but not limited to, delta-8 tetrahydrocannabinol and 
delta-10 tetrahydrocannabinol. 

 
012.08  RECORD REQUIREMENTS FOR DISPENSARIES. Registered establishments 
dispensing medical cannabis products to qualified patients or qualified caregivers must retain 
the following records for no less than seven (7) years: 

(A) Copies of all documents required under this chapter for sale or transfer of medical 
cannabis; 

(B) Sales invoices or receipts for all sales or transfers of medical cannabis, which shall 
include the following: 

 (i) Name and address of purchaser; 
 (ii) Date of sale and invoice number; 
 (iii) Item, category, and quantity of cannabis sold; 
 (iv) The cost to the purchaser, together with any discount applied to the price as 

shown on the invoice; 
 (v) The place from which transport of the cannabis was made unless transport or 

delivery was made from the premises of the licensee; 
 (vi) Seller’s name, license number and address; and 
 (vii) Any associated manifests from transporter; 

(C) Daily inventory records which shall include the following; 
 (i) The type, quantity and potency of all medical cannabis products; 
 (ii) Daily transactions; and 
 (iii) Any discrepancies between the daily inventory and daily transactions; and 

(D) Records of all purchases of inventory and stock for purposes of sale or transfer which 
include: 
 (i) Transport manifests; and 
 (ii) The name and license number of all cultivators or manufacturers for all products 

sold, transferred, or purchased by the establishment for sale or transfer. 
 
013.  CULTIVATOR REQUIREMENTS. 
 
013.01  POSSESSION FOR CULTIVATION. A cultivator may only possess, cultivate or 
process cannabis for medical purposes, as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-24,107, or those 
purposes expressed in this chapter. 
 
013.02  CULTIVATION FOR SALE OR TRANSFER. A cultivator may only cultivate or process 
cannabis for sale or transport to a licensed dispensary, licensed product manufacturer, or 
other licensed cultivator. 
 
013.03  LOCATION. All cultivation of medical cannabis shall take place at the premises 
identified in the cultivator license. Cultivation may occur outdoors or indoors.  
 
013.04  LOCATION ACCESS. Cultivation locations must be secured to reasonably prevent 
access to any cannabis plants or products by animals, or individuals who are not authorized 
agents of the cultivator or otherwise authorized access by law.  
 



013.05  TESTING. A cultivator may provide cannabis samples to a testing facility for testing 
and research for development purposes. 
 
013.06  SEED OR PLANT STOCK. A cultivator may only obtain cannabis seeds, immature 
cannabis plants, or cannabis genetic material from another Nebraska licensed cultivator or a 
cultivator authorized to operate in another state of the United States.   
 
013.07  RECORDS REQUIRED FOR CULTIVATORS. Cultivators must retain the following 
records for no less than seven (7) years: 

(A) Sales invoices or receipts for all sales or transfers of medical cannabis, which shall 
include the following: 
(i) Name and address of purchaser; 
(ii) Date of sale and invoice number; 
(iii) Item, category, and quantity of cannabis sold; 
(iv) The cost to the purchaser, together with any discount applied to the price as 

shown on the invoice; 
(v) The place from which transport of the cannabis was made unless transport or 

delivery was made from the premises of the licensee; 
(vi) Seller’s name, license number and address; and 
(vii) Any associated manifests from transporter; 

(B) Daily inventory records which shall include the following: 
(i) The type, quantity and potency of all medical cannabis products; 
(ii) Daily transactions; and 
(iii) Any discrepancies between the daily inventory and daily transactions; and 

(C) Records of all purchases of inventory/stock for purposes of sale or transfer which 
include:  
(i) Transport manifests; and 
(ii) The name and license number of all cultivators or manufacturers for all products 

sold or transferred, or purchased by the establishment for sale or transfer; 
(D) When cannabis seeds are planted; 
(E) When each cannabis plant is in a vegetative state, harvested, transferred, transported, 

processed, destroyed or sold; 
(F) Description of each cannabis plant type cultivated to include type, THC content, and 

THC potency; 
(G) All pesticides, herbicides, fertilizers, and any other chemicals applied to cannabis 

plants or growing medium during cultivation and all ingredients contained in any 
pesticides, herbicides, fertilizers, and any other chemicals applied to cannabis plants 
or growing medium during cultivation; and 

(H) All samples provided to a testing facility, the identity and address of the testing facility, 
and test results. 

 
014.  PRODUCT MANUFACTURER REQUIREMENTS. 

 
014.01  POSSESSION FOR MANUFACTURING. A manufacturer may only possess, 
manufacture or process cannabis for medical purposes, as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-
24,107, or those purposes expressed in this chapter. 
 



014.02  MANUFACTURING FOR SALE OR TRANSFER. A manufacturer may only 
manufacture, possess or process cannabis for sale or transport to a licensed dispensary, 
another licensed product manufacturer, or licensed cultivator. 
 
014.03  LOCATION. All manufacturing of medical cannabis shall take place at the premise 
identified in the manufacturing license.  
 
014.04  LOCATION ACCESS. Manufacturing locations must be secured to reasonably 
prevent access to any cannabis plants or products by animals, or individuals who are not 
authorized agents of the manufacturer or otherwise authorized access by law.  
 
014.05  TESTING. A manufacturer may provide cannabis or cannabis product samples to a 
testing facility for testing and research for development purposes. 
 
014.06  CANNABIS SEED, CANNABIS PLANT STOCK OR CANNABIS PRODUCT. A 
manufacturer may only obtain cannabis seeds, cannabis plants, or cannabis products from a 
Nebraska licensed cultivator or another Nebraska licensed manufacturer.   
 
014.07  ALLOWABLE PRODUCTS. A manufacturer may only manufacture or produce 
products allowed to be sold or transferred by dispensaries to qualified patients or caregivers 
as set forth in this chapter.   
 
014.08  PACKAGING. A product manufacturer may only sell or transfer products that are 
sealed and comport with the following:  

(A) The package shall protect the product from contamination and shall not expose the 
product to any toxic or harmful substance; and 

(B) The package shall be tamper-evident, which means the product shall be packaged in 
a container within which a product is sealed so that the contents cannot be opened 
without obvious destruction of the seal. 

 
014.09  RECORDS REQUIRED FOR MANUFACTURERS. Manufacturers must retain the 
following records for no less than seven (7) years: 

(A) Sales invoices or receipts for all sales or transfers of medical cannabis, which shall 
include the following: 
(i) Name and address of purchaser; 
(ii) Date of sale and invoice number; 
(iii) Item, category, and quantity of cannabis product sold; 
(iv) The cost to the purchaser, together with any discount applied to the price as 

shown on the invoice; 
(v) The place from which transport of the cannabis was made unless transport or 

delivery was made from the premises of the licensee; 
(vi) Seller’s name, license number and address; and 
(vii) Any associated manifests from transporter; 

(B) Daily inventory records which shall include the following; 
(i) The type, quantity and potency of all medical cannabis products; 
(ii) Daily transactions; and 
(iii) Any discrepancies between the daily inventory and daily transactions; and 



(C) Records of all purchases of inventory/stock for purposes of sale or transfer which 
includes:  
(i) Transport manifests; and 
(ii) The name and license number of all cultivators, manufacturers or dispensaries for 

all products sold or transferred, or purchased by the licensee for sale or transfer; 
(D) Description of each cannabis product manufactured to include product type, THC 

content, and THC potency, and any other ingredients contained in each final product; 
and 

(E) All samples provided to a testing facility, the identity and address of the testing facility, 
and test results. 

 
015.  TRANSPORTER REQUIREMENTS. 
 

015.01  POSSESSION FOR TRANSPORTING. A transporter may only possess or transport 
cannabis for medical purposes, as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. § 71-24,107, and those 
purposes expressed in this chapter. 
 
015.02  TRANSPORTING FOR SALE OR TRANSFER. A transporter may only transport, 
possess cannabis for transport to a licensed dispensary, a licensed product manufacturer, a 
licensed cultivator, or another licensed transporter. 
 
015.03  LOCATION. All storage of medical cannabis for transportation shall take place at the 
premise identified in the transporter license.  
 
015.04  LOCATION ACCESS. Transportation storage locations must be secured to 
reasonably prevent access to any cannabis plants or products by animals, or individuals who 
are not authorized agents of the manufacturer or otherwise authorized access by law.  
 
015.05  CANNABIS SEED, CANNABIS PLANT STOCK OR CANNABIS PRODUCT. A 
transporter may only obtain cannabis seeds, cannabis plants, or cannabis products from a 
Nebraska licensed cultivator, Nebraska licensed manufacturer, Nebraska licensed dispensary 
or another Nebraska licensed transporter, or a cannabis cultivator authorized to operate in 
another State of the United States.   
 
015.06  ALLOWABLE PRODUCTS. A transporter may only transport cannabis for medical 
purposes or cannabis products allowed to be sold or transferred under this chapter or the 
Nebraska Cannabis Regulation Act.  
 
015.07  PACKAGING. Transporters may only sell or transfer products that are sealed and 
comport with the following:  

(A) The package shall protect the product from contamination and shall not expose the 
product to any toxic or harmful substance; and 

(B) The package shall be tamper-evident, which means the product shall be packaged in 
a container within which a product is sealed so that the contents cannot be opened 
without obvious destruction of the seal. 

 
015.08  POSSESSION. A transporter is responsible for the cannabis, cannabis products, and 
cannabis accessories once taking possession.  



015.09  STORAGE. A transporter may maintain storage facilities at the premises identified in 
the transporter’s license for temporary storage of cannabis, cannabis products, and cannabis 
accessories. 

 
015.10  MANIFEST REQUIREMENTS. A manifest is required for all cannabis for medical 
purposes transported. A manifest shall contain the following information: 

(A) The date the manifest was created; 
(B) The license number, address, and contact information of the originating registered 

cannabis establishment; 
(C) The license number, address, and contact information of the receiving registered 

cannabis establishment; 
(D) The quantity, by weight and unit and product type, of the cannabis for medical 

purposes being transports; 
(E) The name of each person accompanying the transport; 
(F) The date and time of departure and delivery; 
(G) The transport driver’s signature once the delivery has been completed; and 
(H) The name and signature of the authorized agent of the receiving registered cannabis 

establishment confirming receipt of the cannabis for medical purposes. 
 

015.11  MANIFEST COPIES. A transporter is required to provide a copy of each manifest to 
the originating party and the receiving party. 
 
015.12  VEHICLES PERMITTED. Vehicles permitted to transport cannabis for medical 
purposes must:  

(A) Be equipped with a locked storage compartment or container;  
(B) Have no markings that would either identify or indicate the vehicle is being used to 

transport cannabis for medical purposes;  
(C) Carry a copy of the valid transporter license for the registered cannabis establishment 

that is the registered owner of the vehicle; and  
(D) Meet the Nebraska requirements to be operated lawfully on public roads. 
 

015.13  DRIVER REQUIREMENTS. A transport driver must: 
(A) Have a means of communication to allow contact with the originating or receiving 

registered cannabis establishment or 911; 
(B) Conspicuously display an employee identification badge issued by the licensed 

transporter; and 
(C) Possess a valid Nebraska driver’s license. 

 
015.14  RECORDS REQUIRED FOR TRANSPORTERS. Transporters must retain the 
following records for no less than seven (7) years: 

(A) Invoices or receipts for all transports of cannabis for medical purposes, which shall 
include the following: 

 (i) Name and address of each receiver, originator and payor; 
 (ii) Date of sale and invoice number; 
 (iii) Item, category, and quantity of cannabis product transported or stored; 
 (iv) The cost to the payor, together with any discount applied to the price as shown 

on the invoice; 
 (v) Transporters name, license number and address; 



(B) Daily inventory records which shall include the following; 
 (i) The type, quantity of all medical cannabis products stored or transported; 
 (ii) Daily transactions; and 
 (iii) Any discrepancies between the daily inventory and daily transactions; and 

(C) Records of all transports which include:  
 (i) Transport manifests; and 
 (ii) The name and license number of all cultivators, manufacturers or dispensaries 

for all products stored or transported, or purchased by the licensee for transport 
or storage. 

 
016.  LABELING AND PACKAGING REQUIREMENTS. 
 

016.01  LABEL TEXT SIZE. Labeling text on container must be unobstructed and 
conspicuous. The labeling text on the container must be no smaller than 1/16 of an inch.  
 
016.02  PACKAGING LABEL NECESSARY INFORMATION. The label for a medical cannabis 
product shall include an information panel that includes only the following: 

(A) The licensed manufacturer and its contact number or website address; 
(B) The date of manufacture and expiration date; and 
(C) Each of the following statements: 

(i)  “SCHEDULE I CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE”; 
(ii) “KEEP OUT OF REACH OF CHILDREN AND ANIMALS”; 
(iii) “FOR MEDICAL USE BY QUALIFIED PATIENTS ONLY”; 
(iv) “THE INTOXICATING EFFECTS OF THIS PRODUCT MAY BE DELAYED”; 
(v) “THIS PRODUCT MAY IMPAIR THE ABILITY TO DRIVE OR OPERATE 

MACHINERY, PLEASE USE EXTREME CAUTION”; and 
(vi) “IT IS ILLEGAL TO TRANSFER MEDICAL CANNABIS TO ANOTHER PERSON”. 
 

016.03  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PROVIDED. Qualified patients or 
caregivers must be provided with the following information with each quantity of cannabis 
dispensed: 

(A) A list of all product ingredients in descending order of predominance by weight or 
volume; 

(B) The batch or lot number; 
(C) Instructions for intake, such as method consumption or application, and any 

preparation necessary prior to use; 
(D) The amount of THC in mg per dose and per container; and 
(E) The unique manufacturer license number and unique registration number for the 

product.  
 

016.04  PACKAGING REQUIREMENTS. A package used to contain a cannabis product shall 
adhere to the following requirements:  

(A) The package shall protect the product from contamination and shall not expose the 
product to any toxic or harmful substance;  

(B) The package shall be tamper-evident, which means the product shall be packaged in 
a container within which a product is sealed so that the contents cannot be opened 
without obvious destruction of the seal; 



(C) The package shall be child-resistant, which means the package shall be designated 
or constructed to be significantly difficult for children under five (5) years of age to 
open or otherwise obtain access to the product contained therein within a reasonable 
time and shall not be difficult for normal adults to open or obtain access to the product 
contained therein. A package shall be deemed child-resistant if it satisfies the 
standard for “special packaging” as set forth in the Poison Prevention Packaging Act 
of 1970 regulations (16 CFR § 1700(b)(4)); and 

(D) The package shall be resealable, which means the package continues to function 
within effectiveness specifications set forth in the Poison Prevention Packaging Act 
of 1970 regulations for the number of opening and closings customary for its size and 
contents.  

 
016.05  LABELING PLACEMENT. Product packaging may not be designed in such a manner 
that the required elements for packaging and labeling are easily removed or separated from 
the package, such as placing required information on part of the package that must be 
removed to access the product.  
 
016.06  PROHIBITED PACKAGING. The product’s container, labeling, or packaging shall not 
contain any of the following:  

(A) Depictions of cartoon-like fictional characters that mimic a character primarily aimed 
at entertaining minors;  

(B) Trademarks or trade dress of products that imitate or mimic those of products that 
are or have been primarily marketed to minors; 

(C) Symbols that are primarily used to market products to minors; or 
(D) Images or likenesses of celebrities.  

 
017.  COMMISSION.  
 

017.01  MAJORITY. A majority the appointed commission members shall constitute a quorum. 
Every act of the majority shall be deemed to be an act of the commission.  
 
017.02  EMPLOYEES. The commission may appoint or employ the staff necessary to carry 
out the Nebraska Medical Cannabis Regulation Act or to perform the duties and exercise the 
powers of the commission. 
 
017.03  INVESTIGATION POWERS. The commission may, on its own motion or on complaint, 
investigate registered cannabis establishments for any violation of this chapter or the 
Nebraska Medical Cannabis Regulation Act. 

 
017.03(A)  ON-SITE INSPECTION. The commission or its employees may enter onto a 
licensed premises or transporter vehicle with or without notice for the purposes of 
enforcing or investigating compliance with this chapter of the Nebraska Medical Cannabis 
Regulation Act. 
 
017.03(B)  RECORD INSPECTION. The commission or its employees may request copies 
of or view the originals of any record required to be kept by this chapter or the Nebraska 
Medical Cannabis Regulation Act.  

 



017.03(C)  REFUSAL OR OBSTRUCTION. Registered establishments must comply with 
all requests made by the commission or its employees to investigate compliance with this 
chapter or the Nebraska Medical Cannabis Regulation Act. Obstructing an investigation 
or refusal to comply with any such request may result in sanctions including immediate 
license revocation.  



CITY OF GERING 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION AND REPORT 

 
 
 

To: Planning Commission Date: 8/19/2025 

From: Planning & Community Development Zoning:  

Subject: Proposed Changes to the Gering 
Comprehensive Plan  Property Size:  

Location: N/A #Lots/Parcels:  

Owner: N/A City Council 
Public Hearing: 9/8/2025 

 
Public Notice: This Public Hearing was noticed meeting the requirements of Nebraska State Statutes and 
City of Gering Zoning Regulations. 
 
Agenda Item Summary 
 
Previously this year, the City considered a zone change for a property located on the corner of Five 
Rocks Road and Country Club Road. According to state statute, all zone changes should be consistent 
with the vision set forth in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The current Comprehensive Plan was adopted 
in 2019, and while overall it is a very good plan, during the process of considering that zone change, it 
became evident that there were a few inconsistencies.  
 
Comprehensive plans are to lay out the desired future land use for the community. Many plans will state 
just one desired zoning district for each property or location. This tends to create plans that are overly 
prescriptive in nature that make it extremely hard for cities to allow for change, even in situations where 
proposed changes are very logical in nature. For this reason, when the City’s current Comprehensive 
Plan was drafted, it was designed to be as flexible as possible and to make allowances for more than one 
use per location, as long as those uses all met the overall vision and goals for that area. Unfortunately, 
when it came to the intersection of Five Rocks Road and Country Club Road, the Plan is somewhat 
ambiguous. While it stated in the narrative that, “Neighborhood serving retail at key intersections and 
slightly higher-intensity housing would be appropriate at select locations, such as the northwest corner 
of Five Rocks Road and Country Club”, the corresponding map in that section did not denote that 
particular intersection as a commercial node. In order to provide clarity and guidance to neighborhood 
residents, property owners, and potential developers, staff is recommending that the Comprehensive 
Plan be revised to clarify whether neighborhood commercial development would be appropriate at that 
intersection or not. Option 1 is to add a commercial node at that location. Option 2 is to leave the map 
unchanged and remove the references to that intersection from the narrative. This will allow for more 
consistent guidance if this issue comes up again in the future. 
 
Additionally, staff is recommending to add some additional commercial nodes along the major roadway 
intersections with Highway 71 (the Heartland Expressway). These are prime locations for future 
commercial development, and residential development immediately adjacent to these high traffic 
locations is not ideal. Legal Counsel has also recommended rewording some of the language throughout 
the Plan to better clarify how the nodes are to be interpreted and applied to zone change 
considerations. Staff has also reviewed and cleaned up typos and references throughout the document. 



Plan Gering    1 

 

 
Gering, 
Nebraska 
Comprehensive 
Plan 



Plan Gering    2 

 



Plan Gering    3 

 

Steering Committee:  
Eli Aguilar 
Daniel Bennett 
Brent Holliday 
Jamie Meisner 
Cinda Munoz 
Stephanie Rask 
Dell Weber 
 
 

Elected Officials:  
Mayor Tony Kaufman 
Councilor  Ben Backus 
Councilor Troy Cowan 
Councilor Michael Gillen 
Councilor Phillip Holliday 
Councilor Julie Morrison 
Councilor Pam O’Neal 
Councilor Dan Smith 
Councilor Susan Wiedeman 
 
 

Planning Commission:  
Jeff Allen 
Mary Bowman 
Craig Erdman 
Dale Hauck 
Cathy Kaufman 
Paul Marietta 
Terry Rajewich 
Jeremy Rechsteiner 
Jana Shimic 

Acknowledgements 

Project Technical Group: 
Annie Folck, City Engineer, City of Gering 
 
Consultants:  
 Ayres Associates 
 DPlanit 
 



Plan Gering    4 

 



Plan Gering    5 

 

Acknowledgements     2 

Table of Contents     5 

 

1 Purpose and Process 
1.1 Introduction     7 

1.2 Need for a Comprehensive Plan   8 

1.3 Plan Framework     9 

1.4 How you built Plan Gering              10 

 

2 Gering Today 
2.1 Snapshot                 16 

2.2 Challenges                 17 

2.3 Priorities                 18 

 

3 Gering Tomorrow 
3.1 Community Vision                20 

3.2 Community Values and Policies              23 

 

4 Shaping Gering 
4.1 District Framework                49 

Northwest Monument Neighborhood District 54 

West Gering Neighborhood District              56 

Southwest Gering Neighborhood District        58 

East Gering Neighborhood District              60 

Five Rocks Agriculture/ Residential District    62 

Gering Valley Agriculture/ Residential District 64 

North Platte River Residential District            66 

Downtown Gering District              68 

10th Street Commerce & Industry District      70 

Gering Employment District       72 

East Gering Industrial District               74 

  

 4.2 Transportation Framework  76 

 4.3 Parks & Open Space Framework  94 

 4.4 Energy Framework             103 

 

 5 Vision to Action  
 5.1 Strategies & Action Plan             112 

 5.2 Monitoring & Review             119 

 

 Appendices 

 Appendix A: Public Facilities                

 

 

Table of Contents 



Plan Gering    6 

 

01 
Purpose & Process 



Plan Gering    7 

 

Plan Gering is a comprehensive, long range plan that guides decision makers on issues related to where new 
jobs and homes should go, how to strengthen our neighborhoods, where to invest new infrastructure and 
amenities, and how to improve our transportation system. This plan gathered the values and vision regarding 
Gering’s future into a narrative that tells a story about where the community is going. The purpose of Plan 
Gering is to provide our community with a path toward our best outcomes for managing growth and change.  
 
A fundamental concept in the preparation of this Plan is how to preserve what we have while continuing to 
evolve to realize our future vision. Plan Gering provides a blueprint for how to manage future growth while 
maintaining the small-town feel we all have come to cherish. The Plan makes recommendations based on a 
shared vision and expresses our community values through long range policies for land use, transportation, 
economic development, and natural resources. Ultimately, Plan Gering is a guide that will help us implement 
our community vision and shape the future of our City in a way that honors our unique needs, values and  
traditions. The Plan is an umbrella covering a broad spectrum of issues and achieves the following:  
 
• Identifies a common vision and articulates community values to help guide decision making related to  

future growth, development, policy, and capital improvements. 
• Provides clarity for the community about priority programs. 
• Defines and prioritizes strategies for key elements addressed in the Plan.  
• Supports the development of realistic and achievable work plans.  
• Guides small area planning through a District Framework.  
• Meets statutory prerequisite enabling the City to administer zoning codes.  
 
Plan Gering is your plan. It was created by the community, for the community, and reflects where we want to 
go and lights the path to get us there.  

1.1    
Introduction 



Plan Gering    8 

 

As mentioned above, one legal rationale for adopting a Comprehensive Plan is to enable the City to              
administer zoning codes. These codes provide for a predictable framework that impacts the use of property 
along with property values. A plan is important because it enables the community’s vision to carry on despite 
changes in personnel and elected officials over time. While specific projects and issues may change quickly, 
the broad principles and values that frame our perspectives can carry on for decades or more. Because    
managing a municipality is unpredictable, the Comprehensive Plan works to provide clear direction on issues 
we can anticipate, while providing a decision-making framework to help officials as they consider unforeseen 
challenges.   
 
Plan Gering represents a bit of a hybrid approach to comprehensive planning. In years past, a comprehensive 
plan functioned as an encyclopedia of municipal information. Population demographics, utility maps, and   
other critical information was housed in the plan. With the advent of online resources, digital mapping and 
other technical advances, the pace of information availability has diminished the role of the comprehensive 
plan as a data clearinghouse. 
 
Today’s comprehensive plan serves to tell a story about the future of a place and strategies that can be      
employed to get us there. In the case of Plan Gering, we’ve retooled the traditional approach to storytelling 
to encompass the guiding principles that will serve as sidebars for decision making over time. Using this 
method, we’ve worked to personalize the policies into a vernacular that’s unique to Gering.   
 
Plan Gering was adopted on November 25, 2019. The Plan will be administered by City staff as proposed    
development projects are reviewed, as well as Planning Commissioners, City Council Members, community 
members and others. Over time the Plan may require updates or amendments due to changing market forces 
and other factors. Amendments to the Plan must be adopted by City Council.  
 
As with any voyage, most start with a destination and route in mind. Yet detours can crop up, requiring       
recalibration of your route. The same happens with comprehensive plans– changing conditions can impact 
your vision. It is recommended that this Plan be reviewed every 5-years or less to keep the vision relevant 
and fresh.  

1.2    
Need for a Comprehensive Plan 



Plan Gering    9 

 

1.3    
Plan Framework 

Gering Tomorrow Gering Today Shaping Gering Vision to Action 

Gering Today       
summarizes the 
unique attributes of 
Gering and the     
people that live 
there.  

Gering Tomorrow 
describes the vision 
for Gering’s future, 
including community 
values, principles and 
policies.   

Shaping Gering     
provides land use, 
transportation, parks 
and energy            
recommendations 
for the community.   

Vision to Action    
provides strategies 
for implementing the 
Plan.    

02 03 04 05 



Plan Gering    10 

 

The Plan Gering Process 
Plan Gering was developed through an extensive public                 
engagement process with the goal of translating the values of our 
community into a growth management and land use strategy. Over 
the course of a 9-month period with multiple in-person public 
workshops, focus group meetings, and online information and     
surveys, more than 400 participants had the opportunity to engage 
with the Plan and provide feedback on their vision for the future.  
 
Key Events and Activities  
 
Community Workshop #1 
The first community workshop took place in October 2018, which 
structured community conversations around developing a cohesive 
vision. At this workshop, residents described the unique qualities of 
Gering and their aspirations for the City’s future. This meeting 
served as the backbone of Plan Gering and informed future phases 
of the project. Four community values resulted from the meeting 
that express community members’ beliefs about the most            
important and desirable characteristics of Gering. These values   
describe how Gering can position itself by reflecting on the heritage 
of the community and prospectus for the future. We appreciate the 
historic origins, but also want to continue to look to the future 
where innovators are pushing boundaries and challenging             
assumptions. 

1.4    
How You Built Plan Gering 



Plan Gering    11 

 

Community Workshop #2 
The second workshop held on January 29, 2019 distilled the stories and values heard during the Values     
workshop. Statements for each of the values were developed and vetted by the public. These statements 
serve as the basis of the Plan and helped arrange the recommendations, policies, physical projects, and      
capital investments. In addition, several mapping exercises were structured to get feedback on physical 
growth elements valued by the community. Three distinct scenario maps were created to illustrate              
alternative approaches to accommodating future growth and funding priorities. Good ideas were mixed up 
with challenging ideas to ensure there wasn’t one “right” scenario. Participants were then able to pull the 
best concepts from each scenario. The three scenarios are described below: 
 

 
 Scenarios 

Destination Scenario 
 
The first scenario focused on             
positioning Gering as a destination. In 
this scenario, the focus is on              
accommodating the visitor and the   
provision of activities and events. The       
community is open for business and 
desires to draw visitors to the area. The 
energy of the community is based on 
the movement of people in, around and 
through Gering.  

Home Scenario 
 
The second scenario positioned Gering 
as a home. In this scenario, Gering is 
focused on daily living and community      
lifestyle. Quality of life and enhanced 
daily experiences are emphasized. As 
we conduct even the most mundane of 
our daily activities, we see our values    
reflected in the quality of housing and 
neighborhoods, new commercial and 
industrial development, and public   
facilities and services.  

Livelihood Scenario 
 
The final scenario looked at Gering 
through a livelihood lens. In this        
scenario, Gering is focused on the  
economy and the environment. While 
supportive of businesses that create 
jobs, the physical environment is      
enhanced. Natural resources, outdoor 
spaces and cultural places are           
highlighted and highly visible             
components of our community serving 
as an inspiration for the creation of new 
jobs and business activity. 



Plan Gering    12 

 

• INFRASTRUCTURE - Regional approach to utilities with the goal of reducing visual clutter. Green infra-
structure will be encouraged to improve efficiencies and storm water quality will be addressed through 
best management practices.  

 
• ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT - The City will focus efforts on developing home grown and small businesses 

and will support the development of commercial retail and services that support the residential and     
employment-based elements of the community.  

 
Community Workshop #3 
The third workshop held on August 26, 2019 presented the Draft Plan to community members. The meeting 
began with a brief presentation of Plan Gering. Following the presentation, participants were given the         
opportunity to review the Plan and share their feedback.  The Plan was also posted to the City’s website for 
public comment and review.   



Plan Gering    13 

 

After the public identified desired elements from the three maps, a final scenario map was created to          
illustrate how Gering should grow in the next 20 years. Participants generally preferred elements and policies 
consistent with Scenario 1.  
 
The final scenario map was then converted into a District Framework which breaks up the City into 11          
districts based on character, context, development patterns, natural features, and types of destinations.     
Existing and desired character is described for each district which will help residents understand differences 
in land use and built form, and will also help City staff adapt strategies to encourage development that is    
appropriate in location and type. The District Framework is described in more detail in Chapter 4.   
 
Key findings that resulted from the scenario preferences are as follows: 
 
• GENERAL GROWTH DIRECTION - The City will focus on infill of vacant properties and directing growth 

within current city limits.  
 
• DOWNTOWN - Downtown will serve as the primary hub for visitor-oriented commerce. There is also a 

desire to preserve the small-town Main Street character.  
 
• COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT PATTERN - Commercial development will be primarily concentrated    

downtown near civic uses.  
 
• NEIGHBORHOODS & RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT - There should be a variety of housing styles and types 

integrated within neighborhoods. Medium density housing can be blended with single-family housing 
while higher density housing should be located along major roadways.   

 
• INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT - New industrial development should be located within existing and new  

Industrial Parks with buffering requirements to mitigate impacts.  
 
• PARKS & RECREATION - Resources should be used to improve connections between recreational            

destinations and the enhancement of existing facilities.  
 
• MOBILITY & TRANSPORTATION - The transportation network should be context-based with                     

improvements based on supporting employment activities. Primary corridors will have a multi-modal          
approach with some streetscape enhancements.  



Plan Gering    14 

 

Outreach Methods 
Several methods were used to inform residents about the planning process to increase participation.         
Promotion for the public workshops included TV interviews, Facebook posts, meeting announcements posted 
in downtown businesses, and project updates posted to the project website.  
 
Online Survey 
Beyond in-person meetings, the consultant team deployed an online survey to provide another way for      
Gering residents to share their views and perceptions on issues related to growth and development. The    
survey was posted online from September 5, 2018 to October 22, 2018 and resulted in 420 responses. The 
survey provided important input and a deepened understanding of key themes that emerged from the       
responses, including but not limited to economic health, environmental stewardship, affordability,            
transportation, and community amenities.  
 
Plan Gering Project Team 
Plan Gering was led by the City’s Planning Department, with assistance from other City staff and a Steering 
Committee. These two groups were fundamental to the Plan’s development and are described below.   
  
Project Technical Group 
This committee was made up of the key City staff representatives who provided assistance in getting           
interested people and groups to participate in the engagement activities and events, and also reviewed and 
commented on draft deliverables for the project.  
 
Steering Committee 
This eight member group was established to meet periodically throughout the planning process. The com-
mittee functioned as a “sounding board” for thoughts and ideas related to the creation of Plan Gering. Mem-
bers of the committee discussed ideas and issues and helped guide the consultant team in synthesizing public 
input. This group also provided advice and recommendations at key points throughout the process.  



Plan Gering    15 

 

02 
Gering Today 



Plan Gering    16 

 

Gering is closely connected to nearby Scottsbluff and Terrytown, which has played a major role in shaping its 
economy. What affects one community, by and large, affects the others. Therefore, it is important that key 
issues are tackled in a collaborative manner with solutions that are mutually beneficial for all three           
communities.   
 
Trends 
Gering’s population saw significant growth at 9.7% from 2000 to 2010 compared to Scottsbluff’s 2.1% growth 
rate. From 2010 to 2016, both cities experienced slight decreases in their population. Yet during this time pe-
riod, Scottbluff’s taxable sales increased while Gering saw a decrease in net taxable sales. This trend is likely 
attributed to Gering residents spending their dollars in Scottsbluff which offers a more diverse mix of retail 
and services. As Gering continues to grow, there will continue to be demand for commercial services and the 
potential to capture more sales tax from eating and drinking establishments, which is one of the largest grow-
ing sales tax generators nationwide. Moving forward, Gering needs to build upon its entertainment base and 
leverage new types of businesses that will support and enhance the overall experience for residents and visi-
tors alike. Attracting businesses that provide services and one-of-a-kind retail will help strengthen Gering’s 
position in the regional market.  
 
Household incomes for Gering residents are higher on average when compared to those of Scottsbluff         
residents. According to the 2017 American Community Survey, Gering’s Median Household Income was 
$56,010 compared to $41,143 for Scottsbluff. This difference is likely the result of a higher percentage of   
Gering residents holding technical and professional positions. Gering’s largest job sector is in educational   
services, health care and social assistance at 28.20% with large job increases occurring in the professional,       
manufacturing, and construction sectors. Gering should capitalize on this asset and find new growth in       
sectors that require higher levels of education and work to have a larger concentration of higher wage jobs. 
While Gering should also look to grow its service-oriented sector to keep pace with the demands of new     
residents, the growth of professional and higher paying jobs should be Gering’s primary focus.   
 
Home values in Gering have continued to rise and housing costs are increasing throughout the region. As a 
result, households faced with lower paying jobs and increasing housing costs are experiencing greater       
economic stresses. Providing affordable housing choices for all income and age groups will become             
increasingly important as Gering continues to grow.  
 
As mentioned previously, finding solutions to these issues should be approached through a regional            
perspective. As Gering continues to grow, the City should look to partner with its neighbors to improve       
regional quality of life and economic competitiveness.  
 

2.1    
Snapshot 



Plan Gering    17 

 

In creating a new Comprehensive Plan, Gering identified that the prior document, adopted in 1995, was     
severely outdated and needed a fresh start to create a modern decision-making framework. Additionally, the 
existing zoning code has not been systematically reviewed and does not provide the tools that staff needs to 
respond to changing conditions. This system has severely hampered the ability of elected officials and staff in 
advancing a predictable regulatory environment. 
 
Starting fresh with a new plan provides the opportunity for residents to weigh in on the greatest challenges 
and opportunities facing Gering. Once this vision has been established, adjusting the regulatory codes so they 
support the implementation of this vision is essential to success.   
 
Beyond the rust on the Plan and Code, a few other challenges were identified by stakeholders when the    
process launched: 
 

• Gering’s identity as a community sometimes gets overshadowed because there is not a clear vi-
sion of the City’s future.   

• Predictability of regulatory enforcement is unclear due to a disconnect between the Plan and 
Code. 

• Like many rural communities, Gering is losing younger populations to larger cities. 

• Gering is perceived as a bedroom community, with many people choosing to live in Gering, but 
working in another community.  

• Presenting a positive visual impression of Gering while supporting industrial businesses on the 
10th Street Corridor. 

 
Despite these and other challenges, Gering is being proactive in identifying solutions. By undertaking a      
comprehensive planning effort and subsequent code update, the City is able to not only chart a course for 
success, but also take several important next steps to help realize the vision.   
 

 

2.2    
Challenges 



Plan Gering    18 

 

Through the Plan Gering process, many suggestions and ideas were identified by the community that will   
improve the City over the coming years. One goal of this Plan is to make sure those ideas are documented so 
that we don’t forget these great ideas in the shuffle of our daily lives. Several priority themes came up in    
discussions time and time again during the process. These items are represented in this Plan and are woven 
into the vision, policies and strategies.  Here’s how three community priorities are addressed in the Plan.  
 
OPEN FOR BUSINESS: Gering is a place that is ready and willing to welcome entrepreneurs to sink roots and 
expand their business. This Plan and subsequent zoning code updates will help to align the vision and codes 
to remove barriers while providing more flexibility. Additional policies and strategies describe other ways 
Gering can build a positive reputation as being a great place to set up shop. What’s in the Plan? 

• Our Vision - being “Champions of Commerce” highlights our commitment to welcoming business. 
(34) 

• Our Policies - provide additional detail on things we can do to make the vision a reality. (P35-38) 
• Our Land Use Framework - is structured with a flexible approach so that development proposals 

consider compatibility, intensity and scale when reviewing appropriate zoning. (P49) 
 
QUALITY OF LIFE: Gering is place where people have chosen to invest their lives, largely because of the parks 
system. Additional planning and continuing to prioritize parks will help Gering maintain a competitive edge. 
How does the Plan help? 

• Our Vision - represented by the theme “Nature Close at Hand,” quality of life is a signature focus 
helping Gering capitalize on the amenities present in the local geography.  (P24-33) 

• Our Open Space Framework - identifies that a diversity of park types and proximity to residents is 
key to ensuring that amenities continue to be a driving factor attracting residents to Gering. (P94) 

 
FIRST IMPRESSIONS: the experience of arriving in Gering is monumental. We only get one chance to make a 
first impression. Enhancing the entryways and offering great neighborhoods can help communicate our pride 
of living in Gering. What does the Plan say? 

• Our Vision - highlights “Establishing Roots,” focusing attention on creating quality places that 
make Gering a welcoming place. Our gateways, neighborhoods and downtown set the tone for 
lasting impressions. (P39-42) 

• Our Transportation Framework - identifies key locations and corridors that should be enhanced. 
(P93) 

• Our Strategies - describes steps that can be taken to help support this priority, including gateway              
beautification, housing diversification, and steps to add vitality to downtown. (P112-118) 

2.3    
Priorities 



Plan Gering    19 

 

03 
Gering Tomorrow 



Plan Gering    20 

 

The language of the community vision found on the following pages emerged through multiple community 
conversations and was presented to and approved by the community during the second planning workshop. 
The community vision represents the ideals expressed by the community for its continued growth over the 
next twenty years and serves as a foundation of Plan Gering. The vision is intended to protect and enhance 
the elements that contribute to Gering’s unique sense of place while planning for growth that will positively 
contribute to the City’s quality of life and livability. 

3.1    
Community Vision 

“Gering has a lot going for 
it. It has historic scenery, 

natural beauty, great parks, 
affordable housing, good 
schools, low crime rates, 

and the views are amazing.” 

“Gering is a great place to 
live and raise a family—it’s 

close to natural beauty, 
walkable, and you know 

your neighbor. “ 



Plan Gering    21 

 

There’s a spirit in Gering that draws inspiration from years past and guides our vision 
for the future. It is timeless and calls each one of us to endure and explore, linking 
our past with our future.   
 
For generations this spirit has called out over the bristling tallgrass of the prairie and 
echoed through the ancient land forms that stand watch over all those who have 
made Gering home. The first native pioneers were guided by this spirit to find herds 
of buffalo and live a nomadic lifestyle based in adaptation and innovation. A second 
wave of frontier pioneers were guided by this spirit as they traveled through and 
settled in the area seeking opportunity. 
   
Today the ancient landforms known as Five Rocks – Saddle, Dome, Eagle, Sentinel 
and Crown - still serve as iconic guardian landmarks; the North Platte River provides       
life-giving sustenance; and the wagon ruts, roadways and rail lines connect us be-
yond the horizon. 
 
Those looking for a better life have long been drawn to Monument Country, attracted 
by the natural geography and breathtaking vistas. They’ve discovered a place where 
cultivating roots is rewarded with unrivaled opportunity, and quality of life is more 
than just a buzzword. In Gering, it is the spirit of community which overcomes        
adversity through adaptation, innovation, and creativity. This spirit provides an      
invitation to everyone to be part of the community through the words -         
“Pioneers Welcome!” 
 
For those who live here today and those who will come – Pioneers Welcome! - 
means Gering is a community where exploration is encouraged and perseverance 
leads to prosperity. Where newcomers and life-timers appreciate the quality of our 
community and everyone is invited to create lasting connections. Our vision is       
intimately tied to four themes which reflect what we value most and desire to       
nurture in the future. 

Pioneers Welcome 



Plan Gering    22 

 

Nature Close at Hand 

In Gering, we welcome trailblazers and stewards who not only carve out new 
trails but also lead others along established trails, exploring and enjoying the 
numerous outdoor experiences and opportunities offered in the badlands of 
western Nebraska. Here in Gering, we appreciate and value the natural beauty 
and resources that are close at hand.   

 

Champions of Commerce 

In Gering, we welcome entrepreneurs and commerce based on working an   
honest day, creating something of value, and building an enterprise that lasts 
for generations.  Here in Gering, we support and champion a culture of thriving 
commerce, where products and services are delivered with pride.   

 

 

Establishing Roots 

In Gering, we welcome visitors to our community and surroundings as we      
celebrate friendship, conduct business, and enjoy the natural environment  
together. Here in Gering, we provide you with a reason to stay a little longer, 
come back a little sooner and become a future resident.   

 

 

Meaningful Connections 

In Gering, we welcome opportunities that are created via connections with  
people and places as we develop our neighborhoods and businesses, engage in 
neighboring and community activities, and move about in-and-out of the com-
munity. Here in Gering, we are a socially, physically and technologically con-
nected community. 

 

Whether you’re visiting Gering for the first time, part of the legacy of longtime 
families, or somewhere in between, we welcome you to discover the            
monumental upside of Gering.  Come, explore Nature Close at Hand, become 
our next Commercial Champion, watch your family flourish when you Establish 
Roots, and find the rewards of Meaningful Connections.  Whatever it is you’re 
seeking, your trail leads to Gering. In Gering, our vision is simply stated – Pio-
neers Welcome! 



Plan Gering    23 

 

Throughout the planning process, the community articulated a desire to leverage its natural resources, cham-
pion a resilient economy, improve connections between people and places, and maintain a unique sense of 
place. These ideas are expressed in the following community values:   
 

• Nature Close at Hand 
• Champions of Commerce 
• Establishing Roots  
• Meaningful Connections 

 
The following pages describe what we intend to achieve for each value along with supporting policies that the 
City of Gering can use to help advance the vision embodied by Pioneers Welcome!  
 
The terms “principle” and “policy” are used in this Plan to mean: 
 
Principles articulate the overarching aspirations of the community. These are broad statements that describe 
how we would like our community to grow. 
 
Policies are statements providing a course of action to move the community towards attainment of the     
Principle. Policies guide the work of staff in formulating changes to the zoning code and other regulatory   
documents.  
 
The principles and policies are meant to be flexible to adapt to changing contexts and can help guide decision 
making, work programs and long-range planning projects, in addition to preparation of the budget and capital 
improvements program over the coming years. 
 
When facing decisions, use these principles and policies to help identify considerations that can help provide 
guidance. The Plan helps staff and decision-makers approach topics from a “big picture” perspective.  
 

3.2    
Community Values & Policies 



Plan Gering    24 

 

Gering’s parks and open spaces are major assets 
that are highly valued by residents and visitors 
alike. As the city continues to grow, we want to 
ensure that close access to nature remains a   
defining attribute of our community. Nature 
Close at Hand reflects our community’s          
commitment to maintain and protect our        
natural spaces and provide a connected system 
that is accessible to the entire community. We 
will prioritize maintaining and improving our 
public spaces to ensure they are memorable, 
interesting, and reinforce our sense of           
community. Nature Close at Hand will be        
accomplished by using regulations that will allow 
growth to occur without compromising the    
integrity of our natural spaces. The following 
principles and policies will help to ensure the 
open spaces we experience today last long into 
the future.  

 

Nature Close at Hand 

Glen Park in the City of River Falls shows how native 
plants can be integrated into the landscape to give a 
better sense of place.  



Plan Gering    25 

 

Principle 1.1: Our community will preserve views of the Scotts Bluff          
National Monument and other views of significance.  

 
Policy 1.1.A: The geography sets Gering apart from other places. Views to the Monument should be           
preserved and/or framed from key public locations like parks, public buildings and other key landmarks.  
 
Policy 1.1.B: Preserve and frame views of the Monument whenever possible, while also respecting existing 
uses and private property rights.   
 
Policy 1.1.C: Encroachment upon the Monument by development should be discouraged. The City should 
work with community partners to protect lands adjacent to the Monument that have significant                    
environmental and/or historical value. 



Plan Gering    26 

 

Principle 1.2: Our community will conserve natural resources. 
 
Policy 1.2.A: Prioritize the conservation of sensitive environmental resources and lands of significance.   
 
Policy 1.2.B: Conserve natural areas in private and public spaces and introduce new ones.  
 
Policy 1.2.C: Integrate and restore waterways, wetlands, and other natural features into site design.  
 
Policy 1.2.D: Preserve significant site features such as trees, whenever possible. When not possible, relocate, 
replace, or replant site features.  
 
Policy 1.2.E: Promote the design of buildings and landscapes to conserve, store and reuse water.  
 
Policy 1.2.F: Encourage the use of durable building materials that enjoy a long life span. 



Plan Gering    27 

 

Principle 1.3: Our community will develop a system of quality open 
spaces.   

 
Policy 1.3.A: Adopt and implement an Open Space Master Plan. 
 
Policy 1.3.B: Seek and dedicate funding sources for the acquisition and stewardship of public open space.  
 
Policy 1.3.C: Ensure open spaces are accessible, universally designed, and interconnected across                   
developments and neighborhoods. 
 
Policy 1.3.D: Design of open spaces should facilitate public access to and movement along the system. 
 
Policy 1.3.E: Areas along the river and wetlands should be integrated into natural components of                  
development proposals.  
 
Policy 1.3.F: Encourage the creation of new publicly-accessible open spaces with new development using    
incentives– including, but not limited to, parks, outdoor squares, courtyards and landscaped areas.  
 
Policy 1.3.G: Improve standards for new open spaces by providing guidance on scale, design, maintenance, 
lighting, landscaping and other amenities.  
 
Policy 1.3.H: Encourage responsible environmental stewardship for existing and new open spaces.  
 
Policy 1.3.I: Maintain and improve physical assets of existing parks.  
 
Policy 1.3.J: Develop new requirements for landscaping or strengthen existing regulations. 



Plan Gering    28 

 

Principle 1.4: Our community will embrace the river. 
 
Policy 1.4.A: Protect key views and access points to the North Platte River, treating it as a vital resource for 
recreation and a means of generating economic development based on quality of life. 
 
Policy 1.4.B: Development proposals should approach the river as an asset rather than turning its back on it. 
New projects should integrate the river as an amenity.  
 
Policy 1.4.C: Development proposals adjacent the river should preserve and enhance the natural benefits of 
floodplains and the river’s natural environmental value.   
 
Policy 1.4.D: While the river frontage isn’t extensive in Gering, the river is a recreation asset. Access along the 
river should be provided to support recreation and transportation connections. 



Plan Gering    29 

 

Principle 1.5: Our community parks will serve all populations.   
 
Policy 1.5.A: All parks should be designed to be accessible, enjoyable, and welcoming to all people regardless 
of age, ability or geography. 
 
Policy 1.5.B: New parks and trail systems should be built in underserved areas when funding is available in 
order to ensure all Gering residents live within a 10-minute walk to a park or trail.   
 
Policy 1.5.C: Improve access to existing parks.  
 
Policy 1.5.D: Develop facilities and programs in existing parks to meet community needs. 



Plan Gering    30 

 

Principle 1.6: Our community will preserve and improve our tree       
canopy and urban forest, and provide appealing public right-of-way 
amenities.    
 
Policy 1.6.A: Establish a program on tree care that provides training and education for all residents. 
 
Policy 1.6.B: Establish programs such as tree giveaways, neighborhood planting programs, and education 
workshops. 
 
Policy 1.6.C: Seek grant funding for community tree planting to improve City parks, neighborhoods and 
streets.  
 
Policy 1.6.D: Ensure a healthy tree planting environment along streets by requiring adequate growing space. 
 
Policy 1.6.E: Inventory street trees and develop a tree replacement program. 



Plan Gering    31 

 

Principle 1.7: Our community will have trail connections between key 
open spaces.    

 
Policy 1.7.A: Coordinate capital improvement planning to improve pedestrian and bicycle connections to and 
within key open spaces, parks and public facilities.  
 
Policy 1.7.B: Address physical barriers to open space access and improve wayfinding to help users find their 
location and destination. 
 
Policy 1.7.C: Continue to create a series of pathways and greenways that link parks and recreational        
amenities within Gering and connect them to adjacent lands and natural amenities such as the Monument 
and North Platte River.   
 

 

 



Plan Gering    32 

 

Principle 1.8: Our community will support the use of renewable energy 
and energy efficient design.  

 
Policy 1.8.A: Harnessing natural resources will help to preserve the natural qualities in and around Gering.  
 
Policy 1.8.B: Alternative energy projects should consider the values of the community when siting facilities to 
minimize impacts to views.  
 
Policy 1.8.C: Encourage passive solar design by orienting buildings for maximum solar access. 
 
Policy 1.8.D: Encourage energy efficiency for building design. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Plan Gering    33 

 

Principle 1.9: Our community prefers a green infrastructure approach 
to supporting multi-purpose infrastructure.  

 
Policy 1.9.A: Seek opportunities to integrate stormwater features into parks and open spaces. 

 

Policy 1.9.B: Encourage the use of infiltration best practices to reduce stormwater impacts of surface waters.   

 

 

 

 

 



Plan Gering    34 

 

Economic opportunity is a large contributing factor to quality 
of life and well-being. Champions of Commerce reflects our             
community’s commitment to maintain and foster a healthy 
economy. We will collaborate with our partners to address 
our community’s economic development needs and pursue       
initiatives that will help local businesses thrive, improve    
wages, and make our community a great choice for new   
businesses and young professionals to locate. The following 
principles and polices seek to advance community-wide           
economic prosperity that will be felt by individuals,           
households, businesses and the broader community.  

Champions of  
Commerce 



Plan Gering    35 

 

Principle 2.1: Our community will expand and diversify our economic 
base.  

 
Policy 2.1.A: Support the development of outdoor recreation and experiential tourism. 

 

Policy 2.1.B: Strategically promote industrial park development that leverages the strengths of the            
community. 

 

Policy 2.1.C: Prioritize investment in infrastructure that supports the economic health of the community.  

 

Policy 2.1.D: Continue to build a creative economy including technology, arts, and agriculture science by   
nurturing innovation. 

 

Policy 2.1.E: Support job creation by focusing on retention, expansion, incubation, and recruitment efforts.  

 

Policy 2.1.F: Support the creation and growth of local businesses.  

 



Plan Gering    36 

 

Principle 2.2: Our community will develop human capital and a skilled, 
diverse, and trained workforce to help promote economic growth. 
 

Policy 2.2.A: Explore and implement strategies to increase access and participation in employment training 
programs. 

 

Policy 2.2.B: Focus resources and efforts on building and maintaining a skilled and employable workforce 
through education, placement, and training. 

 

Policy 2.2.C: Invest in Gering youths’ academic, social, and financial outcomes through high-quality paid      
employment programs that expose teens and youth to work, education, entrepreneurship, and career      
pathways. 

 

Policy 2.2.D: Boost educational achievement by partnering with, and supporting community organizations 
that focus on reducing achievement gaps through extended learning opportunities.  

 

 



Plan Gering    37 

 

Principle 2.3: Our community will support economic development 
through City policy, regulations, tools, and programs. 
 

Policy 2.3.A: Explore ways to assist businesses and the workforce through training programs and/or by       
supporting the work of partner organizations. 

 

Policy 2.3.B: Develop a toolkit of incentives to attract businesses to locate in Gering.  

 

Policy 2.3.C: Clarify and streamline City processes by reducing uncertainty and making it easier to improve 
properties as well as to start and operate businesses in Gering.  

 

Policy 2.3.D: Encourage local entrepreneurial opportunities and support existing small entrepreneurial       
businesses.  

 

Policy 2.3.E: Provide incentives for business development to reduce the need for out-of-town shopping trips. 



Plan Gering    38 

 

Principle 2.4: Our community will support continued revitalization of 
the downtown. 
 

Policy 2.4.A: Encourage infill and redevelopment of underutilized properties downtown.  
 
Policy 2.4.B: Encourage the location of activity-generating uses such as retail and restaurants. 
 
Policy 2.4.C: Encourage integration of higher density residential in the downtown to create a critical mass of 
patrons and increase activity levels.  
 
Policy 2.4.D: Downtown is the center of activity and the place to find everything you need. When considering 
public facility investments, like City Hall, Library or Post Office, adopting a “Downtown First” approach can 
ensure that municipal investments support the overall vitality of downtown.  
 
Policy 2.4.E: Encourage rehabilitation and preservation of existing historic structures in the downtown core 
to preserve Gering’s character and promote community investment.  



Plan Gering    39 

 

Gering is made up of several neighborhoods that    
contribute to our community’s character and quality of 
life. As we grow, we want to ensure our                    
neighborhoods are safe, well-maintained, attractive 
and stable with easy access to schools, shopping,     
recreation and other community amenities.               
Establishing Roots will be accomplished by providing a 
range of housing options across all parts of the city and 
creating people-friendly places that enhance the city’s 
attractiveness and can be enjoyed by the entire       
community. Establishing Roots is also a reminder to us 
to celebrate our rich history and preserve the            
important historic buildings and landscapes that have 
shaped Gering into what it is today. The following   
principles and policies lay out how we are going to 
achieve the Establishing Roots value. 

Establishing Roots 



Plan Gering    40 

 

Principle 3.1: Our community will create neighborhoods that offer a   
variety of housing options tailored to individual cycles in life and         
income levels.  
 

Policy 3.1.A: Increase housing choice and diversity for all lifestyles to meet community’s housing needs.  

 

Policy 3.1.B: Promote mixed income housing through City policy, regulations, tools, and programs.  

 

Policy 3.1.C: Promote the integration of multifamily units into neighborhoods with mixes of housing types or 
in mixed-use development.  

 

 



Plan Gering    41 

 

Principle 3.2: Our community will continue to develop quality places by 
maintaining and enhancing our built, historic, and natural                      
environmental assets that project an image of Pioneer Pride.  
 

Policy 3.2.A: Maintain Downtown as the commercial center by directing the greatest share of future           
commercial development to the downtown.  

 

Policy 3.2.B: Focus commercial development in areas that have good transportation access and support the 
development of multiple uses.  

 

Policy 3.2.C: Identify and preserve historically significant structures and sites in the community.   

 

Policy 3.2.D: Encourage infill development on vacant and underutilized sites, particularly within the          
downtown area.  

 

Policy 3.2.E: Promote compatible infill and redevelopment that fits Gering’s neighborhoods and is consistent 
with the desired future character of the area.  

 

Policy 3.2.F: Enhance Gering’s gateways and create a common vision for these areas.  

 

Policy 3.2.G: Require mitigation of the impacts of growth on service levels.  

 

Policy 3.2.H: Improve the appearance of the community.  

 

Policy 3.2.I: Create opportunities for neighborhood serving businesses to locate in neighborhood centers.  

 

Policy 3.2.J: Continue to invest in quality city facilities including the Civic Center, Civic Plaza, Amphitheater 
and Library.  

 

 



Plan Gering    42 

 

Principle 3.3: Our community will create a network to give our kids a 
way to find their way back home. 
 

Policy 3.3.A: Promote what’s great about Gering to support retention of youth and recruitment of young    
professionals.  

 

Policy 3.3.B: Develop a diversified economy that supports well-paying jobs and provides jobs at a spectrum of 
income levels.  

 

Policy 3.3.C: Continue to strengthen partnerships with organizations such as the Library and School District to 
educate Gering’s youth and provide opportunities for growth for future generations.  



Plan Gering    43 

 

Meaningful Connections reflects our desire to be a 
connected community. We want to be physically, 
technologically, and socially connected. The poli-
cies under this value will help to encourage active 
transportation by promoting infrastructure that 
accommodates multiple modes; will help expand 
our technological infrastructure to increase access 
to information and facilitate better communica-
tion, and; will promote social connectivity by cre-
ating gathering places and neighborhoods that 
bring people together. The following principles 
and policies lay out how we are going to achieve 
Meaningful Connections. 

 

Meaningful  
Connections 



Plan Gering    44 

 

Principle 4.1: Our community will provide a well-connected and         
balanced transportation system. 
 

Policy  4.1.A: Multiple modes of transportation will be considered for street improvement projects with          
priority given to routes that enable adults and children to safely ride from home to civic destinations.  

 

Policy 4.1.B: Design streetscapes to support a pedestrian friendly, high-quality and distinctive environment.  

 

Policy 4.1.C: Continue to create opportunities for people to use alternate modes of transportation to reach 
destinations. 

 

 

 



Plan Gering    45 

 

Principle 4.2: Our community will maximize technology platforms to 
minimize distance between Gering and the world.  
 

Policy 4.2.A: Encourage expansion of technological infrastructure to serve and connect the community. 

 

Policy 4.2.B: Establish a technology platform that connects employers to candidates and allows candidates to 
find jobs in the community.  

 

Policy 4.2.C: Continue to partner with and support community organizations that invest in technology and  
provide access to digital resources to further knowledge for members of the community.   



Plan Gering    46 

 

Principle 4.3: Our community will improve social connections through 
support of community gatherings and public spaces that promote the 
history and culture of Gering.  
 

Policy 4.3.A: Create social opportunities where people can meet, interact, and experience Gering.  

 

Policy 4.3.B: Continue traditions and community events that celebrate the character of Gering and provide a 
strong sense of community pride for residents.  

 

Policy 4.3.C: Develop a diverse network of public spaces for a variety of activities and user groups.  

 

Policy 4.3.D: Continue to support and partner with community organizations that provide places for people 
to meet and interact.  

 



Plan Gering    47 

 

Principle 4.4: Our community will ensure that new public facilities and 
updates to older facilities will consider universal design principles. 
 

Policy 4.4.A: All new community facilities should incorporate universal design principles. 

 

Policy 4.4.B: Encourage the use of universal design principles when updating and remodeling existing          
facilities. 



Plan Gering    48 

 

04 
Shaping Gering 



Plan Gering    49 

 

One of the goals of Plan Gering is to provide a framework that is flexible enough to respond to changing     
conditions and needs in the community. The District Framework aims to strike a balance between the need 
for flexibility and the aspirations of the community regarding future characteristics of the varied places that 
make up Gering. The District Framework is a context-sensitive approach to implementing the community    
vision. It divides the community into 11 Districts– areas with similar patterns, functions, and characteristics. 
Rather than assigning a specific land use designation to each property, the District approach identifies the 
Existing Characteristics of the area along with Future Desired Characteristics. These statements identify what 
type and scale of development is currently present, along with patterns that should be reinforced over time. 
Plan Gering is designed to be flexible and allow variations from Future Desired Characteristics in specific in-
stances when in the best interest of the City of Gering, or to reflect changing characteristics of an area. 
 
Each District also includes a thumbnail land use map which illustrates distinctions of use and intensity within 
the District more specifically. Designations could include places where higher densities may be appropriate or 
where distinctive use transitions exist. Some Districts also may include a designation of community Nodes.  
These locations indicate places that may be more appropriate for a higher intensity and diversity of uses that 
support the overall character of the District. Nodes located in predominantly residential areas could be     
considered for neighborhood service uses and other commercial development that fits the scale and intensity 
of the area. Taken together, the District Framework should illustrate what we want each district to look like 
and how we expect it to function. The Future Places map found on page 53 is a composite of all of the dis-
tricts and includes three individual elements– land use, intensity, and nodes– described below.   
 

 
 
 
 

 LAND USE 

 
Residential– Areas where a balanced mix of housing 
is promoted, allowing for a wide range of housing 
types.   
 
Mixed Use– Areas where there are a variety of retail, 
service, employment, entertainment, and cultural 
destinations with residential development.  
 
Historic Core– The focal point of the community 
where development encourages preservation of the    
cultural and historic character of Gering.  
 
Commercial– Areas where there are a range of     
commercial uses which serve the needs of the      
community. 
 
Industrial– Areas with uses that have large           
employment bases and have the potential to create 
noise, smoke, and/or odor.  

4.1    
District Framework 

 INTENSITY LAYER 

 
High Density– Areas where high-density housing is 
encouraged near major corridors or near a mix of 
other uses, but exceptions to this general encour-
agement may be appropriate.   
 
Low Density– Areas where large-lot, single family 
detached dwelling units are encouraged, but ex-
ceptions to this general encouragement may be 
appropriate.  

 NODE 

 
Commercial Nodes– Mixed-use places of 
varying scales. Some commercial nodes are 
well-connected to nearby neighborhoods 
and are supported by neighborhood resi-
dents while others are larger and attract 
people from larger geographic areas. Nodes 
indicated in Plan Gering suggest possible 
commercial locations, but other commercial 
locations may be appropriate even if not 
indicated by a Node. 



Plan Gering    50 

 

Zone Changes 
The District Framework is intended to help with incremental, site-specific determinations of policy               
applicability by defining the types of development that may be appropriate within each district. When a new 
zoning district is being proposed for a site, the Future Places Map should be used along with the land use    
table from Section 3.11 in the Zoning Regulations to guide which zone districts are appropriate. The scale and 
form information identified in the land use compatibility table provides a general sense of scale for new de-
velopment but is not intended to be prescriptive in nature. 
 
When transitioning between different land uses, new development should respect and complement existing 
development such as adjacent neighborhoods. Establishing harmonious transitions requires looking at the 
context, building setbacks, heights, and orientation of neighboring areas, as well as design elements such as 
building massing, lighting, location of parking, and landscaping. The figure below will help to guide               
compatibility of different land uses and create a land use pattern that prevents conflict between adjacent  
uses.  
 
 
COMPATIBILITY CONSIDERATIONS 

 
 

CONTEXT • Does the building & use have similar operational characteristics, hours of service, user groups? 

SETBACKS • Is there a distinct setback that all (or nearly all) buildings adhere to? 

• Are there many different setbacks visible? 

• Consider buildings next to and across the street.  

HEIGHT • Is the proposed building height within 1-2 stories of existing neighbors? 

• Are there increased setbacks to minimize the impact of height on neighboring buildings? 

• Consider buildings adjacent, behind and across the street.  

ORIENTATION • Do buildings access from the street or alley? 

MASSING • Does the level of detail match the character of existing buildings? 

• Is the bulk of the building similar? 

LANDSCAPING • Does any proposed landscaping help mitigate or buffer the impact of the use? 

PARKING • Is the parking located in a way that minimizes visibility and impact on neighbors? 

• Is the parking similar in number of spaces to neighbors? 

• Would demand for parking exhaust the available on-street supply? 

LIGHTING • Does the lighting cause glare beyond the property boundary? 

• Would shielded lighting mitigate off-site impacts? 



Plan Gering    51 

 

Annexations 
To ensure future growth is in alignment with the values of the community, Plan Gering seeks to manage 
growth by prioritizing infill opportunities and directing development to areas that are readily serviceable with 
utilities or to areas where infrastructure is planned. In order to develop in a way that balances infrastructure 
opportunities and system management equitably, areas that currently have access to water and sewer       
utilities should be prioritized for annexation. Additionally, focusing growth in areas that already have access 
to utilities will help Gering to increase the overall utilization of infrastructure without adding maintenance 
burden. This can serve to delay possible cost increases that are passed along to customers.  
 
Additional focus should be placed on annexing unincorporated islands that are already served by City         
services. Annexing these islands can help reduce jurisdictional confusion and improve response times,      
thereby enhancing public safety.  
 
When considering annexation, Gering should consider the following:  
 
1)The potential for enhancing public safety, 2) providing municipal services where water quality is a concern, 
3) potential impacts– both positive and negative– on tax base and public services, and 4) whether the         
annexation enhances  the overall efficiency of the infrastructure system.  
 
Based upon these recommendations, the following priority areas for annexation have been identified.  (See 
map on next page.) 
 
• Immediate Term: These areas include unincorporated islands within existing municipal boundaries where 

municipal services are currently available. Additional priorities are roads where only half the right-of-way 
is annexed. 

 
• Medium Term: These areas include unincorporated islands where City services are not currently          

available and areas slated for growth. These growth areas are best optimized for residential, commercial, 
and industrial development. Annexation of these areas could help encourage and guide investment. 

 
• Long Term: These areas are not currently positioned for development but could see investment in the 

future. 



Plan Gering    52



Plan Gering    53



Plan Gering    54 

District 1 
Northwest Monument Neighborhood District 

Existing Characteristics 
The Northwest Monument Neighborhood District is characterized 
by low density, large lot housing, ranging from small to, large-lot 
subdivisions to large estate properties. The housing in this area is 
clustered and  organized along the golf course with irregular block 
patterns on curvilinear streets, with little to no connectivity      
between neighborhood areas. The district contains some medium 
density housing patterns in the southern portion along M Street.  

Access to residences is via driveways with alleys being present in a few of the neighborhoods. There is a mix 
of attached and detached garage forms. Buildings are set back at varied distances.  

Open space is plentiful due to the large golf course and private yards in the front and rear of the residences. 

Future Desired Characteristics 
A future goal is to maintain the open space feel of the district while promoting single family home      
development and integrating some denser residential housing forms/formats. Accessory dwelling units and 
compatible two-unit uses are appropriate and could be thoughtfully integrated into the existing      
neighborhoods or planned as new clusters. Key intersections in this District, including but not limited to the 
northwest corner of Five Rocks Road and Country Club Road, may be appropriate for commercial uses such as 
neighborhood serving retail and/or for higher density housing. Commercial uses should be limited to the 
needs of the residents with the goal of reducing trips and should be located in small clusters along arterials 
and at arterial/collector intersections.  

Whether small or large, future development should continue to preserve and enhance the natural and scenic 
resources present in the district. Scenic view sheds that highlight the nearby Monument should be preserved 
and integrated into the development pattern.  



Plan Gering    55 

District 1: Northwest Monument Neighborhood District 
Future Places 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Residential: The predominant use is 
residential, with an emphasis on Low 
to Medium intensities. All intensities of 
residential development can be      
accommodated, although higher      
intensity residential uses may not be 
appropriate in all areas. Appropriate 
locations to introduce additional     
intensity are at select sites along     
arterial and collector streets or       
intersections.  

Commercial Node: Small footprint and 
lower scale commercial uses that act 
to support the neighborhood may be   
appropriate at key intersections and in 
higher traffic areas. Commercial uses 
should be consistent with the charac-
ter of the area in scale and design.  

Neighborhood and community based 
public/semi-public facilities—places of 
worship; public safety facilities; 
schools.  

Neighborhood parks, trails, and  
recreational facilities.  

Primary Zoning 

R1 Low Density  
Residential  

R2 Medium Density  
Residential  

R3 High Density 
Residential  

C1 Neighborhood  
Commercial  

Land Use 

Residential 

Intensity 

Low Density 

Higher Density 

Node 

Commercial Node 



Plan Gering    56 

 

District 2 
West Gering Neighborhood District 

Existing Characteristics 
West Gering is made up of single-family detached residential uses 
on medium sized lots. In the northern portion of the district, lots 
are wide and deep and generally rectangular in shape. The     
southern portion of the district contains smaller lot sizes that are 
narrow and deep, typical of a traditional urban neighborhood.   
The district has a mix of suburban and urban block patterns, with 
streets being long and rectangular in the northern portion,       
transitioning to a grid in the southern portion.  

Access to residences is from driveways with alleys in the rear. Attached garages are predominant in the north 
while detached garage forms are more typical in the southern portion of the district, with buildings set back 
from the street. Access is mostly from local streets with good connectivity for all modes.  
 
Open space is in the form of private yards and small parks. Northfield, Legion, Gardner, and Gentry Parks are 
all located in this district. A trail stretches east-west through the district, connecting 21st Street and Pacific 
Boulevard.  
 
Neighborhood support uses include parks and open space system elements, schools, retirement centers and 
assembly type uses.   
 
Future Desired Characteristics 
A primary focus of the district should be to provide quality multimodal connectivity allowing residents to walk 
and bike comfortably and safely to neighborhood and near-by destinations. Focus should be on sidewalk            
enhancements and physical linkages within and between neighborhoods, and design that facilitates             
pedestrian and bicycle transportation. Street trees should be encouraged throughout the district to enhance 
neighborhood character and encourage people to walk to nearby destinations. Multimodal options become 
more important closer to Downtown Gering and along arterials and collectors in this district.  
 
Additional goal should be to maintain and enhance the character of the area. Infill development of vacant lots 
and reinvestment and improvements to existing homes will help ensure the district continues to be a          
desirable place to live.  
 



Plan Gering    57 

 

District 2: West Gering Neighborhood Dis-
trict 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Residential: The predominant use is 
residential, with an emphasis on      
Medium density. Two-unit residential 
may be dispersed throughout the     
district with areas along or at            
intersections of arterials or collectors 
being appropriate locations to          
introduce low– to mid-scale multi-unit 
residential options.  
 
Commercial Node: Small scale       
commercial and mixed use may be   
appropriate at arterial and collector 
street intersections. Commercial uses 
should be consistent with the          
character of the area in scale and     
design and provide neighborhood 
based support functions.  
 
Neighborhood and community based 
public/semi-public facilities– places of 
worship; public safety facilities; 
schools.  
 
Neighborhood parks, trails, and recrea-
tional facilities.  

Primary Zoning 

R1 Low Density            
Residential  
 
R2 Medium Density    
Residential  
 
R3 High Density           
Residential  
 
 
C1 Neighborhood              
Commercial  
 
 

Land Use 

Residential 

Node 

Commercial Node 



Plan Gering    58 

 

District 3 
Southwest Gering Neighborhood District 

Existing Characteristics 
The Southwest Gering Neighborhood District is predominately  
single-family detached residential uses on medium sized lots.   
Several small-scale multifamily uses are located off of M Street 
with neighborhood serving uses such as medical, schools, parks, 
and churches embedded throughout the district. Individual lots 
are wide and deep resulting in longer rectangular blocks. Front 
loaded driveways with alleys in the rear are typical with buildings 
set back from the street.  

There is a high degree of interconnectedness yet limited multimodal choices. The wider lots and longer blocks 
make travel by car most convenient for trips due to the separation between land uses. However the proximi-
ty of the district to the Downtown, coupled with its relatively low density, should allow pedestrians and     
cyclists to share roads with vehicles in order to access downtown amenities.         
 
A large community serving park and ball park are located within the district.  
 
Future Desired Characteristics 
The district includes some multifamily uses along M Street but contains predominately single-family detached 
housing forms. An important goal within the district will be to develop a variety of housing types and         
densities, including duplexes, tri-plexes and multifamily housing. Generally speaking, higher density housing 
should be located along major streets or intersections with transit availability, or within or adjacent to      
commercial or mixed-use areas as a buffer between single-family neighborhoods and areas of commerce   
activities. Duplexes and tri-plexes can be blended and integrated throughout the neighborhood as part of an 
overall mix of housing.  
 
New residential development should maintain a gridded street pattern with alleys to shift garage and parking 
access away from the street. As new residential areas are developed, sidewalks with street trees should be            
incorporated as well as multimodal linkages so residents can access key community amenities by foot, bike, 
or transit, including parks, schools, and commercial activity nodes. The large vacant piece of land located on 
the southeast corner of M Street and Five Rocks Road is well suited for a commercial node that includes an          
assemblage of neighborhood serving uses such as convenience and small retail, professional services, food 
establishments, daycares and other uses that are compatible with the nearby residential. Commercial devel-
opment should be encouraged along and north of Highway 71, with appropriate buffers between new com-
mercial development and nearby residential. 



Plan Gering    59 

 

District 3: Southwest Gering Neighborhood District 
Future Places 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Residential: The district is envisioned 
to contain a variety of residential     
densities and residential types.        
Existing residential should be          
maintained and enhanced whenever 
possible. New residential development 
should include a mix of low– to mid-
scale multi-unit residential options. 
Small-scale multi-unit buildings are 
appropriate to intersperse between 
single– and two-unit residential with 
mid-scale multi-unit appropriate along 
heavier trafficked areas.  
 
Commercial Node: Mixed-use along 
arterial/collector streets as well as im-
portant intersections may be appropri-
ate. Small-scale commercial with a mix 
of medium and smaller scale buildings 
may be appropriate near the intersec-
tion of M Street and Five Rocks Road. 
Transitions from the commercial activi-
ty node to nearby residential will be an 
important consideration.  
 
Neighborhood and community based 
public/semi-public facilities– places of 
worship; public safety facilities; 
schools. 
 
Neighborhood parks, trails, and        
recreational facilities.  

Primary Zoning 

R1 Low Density            
Residential  
 
R2 Medium Density    
Residential  
 
R3 High Density           
Residential  
 
 
 
 
 
 
C1 Neighborhood              
Commercial  
 
 

Land Use 

Residential 

Intensity 

Higher Density 

Node 

Commercial Node 



Plan Gering    60 

 

District 4 
East Gering Neighborhood District 

Access to residences are taken from driveways with alleys in the rear. Both attached and detached garage 
forms are present in the district, with buildings set back from the street. Access is primarily from local and 
collector streets with good connectivity for all modes.  
 
Open space is in the form of private yards and neighborhood parks.  
 
Secondary uses include parks and open space systems, schools, retirement centers and assembly uses.   
 
Future Desired Characteristics 
As new neighborhoods are developed, inclusion of a variety of housing types and densities at various price 
points should be prioritized. The district has a considerable amount of vacant land providing opportunities for 
new housing, which should include a compatible mix of single-family on different lot sizes, as well as town-
homes, condominiums, and apartments that are designed to fit the context of nearby housing and neighbor-
hoods serving a mix of incomes. Higher density housing should be located along major roads such as M Street 
and 10th Street. Parks should be incorporated into new neighborhoods in addition to other community facili-
ties where appropriate. Alternative transportation connections should be provided to the Downtown area 
and other key destinations.  
 
 
 

Existing Characteristics 
Eastern Gering neighborhoods consist primarily of single-family 
detached residential uses on small to medium lots, with a few two
– to three-unit uses integrated within several of the neighbor-
hoods. The district also has a  mix of low– to mid-scale multi-unit 
residential options clustered together on select sites throughout 
the district. The district has urban block patterns close to down-
town transitioning to longer block patterns as you move east and 
south across the district. Detached sidewalks are prevalent in 
blocks near downtown with attached sidewalks in the newer de-
veloped residential areas.  



Plan Gering    61 

 

District 4: East Gering Neighborhood Dis-
trict 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Residential: New residential  
development should consist of 
detached single-family homes on 
small lots, as well as a range of 
attached units (duplex, tri-plex, 
townhomes) and standalone apart-
ments or condominium style build-
ings with up to four units. Vacant 
lots located near major roads would 
be appropriate for higher density 
housing, 
including mid-scale apartment build-
ings of eight units. 
 
Neighborhood and community based 
public/semi-public facilities– places 
of worship; public safety; schools.  
 
Neighborhood parks, trails, and        
recreational facilities.  

Primary Zoning 

R1 Low Density            
Residential  
 
R2 Medium Density    
Residential  
 
R3 High Density           
Residential  
 

 

 

 

Land Use 

Residential 

Intensity 

Higher Density 



Plan Gering    62 

 

District 5 
Five Rocks Agriculture/Residential District 

Existing Characteristics 
The Five Rocks District contains a large amount of undeveloped 
agricultural area. This area is anchored by the presence of the Five 
Rocks Amphitheater public use area. This area may remain        
undeveloped for a long period of time and would not be expected 
to be served by utilities– lots should be large enough to              
accommodate wells and septic.  

Future Desired Characteristics 
The primary future use of this area will remain agricultural and public use oriented as development is not  
anticipated in the near future. The scale of any future development should be rural in character with large 
lots or clustered residential neighborhoods that integrate open space. Residential development should be 
designed to preserve the scenic viewsheds to the west/southwest/south with a priority on maintaining views 
to the Monument whenever possible. The street network will consist of low volume local streets without any 
pedestrian or other alternative mode accommodations.  



Plan Gering    63 

 

District 5: Five Rocks Agriculture/Residential District 
Future Places 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Agricultural 
 
Residential: Large-lot, low density   
single-family residential and residential 
supportive of agricultural uses.  
 
 
Commercial Node: Commercial uses at 
key intersections including Kimball & 
Five Rocks Road. 
 
Public use areas for community        
activities/events and trail connections. 

Primary Zoning 

AG Agricultural  
 
RR Rural Residential  
 
R1 Low Density             
Residential  
 
C1 Neighborhood       
Commercial  

Land Use 

Residential 

Intensity 

Lower Density 

Node 

Commercial Node 



Plan Gering    64 

 

District 6 
Gering Valley Agriculture/Residential District 

Existing Characteristics 
The Gering Valley District is characterized by a rural dispersed   
development pattern with single-family homes on large parcels. 
The district is removed from the core of the community and is sur-
rounded by agricultural land. The scale of development is rural in 
character with large portions of the lots being undeveloped. The 
district is not serviced by city utilities and is not appropriate for 
expansion. 

Future Desired Characteristics 
The priority of this district is to preserve agricultural land and rural characteristics. Buildings and sites should 
be designed to complement the character of the surrounding area and should not detract from the open         
character of the landscape. Accessory buildings, home businesses, contractor and other small-scale             
agricultural uses that do not detract from the surrounding agricultural character may be appropriate.  
 
While there is no expectation for the provision of urban infrastructure, the City may look to provide a trail 
connection to the district to provide some form of pedestrian connectivity if strongly desired by residents.  



Plan Gering    65 

 

District 6: Gering Valley Agriculture/Residential District 
Future Places 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Agricultural 
 
Residential: Rural large-lot, low  
density single-family residential.  
Residential supportive of agricultural 
uses.   

Primary Zoning 

AG Agricultural  
 
AEDS Agricultural Estate 
 
RR Rural Residential 

Land Use 

Residential 

Intensity 

Lower Density 



Plan Gering    66 

 

District 7 
North Platte River Residential District 

Existing Characteristics 
The North Platte River District is characterized by single-family  
residential units on large parcels. The district is adjacent to the  
River and contains riparian habitat and open spaces which provides 
a unique physical context. Existing properties are not connected to 
City water and sewer, and are serviced by individual well and septic 
systems.  

Future Desired Characteristics 
Development should be designed to protect and enhance the riparian habitat and should work with the     
topography and other natural features. New housing should continue to convey a high level of quality and 
distinctive character by providing variety in the design and placement of homes, and incorporating             
landscaping; a variety of architectural styles and placement of features, such as garages, that will help          
distinguish the district. Low density development is desirable in this district and may take the form of large 
lot development or clustered development patterns which incorporate open space. Development should    
leverage the benefits of the riparian environment and floodplain as recreation and wetland areas. Best    
practices should be used to mitigate potential impacts from stormwater runoff. Appropriate development 
will protect natural features and sensitive areas and help preserve open space. While lower density              
development is more desirable in the floodplain, all development should be property elevated and properly 
located, with no development occurring in the floodway.  
 
A future goal within this district is to provide pedestrian connectivity in the form of a trail that connects to 
the City’s existing trail system. Consideration of a water trail along the River would create an additional      
community amenity. Providing access to and promotion of the River as a recreational asset will further       
contribute to the City’s network of public spaces.  
 

 

 



Plan Gering    67 

 

District 7: North Platte River Residential District 
Future Places 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Residential: Low density residential 
which includes a variety of large-lot 
and/or clustered residential estate 
properties.  
 
Public open space and trails as part of 
and connecting the residential         
development to the city wide trail   
system. 
 
Rural to suburban level street,        
sidewalk, stormwater and other       
infrastructure improvements as       
appropriate.   

Primary Zoning 

RR Rural Residential  
 
R1 Low Density         
Residential  

Land Use 

Residential 

Intensity 

Lower Density 



Plan Gering    68 

 

District 8 
Downtown Gering District 

Existing Characteristics 
Downtown Gering represents the center of business and           
government activity that provides opportunities for shopping,  
dining, conducting professional business, social gatherings, and 
experiencing Gering’s unique history and culture. The district is 
organized around 10th Street which is dominated by non-
residential uses and surrounded by neighborhoods to the east, 
west, and south. Downtown Gering is the heart of the community. 

Future Desired Characteristics 
The goal within this district is to create a vibrant mixed-use area by accommodating a variety of uses and 
amenities. Commercial uses should be located primarily on the first floor of buildings with residential                 
and office uses appropriate on upper floors above retail storefronts.  
 
A number of vacant and underutilized properties are present downtown that would benefit from                 
redevelopment, revitalization and reinvestment. Priority should be given to increasing residential                 
opportunities that will help increase activity levels and support local businesses as well as feed uses such as      
restaurants and retail shops. For new structures, buildings should be consistent in scale and design with a       
variety of two- and three-story buildings that already exist in this district. Buildings should be located near 
the street while off-street parking is primarily placed behind or to the side of buildings with minimal street or 
no frontage along 10th Street on public lots in a manner that supplements the on-street parking pattern. 
Downtown should have an active street level presence and contain a good mix of commercial, retail,            
restaurant/entertainment, office and residential uses.  
 
Public realm improvements, such as consistent lighting, streetscape, landscaping and other features that aid 
in increased pedestrian comfort and safety, are of great importance. Downtown should prioritize pedestrians 
and enhance pedestrian connections to surrounding residential neighborhoods. 
 
Entryways into the Downtown should be strengthened to reinforce and define the overall identity and image 
of Downtown. Improvements should include landscaping, signage and other visual features.  



Plan Gering    69 

 

District 8: Downtown Gering District 
Future Places 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Mixed Use and Historic Core: Mixed-
use center for commerce, government  
administration, civic venues and     
spaces, restaurants/entertainment, 
residential, and tourism uses.  
 
Multiple story formats which may in-
clude commerce related activities on 
the first floor and office/residential 
uses on upper floors.  
 
Public parking provided on-street and 
in off-street parking lots located      
behind or to the side of buildings with 
minimum street frontage.  
 
Zero setback development pattern.  
 
Urban level density and intensity of 
activity.   

Primary Zoning 

C2 Central Business 
District  
 
C1 Neighborhood    
Commercial  
 

Land Use 

Mixed Use 

Historic Core 



Plan Gering    70 

 

District 9 
10th Street Commerce & Industry District 

Existing Characteristics 
This Commerce and Industry District is the northern gateway into 
the community from Scottsbluff and serves as a transition area 
between two downtown areas. The district is and will continue to 
be defined by its civic, commercial and lighter industrial functions 
and character. The district is largely built out and consists of lots      
accommodating a variety of uses along 10th Street. The              
remainder of the district is influenced by increases in industrial 
use intensity that requires more land for equipment and material 
storage.  

Future Desired Characteristics 
Efforts to enhance the appearance of the district as a part of the northern gateway into Gering should be   
encouraged. While industrial development is suitable throughout the district, individual lots should have 
landscaping to mitigate impacts to adjacent uses of lower intensity and provide appropriate buffering along 
highly travelled roadways.  
 
Streetscape features within the right-of-way will be minimal with an emphasis on reinforcing safety and    
functional elements related to both motorized and non-motorized movement in the area. Defined 
streetscape elements such as street lighting, traffic signalization lights, medians, transit furnishings, wide 
sidewalks with connections to adjacent uses will help create a district ‘feel’ by improving the functions of fa-
cilities in the right-of-way and complementing landscape buffering enhancements along the frontage of prop-
erty in the district.  
 
As large vacant parcels accommodate industrial and commercial service uses, landscape and distance        
buffering should be used to separate such uses from adjacent residential uses.  
 
  



Plan Gering    71 

 

District 9: 10th Street Commerce & Industry District 
Future Places 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Commercial: Auto-oriented and  
other commercial businesses and                
restaurants. Municipal uses.            
Light industrial manufacturing,      
warehousing distribution uses.  
 
Mixed Use: Commercial services and 
other uses such as multifamily that 
help transition the commercial and 
industrial uses to the existing             
residential uses in District 2.  
 
 

Primary Zoning 

C3 Regional Commercial  
 
M1 Light Industrial 
 
 

Land Use 

Commercial  

Mixed Use 



Plan Gering    72 

 

District 10 
Gering Employment District 

Existing Characteristics 
The Gering Employment District is located on the eastern           
perimeter of the city and runs north of the railroad. This district 
consists of a mixture of primarily employment uses and vacant 
land. The employment uses range from commercial services to 
office to trucking to warehousing/ distribution to fabrication/ 
manufacturing. The district has convenient rail and road access to 
Highways 26, 71, and 92. The district is essential for Gering’s     
economic stability and future growth.  

Future Desired Characteristics 
This district is intended to accommodate future employment uses seeking adequate space. The goal of the 
district is to preserve land that has attributes crucial to future industrial development, such as proximity to 
highway and rail access. A broad range of employment uses including manufacturing, warehousing and      
distribution, business and office parks, and office/industrial flex buildings are appropriate. New development 
that is higher in intensity would be concentrated away from residential areas. The district would support 
commercial uses for the purpose of serving employee and business needs. These commercial uses should be 
located at key arterial intersections or interchanges within the district. Enhancements in the district should 
be concentrated on gateway and streetscape features to help strengthen the visual character of Gering’s 
eastern entryway at the Highway 72/ 91 interchange and along M Street. Properties and buildings along M 
Street should incorporate design features to enhance and improve the visual character of the corridor.   
 
Commercial, office, or retail development is appropriate at the interchange of Highways 92 and 71 and the 
intersection of Highway 71 and U Street to support and strengthen major employment uses. These            
commercial nodes will act as the eastern gateway into the City and could include highway commercial as 
well.  
 
Low maintenance landscaping and screening at the site perimeter and along street exposures is encouraged 
to mitigate visual and operational impact. This landscape/open space area may also be used to address 
stormwater quantity and quality issues.   
 
Land uses such as single-family residential, schools, or civic uses are not appropriate within this district.  



Plan Gering    73 

 

District 10: Gering Employment District 
Future Places 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Commercial Node: Commercial uses 
supporting employment uses at        
arterial intersections and interchanges. 
 
Commercial services. 
 
Highway commercial at Highway 71/92 
and M Street. 
 
Commercial uses at Highway 71 and U 
Street. 
 
Industrial: Light industrial                 
manufacturing, warehousing,            
distribution. 
 
Heavy industrial. 
 
Office and other employment uses. 
 
Business and industrial parks.  

Primary Zoning 

C3 Regional Commercial  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M1 Light Industrial 
 
M2 Heavy Industrial 
 
 

Land Use 

Industrial 

Node 

Commercial Node 



Plan Gering    74 

 

District 11 
East Gering Industrial District 

Existing Characteristics 
The East Gering Industrial District rounds out the priority areas 
within the City reserved for commercial and industrial uses. The 
district has great highway access and accommodates industrial 
uses that are difficult to integrate with less intense uses. The     
district is bounded on the west by residential, and the north, east, 
and south by vacant/agricultural land. 

Future Desired Characteristics 
The goal of the district is to preserve land that has attributes crucial to industrial development, such as      
proximity to highway and rail access. New development that is higher in intensity should be concentrated 
away from residential areas. While much of the western edge is already developed, mitigation controls 
should be used to screen the industrial uses from the adjacent residential neighborhood.  
 
Major arterial frontages should be heavily landscaped and buildings along M Street should consider              
incorporating design features to enhance and improve the visual character of the corridor.   
 
Commercial, office, or retail development is appropriate at the interchange of Highways 92 and 71 to support 
and strengthen major employment uses. This commercial node will act as the eastern gateway into the City 
and could include highway commercial uses as well. 



Plan Gering    75 

 

District 11: East Gering Industrial District 
Future Places 

Land Use Scale & Form 

Commercial Node: Commercial uses 
supporting employment uses at        
arterial intersections and interchanges. 
 
Commercial services. 
 
Highway commercial at Highway 71/92 
and M Street. 
 
Industrial: Light industrial                
manufacturing, warehousing,            
distribution. 
 
Heavy industrial. 
 
Office and other employment uses. 
 
Business and industrial parks.  

Primary Zoning 

C3 Regional Commercial  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M1 Light Industrial 
 
M2 Heavy Industrial 
 
 

 

Land Use 

Industrial 

Node 

Commercial Node 



Plan Gering    76 

 

Within the City of Gering we value the ability to move from place-to-place in a convenient and safe manner.  
Our mobility network is defined by a variety of transportation modes and experiences. In Gering, citizens and 
visitors should feel comfortable walking, biking, and using public transportation in addition to driving          
personal vehicles. The mobility network is built upon a desire to have an interconnected system that          
provides not only convenient and safe options for getting from place-to-place but also enhances the quality 
of our commerce and employment areas, and residential neighborhoods. 
 
Much of our time and money is spent getting from one place to another. Therefore, it is important to provide 
a positive functional and visual experience for all users of our mobility network. Impressions regarding our 
community are formed by what is seen and experienced on the journey to a destination. Commerce in Gering 
is impacted by the ability to move goods and products in addition to people in, out and through our           
community. The appropriate design of the mobility network takes into consideration the context of its      
components balancing aesthetic and functional priorities. 
 
The Principles and Policies in Section 3 – Community Vision provide an outline of several important             
considerations that relate to transportation. For a full description of each policy and principle, please refer-
ence Section 3, but the list below includes the transportation-related highlights: 
 
Policy 1.4.D: While the river frontage isn’t extensive in Gering, the river is a recreation asset. Access along the 
river should be provided to support recreation and transportation connections.  
 
Policy 1.7.A: Coordinate capital improvement planning to improve pedestrian and bicycle connections to and 
within key open spaces, parks and public facilities. 
 
Policy 1.7.C: Continue to create a series of pathways and greenways that link parks and recreational        
amenities within Gering and connect them to adjacent lands and natural amenities such as the Monument 
and North Platte River.  
 
Policy 2.1.C: Prioritize investment in infrastructure that supports the economic health of the community. 
 
Policy 3.2.F: Enhance Gering’s gateways and create a common vision for these areas. 
 
Policy 4.1.A: Multiple modes of transportation will be considered for street improvement projects with          
priority given to routes that enable adults and children to safely ride from home to civic destinations.  

4.2 
Transportation Framework 



Plan Gering    77 

 

Policy 4.1.B: Design streetscapes to support a pedestrian friendly, high-quality and distinctive environment.  
 
Policy 4.1.C: Continue to create opportunities for people to use alternate modes of transportation to reach 
destinations.  
 
A few of these are critical to advancing Gering’s goals related to the foundation of Creating Meaningful      
Connections. Specifically, Principle 4.1 states: Our community will provide a well-connected and balanced 
transportation system. The following policies will require support to advance the vision: 
 
Policy 4.1.A: Multiple modes of transportation will be considered for street improvement projects.  
 
What this policy means for Gering: In a community like Gering where large street reconstruction projects only 
take place once-in-a-while, transportation improvements are more likely to happen incrementally over many 
years. As yearly maintenance programs are being developed, consider each project from a multi-modal     
perspective early in the process, and prior to setting a budget. Review whether there are any “quick fixes” 
that can help to make a project better for cyclists, pedestrians and transit users. For instance:  
 
• A road resurfacing project is a great time to consider the addition of bike lanes and crosswalks. 

• When repairing curb & gutter, consider installing missing sidewalk links. 
• If repairing traffic signals, consider installing pedestrian countdown timers. 
 
A wide variety of treatments can help to make our transportation network more accessible and functional for 
many users. Many helpful documents can be found at the Institute of Transportation Engineers. 
 
Policy 4.1.B: Design streetscapes to support a pedestrian friendly, high-quality and distinctive                    
environment.   
 
What this policy means for Gering: Streets are everywhere in Gering, and the goal of improving them all is a 
bold vision. However, acknowledging the fact that budgets are limited, we have to prioritize our investments.  
This Plan presents a system of context-based street options. This system is complementary to the traditional 
functional-classification system. Considering both, the context of a street and the functional classification, is 
important to help in determining the level of investment necessary in any particular location. Where new 
streets are constructed, like in the case of a new neighborhood development being added to Gering, new 
streets should consider the cross-sections included in this Plan for local roads.    
 



Plan Gering    78 

 

Similarly, where new industrial streets are being constructed, designing to meet this policy should be         
considered. When modifications are made to existing roads in Gering, streetscapes should be evaluated to 
identify those that will have the greatest impact on users, while presenting a high-quality impression of the 
community.   
  
Modifying the requirements in the City’s code to specify which areas require higher standards is a key next 
step.  Creating a matrix which identifies basic minimums and quality additions will help set the foundation of       
requirements for streetscapes like sidewalks, street trees, and lighting. Additional options could be presented 
in a handbook format to help demonstrate the value of these items to property owners.   
 
Policy 4.1.C: Continue to create opportunities for people to use alternate modes of transportation 
to reach destinations. 
 
What this policy means for Gering: Improving transportation requires a wholistic view of considering the   
mobility needs of different modes. Putting yourself in the shoes of a cyclist, a walker, a transit-user can be a 
great way to understand the needs of these community stakeholders.   
 
Consider holding a mobility workshop with each of the alternative modes of transportation. Walk to school 
with students, join a cyclist on their morning ride to work, hop on the Roadrunner to purchase your weekly 
groceries. This type of insight can help identify the small (and probably large) elements that are missing from 
the system.   
 
For cyclists, are there: 
• bike racks at key destinations to safely secure their bike? 

• repair stations along pathways to fix a flat? 

• bike lanes and signs on designated streets to elevate awareness and safety? 
 
For pedestrians, are there:  
• direct connections to destinations, connecting public sidewalks with business entrances? 

• detached sidewalks with trees to help buffer walkers from traffic, while also providing shade? 

• benches at regular intervals offering a place to rest? 



Plan Gering    79 

 

For transit users, are there: 
• clearly designated stops, with benches, windbreaks, and lighting? 
• maps available, clearly defining the route? 
 
Using this policy during the design process for road projects can help to identify missing elements that will 
help to make the entire system more efficient for all users.   
 
Mobility Framework 
While Gering’s slow but steady growth won’t likely require the construction of many new roads over the      
life-cycle of this Comprehensive Plan, there will be some new roads constructed. The following Mobility 
Framework provides options for Gering to consider in constructing new streets, while also providing           
considerations for smaller repairs and modifications that may take place over time.   
 
Traditionally, transportation planning uses a Functional Classification System to characterize the intended 
function of various roadways in the street network. Typical parameters for roadway design within this system 
include access management practice, number of lanes, mode(s) of transportation, along with the type, speed 
and volume of traffic to be served. This system is based upon the categorization of the roadways as Arterial, 
Collector, and/or Local streets. The approach doesn’t however consider the context of the street - the land 
use and development adjacent to the street - as it may change from block-to-block or area to area.   
 
While Functional Classification is used to define what’s going on in the street – number of lanes, volumes and 
to some extent, speeds, this Plan introduces the concept of a Context Classification to better address the 
unique conditions of adjacent development and what happens behind the curb. At times, the dynamics of the 
land use/development context and roadway function create undesirable impacts in a specific location or seg-
ment of the system. Ultimately, meshing context and function will help to ensure that a one-size-fits-all desig-
nation doesn’t adversely impact Gering’s existing and future neighborhoods. This approach can also help in 
managing roads that change character as they pass through the community. Tenth Street is an example of a 
road that changes from Industrial Arterial to Main Street Arterial over the course of a few miles. Using con-
text considerations can also enhance desirable character areas – such as the Central Business District - in a 
manner that balances community priorities and values with efficient operation of the mobility system 
throughout Gering. 

 



Plan Gering    80 

 

 

 

 
 

Functional Classification Context Classification 

Pertains To: Speed, Width, Volume Pertains To: Site Development, Setbacks, Access 

ARTERIAL 

Thoroughfare 

Main Street 

Gateway 

Industrial 

Residential 

COLLECTOR 
Industrial 

Neighborhood 

LOCAL 
Industrial 

Neighborhood 



Plan Gering    81 

 

Providing this approach, enabling both consideration of Functional and Context Classifications, will enable the 
Gering Zoning Code to better respond to the unique conditions of each specific site. Different elements, or 
exceptions, may be key to different Context Classifications within the Code. In this way, the Plan and sub-
sequent code can better address more flexibility in the regulatory approach, which is a key goal of this Plan 
expressed in Policy 2.3.C – (Clarify and streamline City processes.) 
 
The following pages include the Functional Classification Map. Use this map to help identify the overall      
function of the street, anticipated widths, speeds and volumes. Next is the Context Classification Map, which 
can be used to help identify tailoring of site development standards, setbacks and other elements further  
described in the Zoning Code.   
 
Additionally, several cross-section examples have been provided for representative types, illustrating the 
blend between Functional and Context Classifications. Each provides a description of the Context along with 
primary elements and how they can be tailored to that specific Context. Watch for elements that vary be-
tween Contexts and Function on the following transportation elements:  
 
Movement: Vehicles, Pedestrian, Bicycle, Public Transit 
Parking: On-Street, Off-Street 
Amenities: Streetscape, Lighting, Character Enhancements 
Development Interface: Setbacks  
 
Use these descriptions to help in guiding the creation of a street environment that reflects the individual 
qualities of a district, while maintaining critical function of the transportation network.   
 
Street Typology 
The Mobility Framework Map depicts four primary types of streets. In the case of commerce and residential 
streets, a differentiation is made between the traditional main street/grid block context and the more auto-
mobile oriented arterial/suburban context that exists in Gering. Descriptive and dimensional guidance is pro-
vided in the following narrative, but the application of such design guidelines is subject to adjustments based 
upon the district and context in which the street is located. 



LEGEND 

CLASSIFICATION 

Local 

Collector 

Arterial 

Highway 

Proposed Road 

County Road 

 

 Parks 

River 

Railroad 

  

N 

 

    
   FUNCTIONAL  
   CLASSIFICATION  



LEGEND 

STREET CONTEXT 

Residential 

Commerce 

Main Street 

Industrial 

Gateway 

Other Jurisdiction 

 

Parcels 

City Limits 

River 

Railroad   

N 

 

    
   CONTEXT 
   CLASSIFICATION       



Plan Gering    84 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commerce Streets 
Commerce streets serve as primary commercial business corridors. Commercial activities may stretch all 
along the corridor or be concentrated at nodes where major streets intersect with the commerce street. In 
Gering there are two contexts in which this type of street may occur. 
 
Arterial 
This type of commerce street is characterized as an automobile-oriented roadway serving typical commercial 
development. The primary purpose is to get people and goods from one place to another via vehicular means 
(automobile, public transit, truck) while accommodating bicyclists and pedestrians. Commercial development 
along the arterial commerce street generally provides off-street parking and access from the road/sidewalk 
to the uses adjacent to the street while minimizing the number of access points. 
 
Main 
The main street context must accommodate a greater level of pedestrian movement and activity along the 
street as well as on-street parking. Through traffic, as well as circulating local traffic, is accommodated but 
slower moving within a commercial development framework in which buildings are closer to the street.  
These streets should have wider sidewalks and convenient crossings to serve pedestrians, as well as provide a 
higher amenity level. In this context, a safe and enjoyable pedestrian experience is a high priority. 



Plan Gering    85 

 

Movement 
• Vehicle: up to two (2) lanes on each side of the street, with each lane a maximum of eleven (11) feet 

wide. In the main street context, one (1) travel lane in each direction may be desirable. Medians may 
serve as access management tools in the arterial context to allow for left turns onto streets at                
intersections, and limit left turn access to private property. Medians should be well defined and if used as 
turn lanes should be eleven (11) feet wide. 

• Pedestrian: sidewalks intended for pedestrian travel and direct access into businesses should occur on 
both sides of the street and be a minimum of six (6) feet wide (along commerce arterials) and could      
expand up to twelve (12) feet wide in the main street context. Note: All sidewalk widths and crossings 
should meet ADA standards. Additionally, crossings at street intersections and private drives should be 
designed with pedestrian safety in mind – smaller turning radii to slow vehicle turning movement and the 
proper placement of landscape materials and signage so not to block sight lines is important. 

• Bicycle: bike lanes when provided along commerce streets should be six (6) feet wide, located on both 
sides of the street if possible, and should include a two (2) foot wide strip that separates the bike lane 
from the adjacent travel lane. 

• Public Transit: stops should be accommodated within the width of the right-of-way without creating 
traffic flow interference when possible. 
 

Parking  
• On-street: would not be found along arterial commerce streets. Within the main street context, on-street 

parking may be provided in a variety of formats – angled (to the side or in the middle between travel 
lanes) spaces may be designed to back-in or back-out. Parallel parking spaces may be more likely along 
cross streets within one or two blocks of the main street context. 

• Off-street: in the main street context, off-street parking should have minimum frontage along the street 
with the parking area being behind or to the side of buildings and a wall/fence/landscape feature          
between the sidewalk and the parking area which extends the dominant building setback. Drive access 
should be from cross streets or alleys in this context. In the commerce arterial context, off-street parking 
may be located in the front of properties along the sidewalk with a landscape buffer defining the public 
and private space, and minimal direct drive access points off of the arterial. 
 



Plan Gering    86 

 

Amenities 
• Streetscape: promoting consistent street character adds to the visual appeal and definition of places in 

areas of commerce. Trees should be protected and the use of tree grates along sidewalks (especially in 
main street commerce areas) may be an option depending on tree species and streetscape design. Low 
maintenance trees and vegetation that are drought resistant, and adaptable and tolerant of the          
commerce environment are preferred. Median areas and extended corners at intersections may also   
provide opportunities for enhanced streetscape elements, pedestrian refuge areas at intersections, and 
enhanced character utilizing accent materials. Medians should have a design width that best suits the 
purpose and desired design character along the street. 

• Pedestrian Lighting: intended to provide a well-lit and safe environment along public rights-of-way; may 
be provided through typical street lighting standards on arterial commerce streets. In areas where an en-
hanced character is desired, the following, such as the main street context, independent pedestrian light 
poles, tree lighting, architectural feature lighting, and display window lighting, should be utilized. 

• Character Enhancements: may include public art, educational/interpretive components, benches/bike 
racks, planter areas/boxes, banner systems, wayfinding elements, bike racks, newsstands/information 
kiosks, street vendor stands, outdoor eating areas, and/or other amenities. 

 
Development Interface 
• Setbacks: the character of building edges and the presence of direct building entrances located along or 

connected to sidewalks will influence pedestrian activity. Main street areas have minimal building         
setbacks of zero (0) to five (5) or ten (10) feet and outdoor sales display or sitting/eating areas are         
encouraged. Typical commerce arterials reflect greater building setbacks allowing for off-street parking 
and landscape buffering between the public sidewalk and the building. 



Plan Gering    87 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gateway Streets 
Gateway streets operate as primary entryways into Gering but may also serve a through or around town 
function. This street type has a parkway feel in that there are minimal access points or intersections along 
these streets. Additionally, enhanced visual elements provide an inviting experience. Adjacent but separated 
wide sidewalks and/or trails encourage and support bicycle and pedestrian activity. Enhanced streetscape 
elements, as well as green infrastructure elements provided along this street type, serve to reinforce the      
beautification efforts and natural physical context in Gering. 
 
 



Plan Gering    88 

 

Movement 
• Vehicle: one (1) or two (2) travel lanes in each direction are a maximum of twelve (12) feet wide. Access 

management practices minimize the number of private access points and intersections along these 
streets. 

• Pedestrian/Bicycle: an enhanced sidewalk/multi-use trail is provided on one or both sides of these 
streets. The width is eight (8) to twelve (12) feet with a significant separation distance between the path 
and vehicle travel lanes. Intersection crossings are enhanced to ensure compliance with ADA standards 
and provision of up-to-date ramps, crosswalks, and signal control that accommodates pedestrians and 
bicyclists. 

• Public Transit: likely to be express-oriented service with no stops or minimal stops being accommodated 
at major intersections only in a manner that does not interfere with traffic flow. 

 
Parking  
• On-street: no on-street parking. 
• Off-street: access management practices eliminate entry/exit access points so there is no direct access to 

off-street parking areas or adjacent property. 
 
Amenities 
• Streetscape: shade trees and landscape enhancements are provided in the ample open space associated 

with this street type. Landscaping may be incorporated in medians or along the sides of the roadway    
giving a parkway or boulevard feel. Shade provision along the associated sidewalk/trail is important. The 
open space area (median and adjacent) may include low maintenance native vegetation that also serves 
as a green infrastructure element for gathering, filtering and conveying storm water run-off. 

• Pedestrian Lighting: intended to provide a well-lit and safe environment along the multi-use sidewalk/ 
trail, independent pedestrian lighting is provided. 

• Character Enhancements: may include public art, educational/interpretive components, entry            
monuments/fountains, benches, banner systems, wayfinding elements, and/or other amenities. 

 
Development Interface 
• Setbacks: generally, the side or back of private property will be adjacent to these streets. It is critical that 

appropriate visual buffering through the use of plant materials, berms and fencing be visually appealing. 



Plan Gering    89 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Industrial Streets 
A significant and important part of Gering is the industrial activity that provides employment opportunities.  
Such activity generates truck traffic with specific needs for the efficient movement of goods and products.  
Accommodation of public transit, pedestrians and bicycles is necessary for getting people from where they 
live to where they work. Wide sidewalks serving as multi-use paths are encouraged to provide alternative 
means of transportation separate from vehicular traffic. Landscape amenities are provided on private       
property as buffers between the public corridor and industrial uses. Pedestrian crossings are enhanced to 
provide greater pedestrian safety.  
 
 



Plan Gering    90 

 

Movement 
• Vehicle: should include one (1) or more travel lanes on each side of the street, with each lane a maximum 

of twelve (12) feet wide. Larger corner radii are desired at intersections and access points to accommo-
date industrial oriented traffic. 

• Pedestrian: sidewalks intended for pedestrian travel should occur on both sides of the street (designated 
arterials) and be a minimum of eight (8) feet wide. On local or collector streets in the industrial context 
sidewalks, they may be reduced in width to six (6) feet. Sidewalks should be separated from the vehicle 
lanes for safety purposes utilizing low maintenance methods and materials. Note: all widths and crossings 
should meet ADA standards. 

• Bicycle: bicycle use is primarily intended as an alternate means of transportation (not recreational       
purposes) in industrial areas, thus wider sidewalks are provided to separate bicycle use from vehicle use 
and intersections should be appropriately signed or signalized for safety purposes. 

• Public Transit: industrial streets should be adaptable/designed in a manner that can easily accommodate 
public transit as an alternative means of transportation. 

 
Parking  
• On-street: may be accommodated when it does not interfere with primary traffic movement. 
• Off-street: lots/structures adjacent to buildings with landscape buffers between the parking areas and 

public sidewalks. Convenient pedestrian/bicycle connections should be provided from the public sidewalk 
to the building entry. Landscape buffers may serve as storm water features and incorporate low mainte-
nance native plantings. 

 
Amenities 
• Streetscape:  trees and other plant materials are generally placed on the landscape buffers between   

parking areas / buildings and the public sidewalk. The area between the public sidewalk and vehicle lanes 
may include low maintenance native vegetation that also serves as a green infrastructure element for 
gathering, filtering and conveying storm water run-off. 

• Pedestrian Lighting: is provided via standard street lighting. 
 
Development Interface 
• Setbacks: development setbacks will vary depending on the type, intensity and building form of the      

various industrial uses and settings. 



Plan Gering    91 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residential Streets 
Residential streets connect Gering’s residential neighborhoods to other parts of the community. These 
streets influence the perceived quality of the neighborhood and serve local bicycle, pedestrian and vehicular 
traffic. The users of these streets range from very young children to the elderly as they go to and from         
community activities/events, places of employment and shopping areas, as well as other destinations in and 
around Gering. 
 
Residential streets exist in two contexts, a grid and a suburban framework. In either context, the residential 
street serves as a place for neighborhood interaction. These streets also connect neighborhoods and link 
different parts of the same neighborhood. Such streets should be designed to minimize through traffic and 
speed while also providing safe and inviting places to move and interact.  
 
 



Plan Gering    92 

 

Movement 
• Vehicle: two (2) travel lanes maximum, each a maximum of eleven (11) feet wide. 
• Pedestrian: sidewalks intended for pedestrian travel should occur on both sides of the street and be a 

minimum of four (4) to five (5) feet wide. In the suburban context, sidewalks should be six (6) feet wide 
on both sides of the street. Note: all widths and crossings should meet ADA standards. Wider widths are   
intended for designated trails that may exist in the neighborhood context as described in other parts of 
the Comprehensive Plan. 

• Bicycle: bicycle traffic may take place on the sidewalk (in the case of young families or individuals) and/or 
roadway (older children and adults for recreational and alternate means of transportation). In the          
residential context, sharing the road is an expectation. Designated trails or bicycle routes with                 
intentionally designed wider widths may exist within a neighborhood to accommodate pedestrians and 
bicyclists in and coming through the area. 

• Public Transit: designated collector streets within the grid or suburban residential context should be    
designed in a manner that can easily accommodate the provision of public transit. 

 
Parking  
• On-street: creates a buffer between pedestrians and traffic lanes. On-street parking should consist of a 

minimum of eight (8) foot lanes on each side of the street. 
• Off-street: is provided via private residential driveways, and in the case of higher density residential       

development parking areas, it is provided with landscape buffers between the parking areas and side-
walks. 

 
Amenities 
• Streetscape: intended to provide shade and promote a consistent street character. Species should be  

selected that are native to the area, drought tolerant, adaptable to the street environment, and have 
minimal maintenance requirements. Placement can be determined based on species type and be either in 
the street right-of-way or on private property along the sidewalk. 

• Pedestrian Lighting: intended to provide a well-lit and safe environment along public rights-of-way 
throughout residential areas. Increased levels of pedestrian lighting may be required along sidewalks and 
pathways that are primary connectors between neighborhoods and other community destinations. 

 
Development Interface 
• Setbacks: are intended to provide desired separation between the public right-of-way and private         

development. In areas where the street grid is prevalent, setbacks are likely to be smaller (zero to 20 feet) 
than suburban areas (25 or more feet). 



Plan Gering    93 

 

Gateways and Wayfinding 
Although Gering is a small community by population standards, there are many activities, events and          
destinations that draw visitors to and through Gering. For visitors, the first and most lasting impression of the 
community they visit or pass through is formulated based on the perceived quality of the travel experience.  
Many times, this perception is based in the visual aspects of the route and by the ease/convenience of getting 
from point A to point B. 
 
Wayfinding components, such as thematic entry gateways and directional signage, have a positive influence 
on the perceptions formed by visitors. While much progress has already been made on wayfinding efforts, 
the community should continue to build upon previous efforts and determine a thematic for the design of a      
unified wayfinding system that lends direction in regard to the community’s vision statement – Pioneers        
Welcome! 
 
Gateway areas can provide an opportunity to leverage the unique context and history of Gering by creating 
highly visible arrival points that define the community and leveraging unique features in and around Gering.  
Gateways are intended to reflect the character and vision of Gering and can be a community asset for citizens 
and visitors to experience by: 
 
• Promoting a sense of arrival and anticipation. 
• Establishing landscaping, artwork, signage, and other sculptural elements that reflect local history and 

culture, tell the story of commerce in the area, complement and highlight the natural landscape, as well 
as define community boundaries.  

• Featuring views to landmarks, focal points and significant community features big and small.  



Plan Gering    94 

 

Public parks, open space and pathway corridors can define and enhance the quality of community life in    
Gering. Residents have access to many recreational experiences provided via a number of public entities.  
Whether interacting with neighbors in a local park or walking a trail in a national monument, these places are 
integral to life in Gering.  
 
The framework of public spaces is utilized for both passive and active recreation, as well as organized and     
self-directed participation. No matter the activity, these spaces offer the potential for unique and memorable 
experiences for all parts of the community. Trails can be planned as pathways and links to a system of public 
open spaces, schools, commercial and employment areas, and entertainment locations. By creating a system 
of diverse public open spaces/parks connected by multi-use pathway corridors, Gering will benefit by enhanc-
ing community health/wellness and promoting positive social interaction.  
 
The Principles and Policies in Section 3 – Community Vision include a broad list of items that impact the Parks 
& Open Space Framework, indicating how important these items are to the community. The vision even     
included one of the four primary foundations – Nature Close at Hand – to highlight many of the policies      
associated with Parks & Open Space. For a full description of each Principle and Policy, please reference    
Section 3.   
 
Many of these policies could be handled through more specific and tactical investigation over the years.  
However, several are interrelated with the broader vision of the Plan and should be carefully considered to 
ensure they don’t get lost in the shuffle. Additionally, many of the most critical issues are regional in nature 
and will require broad collaboration between local, regional, state and even federal government, along with 
community and non-profit partners.   
 
Specifically, the following principles embody the strategic differentiation that Gering can use to leverage   
natural assets to promote growth and economic investment:  
 
Principle 1.4 – Our community will embrace the river. 
 
What this principle means for Gering: The river is a defining asset for the community, yet the leveraging of its 
impact is currently limited. As economies shift from resourced-based geographic limitations, quality of life is 
becoming a predominant factor influencing business site selection. Approaching this issue through an        
economic development lens will help add strategic focus as well as horsepower to the initiative. 

4.3 
Parks & Open Space Framework 



Plan Gering    95 

 

Due to the regional impact of the North Platte River Corridor on the tri-town area, a collaborative approach 
to planning and enhancement should be considered. Gering can take a leadership role to ensure that this   
initiative doesn’t get caught up in red tape. To help advance this principle, a logical next step would include 
diving deeper into what it means to the local communities to “Embrace the River.” Exploring specific action 
steps of how the policies in this Comprehensive Plan could be carried out would help define funding needs 
and specific policy changes to pursue. Additionally, creating a master vision for the River could help in         
securing funding.   
 
Principle 1.1 – Our community will preserve views of the Scotts Bluff National Monument and other 
views of significance.   
 
What this principle means for Gering: Views of the rock formations provide a geographic exclamation point to 
the Gering area. Visitors, prospective residents and business owners, and locals appreciate this diversity in 
landform, viewing the formations as a key amenity to the area. Preserving views of the Monument will       
require several different action steps. First, identifying the most important locations that views should be   
preserved from is essential. While changes over time and new construction may impede views from             
individual properties, key public locations should be identified where the views are non-negotiable. Once key 
locations have been agreed upon, a series of guidelines should be created to help future decision-makers 
evaluate proposals. Specific locations to consider views from may include public buildings and parks.   
 
Additional consideration should be given to the protection of land leading up to the Bluffs. Creation of a    
buffer area around the base of the Monument and other areas can help to preserve the dramatic quality and 
function of these areas as public recreation amenities. In addition to purchasing lands, consider exploring a 
variety of tools, including conservation easements, to help minimize development nearby these landforms.    
 
Principle 1.5 – Our community parks will serve all populations.   
 
What this principle means for Gering: Parks are a beloved asset to the people of Gering. The superior quality 
of life has resulted in families choosing to establish roots in Gering over other area communities. In order to 
maintain this competitive advantage, Gering should carefully monitor the types of facilities and experiences 
its parks offer to ensure that it continues to meet local needs.   



Plan Gering    96 

 

To help Gering address the Principle to serve all populations, a Parks Master Plan is recommended to aid in 
reviewing current assets as well as liabilities. In several instances, there may be too many or too few fields, 
courts or parks. Considering changing trends is also important to prioritize popular emerging activities – like 
pickleball – to ensure Gering is meeting the needs of its population.   
 
Additional considerations in a master plan include maintenance. Merging stormwater control facilities can be 
an effective way to utilize open lands while also reducing the amount of area that needs to be maintained.  
Adding naturalized landscapes to parks can reduce irrigation requirements as well as mowing operations.  
Exploring these options in greater detail will help to ensure that assets are managed in an efficient manner.   
 
Parks & Open Space Framework 
With many different assets and elements to work with, the Parks & Open Space Framework includes           
corridors, natural areas, various types of parks, and specialty areas. The following categorization system helps 
to create a shared classification system ensuring everyone is using the same language to describe the types of 
facilities. These include: 
 
 

Parks & Open Space Classification 

Functional Classification Context 

    

PATHWAY CORRIDORS 
Trails 

Bike Lanes 

NATURAL AREAS 
  

  

PARKS 
Community 

Neighborhood 

  
Pocket Park 

  
Plaza 

Specialty Areas 



Plan Gering    97 

 

Pathway Corridors 
Objective: Provide safe access to and connectivity between neighborhoods and community destinations 
throughout Gering while enhancing opportunities for recreation, interaction, health and wellness, and al-
ternative means of transportation. 
 
Pathway corridors serve as links between areas and places in Gering. Such corridors are based in providing 
the opportunity to walk, run, bike for recreational, health/wellness, or alternate means of transportation pur-
poses. Two types of pathway corridors have been identified. 
 
Trails  
Trails are intended to promote social interaction as people move about the community for recreation, health, 
and transportation purposes.  These links and paths may serve multiple types of users and uses – e.g. green 
storm water infrastructure, wildlife habitat, walking/hiking, cycling, etc. – and may all coexist in the trail corri-
dor.  
 
Bike Lanes/Routes  
Bicycling is an affordable and popular mode of transportation that provides physical activity and produces no 
pollution. The lane/route network must integrate with and complement the functions of the various street 
types and trails. In a community like Gering, virtually every street may see bicycle traffic but identifying the 
best location for bicycle facilities, e.g. designated lanes or routes, requires detailed planning with safety as a 
top priority. 
 
Natural Areas 
Objective: Provide nature-based recreation and environmental education opportunities while protecting 
and preserving valuable or unique natural resources and open space.  
 
Natural areas serve as places where people can escape the built environment of the community to enjoy    
natural landscape features and amenities. The area may serve a number of natural functions such as storm 
water management, wildlife habitat, and flood control. The size and shape of the area is dependent upon the 
functions, purpose and uses that are associated with the area. Such areas while protecting or conserving    
natural resources or features also allow public access and support outdoor recreation opportunities that may 
be unique to the area – trail related activities, bird and wildlife viewing, and environmental education/       
interpretation. 
 



Plan Gering    98 

 

Trail heads, variations of trail materials, interpretive/informational signage, fishing or water access points, 
and viewpoints mark the types of low-impact facilities that may be present in natural areas. These areas are     
easily connected to other community destinations by the overall trail system and mobility network. 
 
Community Parks 
Objective: Provide opportunities for multiple types of recreation and community gathering that requires 
larger open spaces capable of supporting organized activities and events in addition to day-to-day use. 
 
Community parks are usually 15 or more acres of area serving residents from throughout the community.  
People may come to the park via personal vehicles, walking, biking or even public transit, which ties to the 
importance of such parks being located on collector or arterial streets and pedestrian/bicycle trail systems as 
people may be coming to the park for communitywide activities. These types of parks will support active and 
passive forms of recreation that appeal to a wide range of user groups. Amenities may include group picnic 
areas/shelters, sport fields/courts, children’s play areas, gardens, trail or pathway systems, community festi-
val or event space and green space or natural areas. Additional support facilities such as indoor recreation 
facilities, off-street parking and restrooms may also be present in these types of parks. 
 
Neighborhood Parks 
Objective: Provide green space and recreational opportunities within the neighborhood at the individual,    
family and small group level for all ages. 
 
Neighborhood parks are typically less than 10 acres in size and serve residents within a ½ mile walking         
distance of the park but may attract users from further away. Such parks may be associated with school     
facilities. These close to home recreational opportunities typically include amenities such as playground 
equipment, outdoor sports courts and fields, picnic facilities, walking paths and open space areas. 
Users of these parks may be from a wide age range and most activities are non-supervised/non-organized 
activities. Walkers and bicyclists will frequent these parks so connectivity to the surrounding neighborhood 
and the larger trail system is important. 



Plan Gering    99 

 

Pocket Parks / Plazas  
Objective: Provide easily accessible and comfortable green space and/or basic recreation opportunities 
while contributing to neighborhood, district and community identity. 
 
These smaller spaces are intimately tied to their immediate surroundings. Generally, such facilities are less 
than three acres in size and meet basic recreational needs or take advantage of a unique context. These parks 
and plazas are small lots with limited amenities – playground, seating and tables, landscape/public art – 
which fit the context and primary user needs. Such parks/plazas will make use of vacant land or other unused 
space and will foster community interaction and civic pride. 
 
Specialty Areas 
Objective: Provide regional or citywide opportunities for specialized recreation, social and cultural activities 
and contribute to community identity and civic pride. 
 
The size of these areas is determined by the type of use. The special use area usually has a single dominant 
use/purpose such as a sports complex, field or stadium, dog areas, skate park, boat or water-oriented facility, 
swimming pool, community center, fair grounds, community entertainment/event venues, etc. Because of 
the specific nature of the facility or area design, consideration must take into account the provision of        
adequate and appropriate support facilities on the site, as well as access to mobility networks utilized by the 
user group(s) coming to the specialty area.  



Plan Gering    100 

 

The Service Area Map provides an overview of accessibility to parks and pathways to help identify areas of 
Gering that may be underserved. A quarter-mile buffer is illustrated around each park (in green) and pathway 
(in blue). While it is preferable for the majority of residents to be proximate to a park facility, access to a 
pathway which connects to a park is a beneficial alternative. The map illustrates that a majority of Gering’s 
residential neighborhoods do have reasonable access to parks facilities with a few gaps to consider               
addressing.   
 
As residential growth occurs, planning for additional parks and pathways should take place in advance of 
neighborhood buildout to ensure that new gaps are not being created. Phased park development can help to 
address the timing and balancing of capital investments. The first critical step is identifying the location of fu-
ture parks. Second, property acquisition ensures that a public facility can be built in the future. A third and         
possibly much later step is the actual development of the park, which should take place when the demand is 
present for the facility.   
 
Specific consideration should be given to identifying a property in Gering’s south growth area (District 3) 
north of the bypass and southeast of Kimball Avenue.   
 
Understanding pathway connections are also important to ensuring that both non-motorized transportation 
and recreation needs are addressed in Gering. The Multi-Modal Connections Map depicts the location of    
existing pathways (both on-street bike lanes and trail connections) and parks. Proposed pathways identify 
primary locations for new facilities to be considered in the near-term for Gering. The indication of a Proposed 
Pathway does not specifically define how that facility might be installed. In some areas, a separated trail may 
be feasible, providing a separated facility that offers a more recreational experience. In other areas, on-street 
bike lanes may be necessary due to existing conditions and buildings adjacent to the street. In any instance, 
additional design plans will be needed to formalize the approach to construction of these pathway facilities.   
 
The Multi-Modal Connections Map also identifies Future Pathways for consideration over time. These routes 
are located in areas that could possibly be considered but are not as high a priority to serve the community in 
the near term. As road projects and development of properties along these routes emerge over time, consid-
eration should be given to ensure that the option to install a pathway facility is not eliminated. Preservation 
of right-of-way is one tool that can help in addressing these segments.   



LEGEND 

PATHWAYS 

Existing 

Proposed 

Future Consideration 

Existing—Other Jurisdiction 

  

N 

Parks 

River 

Railroad 

Main Roads 
Note: The multi-modal connections include separated 
pathways, sidewalk connections, bike lanes, or a 
combination of all of the above. As plans for 
expansion are explored, the ideal path for the 
situation should be evaluated.  

 

    
   MULTI-MODAL 
   CONNECTIONS 



LEGEND 

Parks 

 

Parks 1/4 Mile Buffer 

 

Trails 1/4 Mile Buffer 

 

Pathway 

Other Jurisdiction 

River 

Main Roads 

Railroad   

N 

 

    
   SERVICE AREA     
   MAP 



Plan Gering    103 

 

Everyday life in Gering is dependent upon the availability of reliable energy to support mobility, employment, 
education, commerce and agriculture in and around the community. Gering’s future growth and                  
development will impact energy sources and systems and the need for affordable energy provision will grow 
as well. Through proper planning and policy implementation, it is possible for the community to save money, 
promote a resilient economy, conserve resources, and have a prosperous future. The energy framework for 
the Gering Comprehensive Plan consists of a summary of Nebraska Energy Policy, a profile of Gering’s existing 
energy use by sector (Residential, Commercial, Industrial, and Transportation), and an overview of renewable 
energy sources, as well as strategies and actions for Gering.  
 
Recent Energy Policy in Nebraska 
The State of Nebraska passed Legislative Bill 997 in 2010 that requires all cities and counties in Nebraska 
(with the exception of villages) to incorporate an energy element into any new or updated comprehensive 
plan. Such element must address energy utilization and use by sector, utilization of renewable energy sources 
and energy conservation measures that benefit the community. This section has been prepared in               
accordance with Nebraska State Statute 19-903(4).  
 
Additionally, the State has developed an energy plan and adopted an energy code. The 2011 Nebraska Energy 
Plan identifies three objectives with 14 supporting strategies. The primary objectives are as follows: 
 
• Ensure access to affordable and reliable energy for Nebraskans to use responsibly. 
• Advance implementation and innovation of renewable energy in the State. 
• Reduce petroleum consumption in Nebraska’s transportation sector. 
 
 

4.4 
Energy 



Plan Gering    104 

 

By adopting the International Energy Conservation Code (IEEC), effective August 2011, as the Nebraska        
Energy Code, the State of Nebraska allows all cities and counties to adopt codes that differ from the Nebraska 
Energy Code, but state law requires that such codes be equivalent to the Nebraska Energy Code. State       
Statute Sections 81-1608 to 81-1616 outline the provisions of the Energy Code that are intended to see that 
new structures and significant renovation of existing structures meet uniform efficiency standards. As stated 
in the State Statutes: 
 

there is a need to adopt the International Energy Conservation Code in order (1) to ensure that a     
minimum energy efficiency standard is maintained throughout the state, (2) to harmonize and clarify 
energy building code statutory references, (3) to ensure compliance with the National Energy Policy 
Act of 1992, (4) to increase energy savings for all Nebraska consumers, especially low-income           
Nebraskans, (5) to reduce the cost of state programs that provide assistance to low-income               
Nebraskans, (6) to reduce the amount of money expended to import energy, (7) to reduce the growth 
of energy consumption, (8) to lessen the need for new power plants, and (9) to provide training for   
local code officials and residential and commercial builders who implement the International Energy 
Conservation Code.  
 

Additional information regarding the Nebraska Energy Code can be found at the Nebraska Energy Office   
website (http://www.neo.ne.gov/home_const/iecc/counties/ gage.htm).  
 
Another piece of impactful energy-related State Legislation is LB 436 which allows for net metering. Through 
net metering citizens can generate their own energy and send the excess energy they produce back onto the 
grid. The practice of net metering has many benefits related to the diversifying the use of energy resources, 
promoting growth in the economy, and providing affordable and reliable energy relate service. The citizen/ 
customer is encouraged to employ renewable energy sources with the utility purchasing the excess energy 
produced through a credit system. 
 
In addition to net metering legislation, the State of Nebraska has also incorporated easement provisions    
allowing property owners to create binding solar and wind easements to protect and maintain access to    
sunlight and wind for energy-related purposes.  Local jurisdictions may also develop plans and regulations to 
protect solar and wind access, as well as grant variances under certain parameters to solar and wind energy 
systems that would be restricted under current local regulations. Additional information regarding programs, 
incentives and policies related to energy are summarized on the Database of State Incentives for Renewables 
& Efficiency (DSIRE) website: http://www.dsireusa.org/ 

http://www.dsireusa.org/


Plan Gering    105 

 

Gering’s Energy Infrastructure & Consumption 
Energy provision in Gering is primarily provided through the local electrical and natural gas infrastructure   
systems. 
 
Electricity 
In Gering, the electrical system is owned and operated by the City. The City purchases wholesale electricity 
from MEAN (Municipal Energy Agency of Nebraska). MEAN uses a variety of traditional and renewable energy 
sources to generate electricity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             Source: MEAN 2017-2018 Annual Report 



Plan Gering    106 

 

Natural Gas 
Black Hills Energy is a private utility provider of natural gas in Gering. The natural gas infrastructure system 
consists of a network of service lines of various sizes and ages.  
 
Heating Fuel Sources in Gering  

                   Source: American Community Survey 2017 estimates  

 Occupied Housing Units Percent 

Utility Gas 2,623 81.2% 

Bottled/Tank or LP Gas 56 1.7% 

Electricity 515 15.9% 

Other Fuel 30 0.9% 



Plan Gering    107 

 

Potential Renewable Energy Sources 
Nebraska is a unique state in that it is the only state in which power is provided by public providers only. This 
has resulted in some of the lowest electricity costs in the nation. Low cost energy provision through            
traditional means of production has also served as a stumbling block to implementing renewable energy    
projects in Nebraska at a time when much of the nation is looking to non-traditional renewable energy 
sources. Yet several renewable energy sources may serve as options for Gering in the future. 
 
Biomass  
The use of biological materials (e.g. living or recently living organisms) as an energy source is most recognized 
or associated with the production of ethanol, biodiesel and methane gas. Indirect energy generation from 
biomass sources through the fermentation or degradation of agricultural, natural, and municipal wastes,    
residues or by-products may create a number of fuels. These fuels can be used to produce heat and          
electricity. 
 
Geothermal  
Geothermal energy can be cost effective and environmentally friendly but may be limited in application in the 
Gering area. The most likely application of geothermal energy would be the use of individual heat pump     
systems consisting of closed loop piping filled with fluid which circulates underground at a depth where the 
temperature is constant. In the winter, heat is extracted from the ground and in the summer, waste heat is 
discharged into the ground. Geothermal systems use less energy to operate than traditional heating/cooling 
systems. 



Plan Gering    108 

 

Solar 
Solar power generation may occur at the individual site/user level or as a part of a larger power generating 
system/arrays for a number of users. Solar power generation also consists of passive and active capture 
methods. Passive solar methods maximize the use of the sun for lighting and heating purposes related to   
individual buildings through site planning, building orientation, use of glazing and other building materials in 
a manner which intentionally lights and heats interior space. Active solar methods utilize solar collector       
systems that convert sunlight into electricity. Such systems may include the use of photovoltaic or               
concentrated solar power technology. The National Renewable Energy Laboratory ranks Nebraska as 13th in 
regard to potential solar energy.  
 
Wind 
As with solar, wind power generation consists of both individual site/user applications and larger power   gen-
erating system (utility scale) applications. Small/individual (less than 100 kilowatts) are generally associated 
with home, farm or small businesses while utility systems are larger than 100 kilowatts and are associated 
with electric utility providers. 
 
Nebraska is considered as one of the best wind power generating locations in the nation. Since 2008           
Nebraska has increased its amount of wind energy generation which appears to be a trend that will continue.  
It is estimated that wind power is capable of meeting approximately 120 times the amount of Nebraska’s 
electricity needs. 
 
Gering Energy Education & Savings Efforts 
The City of Gering is undertaking several projects to reduce overall energy usage. Currently, the City is in the 
process of converting their system from a 2400 volt system to a 7200 volt system. This will significantly       
reduce the amount on line loss, meaning the City should be able to use less than half the amount of       
wholesale electricity in order to deliver the same amount of retail electricity to consumers. Other energy    
savings measures include converting all street lights to LEDs which saves a considerable amount of power 
compared to traditional lighting.   
 
 



Plan Gering    109 

 

Education Sources 
The identification and effective use of proper renewable energy sources and systems depends on educating 
the public and employing the best methods and systems for the geographic area. Such education can ensure 
that the dollars spent to employ and maintain such methods and systems at both the individual and          
community scale are maximized. 
 
In addition to local education provided through the City of Gering and the various websites and agencies 
identified in this element of the Comprehensive Plan a variety of energy saving tips can be found at (http://
www.nppd.com/save-energy/homeenergy suite/. This resource provides analysis tools for understanding the 
energy efficiency of a home through a comparison of costs associated with heating, irrigation, lighting, etc.  
Additional locations for energy savings tips include: http://www.neo.ne.gov/tips/tips.htm and http://
energy.gov/sites/pro/files/2014/05/f16/Energy_Saver_Guide_PhaseI_Final.pdf  
 
Funding Sources 
A variety of funding sources are available to encourage energy efficiency upgrades and renewable energy  
applications. These sources range from tax credits, to loans, and to grants from both public and private 
sources. A summary of the various programs and resources in Nebraska can be found at the Database of 
State Incentives for Renewables & Efficiency (DSIRE) website http://www.dsireusa.org/ . 
 
Grants may come from a variety of State, Federal, and non-profit, as well as corporate entities.  One such    
program is the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) program which has provided grants to 
a number of Nebraska communities.  Additionally, energy and weatherization assistance programs are      
available to assist residents needing help paying their utility bills  http://nebraskaenergyassistance.com/
assistance/ and for lower income citizens that desire to lower their utility bills by making their home more 
energy efficient http://www.neo.ne.gov/wx/wxindex.htm.  
 
Below is a brief overview of several programs with corresponding links that can be used to obtain further    
information on several programs in Nebraska. 
 
Dollar and Energy Savings Loans  
Created in 1990, the Nebraska Dollar and Energy Savings Loan program used oil overcharge funds and made 
low-interest loans available for residential and commercial energy efficiency improvements and renewable 
energy projects.  

http://www.nppd.com/save-energy/homeenergy%20suite/
http://www.nppd.com/save-energy/homeenergy%20suite/
http://www.neo.ne.gov/tips/tips.htm
http://energy.gov/sites/pro/files/2014/05/f16/Energy_Saver_Guide_PhaseI_Final.pdf
http://energy.gov/sites/pro/files/2014/05/f16/Energy_Saver_Guide_PhaseI_Final.pdf
http://www.dsireusa.org/
http://nebraskaenergyassistance.com/assistance/
http://nebraskaenergyassistance.com/assistance/
http://www.neo.ne.gov/wx/wxindex.htm


Plan Gering    110 

 

A project may be eligible if it is included in a list of prequalified improvements or with the submission of an 
energy audit that verifies a reasonable payback period for the project / improvement. Additional information 
can be obtained from http://www.neo.ne.gov/loan/ or http://programs. dsireusa.org/system/program/
detail/214  
 
Local Option – Property-Assessed Clean Energy Financing  
The Property Assessed Clean Energy Act of 2016 allows communities to create clean energy assessment      
districts. Through the district cities enter into contracts with qualifying property owners and potentially third-
party financing for energy efficiency and renewable energy projects. Assessments added to the owner’s  
property taxes are used to paid back project costs. Additional information can be obtained from http://
programs.dsireusa.org/system/program/ detail/5869  
 
Property Tax Exemption for Renewable Energy Generation Facilities  
In 2010, Nebraska created a nameplate capacity tax that replaced the Nebraska Department of Revenue’s 
central assessment and taxation of depreciable tangible personal property associated with wind energy     
generation facilities (see L.B. 1048). In 2015, eligibility was extended to solar, biomass, and landfill gas (see 
L.B. 424). Additional information can be obtained from http://www.revenue.state.ne.us/ or http:// pro-
grams.dsireusa.org/system/program/detail/4946  
 
Renewable Energy Tax Credit (Corporate)  
This tax credit provides an opportunity for corporations to reduce their Nebraska income tax liability or state 
sales and use taxes paid by the corporate entity (via refund) that implements an eligible renewable            
technology (e.g. solar, landfill gas, wind, hydroelectric, geothermal electric, fuel cells, anaerobic digestion, 
and fuel cells using renewable fuels). Additional information can be obtained from http://
www.revenue.ne.gov/  
 
Renewable Energy Tax Credit (Personal)  
This tax credit is similar to the Corporate tax credit but is for citizens who implement an eligible renewable 
technology. Additional information can be obtained from http://www.revenue.ne.gov/  
 
Sales and Use Tax Exemption for Renewable Energy Property  
With a minimum investment of $20 million Nebraska provides the opportunity for sales / use taxes paid as 
part of an eligible renewable energy system used to produce electricity for sale. The first 1.5% of sales tax 
charged by a municipality is exempt from this refund program. Additional information can be obtained from 
http://programs.dsireusa.org/system/program/ detail/5427    

http://www.revenue.ne.gov/


Plan Gering    111 

 

04 
Vision to Action 



Plan Gering    112 

 

Plan Gering includes a strong vision for action. Implementation of the Plan will require time, financial and  
human resources, as well as coordination between public and private entities. This section is meant to be a 
pragmatic, action-oriented approach that focuses efforts and limited resources into several strategies to 
achieve success. The strategies and action plan are organized around the four community values.  
 
The following Action Plan identifies strategies to implement Plan Gering over a period of years. Each strategy 
or action item is associated with a desired time frame: short-term for the first one to two years, intermediate 
for years three to five, long-term for years five to 20, and ongoing for implementing actions periodically 
throughout the planning period. Three categories of actions are identified in the “Type” column. They         
include: Code Reform, which is a recommendation to change an ordinance; Policy Decision, which will guide 
day-to-day decisions by staff, Planning Commission, and City Council; and, Program, which is a                        
recommendation for a new program to carry out the goals of this Plan. The “Responsible Party” column lists 
the partners or groups responsible for implementation.  
 
City staff and planning officials should evaluate the implementation matrix annually to document goals that 
have been achieved and determine which goals should take priority next.  

5.1 
Strategies & Action Plan 



Plan Gering    113 

 

Nature Close at Hand 
Short Term 
(1-2 years) 

Intermediate 
(3-5 years) 

Long Term 
(5-20 years) 

Ongoing Action Type  Responsible     
Party 

    Encourage buildings to orient toward the river 
edge. This means locating entrances, patios,     
outdoor seating areas to open toward the river.  

Code Reform City 

    New development located adjacent the river should 
be designed to permit public access to the river. An 
example would be a path connecting a public street 
to the river through the development.  

Code Reform City 

    Encourage development to minimize impacts along 
the river and on the natural environment. This 
could mean identifying development standards and 
management practices such as Low-impact design 
features.  

Code Reform City 

    Encourage development to preserve and enhance 
visual connections to the river. This could include 
preserving public viewsheds whenever feasible or 
designing outdoor spaces to maximize views.  

Code Reform City 

    Develop a long-range plan for uses along the river.  Program City 

    Promote recreational uses and programming along 
the river’s edge.  

Program City 

    Create informational displays along the river high-
lighting the geology and ecology of the river.  

Program City 

    Encourage site and building design to conform to 
the natural setting with as little disturbance as 
possible.  

Code Reform City 

    Create an Overlay based on visual impacts and 
identify viewsheds to which the Overlay will apply.  

Code Reform City 

    Identify partners and methods to protect lands       
adjacent the monument or acquire easements for 
areas with significant environmental and/or histori-
cal value.  

Policy     
Decision 

City 

    Develop incentives and requirements to ensure 
development near natural features to minimize     
adverse impacts.  

Code Reform City 

    Promote the use of reclaimed water for large-scale 
irrigation.  

Policy     
Decision/ 

Code Reform 

City 

    Incentivize low water consumptive vegetation for 
landscaping.  

Code Reform City 

    Encourage open spaces to offer low maintenance 
green space.  

Code Reform City 

    Plan for parks to include natural areas.  Policy     
Decision 

City 

    Minimize light pollution by evaluating and       
amending lighting standards based on dark skies 
best practices.  

Code Reform City 

    Design for safety by encouraging park design to 
include natural surveillance. This can be              
accomplished by eliminating hiding places and 
increasing human presence.  

Code Reform City 

    Continue to acquire neighborhood park spaces 
within ½ mile of all residents when funding is    
available.  

Policy     
Decision 

City 



Plan Gering    114 

 

    Identify possible connective pathways between 
parks and open space and pursue opportunities for 
purchase of land, easements, or other agreements 
for connectivity.  

Policy    
Decision 

City 

    Ensure park programming for all ages and abilities 
of residents.  

Policy     
Decision 

City 

    Provide incentives to increase residential tree   
canopy.  

Policy     
Decision 

City 

    Create a strategy to diversify funding sources for 
maintenance, operation and development of parks.  

Policy    
Decision 

City 

    Explore tree preservation programs to encourage 
good maintenance practices and replanting.  

Program City 



Plan Gering    115 

 

Champions of Commerce 

Short Term 
(1-2 years) 

Intermediate 
(3-5 years) 

Long Term 
(5-20 years) 

Ongoing Action Type  Responsible     
Party 

    Develop incentive programs to support the growth 
and creation of local businesses. This could include 
resources for small businesses such as tax          
increment financing or other financial tools.  

Program City 

    Reduce zoning barriers for home businesses. Code Reform City 

    Explore an organizational structure to lead         
economic development efforts Downtown. This 
could include Main Street, Downtown Development 
Authorities, and Urban Renewal Authorities.  

Program City 

    Brand the Downtown as a recognizable identity.  Program  

    Create a “buy local” campaign that leverages    
Downtown’s brand for collective advertising.  

Program  

    Investigate how local permitting and regulatory 
processes affect business activity and address any 
bottlenecks.  

Code Reform City 

    Inventory and map property available for           
redevelopment and market opportunities.  

Program  

    Communicate funding opportunities to small      
business owners.  

Program  

    Promote local recreation venues, e.g., hiking, rock 
climbing, fishing, biking, and associated services.  

Program  

    Use a varied marketing approach to advertise tour-
ism opportunities.  

Program  

    List and promote available sites in industrial parks.  Program  

    Continue to strengthen partnerships with the 
Chamber of Commerce, PADD, and other economic 
development agencies to attract and retain        
businesses.  

Program City 

    Support schools in improving student performance.  Policy     
Decision 

 

    Develop a brand and identity for the city that    
promotes the community’s assets. This would  
include an overhaul of the City’s logo.  

Program City 

    Increase tourism and the city’s profile as a vacation 
destination by publicizing its quality of life,         
recreational assets, and tourism opportunities.   

Program  



Plan Gering    116 

 

Establishing Roots 

Short Term 
(1-2 years) 

Intermediate 
(3-5 years) 

Long Term 
(5-20 years) 

Ongoing Action Type  Responsible     
Party 

    Develop guidelines that encourage design solutions 
for transitioning between varying intensities of 
building types and land uses.  

Code Reform City 

    Revise the zoning code to allow for the integration 
of various residential densities, building types, and 
styles.  

Code Reform City 

    Provide incentives to encourage a mix of           
compatible housing types that meet the diverse 
economic needs of the community.  

Policy     
Decision 

City 

    Develop tools to create and preserve rental and 
owner-occupied affordable housing.  

Program  

    Create an investment strategy that leverages local, 
regional, state and federal affordable housing  
resources.  

Program  

    Create public/private partnerships to expand    
workforce housing options and availability.  

Program  

    Create and expand rehabilitation programs to  
stabilize neighborhoods.  

Program  

    Coordinate public infrastructure projects with  
community revitalization.  

Policy     
Decision 

City 

    Develop and implement a community wide historic 
preservation plan that seeks to identify, retain, 
preserve, and revitalize the city’s historic, cultural, 
and architectural resources.  

Program City 

    Create a consistent process for the review of    
projects that involve a historic property.  

Program City 

    Develop a system and procedures for code        
enforcement.  

Program  

    Increase landscaping and design requirements in 
parking areas.  

Code Reform City 

    Partner with community organizations to develop 
initiatives or events focused on cleaning up the 
community and reducing litter.  

Program City 

    Revise or update zoning code to reduce the impact 
of sign clutter through amortization of signs that do 
not conform to requirements.  

Code Reform City 

    Revise zoning code to promote mixed-use          
development.  

Code Reform City 

    Amend zoning code to require commercial buildings 
to be built to the street rather than behind a     
parking lot, or to incorporate screening for large-
scale commercial with parking in the front.  

Code Reform City 

    Promote the re-use, redevelopment, and            
revitalization of underperforming buildings and 
sites by employing financial tools and creating    
expediated review processes.  

Code 
Reform/ 
Program 

City 

    Develop design guidelines for industrial              
development that address placement of building, 
screening, landscaping, and buffering treatments.  

Code Reform City 



Plan Gering    117 

 

    Develop a list of preferred and discouraged building 
materials for all zoning districts.  

Code Reform City 

    Require large sections of blank walls adjacent to 
public streets to be broken up using architectural 
design standards.  

Code Reform City 

    Develop a Design Guidelines Handbook that      
includes examples of successful buildings with 
desired materials, architectural features, and design 
elements.  

Policy     
Decision 

City 



Plan Gering    118 

 

Meaningful Connections 

Short Term 
(1-2 years) 

Intermediate 
(3-5 years) 

Long Term 
(5-20 years) 

Ongoing Action Type  Responsible     
Party 

    Develop a streetscape framework that guides     
landscaping, trees, street furnishings, street lighting 
and other public real improvements.  

Code Reform City 

    Require adequately sized sidewalks on both sides of 
streets where significant pedestrian activity occurs 
or is expected.  

Code Reform City 

    Protect pedestrians from traffic with street trees 
and other landscaping elements.  

Code Reform City 

    Encourage frequent bus service and weekend bus 
service serving significant destinations in Gering.  

Program City 

    Establish programs with funding sources to provide 
landscaping enhancements along targeted         
corridors.  

Program City 

    Improve pedestrian safety by building missing links 
in the sidewalk system and replacing sidewalks in 
poor condition.  

Program City 

    Establish clear funding and responsibilities for  
sidewalk maintenance and replacement.  

Code Reform City 

    Create a network of bicycle lanes, trails and routes 
that connect people to places.  

Program City 

    Improve existing trail connections to streets and 
destinations.  

Program City 

    Maintain traditional grid block patterns with     
frequent intersection, through-streets, and alleys.  

Code Reform City 

    Support daily bike travel with ample bicycle      
facilities that are safe for all users.  

Program City 

    Improve pedestrian safety in activity centers using 
frequent and comfortable pedestrian crossings that 
can include raised intersections, pedestrian        
activated signals, curb extensions and refuges.  

Code 
Reform/ 
Program 

City 

    Provide bicycle parking and storage facilities near 
public gathering places.  

Program City 

    Require bicycle parking and storage facilities near 
building entrances for new multi-family and       
commercial development.  

Code Reform City 

    Increase bike lanes by adding lanes to streets with 
sufficient capacity and including lanes in future road 
widening or reconstruction projects.  

Program City 

    Establish regulations that require pedestrian    
connections between new commercial develop-
ment and adjoining residential areas.  

Code Reform City 



Plan Gering    119 

 

Plan Gering includes several strategies and actions to implement the community’s vision. A key component to 
implementing Plan Gering is regular monitoring. In order for the Plan to be successful, the City must establish 
a method to measure progress. Ongoing monitoring will shed light on strategies in the Plan that are working 
and items that need improvement. The City will also need to solicit the help of its partners to measure 
whether the strategies laid out in the Plan are achieving desired results.  
 
It is recommended the City document any progress made with individual action items in an Annual Report. 
The Annual Report should include a status indicator of each action item and a work program for the following 
year. In addition, it should identify any new issues that have come up over the year that are in need of       
consideration by City Council. Along with the Annual Report, the City should implement a longer term         
performance monitoring report where it looks to assess whether the action items implemented have had a 
positive result. Indicators should be identified shortly after the adoption of this Plan to make this assessment 
manageable. As a result of the monitoring program, changes to this Plan may need to occur. Any changes 
shall be addressed through a public amendment process by the City Council.  
 
An update of the Comprehensive Plan should take place every ten years, unless otherwise directed by City 
Council. The purpose of the update will be to refresh and reexamine the vision, values, policies and           
strategies, and develop any new policies if necessary.  

5.2 
Monitoring & Review 



A-1 

 

 
Appendices 



A-2 

 

Public facilities include the structures and services administered by public and semi-public organizations that 
provide for the everyday needs of the community. Collectively, public facilities have a significant influence on 
the quality of life in Gering. This section offers a description of existing facilities.  
 

CITY GOVERNMENT 
The City of Gering is comprised of 11 departments that provide municipal services to city residents and busi-
nesses.  
 

City Administration Building 
The Gering Administration Building is headquartered in Downtown at 1025 P Street. The 12,000 square foot 
facility was constructed in 1990 and is in good condition. Approximately 8,400 square feet of the building is 
used for administration, with the facility providing space for the city administrator, city clerk, city engineer, 
city treasurer and utilities department. The remainder of the space in this building houses the police           
department. 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 

Gering Police Station 
The Police Department is housed in the west end of City Administration Building. The 3,600 square foot      
facility, constructed in 1990, is in good condition. The Department provides 24-hour crime prevention,        
investigation and enforcement services to Gering residents. The Department employs 18 full-time officers, 
two part time officers, two clerical support staff, and one part-time crossing guard. Jail facilities are provided 
by the Scotts Bluff County Corrections Department. The average expenditures needed for police protection 
have   averaged $2,237,000 over the past three years.  
 
Additional office, storage and work space has been identified as a future need for the department. 
 

Gering Fire Department 
The Gering Fire Department is a combination department that offers 24 hour, 365 days all-hazard response 
within a 128 square mile area. The department is charged with fire suppression, technical rescue, BLS medical 
and motor vehicle response, hazardous material emergencies, and fire prevention through programs and          
ordinance enforcement. Every 4-6 years the department develops and updates their strategic plan.   

Appendix A 
Public Facilities 



A-3 

 

The department operates from a 9,400 square foot facility that has seen an addition in 1995. The facility con-
sists of the apparatus bay, two training rooms, two restrooms with showers and two administrative offices. It 
is expected to see updates to the training rooms and offices in the future. The department is in need of          
an additional 3,500 square feet of space for equipment and storage. Due to stormwater mandates, the facili-
ties will also need to go through updates to the apparatus bay and exterior concrete finishes.  
 
The fire department added a 3,500 square foot training facility in 2014 to support training needs. This facility 
is located at 225 D Street and offers live fire training, search and rescue, high angle technical rescue and 
many unique options for the area. The department plans to add additional training props and an outside area 
to support training and required testing of equipment.  
 
The fire protection within the corporate limits has maintained an ISO rating of 4. The department has 10    
firefighting apparatus, two command vehicles and one technical rescue trailer and maintains a replacement     
schedule for these vehicles. It has been policy to set aside funds annually to support the replacement     
schedule. Every year equipment costs increase 3-5% while the funds allocated to the replacement schedule 
has seen a reduction every year. In 2028 the cost of replacing one fire truck will exceed the set aside amount 
in the sinking fund.  
 
Current staffing model is one paid Fire Chief and approximately 32 volunteer firefighters Pro Board certified, 
with many carrying EMT certification. Average response times meet or exceed NFPA standards. Personnel 
response does not meet NFPA standards. The department has seen a 24% increase in call volume in the past 
10 years and approximately 8% increase every year. Each year the department documents about 12,000 man
-hours of training and hosts many state and regional trainings or exercises. With the steady increase of calls 
for service and community needs, a study should be conducted to determine if the staffing model meets the 
needs of the community in the foreseeable future.  
  
The department has played a leading role in the County Mutual Aid Association and participates in mutual aid 
response. Gering FD has an agreement with Scottsbluff to provide automatic aid response to structure fires to 
meet the ever growing NFPA standards.  
 
The department is also unique as it is the only department in Nebraska that participates in a federal            
dispatching system to respond to national wildfires. The department intends to continue this process to     
provide experience to firefighters as well as an additional revenue source. 



A-4 

 

UTILITIES 
 

Central Stores 
The Central Stores Facility is located at 225 D Street. The main building consists of roughly 19,000 square feet 
and houses the offices and equipment for the Water, Wastewater, and Electric Departments.  In addition, the 
Electric Department has another building that consists of approximately 9,000 square feet that is used to 
house equipment.  A new Streets building was completed in 2018.  The building is 14,400 square feet and 
houses offices, break room, restroom, sign shop, and equipment storage.  The Central Stores Facility as a 
whole    currently has adequate space, and does not pose any serious problems at this time. 
 
In the future, improvements will have to be made to the facility to meet the requirements of the City’s MS4 
NPDES permit. 
 

Water System Infrastructure 
The Gering water system has a total pumping capacity of 13.0 million gallons per day with an average daily 
demand of 2.6 million gallons per day.  The peak daily demand is 8.5 million gallons per day.  The system has 
approximately 75 miles of water mains and transmission pipelines ranging from 4-inches to 30-inches.   
 
Through two connections, the City of Gering also provides potable water to the City of Terrytown.  The City of 
Terrytown’s annual usage is approximately 150 million gallons with an average daily demand of 410,000    
gallons.  Terrytown’s peak day of 380,000 gallons per day.  
  
The Gering Water System meets all Federal Drinking water regulations.  In 2009, The City performed an       
upgrade on the water system to comply with the new arsenic and uranium standards set by the                    
Environmental Protection Agency.  The City located a new groundwater source northwest of Scottsbluff and 
blends the water with an existing groundwater source located in north Gering.  The water is pumped from 
both well fields to a 1-million-gallon blending reservoir where the water is chlorinated and then pumped to 
the water system through a pump station.  The pump station currently has a total pumping capacity of 14   
million gallons per day and has a design capacity of 17 million gallons per day.  The pump station site is       
designed to incorporate a conventional water treatment plant and the city has chosen a lime softening    
treatment process for a future treatment process.   
 
In 2018 the City had a water system model performed to identify existing hydraulic problems and evaluate 
effects of additional demands imposed by new development.   



A-5 

 

This model will assist staff with the proper sizing of water pipelines and replacement of existing pipelines for 
future growth and subdivision developments.  
 
The City currently has preliminary plans for the water system expansion to serve the Gering Industrial Park 
and the Highway 71 expressway area from the North Platte River to Five Rocks Road.    
 
The City also has an on-going infrastructure replacement project, where the City is replacing water mains   
installed prior to 1928.  This project will be completed in 2031. 
 

Wastewater System Infrastructure 
The Gering wastewater treatment plant has a capacity of 1.2 million gallon per day.  The average daily flow is 
675,000 gallons per day and our peak flow was 1.1 million gallons per day.  The wastewater collection system 
has approximately 55 miles of sanitary sewer pipelines ranging in size from 6-inches to 24-inches.   
 
The Gering Wastewater Treatment Plant consists of two influent structures.  The industrial influent pump  
station serves the northeast industrial area of the City, east of 10th Street from the Union Pacific Railroad 
tracks north to Country Club Road.  This area used to serve two beef packing facilities until 2005 when the 
last packing facility closed.  The industrial wastewater is pumped through anerobic basins prior to blending 
with the domestic wastewater.  The domestic influent structure serves the remainder of the City.  
Wastewater enters a bar screen to remove most solids and is then pumped to an accelerated aeration basin, 
also known as a Sequencing Batch Reactor, (SBR) for primary treatment.  After the anerobic process, the     
industrial wastewater also enters the SBR for primary treatment.  After primary treatment, the wastewater is 
pumped through three facultative lagoon basins for natural ultraviolet treatment for bacteria and e-Coli     
removal prior to discharge to the North Platte River. 
 
The anerobic process allows the City the capability to treat higher solids and organic loadings more than nor-
mal treatment plant processes.  There are no odors from the Gering Treatment Plant, the anerobic basins and 
the SBR have insulated covers to maintain temperature and for odor control. 
 
In 2018, the City had a water system model performed to identify existing hydraulic problems and evaluate 
effects of additional demands imposed by new development.  This model will assist staff with the proper   
sizing of collection system pipelines and replacement of existing pipelines for future growth and subdivision 
developments.  



A-6 

 

The City currently has preliminary plans for the wastewater collection system expansion to serve the Gering 
Industrial Park and the Highway 71 expressway area from the North Platte River to Five Rocks Road.    
 

Landfill 
The Gering Landfill is located at 200531 U Street.  The roughly 75 acre facility consists of an equipment/baler 
building, offices, and a scale, along with the landfill itself.  Currently the landfill is on the last cell within the 
permitted area.  At last estimates, the landfill was projected to reach capacity in 2026.  The City of Gering is 
currently working with the City of Scottsbluff to site and construct a new regional landfill, at which time the 
current landfill facility may continue to be utilized as a transfer station. 
   

PARKS 
  

Department of Parks 
The Gering Department of Parks operates and maintains parks, the cemetery, golf course, swimming pool, 
open spaces, and trail corridors. The Department provides both maintenance to existing parks and facilities, 
as well as programming and activities at these locations. The Parks Building is located at 900 Overland Trails 
Road.  This building houses offices, a meeting room, break room, and equipment storage.  The Department 
needs additional storage.  Their storage building at the RV park is in poor condition and will need replaced, 
and it would be ideal if the replacement storage could be more centrally located.   
 
Needed Capital Improvements 

• All Parks Departments 

• Need to make improvements to meet new stormwater requirements under the City’s MS4 NPDES 
permit 

• Need to put all playground equipment on a replacement schedule to ensure it is always safe and in 
good working order 

• Need irrigation system updates to make them more water efficient 

• Legion Park 

• Need Bandshell/Bathroom Building to be evaluated and a plan made to either remove or renovate 
the structure 



A-7 

 

• RV Park 
• Need bathroom and meeting room facility to be improved/updated and could be expanded 
• Need a storm shelter for guests 
• Need to expand RV park as it is often at capacity during summer months 

• Cemetery 
• Need to resurface road 
• Need new irrigation system pump and irrigation system updates 

• Five Rocks Amphitheater 
• Need to continue ADA updates 
• Need to create designated vendor area 
• Need permanent fencing along D Street 
• Need expansion/squaring off of stage to make it more functional 
• Need increased seating capacity 

• Golf Course 
• Need line ponds to reduce infiltration, reclaim and fix shoreline/bank 
• Need new irrigation system for holes #2-8.  Current irrigation systems for these holes are over 60 

years old. 
• Need Maintenance Facility Improvements 

• Equipment is becoming increasingly specialized, with larger equipment sizes becoming the 
norm.  Need additional storage space to effectively protect equipment assets. 

• It is now more common for seasonal employees to work part days instead of full days,    
requiring more staff.  This leads to overcrowding of the facility. 

• Need Clubhouse regular maintenance and updating.  Foundation issues should be evaluated to 
determine if settling is a problem.   

• Need Clubhouse expanded to provide storage for restaurant and pro shop 
• Need kitchen appliances in clubhouse to be continuously updated to keep in good working          

condition 
• Need awnings or shade structures over the windows of the pro shop and on restaurant patio area 
• Need to evaluate settling issues in the golf car storage building 
• Need upgraded restrooms on the golf course  
• Need new siding and new roof on pump house building  



A-8 

 

OTHER FACILITIES 
 

Library 
The City is served by the Gering Public Library, located at 1055 P Street. The library was originally constructed 
in 1962 with an addition completed in 1980. The library offers computers for use, WiFi, downloadable audio 
and e-books, and programming for children and adults.  
 
A Library Study was completed in 2018.  This study identified the need for expanded services and a larger  
facility due to the current library’s lack of space and parking shortages during certain time periods. The City 
should work with library officials to identify sites for a new facility and should prioritize keeping the facility 
downtown if land is available.  
 

Civic Center 
The Gering Civic Center, located at 1050 M Street, was opened in May 1993. The 26,500 square foot multi-
function facility accommodates meetings, banquets, reunions, and receptions. The center can entertain up to 
eight events at one time and offers a full service on-site caterer and full service bar.  
 
The Civic Center has a need for more exhibit space for vendor activities during conferences and large 
meetings.  This is one of the primary destination selection criteria and currently the most limiting factor for 
drawing more conferences to this facility.  The facility is also showing its age and needs to be updated in    
order to remain competitive.  The bathrooms, wallpaper, and wall fixtures are all original to the facility and 
need to be updated.  The carpet is over eight years old and also needs to be replaced due to expected wear 
and tear.  In the future, a funding source and schedule for facility updates and regular maintenance should be 
put into place. 
 

Department of Tourism-Gering Visitors Bureau 

The city-funded destination marketing organization (DMO), Department of Tourism-Gering Visitors Bureau is 
located at 1050 M Street (inside the Gering Civic Center) and has served Gering since 1992.  The Tourism   
Department and Visitors Bureau coordinates the many constituent elements of Gering’s tourism product, 
provides visitor services and develops and implements comprehensive marketing plans and strategies         
focusing on convention-meeting, group tour, sports-recreation and leisure markets to increase the number of 
visitors and tourism revenues coming to Gering.  



A-9 

 

A long-term goal of the Tourism Department has been to construct a permanent Visitor Information and    
Interpretive Center in Gering.  This facility is envisioned as a year-round, full-service center that would        
encourage visitors to spend extended time and additional money in the area.  While there are various         
locations where visitors can currently collect information, a stand-alone visitor center could be open        
weekends and evenings during the main travel season and reduced hours during the off and shoulder        
seasons.  The facility might also include a variety of services and amenities including: interpretive displays 
highlighting the area’s history, culture, tourism attractions and festival-events, adequate parking for private 
vehicles and motor coaches, public restrooms, a gift shop specializing in locally-made products and souvenirs, 
comfortable outdoor seating and picnic areas, trained staff and volunteers to offer a variety of services as 
well as free wi-fi internet access. 



A-10 

 




	Agenda August 19, 2025 Planning Commission
	Minutes, July 15, 2025 Planning Commission
	Staff Reports
	B.  Proposed Changes to Zoning Regulations
	 Land Use Tables - Section 3.11
	Gering Zoning Regulations Revised Draft
	Table of Contents

	Emergency Regulations 238 NAC 1 - Letter

	C.  Proposed Changes to the Gering Comprehensive Plan
	Gering, Nebraska Comprehensive Plan
	Option 1 - District Framework
	Option 2 - District Framework





